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The major shareholder of AB Linas Agro Group, a public limited liability company organised and existing under the laws of the
Republic of Lithuania, is offering for sale 55,629,140 ordinary registered shares, of which 8 344,371 units are subject lo the
Ower-Allotment Option. The Selling Shareholder is Akola ApS, a limited liability company incorporated and existing in Denmark.
The Offer Shares are publicly offered for sale to the Retail Investors in Lithuania and Estonia and are also offerred privately to
the Institutional Investors inside and outside these countries except for the jurisdictions, where such offer or sale is not
permitted. The Offering Is conducted on all ar nothing basis, i.e. the Offer Shares will ba sold only on condition that all of tha
Offer Shares (save for the Additional Shares which are subject to the Over-Allotment Oplion) are allocated.

The provisions of the Placement Agreement to be signed among the Company, the Selling Shareholder and the Lead Manager
will provide the Lead Manager with the Over-Allotment Option to purchase up to 8,344,371 Additional Shares at the Offer Price
solely to cover over-allotments, if any. This opfion will be exercisable starting with the date of public disclosure of the final price
for the Offer Shares and end within 30 calendar days after the date of the allotment. The Additional Shares will be deemed to
part of the Offer Shares,

On the date of this Prospecius the registered share capital of the Company equals to LTL 120 million and is divided into 120
million ordinary registered Shares with the par value of LTL 1 each. On 20 November 2009 the Exfracrdinary Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company decided to increase the share capital of the Company up to LTL 158,840,398 by issuing
38,840,398 New Shares at the minimum subscription price per each Mew Share being equal o the bottom line of the Offer Price
Range, to withdraw the pre-emption right of all shareholders to soquire the New Shares and to grant the right to subscribe the
entire issue of New Shares to the Seliing Shareholder, The exact subscription price for the New Shares will be set by the
Management Board and will be equal to the Offer Price for the New Shares. The Mew Shares will be subscribed for and paid up
by the Selling Shareholder from the sales proceeds of the Offer Shares provided that the sale of the Offer Shares will be
implamentad under the terms and conditions of this Prospectus.

The Offer Price will be In the Offer Price Range, The Offer Price in the Institutional Offerng and in the Retail Offering will be the
same. The Offer Price will be announced along with the allecation results.

The purpose of the Offering is to attract additional capital and to ensure successful implementation of development strategies of
the Group. The Offering provides the prerequisites for listing of the Company's Shares. The Company has applied for
conditional listing of all its Shares on the Main List of NASDAQ OMX \ilnius. It is expected that the trading of the Shares in
MASDAC OMX Vilnius will start no fater than 17 February 2010,

The information in this Prospectus is not complete and may be subject to change. In the case of such a change, a
supplement to this Prospectus will be prepared, which will be subject to approval by the competent authority. The
supplement will be published In the same manner as the original Prospectus. Investors who have submitted their
purchase undertakings before the announcement date will be given the opportunity to cancel such undertakings within
five working days after the announcement,

The Prospectus does not constitute an offer to buy the securities referred to herein in any jurisdiction where such offer
or sale is not permitted, Mor are the contents of this document to be construed as legal, financial or tax advice. Each
prospective investor should consult his, her or its own legal adviser, financial adviser or tax adviser for legal, financial
or tax advice.

Prior to making any decision as to whether to purchase the Shares or not, prospective investors should read this
document first, When making a decision to invest, prospective investors should rely upon their own examination of the
Company and the terms of this decument, Including the risks involved.

Investars should rely only on the information provided in this document. No person has been authorised to give any
information or make representations other than those contained in this document and, if given or made, such
information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Company or the Lead
Manager. Meither the delivery of this document nor any purchase made under this document shall under any
circumstances be deemed to imply that there have been no changes occurring in the affairs of the Company since, or
that the information contained herein is correct at any time after the date of this document.

Lead Manager, Underwriler and Book-Runner
Sweadbank, AB
Dated 7 January 2009
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INTRODUCTION

This Prospectus has been prepared by the Company in connection with the Offering and constitutes the basis for the
prospectus dellverable in the form of a single document within the meaning of the Prospectus Regulation, the Law on
Securities and the Resolution of the Lithuanian Securities Commission Mo 1K-21 of 15 July 2005 Conceming the
Approval of the Rules on the Drawing up and Approval of the Prospectus of Securities and the Disclosure of Information.
This Prospectus has been prepared in accordance with the Annex | (Minimum Disclosure Requirements for the Share
Registration Document) and the Annex [Il (Minimum Disclosure Requirements for the Share Securities Note) of the
Prospectus Regulation,

The Retail Offaring is conducted in accordance with and in governed by Lithuanian law with due regard to the laws of
Estonia regulating the public offering of securities in these countries, Before reading this Prospectus, pleasa take notice
of the following important introductory information.

Liability in Connection with the Offering

Persons Responsible. The person responsible for the information given in this Prospectus is AB Linas Agro Group with
its registered office at Smélynés 2C, LT-35143 Panevéiys, Lithuania (the Company).

The Company accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Prospectus. To the best of knowledge and
belief of the Company and its members of the Management Board (Darius Zubas, Tomas Tumenas, Vylautas
Sidlauskas, Ardnas Jammolavitius, Andrius Pranckevitius, ArGnas Zubas and Dainius Pilkauskas), having taken all
reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in this Prospectus is in accordance with the

fa d contains no omissions likely to affect its import.
D
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Limitations of Liability. Without prejudice to the above, no responsibility is accepted by the person responsible for the
information given in this Prospectus salely on the basis of the summary of this Prospectus unless such summary is
misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other pars of the Prospaectus.

Furthermore, the Lead Manager (as defined below) exprassly disclaims any liability that may arise from the information
contained in this Prospactus or from the summary of this Prospecius or from any individual pans thereof and accepts no
responsibility for the correcitness, completeness or import of such information. No information conlained in this
Prospectus or disseminated by the Company in connection with the Offering may be construed to constitute a warranty
or representation, whether express or implied, made by the Lead Manager to any third parties.

Meijther the Company nor the Lead Manager will accept any responsibility for the information periaining o the Cffering,
the Company or its operations, where such information is disseminated or otherwise made public by other third parties
either in connection with this Offering or otherwise,

By paricipating in the Offering, investors agree that they are relying on their own examination and analysis of this
Prospectus (including the financial statements of the Group which form an indispensable part of this Prospectus) and
any information on the Company that is available in the public domain. Investors should also acknowledge the risk
factors that may affect the outcome of such investment decislon (as presented In Section Risk Factors, page 17},



In the event of a dispute arising in connection to this Prospectus or the Offering, the plaintiff may have to resor to the
jurisdiction of the Lithuanian or Estonian courts and consequently may need to cover relevant state fees and translation
cosis associated with this Prospectus or other relevant documents.

Presentation of Information

Approximation of Numbers. Numerical and quantitative values in this Prospecius (e.g. monetary values, percentage
values, etc.) are presented with such precision which the Company deems sufficient in order to convey adeguate and
appropriate information on the relevant matter. From time to time, quantitative values have been rounded up to the
nearest reasonable decimal or whole valug in order to avoid excessive level of detail. As a result, cerain values
presented as percentages do not necessarily add up 1o 100% due to the effects of approximation, Exact numbers may
be derived from the financial statements of the Group. to the exent that the relevant infarmation is reflected therein,

Currencies. In this Prospectus, financial information is presented either in Lithuanian litas (LTL), 1.e. the official curmency
of the Republic of Lithuania, in euro (EUR), i.e. the official currency of the EU Member States participating in the
Economic and Monetary Union, or US dollar {(USD), On the date of this Prospectus, the exchange rate between euro
and Lithuanian litas is fixed to be LTL 3.4528 for EUR 1. Amounts originally available in other currencies have been
converted to euros or Lithuanian litas as of the date for which such information is expressed to be valid. With respect to
the state fees, laxes and similar country specific values, information may occasionally be presented in cummencies other
than LTL or EUR. The exchange rates between such currencies and the euro may change from time to time,

Dating of Information. This Prospectus has been drawn up based on the information valid for the last financial year
ended 30 June 2008, Where not expressly indicated otherwise, all information presented in this Prospectus (including
the financial information of the Group, the facts concerning its operations and any information on the markets in which it
operates) must be understood to refer to the stale of affairs as at the aforementioned date. Information referring to the
date other than 30 June 2009 is identified either by specifying the relevant date or through the use of such expressions
as the date of this Prospectus, to date, until the date of this document and other similar expressions, which must all be
construed to mean the date of this Prospectus (7 January 2009).

Documents on Display. Throughout the lifetime of this Prospectus, the Arficles of Association of the Company and the
historic financial statements of the Company for the years ended 30 June 2007, 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2009
preceding the date of this Prospectus (or copies theraof), where applicable, may be inspected at the head offices of the
Company located at Smélynés 2C, LT-35143 Panevélys, Lithuania and on the Company's website {www.linasagro it).
Any interested parly may obiain a copy of these documents from the Company without charge. To the extent that some
documents other than those menfioned above (Le. reports, letters, valuations, statements) are not reflected in this
Prospectus with reazonable fullness and do not in the sole discretion of the Company constitute business secrets of the
Company, physical inspection of such documents will be arranged at the offices of the Company or via elecironic mail at
the request of any interested parly and subject to an agreement between the Company and such interested party
regarding the means of such inspection. Reference lo the Company's website in this Prospectus should not be deamad
to incorporate the information displayed on the Company’s website by such reference. The annual financial statements
of the Group have been prepared both in Lithuanian and in English in litas.

Third Party Information and Market Information. With respect to certain portions of this Prospectus, some information
may have been sourced from third parties. Such information has been accurately reproduced as far as the Company is
aware and iz able to ascertain from the information published by such other third parties that no facts have been omitted
which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. Certain information with respect to the
markets, on which the Company, its Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures (the Group) are operating (generally
Lithuania, Latvia and Denmark), is based on the best assessment made by the Management Board. With respect to the
industry, in which the Group is active, and certain jurisdictions, in which its operations are being conducted, reliable
market information is often non-available or incomplete. While every reasonable care was taken to provide the best
possible assessment of the relevant markel situation and the information on the relevant industry, such information may
not be relied upon as final and conclusive. Investors are encouraged to conduct their own investigation into the relevant
market or seek professional advice. Information on market shares represents the Management Board's views, unless
specifically indicated otherwise.

Updates. The Company will update the information contained in this Prospectus only to such extent, at such intervals
and by such means as required by applicable law or considered necessary and appropriate by the Company. The
Company is under no obligation to update or modify forward-looking statements included in this Prospectus,



Definitions. In this Prospectus, the definitions in capital leters will have the meanings indicated below unless the
context of the Prospecius requires otherwise. Definitions are listed in alphabetical order, and the list is limited to the
definitions which are considered to be of greater importance. Other definitions may be defined elsewhere in the

Prospactus.

Additional Shares

Agriculture Growing
Programme

Akola Group

Associate
Aukitadvario ZUB
Broker

CAGR

Cls
Company

ECRS
EEA
EU-27
FAD
FAPRI
Group
1AS

IFRS
Institutional Investors

Institutional Offering

Joint Venture

Key Executives

Law on Companies
Law on Securities
Landvesta Land Holding

Lip to 8,344,371 Shares of the Company which are subject to the Over-Allotment Option

The instrument employed by the Group to provide farmers with agricultural supplies such
as ceriified seads, ferfilisers and plant prolection products and offer a wide range of value
added services, including pre-financing, consultations, field visits, ete. In return, the
Programme helps the Group to secure supply of agricultural production

The group of Akala ApS to which the Company belongs as indicated in Section Structure of
Akola ApS Group, page 60

The entity in which the Group has significant influence

Panevézio rajono Aukitadvario Z0B

Swedbank, AB in Lithuania and Swedbank AS in Estonia

The compound annual growth rate. CAGR is calculated using formula:

Ending Value }[ B of years ] i

CAGR = [—-—
Beginning Value

Commuonwealth of Independent States

AB Linas Agro Group, a public limited liability company organised and existing under the
laws of the Republic of Lithuania, legal person code 1480 30011, VAT payer's code
LT480300113, registered office at Smelynes 2C, LT-35143 Panevéiys, Lithuania, the data
on which is kept at the Register of Lagal Persons

Estonian Central Register of Securities
The European Economic Area

The European Union consisting of 27 member states as of 1 January 2007
The Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations

The Food and Agricultural Policy Research Institute

The Company along with its Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
The Intemational Accounting Standards forming part of the IFRS

The Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

The gualified investors as defined in Directive 2003/71/EC of the European Parliament and
of the Council of 4 November 2003 on the prospectus to be published when securities are
offered to the public or admitted to trading and amending Directive 2001/34/EC and/or as
defined by the national securities legislation of each refevant country where the Offer
Shares are being privately offered

The offering of the Offer Shares to the Institutional Investors worldwide {(except for the
United States and the United Kingdomy) in reliance on certain exemptions found in the
national securities legislation of each relevant country, which does not constitute a public
affering of the Offer Shares

The contractual arrangemeant whereby two or more parties underiake an economic activity
that iz subject to joint control, and a jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that involves
the establishment of a separate entity in which sach venturer has an interest

The senior managers responsible for the Group as listed in Section Managamant
Structure, page 78.

The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania

The Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania

Collectively 20B Landvesta 1, ZUB Landvesta 2, ZUB Landvesta 3, Z0B Landvesta 4,




Companies or
Landvestas

Lead Manager

LCSD

LsC

Luksiy 208
Management
Medeikiy Z0B
NASDAQ OMX Vilnius
MNew Shares

Offering
Offer Period

Offer Price

Offer Price Range
Offer Shares

Over-Allotment Option
Placement Agreament

Prospectus
Prospectus Regulation

Purchase Undertakings

Register of Legal
Persons

Related Parties
Retail Investors
Retail Offering
Selling Shareholder

Shares
Subsidiary

Summary
USDA

2006/2007
2007/2008

ZUB Landvesta 5 and ZUB Landvesia &

Swedbank, AB, a bank organised and existing under the laws of the Republic of Lithuania,
legal person code 112029651, domiciled at Konstitucijos 204, LT-03502 Vilnius, Lithuania

The Central Securities Depository of Lithuania

The Securities Commission of the Republic of Lithuania

Sakiu rajono Luksiy 208

The Management Board and the Key Executives of the Company
Birzy rajono Medeikiy 208

AB NASDAQ OMX Vilnius

38,940,398 Shares to be nawly issued by the Company based on a decision of the
Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company of 20 November 2009 at
the minimum issue price of each new share equal to the bottom line of the Offer Price
Range and to be subscribed and paid up by the Selling Shareholder from the sale
proceeads of the Offer Shares

The Ratail Offering and the Institutional Offering of the Offer Shares collectively

The period during which investors may submit, modify or withdraw the Purchase
Undertakings as indicated in Section Offer Period, page 122

The final price per each Offer Share determined in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Offering

The range within which the Offer Price may fall

47,284,769 Shares of the Company that are being offered by the Selling Shareholder to
investors in the course of the Offering as well as any of 8,344,371 Additional Shares which
are subject to the Over-Allatment Option

Tha right to be granted by the Selling Shareholder to the Lead Manager under the
Placement Agreement to acquire the Additional Shares for the final Offer Price

The agreement to be concluded between the Company, the Seliing Shareholder and the
Lead Manager related to the Offering

This document including its annexes

The Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004 implementing Directive 2003/71/EC of the
European Parliament and of the Council as regards information contained in prospectuses
as well as the formal, incorporation by reference and publication of such prospectuses and
dissemination of advertisements

The order submitted by an investor (either Retail Investor or Institutional Investor) for the
purchase of the Offer Shares in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Prospectus

The Register of Legal Persons of the Republic of Lithuania

As defined in the International Accounting Standard 24, Related Parly Disclosures
Any investors in Lithuania and Estonia other than the Institutional Investors
The public offering of the Offer Shares to the Retail Investors in Lithuania and Estonia

The Company’s major shareholder Akola Aps, with the registered office at Dampfaergevej
3, DK-2100 Copenhagen, Denmark, offering the Offar Shares for sale

Any ordinary registered shares of the Company with the nominal value of LTL 1 each
issued and outstanding at any time

The subsidiary is an entity controlled by another entity. Conidrol is the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity 50 as to oblain benefits from its activities

The summary of this Prospectus presented on page 9
The United States Department of Agriculture
The financial year ended as of 30 June 2007
The: financial year ended as of 30 June 2008




2008/2009 The financial year ended as of 30 June 2009

2009/2010 The financial year to be ended as of 30 Juna 2010
2010/2011 The financial year to be ended as of 30 June 2011
2011/2012 The financial year to be ended as of 30 June 2012

Financial and Operational Information

The Company has applied the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2009, which include presentation of the comparative financial
information for the financial year ended 30 June 2008, and corresponding financial information for the financial year
ended 30 June 2007, Therefore, the IFRS has been consistently applied by the Group for the whole period covered by
the historical financial information presented in this Prospectus.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Prospectus Includes forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on current
expectations and projections about the future events, which are in turn made on the basis of the best judgment of the
Management. Certain statements are based on the belief of the Management as well as assumptions made by and
information currently available to the Management. All forward-looking statements included in this Prospecius are
subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about the future operations of the Group, the macro-economic
environment and other similar factors,

In particular, such forward-looking statements may be identified by use of such words as strategy, expect, foracast, plan,
anticipate, beliave, will, continue, estimate, intend, project, goals, targets and other words and expressions of similar
meaning. Forward-looking statements can also be identified by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or
current facts. As with any projection or forecast, they are inherently susceptible lo uncerainty and changes in
circumstances, and the Company does not owe and expressly disclaims any obligafion to update or alter its forward-
looking statements contained in this Prospectus, whether because of such changes or any new information or
subsequent events or otherwise.

The validity and accuracy of any forward-locking statements is affected by the fact that the Group operates in the
competitive business environment. This business is affected by changes in domestic and foreign laws, regulations and
taxes, by new developments in competition, economic, strategic, political and social conditions and other factors. The
Group’s actual results may differ matenally from the Management's expeclations because of the changes in such
factors, Besides, there are certain other factors and risks that could adversely affect the operations, the business and the
financial results of the Group (please see Section Risk Faclors, on page 17, for the discussion of the risks which are
identifiable and deemed material at the date hereof).

Use of this Prospectus

This Prospectus is prepared solely for the purposes of the Retall Offering and may not be construed as a warranty or
representation to any person not participating or not eligible to participate in the Retail Offering. No public offering of the
Shares is conducted in any jurisdiction other than Lithuania and Estonia and conseguently any dissemination of this
Prospectus in other countries may be restricted or prohibited by law., The Prospectus can not be used for any purpose
other than for making the decision to participate or not to participate in the Retail Offering. You may not copy, reproduce
{other than for private and non-commercial use) or disseminate this Prospecius without express written permission of the
Company. Please see Section Offering and Transfer Restrictions, page 127, for more infarmation,




SUMMARY

This Summary fz not the prospectus for the public Offering and the listing of the Company's Shares and should be read
merely as an infroduction fo the same. This Summary presents the facts and circumstances that the Company considers
important in terms of the Company's business and the public Offering of the Company's Shares. Any decision o
participate in the Offering and inwvest in the Company's shares should be based by each investor an the Prospeclus as a
whole and not merely on this Summary. Prospeclive investors are caulioned that where a claim relating fo the
information contaimed in the Prospectus (or this Summary) is brought before a courl, the plaintiffl investor mighl, under
the national legislation of the relevant state, have lo bear the costs of fransiating the enfire Prospectus before the court
proceedings are initiated. The Company accepts civil fiability in respect of this Summary solely in the case where this
Summary is found to be misleading, inaccurale or inconsistent when read together with the FProspectus as a whole.
Please note that a summary of the Prospectus is also available as a separate document in the Lithuanian and Estonian
languages. Such separate document is nof merely a transiation of this Summary and contains mare (nfarmation than the
Summary. It is made available lo potential investors in the same manner and through the same channels as the

Prospectus,

Operations of the Group

The Group is an integrated agribusiness company producing and marketing agricultural products, feedstuff and other
agriculture related supplies. Founded in 1991, the Group is a leading Baltic exporter of grains and food industry co-
products, and a leading Lithuanian supplier of agricultural inputs such as cerlified seeds, fertilizers and agricultural
machinery in Lithuania. A major part of sales is performed through its Danish subsidiary Rosenkrantz A/S, which fortifies
the international reputation of the Group placing it in line with top European players. The Group is a significant producer
of grain and milk in Lithuania. In addition, it has an extensive grain elevator and road-railway-sea logistics network 1o
support its operations.

In recent years the Group has experienced rapid development resulting into significant growth of its asseds, revenues
and profits. During the last financial year the Group has booked LTL 1,114 million revenues and LTL 32 million net
profits. Together with its joint ventures and associates it employs 730 employees in three countries,

The Group's operations are classified into five reportable business segments: Grains and Oilseeds, Feedstuffs, Farming,
Agricultural Inputs, and Other. Each of the segments is organized depending on the nature of products and business
activities,

Given below is a brief overview of the sagments:

- Grains and Qilseeds includes origination, storing and international marketing of various grains and oilseeds. Grain
products include wheat, barley, maize, and some other grains. Ollseeds comprise rapeseeds and linseeds. The
Group links its sourcing markets with its customers by providing value-added services llke grain and oilseed
cleaning, drying, storage, transportation, and markeling.

- Feedstuffs represents international sourcing and marketing of food industry co-products like sunflower seed cake,
sunflower seed exiraction, sugar beet pulp pellels, rapecake and similar products. In addition, the segment includes
other feadstuff related products like soybean, soymeal and vegetable oil. The Group purchases various food
industry co-products and buffers them into exportable batches,

- Farming covers milk production and growing of grain, rapeseed and sugar beel. The Group owns four farms in high
productivity areas of Lithuania providing part of the supplies to the Grains and Oilseeds segment. Farms also
produce different types of fodder, which is mainly used to feed own cattle.

- Agricultural Inpuls provides vital supplies like certified seeds, ferilizers, plant protection products and agricultural
machinery to farmers. In addition, the Group consults affiliated farmers about the newest agricultural trends and
growing technigues. The major part of agriculiural inputs is sold through joint ventures, UAB Dotnuvos projekiai and
UAB Kustodija. Their results are not reflected in the segment reporting as companies are nol consolidated into the
Group and their results are accounted using equity method.




- Other comprises all activities, which cannot be group into the first four core segments. It includes sales of solid
biofuel, elevator senvices, and other products or services,

The Section Principal Achivilies on page 46 provides more defail overview of business operations.
History and Development

The origins of the Group date back to 8 July 1881, when UAB Linas ir Viza (the cument name AB Linas Agro), a
Lithuanian private limited liability company, was founded by several Lithuanian individuals lead by Darius Zubas (Darius
Zubas remains deeply involved in the development of the business and currently is the Chairman of the Management
Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company). In its early years UAB Linas ir Viza engaged in international
marketing of agricultural goods, primarily rapeseed. This entity, being the oldest member of the Group and in 2006
having changed its name to AB Linas Agro, Is currently a fully-owned subsidiary of the Company. In 1983 the Group
introduced agricultural contracting agreements to Baltic farmers to secure supply of grains and rapeseed, which later
evolved into the Agriculture Growing Programme, The Programme was intended to deepen the relationships with
farmers by giving them advice on how to improve yields of their crops as well as enlarge the Group's business portfolio
with agricultural inputs such as certified seeds, fertilizers, agricuttural machinery and the like. The Group's entrance into
the agricultural supplies business was marked by the acquisition of 50% stake in UAB Dotnuvos projektai in 1998. The
initial business model of UAB Dolnuvos projektal was buill around reselling of agricultural machinery and products made
by other manufaciurers to Lithuanian farmers but in 2001 the company launched a seed preparation factory and started
marketing its own certified seeds.

In 2002, the Group continued expanding its presence in the agriculture value chain by adding distribution of plant
protection products and microelemental fedilisers via another joint venture, UAB Kustodija. In the same year the Group
built its first modern grain elevator and started grain handling and storage services, In 2003 the Group stepped inlo the
agricultural production business by acquiring several Lithuanian farms engaged in diary farming and grain, rapeseed and
sugar beet growing. In 2006, the Group started international marketing of solid biofuels. During the same year the legal
form and the name was changed from UAB Linas ir Viza to AB Linas Agro. The new name was considered lo represent
the spirit and the activities of the Group In a better way. The Group continued strengthening its presence in the supply
chain of rapeseed in 2007, when UAB Mestilla, the largest rapeseed crushing and biodiesel production plant in the
Baltics, was built in Klaipéda, Lithuania. The shareholders of UAB Mestilla are the Selling Shareholder and Statoll New
Energy AS. On 14 March 2007 AB Linas Agro sold 30 % of UAB Linas Agro Veterinarijos Centras shares for LTL 12,926
thousand.

In 2008, the Group acquired a grain elevator in Siaulial, Lithuania currently being the largest elevator owned by the
Group. In the same year the Company went reorganisation when its legal form and name were changed from UAB
Agriveta to AB Linas Agro Group. In September 2008 all shares in AB Linas Agro were formally contribuled o the share
capital of the Company. Finally, in 2008 the Group acquired 60% of shares in Rosenkrantz A/S, its long-term trading
partnar, Since then Rosenkrantz A/S is the main sales hub of the Group to Western Eurape and North Africa,

Group Structure

Being involved in the international integrated agribusiness activities the Group is comprised of 24 entities, including 3
holding companies, 6 companies engaged in marketing (one of them is a holding company at the same time), 15
companies engaged In production and service rendering and a logistics company. The complete list of the enfities in
which the Company holds direct and indirect interest is presented in Table 48. For the purposes of the consolidated
financial statements as of 30 June 2009 the Company has 18 Subsidiaries, 4 Joint Venlures and 1 Associate. See Table
51 on page 68 for the list of the Company's Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures for each financial period, The
consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
information on the registered offices and activities of the Group companies is summarised in Table 48, Thae current
structural chart of the effective share of stock held by the Company within the Group is provided below:
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Figure 1. Structural chart of the effective stock held by the Company within the Group

Management and Employees

The Company has a two-tier management system, i.e. the Management Board and the Chief Executive Officer (the
General Manager) of the Company. No Supervisory Council is formed in the Company. The Company's Management
Board is comprised of seven members (Darius Zubas, Viytautas Sidlauskas, Arinas Zubas, Dainius Pilkauskas, Ardnas
Jarmolavidius, Andrius Pranckevitius and Tomas Tuménas) who are elected for the tenure of four years. The
Company's Chief Execulive Officer is Darius Zubas. In addition, the Company employs several Key Executives. The
Company's Key Execulives currently are Andrius Pranckevitius (Deputy Chief Executive Officer), Tomas Tuménas
{Chief Financial Officer), Ramuté Masiokaité (Chiel Accountant), Jorinta Zolubaité (Corporate Communication Manager)
and Silvija Lukosidnaité (Human Resources (HR) Manager).

The internal management structure of the Company is shown in Section Management Strucfure, page 78.

On 30 Seplember 2009 the Group (including the Associates and the Joint Venlures) employed 730 employees. The
breakdown of the Group employees by geographical location is presented in the table below. The breakdown of the
Group employees by companies and business segmenis is presented in Table 70 and Table 771 respectively. Thase
breakdowns exclude secondary employment in case of the employee's engagement with several companies of the
Group at the same time.

Table 1. The breakdown of the Group employees (including Associates and Joint Ventures) by geographical

location
Lithuania ' 855 693 708 712
Latvia 9 10 1 C w0
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Denmark
Total for the Group 670 709 725 T30

0wt of this number four employess were employed in the Company.
Source: the Company

Risk Factors

The Group's operations inevitably involve certain risks and contingencies. The Company's prospective investors are
strongly advised o consider Section enlilied Risk Facifars, page 17, for a comprehensive overview of the circumstances
regarded by the Company as being potentially capable of affecting the resulls of the Group's operations (and the value
of the Shares accordingly) in future. In particular, such circumstances may relate to the industry, in which the Group
operates or fo ceriain company-specific aspects of operations or 1o the general business conditions and to the public
offering and listing of the Shares.

The prospective investors are cautioned that despile every efiorts taken to make proper mention of each material risk
known to the Company, the Group's operations may still be affected by some other circumstances, which are either not
known or not considared material at the moment.

Shares and Shareholders

On the date of this Prospectus the share capital of the Company equals to LTL 120 million and is divided into 120 million
Shares, The major shareholder of the Company is the Selling Shareholder holding around 80% of the share capital and
votes in the Company. The remaining part of the Shares is held by four individuals. The shareholders of the Selling
Shareholder are the following persons: Darius Zubas, Viytautas Sidlauskas, Arlinas Zubas and Dainius Pilkauskas. More
information on the Company's shareholders is provided in Section Major Shareholders, page BS.

Table . Sharum f l:lm an

1 Akola ApS 895,885,922 79.89% -

2 Darus Zubas 17,049,895 14.21% gﬂ;"gzc‘fnﬂ}:mmm B,

3 \ylautas Sidlauskas 6,003,521 500% Member of the Management Board

4  AmnasZubas 480281  0.40% Member of the Management Board

5 Dainius Pilkauskas 480,281 0.40%  Member of the Management Board
Total 120,000,000 100.00%

o s . = :

Projected Investments

The Managemeant plans further development of the Group, which should result in growing business volumes and profits,
Growing business volumes will require a LTL 40 million increase in working capital. Part of this increase will be allocated
for the expansion of the product range and the base of Group's suppliers.

Volume growth is hardly feasible without the adequate investments into business infrastructure. Due to this reason the
Group plans significant funds for its new acquisitions and developments of existing assets.

During the years 20092010 and 2011/2012 the Group plans to spend up to LTL 70 million for the construction of new
elevators and extension of the ewssting elevator storage capacifies in Lithuania and Latvia. Additional elevator
infrastructure is needed i0 accommodate increasing paricipation in the Agriculiure Growing Programme and
consequently growing volumes of grains and oilseeds provided by farmers.

The Group plans to spend up to LTL 40 million for development of its farming activities, which are intended to provide
extra volumes of crops for the Grains and Oilseeds seament and would purchase significant quantities of agricultural
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inputs sold by other companies of the Group. In addition, own farming sites are imporant as demo fields for
neighbouring farmers in terms of possible achievements in crop ylelds and milk production, which result from right
growing technologies and quality agricultural inputs.

Furthermore, the Group plans to spend up to LTL 40 million for acquisitions of similar businesses (o its current activities
and increases of current shareholdings.

Investment plans are dependent on the Group's ability to negotiate beneficial terms of the acquisition contracis and
receive subsidies for the construction of elevators. The Group will also make replacements and small improvements of
its existing assets, which would be close fo current levels of depreciation.

Future investments will be financed by the proceeds of the Offering, earned profits and bank loans. Usually working
capital and elevator construction can be co-financed by bank loans up to 50%. In addition, elevator construction may
receive approximately 20% subsidy in Lithuania and 40% subsidy in Latvia. Farming activities can be co-financed by
bank loans up to 30% of the acquisition value. The exact use of financial leverage will depend on the timing of the
acquisitions and bank policies towards lending.

Offering

Selling Shareholder. The Selling Shareholder is Akola ApS, a limited liability company incorporated and existing in
Denmark.

Offering. The Selling Shareholder of the Company is offering for sale 55,629,140 Offer Shares (including 8,344,371
Additional Shares which are subject to the Over-allotment Option). The Selling Shareholder is publicly offering the Offer
Shares for sale to the Retail Investors in Lithuania and Estonia and Is offering them privately 1o the Institulional Investors
inside and outside these countries except for the jurisdictions, where such offer or sale is not permitted, The public
offering made to the Retail Investors in Lithuania and Estonia is conducled in accordance with applicable laws as a
secondary offering of the Shares of the Company. The private offering made o the Institutional Inveslors inside and
outside Lithuania and Estonia is targeted to pre-determined professional investors and does not constitute a public offer
of the Shares under the laws of any jurisdiction, The Institutional Offering constilutes a private offer to the Institutional
Investors of the Offer Shares outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act. The Retail
Offering and the Institutional Offering together constitute the Offering. The complete set of conditions applicable to the
Offering may be found In Section Terms and Condlitions of the Offering, page 121.

The Selling Shareholder reserves the right to cancel the Offering at any time before receiving full payment for all of the
Offer Shares, if the Placement Agreement among the Company, the Selling Shareholder and the Lead Manager is
terminated prior to the settlement date.

The Offering is conducted on an afl or nothing basis, i.e. the Offer Shares will be sold only on condition that all of the
Offer Shares (except for the Additional Shares which are subject to the Cver-Allotment Option) are allocated.

The purpose of the Offering is to attract additional capital and fo ensure successful implementation of development
strategies of the Group. The Offering provides the preraquisites for listing of the Company’s Shares.

Over-Allotment Option. The provisions of the Placement Agreement to be signed among the Company, the Selling
Shareholder and the Lead Manager will provide the Lead Manager with an option to purchase up fo 8,344 371 Additional
Shares at the Offer Price solely to cover over-allotmenis, if any. This option is exercisable starling with the date of public
disclosure of the final price for the Offer Shares and ending within 30 calendar days after the date of the allotment.

Shares. On the date of this Prospectus the registered share capital of the Company equals to LTL 120 million and is
divided into 120 miflion ordinary registered Shares with the par value of LTL 1 each.

On 20 November 2009 the Extraordinary Mesting of Shareholders of the Company decided to increase the share capital
of the Company up to LTL 158,940,388 by issuing 38,940,398 New Shares at the minimum subscription price of each
MNew Share equal fo the bottom line of the Offer Price Range, to withdraw the pre-emption right of all shareholders to
acquire the New Shares and {o grant the right 1o subscribe the entire New Share issue to the Selling Shareholder~TFhe
exact subscription price of the New Shares will be set by the Management Board of the Company and will hefaguil
the Offer Price per each Mew Share. The New Shares will be paid up from the sales proceeds of the Offer S§ l"( T
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Selling Shareholder provided that the sale of the Offer Shares will be implemented under the terms and conditions of this
Prospecius.

Immediately after the Offering and the Selling Shareholder acquiring the Mew Shares (38,940,388), the Shares being
sold as part of the Offering will amount to 35% of the share capital of the Company provided that the Over-Allotment
Option is exercised in full.

On completion of the Offering (and assuming that the Over-Allotment Option has been exercised in full) and acquisition
by the Selling Shareholder of the Mew Shares, the latter will hold 48.85% of the Shares and the existing individual
shareholders of the Company will collectively hold 15.11% of the Shares

Offer Pariod. The Offer Period commencas on 25 January 2010 at 9.00 hours (Lithuanian time, GMT+2) and terminates
an 5 February 2010 at 14.00 hours (Lithuanian time, GMT+2).

Offer Price Range. Prior to this Offering, there has been no public market for the Shares. Consequently, the Offer Price
Range for the Offer Shares has been determined through discussions among the Coempany, the Selling Shareholder and
the Lead Manager. The Offer Price Range is LTL 2.05 to LTL 2.53 per Offer Share.

The Seling Shareholder will decide upon the exact Offer Price in consultstion with the Lead Manager after the
completion of the book-building process directed at the Institutional Investors in the course of the Institutional Offering.
The Offer Price will be based on the tenders for the Offer Shares obtained from the Institutional Investors, taking into
account the total demand in the Institutional Offering, the price sensitivity of such demand and the quality of the demand.
The Offer Price will be in the Offer Price Range. The Offer Price in the Institutional Offering and in the Retail Offering will
be the same. The Offer Price will be announced along with the allocation results.

Distribution and Allocation, The allocation of the Offer Shares between the Institutional Offering and the Retail
Offering has not been predetermined. It is preliminary planned that up to 25% of the Offer Shares (except for the
Additional Shares that are subject to the Ower-Allotment Option) will be sold in the Retail Cffering. The Seliing
Shareholder together with the Lead Manager will decide on the allocation after determining the Offer Price upon the
expiry of the Offer Period, though no later than on & February 2010. The Offer Shares will be allocated o investors
participating in the Offering using a step-by-step approach described in Section Distribution and Allocation Plan, page
125,

Payment and Settlement A Retail Investor or Institutional Investor, willing to purchase any of the Offer Shares is
requested to submit the Purchase Undertaking following the procedure described in Section Submission of Purchase
Undertakings, page 122. The Offer Shares allocated to investors will be transferred o their securities accounts on or
about 11 February 2010 through the delivery versus payment method simuitaneously with the transfer of payment for
such Offer Shares. In ne event will the date of settlement be later than 12 February 2010,

Listing. The purpose of the Offering is, among other things, the subsequent listing of all the Shares on NASDAQ OMX
Vilnius. The Company has applied for conditional listing of all its Shares on the Main List of NASDAG OMX Vilnius and
will take all necessary measures to comply with NASDAQ OMX Vilnius rules in order to have its application approved. It
is expected that the trading of the Shares in NASDAQ OMX Vilnius will start no later than 17 February 2010

Lock-up Agreements. Except for the Offer Shares (including any Additional Shares sold pursuant to the Over-Allotment
Option), the Company and the Selling Sharehclder have agreed thal, without a prior written consent of the Lead
Manager, none of such persons will issue, offer, sell, contract to sell, or otherwise dispose of any Shares owned by them
at any time or any securities converlible into or exercisable or exchangeable for the Shares, or enter into any swap or
other agreement or any transaction to transfer the economic consequence of ownership of the Shares. or publicly
announce an intention to efiect any such transaction, dunng the period commencing on the date of this Prospectus and
ending 8 months after the commencement of trading in the Shares on NASDAC OMX Vilnius.

Voting Rights. The Offer Shares rank pan passu with all other Shares. Each Offer Share carries one vole at the
General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.

Dividend Rights. The Offer Shares entitle their holders to any future dividends to be declared by the Company for the
financial year commenced 1 July 2009 and ending 30 June 2010 and for any subseguent years. The timing and




Taxation. Dividends payable on the Shares and capital gains resulling from trensfer of the Shares may be subject to
taxes, see Section Taxalion, page 119,

Use of Proceeds, The exact amout of net proceeds is subject to the Offer Price and the usage of the Over-Allotment
Option. The estimation of nel proceeds is based on the midpoint of the Offer Price Range assuming that the Over-
Allotment Option is exercised in full,

The net proceeds to the Selling Shareholder are expected to be LTL 18.2 million afler deduction of the issue price fo be
paid for the New Shares by the Selling Shareholder to the Company as well as the fees and expenses of the Offering
due by the Selling Shareholder. Expenses of the Selling Shareholder are estimaled to amount LTL 0.95 million. The
Selling Shareholder will use part of proceeds to repay LTL 14-17 million of its outstanding debt to AB Linas Agro (the
exact amount will depend on the Offer Price and the usage of the Over-Alloiment Option). The Company will not receive
any direct proceeds from the sale of the Offar Shares by the Selling Sharehalder.

The Company will receive proceeds from the issuance of the Mew Shares which will be subscribed for and paid up by
the Selling Shareholder from the sales proceeds of the Offer Shares provided thal the sale of the Offer Shares will be
implemented under the terms and conditions of this Prospectus. The aggregate net proceeds to the Company from the
issuance of the Mew Shares are estimated to be LTL 84.1 million based on the midpoint of the Offer Price Range, after
deducting the fees and expenses of the Offering due by the Company which are estimaled to amount to approximately
LTL 5.11 million. The aggregate nel proceeds to be received by the Company from the issue of New Shares are
expecled to be used for the investments planned for 2009/2010 and 2010/2011, as well as for the possibie further
corporate acquisitions in the existing and new markets in the Baltic States and Western Europe (described in more detail
in Saection Purpose of the Offering and Use of Proceeds, page 113).

Stabilisation. The Lead Manager may affect ransactions in order to stabilise or maintain the market price of the Shares,
acting in accordance with the applicable laws, starting with the date of public disclosure of the final price for the Offer
Shares and ending within 30 calendar days after the date of the allotment. Any such stabilisation activity will be decided
by the Lead Manager at its sole discretion and the Lead Manager will be under no obligation to do so. The said
stabilisation transactions may result in a situation where the Shares are traded at a price higher than the price that would
have been formed by the simple operation of supply and demand without the effect of such stabilisation. Stabilisation
activities will be conducted in accordance with European Commission Regulation (EC) No 22732003 implementing
Direclive 2003/6/EC of the European Parliament and the Council as regards exemptions for buyback programs and
stabilisation of financial instruments and will be notified to LSC in the manner prescribed by law.

Selling and Transfer Restrictions. Sale and transfer of the Offer Shares will be subject to certain restrictions (sea
Section Offering and Transfer Restrictions, page 127, for details).

ISIN Code of the Shares. The ISIN code of the Shares is LT0O000128092.
Trading Code of the Shares. The trading code of the Shares on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius is expected to be LMNA.

Lead Manager. The Lead Manager of the Offering is Swedbank, AB.

Key Dates

THE FOLLOWING ARE THE KEY DATES IN THE PROGRESS OF THE OFFERING

Mo tehin fam 43 Conditional listing on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius is expected to be approved.

January 2010
25 January 2010 The Offer Period commences.
5 February 20110 Thea Offer Period concludes.

8-9 February 2010 The Offer Price and allocation of the Offer Shares is published.

10-12 February 2010 Seltlernent and delivery of the Offer Shares is expected to take place.

Mo later than 17
February 2010

Trading in the Shares is expected to commence on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius.
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Summary Financial Information

Financial highlights on the Group are provided in Table 3. The financial information in the table below has been
extracted from or calculated based on the audited consclidated financial statements of the Company prepared in
accordance with the IFRS.

Mote: please refer to Seclions entifled Audited Financial Statements, page 93, for an extended version of the financial
statements and Operating and Financial Review, page 66, for more detailed Information on the historical financial results
for 2006/2007 - 2008/2009.

Table 3. Selected information from the consolidated financial statements and key ratios and indicators (LTL in
thousand)

Sales £61,371 907,006 1,113,880
Cost of sales (618,604)  (831,077)  (1.038,141)
Gross profit 42,767 75,929 75,738
Operating expenses (25,849) (26,117) (35,025)
' Other operating activities (net) 8551 2,389 3817
Operating profit 26,469 52,201 44,531
_Financ.ing aclivities (net) (6,374) (11.018) 'iﬁ.'z'ﬁ"{}'
Gain from disposal of investments info Associates - 785 -
Share of profit of Associates 106 450 13
Share of profit of Joint Ventures 2,021 7,566 3,965
Profit before tax 22,222 49,986 40,348
Net profit - 18,023 41,269 31,71
Attributable to: - o
The equity holders of the parent 16,737 38,394 28114
Minority interest - _1.286 2,875 3,657
————
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment . ?z.m ??.?32 94.132
Investment property 12,573 18,017 8,178
Animals and livestock B 7.625 7,188 6,502
Mon-current financial assels 42 800 52.5?5 49 4(55
Defarred income tax asset 38 1,081 T EEEI
Total non-current assels 136,102 157,687 tau,zsu
Crops 12,044 14,439 17,214
Inventories and prepayments 5B.503 121,312 #1,208
Accounts receivable 93,299 130,630 119,309
Other current assets 3,150 2315 867
Cash and c:mah EEIIJI'U'E[E&'“B- 7873 7,826 B, 190
Total current assets 174,969 276,522 226,978
TOTAL ASSETS o 311,071 434,200 387,228
Share capital BB 86 41,000
Share premium - - 124,911
Reserves - (11) (120)
Retained earnings BO.911 121,848
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 80,986 121,814
Minority interest 15,560 10,361
Total equity 96,546 132,175
Grants and subsidies 13,263 11,849
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Mon- ::urrsrnt h-urrnudngs and ﬁname Iaasa ubllgatluns 27,57 59,885 30,280

Deferred income tax liahility 1471 BO2 1,871
Total non-current liabilities ﬂ,ﬂﬂg .'."i 555 43 H1
Current portion of non-current borrowings and finance lease obligations T 2:_59 - 11,177 41,925
Current borrowings - 75,582 118,121 80,336
Trade accounts payabla 64,554 63,205 39,992
Other current liabilities (including payables to related parties) 25,106 36,995 24,943
Total currarrt IEahI:Ht‘bes 172,520 229,498 187,196
“TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 311.0M 434,200 387,228
‘Cashflowstatement 20062007 20072008  2008/2009
Esh flow from (to) eperating activities (3.970) {36,450) 64,515
Cash flow from (lo) investing activities (3,845) {24,478) {25,928)
Cash flow from (to) financing activities 3,006 60,781 {38,225)
Met Increase (decrease) In cash equivalents (4,809) [14_7! 364
Keyratiosandindicators 20062007 2007/2008  2008/2009
MNumber of the Company’s shares ' 43,069 43,089 41,000,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (EP3), LTL 3 0.41 0.94 0.69
MNumber of employees in the Group ' 670 708 725
Including the number of employeas of the Gﬂmpany and its Subsidiaries’ 480 507 G542
Sales pEr anphuyﬂe Iﬂjl:l ihuusami 1. 350 1 TB'B 2,085
EBITDA, LTL In thousand 32826 66,331 56,001
'EBITDA margin, % - 5.0% 73%  50%
metlng pml’ b margin % - — 4.0% o5 B% 4.0%
Return on equily :RDE} b 18.7% 31 2% 20, 4%
Equity ratio, % 31.0% 30.4% 40.3%

"as of the end of the financial year,
* Group does not have any potential shares, therefore basic and diluted earnings per stare are the same.
Sowrce: The Comparny, the audied consolidated financia! statements of the Company

RISK FACTORS

This overview of the various risk factors related to the Group's business represents what the Group, in its absolute
discrelion, considers fo be of significant impartance in relafion to jts present and fulure operations. While the Group
considers the following to be a fair, full and comprehensive disclosure of all relevant risk factors, this overview is not a
substitute for the rest of the Prospeclus and should nol be perceived as such. The Group siresses that a full and
accurate assessment of its operations may only be made on the basis of the entire Frospectus. Furthermore, the
operations of the Group may be affected by risks that are either nol known or have not occurred by the date of this
Prospectus. Should such risks emerge, the value of the investment made in the Shares of the Company may suffar,

General Business Risks
Economic instability

The Group conducts its business in many countries and gecgraphic areas. Its principal sale markets are in Westemn
Europe, Scandinavia, the Ballic States and North Africa while sourcing markets are mainly located in the Baltic States
and the CIS. Both developed and emerging markets are subject to impacts of economic downturn, including decreased
global demand for agricultural products and conservative lending policy of credit institutions. In addition, profil margins
for various producls are Influenced by economic conditions and tend to decrease during economic recessions. e

markets are alzo subject to political instability, which may result in imposed trading barriers and othey
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changes. As a resull, economic downturn and volatile business conditions may adversely influence the Group's ability to
execute its business strategy and may negatively affect its operating results or possibilities to obtain external financing.

Potential challenges to implement business strategy and achieve desired results

The Group expects to sell greater volumes of its products and eam higher profits in the future. However, these results
are not guaranteed and are subject to varation due to numerous factors. The Group's financial results might not
develop as projected because of lower global demand, increased intensiveness of competition or the Group's inability
to implement its business strategy. Furthermore, the agricultural business is seasonal by nature and fluctuations
between quarters should be expected, In addition, the management team may fail to anticipate future market trends
and make suboptimal choices regarding future development of the Group. Inefficient internal processes and obsolete
technology may also cause inferior financial results.

Business expansion through acquisitions and Joint Ventures

Histarically, the Group has been an aclive acquirer of other companies and has formed several Joint Ventures with its
pariners. lts current strategy also involves future acquisitions and increase of ownership in its Subsidiaries and Joinl
Ventures. The Group’s ability to benefit from these acquisitions depends on many factors including the skill to identify
acquisition prospects, lo access funding sources at reasonable cost, to negotiale favourable transaction terms and,
most importantly, to integrate the acquired businesses successfully. Integration processes may involve unanticipated
costs and delays, loss of customers and key personnel as well as significant involvement of the Group's management
diverting its attention from the existing operations. Therefore, integration issues and failures may impede production of
the anticipated revenue and the profit growth in the acquired companies. Acquisitions also pose the risk of possible
exposure of the Group to the liabilities of the acquired companies. The due dillgence conducted prior 1o acquisitions
and indemnities received from the sellers may be not sufficient to protect from or compensate for these liabilities. In
addition, complicated or failed integrations may adversely affect morale of employees and undermine reputation of the
Group.

Risks related to investment projects of the Group

The strategy of the Group includes various investment projects (see Section Projectfed Investmenis, page 32), aimed al
expanding and enhancing the activities of the Group. The successful realizalion of these investmenis is subject to many
factors, including access to funding sources at an acceptable cost of capital. In addition, investment projects are subject
to possible delays and also pose the risk that the Group may be required to invest bigger funds than initially projectad.
Furthermore, due to changing business environment some investment projects might not generate positive cash-flows
and not pay off at all. Where any such risks related to investments of the Group occur, they may have a negative effect
on the operating result of the Group,

Dependence on external financing

Activities of the Group require substantial amounts of capital to fund operating activities and capital expenditure,
Warking capital needs are directly related to the prices of agricultural products, with price increases generally causing
increases in the borrowing levels, In addition, the expansion of the Group through acquisitions may require significant
amounts of capital to be possessed, For this reason, failure to secure adequate levels of short-term and long-lerm
external financing might limit the Group’s growth plans and place it at competitive disadvantage as compared to well-
capitalized peers.

Furthermore, credit facilities of the Group contain covenants placing certain restrictions and limiting the discretion of
Group's management, e.q. restriclions to grant or receive loans, to establish new entities, to distribute dividends, eic,
As a rule, these credit facilities are secured by pledge/mortgage of the Group's assets and cross-defaull commitments
by other Group companies. In case of failure to comply with these covenants, the Group runs the risk of cerain credit
lines being cancelled or requiremant being made to repay certain loans. Such events may cause interruptions in regular
business activities, loss of collateral or, in extreme cases, a financial distress, As on 30 June 2009 the Group pledged
88% of its property plant and equipment (LTL 82,603 thousand out of LTL 94,132 thousand), 100% of investment
property (LTL 8,176 thousand) and 68% of livestock (LTL 4,427 thousand out of LTL 6,502 thousand) as collateral for
bank loans. In addition, it pledged 70% of Inventories (LTL 45,047 thousand out of LTL 63,918 thousand), 51%
prepayments (LTL 8,860 thousand out of LTL 17,380 thousand) and 89% of trade receivables (LTL 87,442 tho
out of LTL 98,128 thousand).
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In addition, it is stipulated in the financing agreements that the majority of the credit facilities granted to Rosenkraniz
AJS and a EUR 20 million credit facility granted jointly to Rosenkrantz A/S andfor AB Linas Agro to finance their trading
operations may be terminated by the lenders anytime without any cause irrespective of the maturity date. Although this
type of clause has been used in previous financing arrangements entered into by Rosenkrantz A/S and conslitules,
according to the Management, the common business practice, in the event of exercising by the lenders of the right of
early termination, Rosenkrantz A/S andior AB Linas Agro will be forced to forthwith repay the credits and scale down
their business operations,

Exposure to currency fluctuations

The Group conducts its business operations In multiple currencies: euros, US dollars, Danish kronas, Lithuanian litas
and Latvian lats. Exposure to currency fluctuations resulls from currency mismatches in purchasing and marketing
activities, i.e. goods or services are bought and sold in different currencies. Even though the Group manages its trading
exposure against currency fluctuations (see the Section Risk Management and Insurance, page 58), this strategy does
not cover all business operations. Therefore, unfavourable currency movements may adversely affect business
transactions of the Group and, consequently, impair its financial position. Furthermore, Lithuanian litas and Latvian lat
are subject to devaluation threats regardless of the fact that these currencies are pegged o euro, However, the Group
is relatively immune to devaluation risks of litas and lat, since its revenues in these currencies are lower than expenses.

Failures of risk management system

The Group's business is affected by fluctuations in agricultural commodity prices, transportation prices, interest rates
and foreign currency exchange rates. The Group has developed stralegies o manage commodity price and currency
exchange risks, which constitule a substantial part of these risks. However, these management strategles may not be
sufficient on order to mitigate the Group's exposure to such fluctuations,

All material fixed assets and inventories of the Group are insured with reputable insurance companies. Mevertheless,
there is a risk that insurance companies may treal some events as non-insured, or the insurance payments may be
insufficient to compensate all damages or the insurance may be taken not against all risks.

Furthermore, credit management system in the Baltic states and the CIS countries is largely based on multiyear
experience of doing business in these countries. Such system is significantly dependant on the skills and experience of
the Group's employees. Negligence, imprudence or fraud of these employees may lead to significant credit losses and,
consequently, impair the financial position of the Group.

Dependence on IT systems

The Group Is dependent on business accounting systems to track its operations, including but not limited to, handling of
accounts payable and receivables, accounting of fixed assets and inventories, and calculation of taxes, In addition,
financial stalements and management reports are prepared based on the data stored on the |T systems. Although the
Group makes regular backups of its systems, In case of system failures there is the risk of possible delays or even
failure that the Group may experience in restoring these backups. Consequently, failures of the IT systems may lead to
significant disruptions of business operations.

Industry Specific Risks
Availability and price of agricultural products

Availability and prices of agricultural products are subject to wide fluctuations caused by such factors as weather
conditions, plant diseases, changes in the global demand resulting from population growth and changes in the living
standards, the needs of the biofuels industry, and production of similar crops. Furthermore, prices of agricultural
products and government support are influencing planting decisions of farmers and, consequantly, the future supply of
agricullural products. Reduced supplies of agricultural commaodities limit the Group's ability to source, store, process,
transport, and market its products in the efficient manner. In addition, low prices of agricultural products reduce demand
for agricultural supplies such as cerified seeds, fertilizers and agricultural machinery, All these factors are outside tha
Group's control and may cause volatility in its oparating results.
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Governmental and EU support for the agriculture sector

The support granted by the governments and the EU funds (in case of Lithuania and Latvia) has a substantial positiva
effect on the agriculture sectors of the countries wherein the Group operates and conseguently on the activities of the
Group. Any unsuspected determination by the authorities of such countries o cancel, suspend or tighten the provision
of subsidies and other forms of support to the agriculture sector may have an adverse effect on the aclivities of the
Group.

In Lithuania, two major Lithuanian agriculture support schemes, i.e. the Direct Payments and the Rural Developmeant
Programme, are largely financed by such EU funds as the European Agriculture Guidance and the Guarantee Fund
and European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development respectively. The payments of the aforementioned EU funds
are scheduled for the EU budgetary period ending 2013 and the continuity of the financing is subject o political
decisions on the EU's 2014-2020 budgetary framework. A decision to reduce the EU financing for the agriculture sector
may have a negative impact on the results of the Group. However, the EU funding has been relatively stable over the
years and well defined in advance. Therefore, any sudden changes in the EU policy are quite unlikely,

Unfavourable treatment of agricultural land acquisition regime

The Group expands its business by acquiring, among other things, agricultural land into its ownership. Pursuant to the
Provisional Law on the Acquisition of Land of Agricultural Purpose of the Republic of Lithuania, agricultural land
acquired by one person into its ownership from the slate may nol exceed 300 ha in area and agricultural land acquired
into one person's ownership from the state and other parties may not excesd the aggregate 500 ha in area, unless the
land has been acquired on a benequeath or restituion basis, Despite the past practice and belief of the Company that
only the land owned by a respective Group company at any given date should be relevant for the calculation of the
threshald, there is the risk of possible changes that may be made in the interpretation of the laws, as a result of which
the historical acquisitions (i.e. the agricultural land acquired and sold by the Group company in the past) might be
required to be added for the sake of such calculations as well, I this risk materialise, the Group may encounter
significant barriers in developing its agricultural business further and increasing the profitability of the Group.

Severe weather conditions

Crop yields tend to fluctuate significantly depending on weather conditions. Unfavourable weather factors such as
droughts, heavy rains or unusually cold winters may significantly reduce crops or even cause crop failures. Lower
harvests limit the Group's ability 1o source, store, process, transport and market its products. The Group would be worst
affected in the scenario of bad weather in its sourcing markets and good weather in the neighbouring markets since the
general supply of crops would be high and their prices would remain competitive while sourcing possibilities of the
Group would be limited. Furthermore, crop failures cannot be insured efficiently in sourcing markets of the Group
because only one company offers crop insurance services. Coverage of crop damages is subject to varous
complicated conditions while insurance premiums are very high. Therefore, the Group does not hold such insurance
coverage.

Possible disruptions of transportation system and increase in transportation costs

Successful operations of the Group largely depend on relevant transporiation capacities. While the Management of the
Group considers the current fransportation capacities to be adeguate, the Group s subject to risks of insufficient port
facilities, potential delays in vessel charlering and disarrays in loading/unloading of shipments that may be caused by
faster than expected economic growth. In addition, the Group may face difficullies securing an adequate number of
railway wagons, Transportation capacities may also become unavailable due to various economy-unrelaled events
such as storms, accidents or fires, Lack of transportation capacities may potentially result in transportation delays and
consequently in negative effects on the results of the Group.

Furthermore, transportation expenditure constitutes a substantial share in the cost structure of the Group. The Group
uses maring, raitway and road transporiation to ship its products. Increase of fransportation costs in any of these
channels would pul additional threats that Group would not be able to pass these cost increases 1o consumers and,
therefore, become less profitable. However, increase of transportation tariffs usually affects all market players and is
transferable to consumers under normal market conditions.
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Increase in rental costs of agricultural land

The currently Group leases 7,788 hectares of agricultural land in Lithuania from external parties. Increase of land rent
prices on the market may lead to price rise for the Group as well. Likewise, the transportation expenses, additional rent
costs have to be passed to consumers. If the Group is unable to do this, these increases would have adverse effect on
the financial position of the Group. However, historically, higher prices of agricultural products have been driving higher
rent prices of the land but not the opposite.

Threats related to the quality and safety of products

The Group is under a wide range of quality, labelling and safety regulations applicable in the countries of operations
and Is also subject to regulations of EU. While the Group believes that it fully complies with all such regulations
applicable fo its products, there is a possibility that some of its products might be recognized as unsuitable for further
consumption due to quality problems, contamination or other similar issues, In such a case, the Group may need to
recall and discard its products and to compensate for the associated costs. This may lead to long-term restrictions to
supply certain products in certain markets and generate negative publicity.

Livestock and crop diseases

Although active control measures including the provision of certified seeds and modern agricultural inputs to the
Agriculture Growing Programme members are iaken, cereals are at risk of numerous diseases, which could reduce the
production and supply of grain and rapeseed to the Group, In parallel, the companies of the Group are subjects o
various livestock diseases, such as mad cow, foot-and-rmouth and other, In case of a livestock or crop disease outbreak
in one of the companias of the Group, this may have a substantial effect on the operating results of the Group.

Decrease of milk and meat prices and reduction of milk sales quota

Due to fluctuations on global markets the Group faces the risk of milk and meat price decrease. In addition, milk
producers in the EU countries are subject to quota regulation in the milk production. The EU bodies determing a limit for
the amount of milk each member-country may produce. The national autheorities allocate the milk guota between milk
producers within a member-country. On 31 December 2008 the Group had an annual milk quota of 11,080 thousand
tonnes in Lithuania. Changes in the quota regulations may influence the Group's ability to receive subsidies on entire
production volumes. Consequently, all the above mentioned risks may result in an adverse effect on the operational
resull of the Group. However, according to the Management, currently Lithuania does not utilize its country guota by
15% and its quoias are increased by 2% each year,

Environmental issues

The Group, especially its agricultural companies, is subject to environmental laws and regulations imposing various
requirements on the Group companies. To the best knowledge of the Company, the Group complies with the
requirements of environmental regulaiion currently in force in all material respects. However, there is the risk os some
new emnvironmental rules being introduced either at the national or the EU level, or of the interpretation of the current
legal regime becoming more stringent, in which case the Group may be forced to make additional investments fo
ensure the compliance with such environmental requirements. In case of failure to do so, administrative or other
sanctions may be imposed on the Group, or the Group's business may be otherwise interrupted. In addition, the Group
owns or may acquire in future real properties that are exposed to the risk of contamination. Despite the Group's efforts
to mitigate this risk by receiving respective warranties from the sellers, such warranties may not necessarily be issued
to cover all the risks.

Company Specific Risks
Competition

Markets for the products of the Group are highly competitive and are subject 1o numerous product substiiutions. The
Group faces significant competition in each of its business segments and has numerous competitors, some of which
are global players and have greater financial resources than the Group. Therefore there is a threat of such competitors
starting their own growing programs in the sourcing markets of the Group and making attempis to attract affjliates
farmers by providing better financing or purchasing terms. Such competition may cause the Group (o lose {844
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share, to quit particular business segments, to increase expenditures or to reduce prices. Each of the above mentioned
matters may have an adverse effect on the activities and profitability of the Group.

In addition, large processors of agricultural products may place new production capacities in the sourcing markets of
the Group. Consequently, such activities might be expected to increase demand for agricultural products and
competition on the sourcing markets.

Sourcing via the Agriculture Growing Programme

The majority of grains and oilseeds are sourced from Lithuanian and Latvian farmers. In order to help farmers fo
achieve higher yields and earn additional income, the Group supplies farmers with agricultural inputs such as certified
seeds, fertilizers and plant protection products. Payments for these products are secured by the farmer's future crop
and are made after the crop is sold. On 30 June 30 the Group had LTL 61.4 million of receivables and LTL 8.9 million
prepayments to farmers. The Group iz exposed to the risk of the underlying crop being insufiicient fo satisfy the
farmer's obligations under the financing arrangement's because of the weather conditions or low prices. Significant
defaults by farmers may adversely affect the Group's financial condition,

Dependence on key executives, board members and other members of workforce

Much of the success of the Group depends to a significant degree on the continuity of the Management and of other
highly trained and experienced personnel showing deep understanding of the agricultural business and dedicating
substantial part of their professional career to the Group. Should the Group be unable to retain, attract and motivate the
aforementioned persons, apart from potentially benefiting its competitors, the Group may suffer material adverse impact
on its business and financial condition as hiring of the personnel equivalent by knowledge and experience might entail
ingvitable additional costs and may not necessarily be immediately possible. It should be noted however that four
members of the Management Board of the Company (Darius Zubas, Vytautas Sidlauskas, Dainius Pilkauskas, and
Ariinas Zubas) are also its shareholders. In addition, Darius Zubas, Vytautas Sidlauskas, and Dainius Pilkauskas hold
senior management positions in the Group, which considerably lowers the risk of losing these persons. However,
several key employees of the Group have signed the non-competition arrangements whereby the employees undertook
not to compete with the Group during their employment and certain period afterwards and, as a compensation. the
Group undertook to pay 100% of their average monthly salaries for the entire non-competition period (starting from the
termination of their employment). This mitigates the risk of such employeies being hired by the Group’s competitors.

Business disruptions

The assets and operations of the Group are subject to damage and business disruptions resulting from various events
such as storms, floods, accidents, explosions or fires. The potential effect of the above mentioned conditions may result
in extensive property damage, personnel injuries, transportation system disruptions or contamination of the
environment. Such events may impair the Group’s ability fo deliver its products to customers in a timely manner, causa
damage to its inventories and, consequently, result in lost trust and profits

Unsecured loans granted by the Group

The Group has granted several loans to its related parties (see Section Related Party Transactions. page 88) and non-
related parties (see Ssction Malerial Conlracts, page 108). As on 30 June 2009 the Group had the following loans
receivable: LTL 20,701 thousand from Akola ApS (the Selling Shareholder), LTL 5,863 thousand from UAB Mestilla,
LTL 3,860 thousand from former subsidiaries (UAB Invisco, UAB Sinrena and UAB Consonus), LTL 1,010 thousand
from Zibartoniy 208 and LTL 571 thousand from employees. The Group has established LTL 2,970 thousand
allowance for loans granted to former subsidiaries. The Selling Sharsholder will repay LTL 14-17 million of its
outstanding debt to AB Linas Agro (the exact amount will depend on the Offer Price and the usage of the Over-
Allatment Option, and won't exceed the net proceeds of the Offering received by the Selling Sharehelder). All loans are
unsecured. Albeit the Group believes that the loans granted to its related parties should be repaid properly, the risk of
non-repayment by the borrowers (whether the related parties or other third persons) of any or all of such loans may not
be excludad. In case the borrowers do not possess sufficient assets to cover their debts to the Company, the Group
may have to write-off the non-repaid amounts of loan and thus incur losses,
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Fluctuations of interest rates

The major parl of the Group's borrowings bears variable LIBOR-related interesl rates. Currently the Group does not
employ interest rate risk management instruments. Therefore, a rising rate of LIBOR would increase interest expenses
of the Group and, consequently, decrease its pre-lax profils.

Contractual risks

The Group conducts its business in numerous countries and jurisdictions and enlers into a considerable number of
complex agreements imposing various obligations and covenants on the respective Group companies. Albeil the Group
aims at ensuring that all such contractual obligations and covenants are complied with, due to a significant number of
such underiakings certain covenants may not be fulfilled properly causing imposition of contractual penalties on the
Group or termination of the respective contracts. The Group is taking efforts to mitigate such risks by getling oral
assurances from its counterparties to the effect that such non-compliance brings no negative consequences for the
Group.

However, if the Company fails to perform any of its contractual underiakings and the counterparty refuses to waive its
contractual rights, a dispute may arise between fthe Group and such contractual counterparty. Long-lasting
dizagreements between them may result in arbitration or litigation processes possibly ending in significant financial
expenses and a loss of business partners. In addition, such processes may give rise lo adverse publicity and public
disputes posing threat to for the Group's reputation,

Fallure to comply with legal acts

The Group is required to comply with a large number of laws and regulations in numerous countries relating, but not
limited to, sourcing, transportion, processing and distribution of agricultural products, including commercial activities
conducted by the Group's employees. Any fallure to comply with the applicable laws and regulations may expose the
Group to adminisirative penalties and civil remedies including fines, injunctions or product recalls. Although the Group
has policies in place throughout its entire organization to protect against such non-compliance, the risk of the Group's
failure to comply with all legal requirements may not be totally excluded. Should such non-compliance be established
by competent authorities, it may have seripus financial consequences for the Group and a negative impact on the
Group's reputation.

Dependence on Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

The Company does not own operating assets and is totally dependable on the cash flows generated by its Subsidiaries,
Joinl Venlures and Assoclates. These cash flows are supposed to finance the Company's expenses and dividend
payments to shareholders. The Company may encounter limitafions on fund transfers from the Subsidiaries and the
Joint Ventures as may be imposed by legal regulations of the incorporation countries or restricted by covenants in bank
loans.

Potential conflict of interests of the Company's shareholders

Upon the completion of the Offering, the currently existing shareholders will continue to own approximately 65% of the
outstanding Shares in the Company and will therefore continue lo exercise control over the Company. The control will
be utillsed by all the ultimate shareholders of the Company (i.e. Darius Zubas, Viytautas Sidlauskas, Dainius Pilkauskas
and Arlinas Zubas) commonly as these shareholders have entered in the Common Control Agreement relating o the
centralised control of all directly and indirectly entities. The interests of the currently existing shareholders may differ
from those of the Company and its new shareholders, making the Company not in a position to pursue the opportunities
which the Company management or other shareholders may find more favourable.

Apart from Akola ApS (the Selling Shareholder), the existing shareholders of the Company hold managerial positions in
the Company and in other Group entities having the capacity to head the business of the Group. Since these
shareholders of the Company confrol at the same time other companies outside the Group (e.g. UAB Mestilla), which
are actively engaged inlo transactions with the Group, there is a risk that the interest of the current shareholders of the
Company may not always align with the interests of prospective investors which could possibly lead to an adverse
effect on the value of ihe investment into the Shares. Even though, according to the Company, all transactions b
the Group and the entities controlled by or related to its current shareholders are carried out at arm's len
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there Is no assurance that a conflict of interests will not arse. For further information see Section Related Parly
Transactions, page 88.

Controlling shareholders will be able to adopt major decisions

Despite the Offering, the Company will remain under the control of ils former shareholders. On completion of the
Offering they will hold approximately 65% of the Shares in the Company. These shareholders will be able to adopl all
major corporate decisions that are within the competence of the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company (see
Section The Company's Arlicles of Associalion, page 101).

Minority shareholders blocking certain decisions

As the Group owns less than 100% of votes in some of its Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates, there is the risk
of the minority shareholders or partners in such entities blocking certain decisions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders or challenging the decisions adopted by the management bodies of such entities. The above may impede
the execution of the Group's business strategy and inhibit further development of the Group or profit transfer lo the
Company.,

Shares Specific Risks
An active market for the shares may not develop

Prior to this Offering, there has been no public market for the shares. Nor may the Company give any assurance that an
actively trading market for the Shares will emerge, develop and be sustained after the completion of the Offering. The
Offer Price will be determined through discussions among the Lead Manager, the Company and the Selling
Shareholder. The initial Offer Price may vary from the market price of the Shares after the Offering. IT you purchase any
Shares, you may not be able to resell those Shares at or above the Offer Price,

In order to mitigate this risk, the Selling Shareholder has granted the Lead Manager an option to purchase up 1o
8,344,371 Shares at the price of the Offering solely to cover over-allotments, if any. This option is exercisable starting
with the date of public disclosure of the final price for the Offer Shares and ending within 30 calendar days after the
date of allotment.

Volatility of the Share price

The price for the Shares after this Offering may be volatile and may fluctuate significantly in response to numerous
factors, including the actual or anticipated fluctuations in the gquarterly or annual resulls of the Group and its
competitors, the industry and market conditions, any mergers and strategic alliances formed, any changes in laws and
requlations as well as shortfalls in the operating results of the Group or its competitors as compared to the levels
forecasted by securities analysts, also public announcements concerning the Group or its competitors, the global and
regional economic conditions and the general state of securities markets, Many of these factors may be beyond the
control of the Company and are difficult or even impossible to predict.

Payment of dividends is not guaranteed in the future

The sharegholders of the Company have adopled a policy to distribute as dividends up to 20% of the net profit in the
reporting financial year reduced by the retained loss of the previous financial years (if any) and statutory allocations lo
reserves. It is noted that such dividend policy should be construed as an intention of the current shareholders and may
ba overruled by a resolution of the annual General Meeting of Shareholdars.

Impact of securities analysts

The trading volume of and the price for the Shares may depend on the opinion of securities analysts, who regularly
monitor operations of the Group and issue their research reports regarding the future performance of the Group. The
Group has no contral over these analysts, who may downgrade their recommended price for the Shares at any time or
issue opinions opposed to the Management's views, or drop the coverage of the Group altogether. All these events
may adversely affect the trading volume of and the price for the Shares.
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THE COMPANY
Statutory Auditors

The appointed financial auditor of the Group for financial years 2007/2008 and 2008/2009 is UAB ERNST & YOUNG
BALTIC, audit company's licence Mo. 001335, legal person code 110878442, registered address at SubaCiaus st. 7,
Vilnius, Lithuania. On behalf of UAB ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC, the Group has been audited by Ramiinas Bartadius
(auditor's licence No. 000362) and Asta Streimikiend {auditor's licence Mo. 000382). The Group's financial statements
for the years 2007/2008 and 2008/2009 have been prepared in accordance with IFRS. As of 30 June 2009 the Company
has prepared a sel of consolidated financial statements covering 3 financial years and the auditors renderad the opinion
covering two financial years in the auditor's reporl. The financial statements of the Company for the year 2006/2007
have been prepared in accordance with Lithuanian business accounting standards and other legal acts of the Republic
of Lithuania and have nol been consolidated, since companies of the Group have nol been incorporated inte one group
at the time. The financial results for the financial year 2006/2007 have been audited by UAB Rimess, audil company's
licence No. 001332, address A.Gostauto st. 408, Vilnius, Lithuania. The Company has replaced UAB Rimass with UAB
Ernst & Young Baltic for the periods 2007/2008 and 2008/2009 seeking the audit based on IFRS and greater quality
assurance of the audit in general. Starting with the financial year of 2007/2008 the financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with IFRS. The financial statements of the Company can be obtained at the

Company’s website (www.linasaaro.It).

Selected Financial Information

The tables below present certain selected consolidated financial information of the Group for the financial years ended 30 June
2007, 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2008. This information has been derfved from the audited consolidated financial stafements of
the Company prepared in accordance with the IFRS and should be read in confunclion with, and I qualified in ifs enfirety by
referance fo, such financial stafements and the refated noltes,

The ratios and indicalors set forth in the lable below are provided to illustrate cerfain aspects of the business of the Group and
lis financial performance. Some of these ratios and Indicators are used by the Management lo evaluate the performance of the
Group, while others are provided for the benefit of investars considering an investment in the Offer Shares. Although some of
these ralios and indicatars are not calcufaled In accordance with the JFRS, the Management believes thal the ralios and
indicators sel forth below are customary and offen used by public compantes fo llustrate their business and financial
performance,

Note: please refer lo Section entiied Audited Finsncial Statements, page 93, for an exfended wersion of the Financial
Statements and Operating and Financial Review, page 66, for more defailed information on the historical financial resulls for
2008/2007 — 2008/2009. The audited financial statements for the year 2006/2007 (audited by UAB Rimess) can be found at the
Company's website {www. linasagro.it),

Table 4, Selected information from the consolidated financial statements and key ratios and indicators (LTL in
thousand)

Sales 661,371 907,006 1,113,880
Costofsales (618,604)  (831.077)  (1,038,141)
Gross profit 42,767 75929 75,739
Gperahng BXPENSES {25, 849} (26.117) {35,025)
Other operating activities (net) - 3y 9,551 2,389 3817
Operaﬂﬂg-prﬁ- R 26,469 52,21 44,531
 Financing activities (net) ' (6,374) (11,016) (8.261)
Gain from drsposai of investmants into Associates = - 785

Share of profit of Assaciates 106 450




Share of profit of Joint Veniures 2.0 7,566 3,865

Profit before tax 22,222 49,086 40,348
Net profit o B 18,023 41,269 31,771
Attributable to: o
 The equity holders of the parent 16,737 38,394 28,114
Minority interest 1.286 2,875 3,657
Balanceshest | 200812007 2007:2008 = 2008/2000
Intangible aﬁsels a2 B4 BS
‘Property, plant and equipment 72,704 77,732 94,132
Investment property 12,573 19,017 8,176
Animals and livestock 7,625 T TEE_ 3_50_2__
Non-current financial assets 42,800 52,575 49,405
Deferred income tax assel 318 1 091 1:_'35]3
Total non-current assets 136,102 157,687 160,250
Crops 12,044 14,439 17,214
Inventories and prepaymants 58,503 121,312 81,208
‘Accounts recsivable 93,299 130,630 119,309
Other current assets 3,150 2,315 967
Cash and cash equivalents 7,873 7.826 8,180
Total current assets 174969 276,522 226,978
TOTAL ASSETS == 311,071 434,200 387,228
Share capital 86 86 41,000
Share premium 5 - 121,911
Reserves o (11) (120) (287)
Retained samings 80,911 121,848 {18,657)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 80,986 121,814 143 967
Minority interast ) 15 560 10,361 12,104
Total equity 96,546 132,175 156,071
Grants and subsidies 13,263 11,849 11,810
MNon-current borrowings and finance lease obligations —— Ep— 27,571 59,885 30,280
Deferred Income tax Ilahdlil'_.r 1471 802 1.871
Total non-current liabilities 42,005 72,536 43,961
Current portion of non- l::l.mant borrcﬁ-dngs and lhmnoe !aasu DngﬂIIUﬂE 7,239 nA7r 41,825
Curentborrowings 75582 118,121 80,336
Trade accounts payabla 64,594 63, 205 -3'9;99'2
Other current liabilities (including payables to related parties) 25,105 36,995 24,943
Total current liabilities 172,520 229,498 187,196
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 31,071 434200 387,228
Cashfiowstatement 20062007 2007/2008  2008/2009
Cash flow from (to) operating activities (3,970) (36,450) 64515
Cash flevw from {to} irmslhg activities {3,845) {24, 4?5} {25, 326}
Cash flow from (to) financing activiies 3,006 60,781 (38,225)
Net increase (decrease) in cash equivalents {IH]]E}_ (147) . 364
____
Mumber of the Company’s shares ' 43,069 43,080 41,000,000
Basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS), LTL 7 0.41 084
Number of employees in the Group " = 670 708
Inciumng the number of amplnyees of the Cumpany and its Subsidiaries ' 490 507
Sales per employee, LTL in thousand - 1,350 1,788
EBITDA, LTL in thousand 32,826 66,331
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EBITDA margin, % 5.0% 7.3% 5.0%

Operating profit margin, % - 4.0% 5.8% 40%
Return on equity (ROE), % 18.7% 31.2% 20.4%
Equity ratio, % 31.0% 30.4% 40.3%

Tas of the end of the financial year,
? Group dogs not have any potantial shares, therefore basic and dituted earmings per share are the sama,
Sourge: The Company, the audited cansolidated financial slafements of the Company

EPS = Basic eamings per share have been calculated in accordance with 1AS 33, pursuant to which
the net profit attibutable to the equity holders of the parent is divided by weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Effect of the bonus issues and
share splits is adjusted also for earlier periods, while the effect of a new share Issues is
adjusted only for the perod when It takes place.

EBITDA = Earnings before interest expenses, profit taxes, depreciation and amortisation. EBITDA
is included as a supplemental item, since the Management believes that EBITDA, when
considerad in conjunction with cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities, may provide useful information. EBITDA is not a measure of operating
performance calculated in accordance with IFRS and should not be considered as a
substitute for operating profit, nel income, cash flow from operations or other profilf loss
or cash flow data determined in accordance wilth the IFRS. EBITDA has been
calculated as a sum of operating profit, gain from disposal of investment into
associates, share of profit of associates, share of profit of joint ventures and
depreciation as defined in Table 5.

EBITDA margin = EBITDA / Sales. The EBITDA margin measures the relationship between EBITDA profitability
and sales providing information about & company's profitability from the operations of its
business and is independent of the company's financing and tax position as well as
depreciation-related estimates.

Operating profit = Operating profit / Sales. The operating profit margin measures the relationship between

margin operating profitability and sales providing information about a company's profitability from the
operations of its business and is independent of both a company’s financing and tax position.

Return on equity Met profit / Total equity. Return on equity excludes debt in the denominator and compares net

(ROE) income with tlolal shareholders' equity. It measures the rate of retum on sharsholders'
investment and is, therefore, useful in comparing the profitabllity of a company with its
competitors.

Equity ratia = Equity / Total assets. Equity ratio is a measure of financial leverage which highlights the ratio

of shareholders' equity to tofal assets. The analysis of the Company's financial leverage (or
capital structure) is essential to evaluate its long-term risk and retum prospacts,

Depreciation and amorization, which are used in the EBITDA calculation, reflect depraciation and amortization of non-
current assats and amortization of subsidies. In addtion, they include depreciation and amaortization, which have been
capitalised into value of biological assets, raw materials and other inventories during the previous year. When biclogical
assets or inventories are sold, all their costs are attributed to the cost of sales though part of the costs is related to
depreciafion. The inclusion of capitalised depreciation assures that all depreciation expenses are accounted for,
However, the consolidated cash flow statements of the Group do not include capitalised deprecialion expenses.
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Table 5. Depreciation and amartization calculation for EBITDA purposes

Depreciation and amortization of assets

Intangibles 368 65 33
Fﬁaﬁ};-ﬁimnd _aqap_ment .
Cost of sales 4,488 4,830 6,699
Biological assets (previous year) . 758 908 1,059
Operating expenses . 1,084 898 872
Raw materials and other inventories t.prwinus year.:l 475 696  ag
Other operaing expenses 45 &7 119
Investment p;aﬁﬁrfyr_ . 116 118 116
Total = 7,670 9,537
Amaortization of subsidies
Costofsales (1.875) (1.084)  (1.321)
Biclogical assets (previous year) (318) (852) (720)
Operaling expenses (914) (405) (104)
SRR — = — s B S
Depreciation and amortization for EBITDA 4,230 329 7,392

Source: The Company, the awdited consclidated fnanclal statements of the Company

Information on the Company
History and Development

General Information

The Group is an integrated agribusiness company producing and marketing agricultural products, feedstuffs and other
agriculture retated supplies. Founded in 1991, the Group is a leading Baltic exporter of grains and food industry
coproducts, and a leading Lithuanian supplier of agricultural inputs such as cerified seeds, fertilizers and agricultural
machinery in Lithuania. Major part of sales is performed through its Danish subsidiary Rosenkrantz A/S, which fortifies
the international reputation of the Group placing it in line with top European players. The Group is also one of the biggest
producers of grain and milk in Lithuania. In addition, it has an extensive grain elevator and road-railway-sea logistics
natwork to support its operations.

The Group is managed by AB Linas Agro Group, a holding company which directly and indirectly owns a number of

subsidiaries in Lithuania, Latvia and Denmark. In addition, it has non-controlling equity investments made in several
other companies,

Registration Data

The main registration information about the Company is given below:

Legal (business) name of the Company AB Linas Agro Group
Public limited liability company {in Lithuanian: akcing bendrové or abbreviation
Legal form AB)
Country of registration Republic of Lithuania -
T Y Yo e ——_—.
Registration authority The Company Is registerad and the data on the Company is kept wi &

Register of Legal Persons
The laws of the Republic of Lithuania (the Civil Code, the Law on Compan
and other laws and secondary legislation of the Republic of Lithuania
partaining to the t_:nmpanrg_pp_erg_ﬁgns}
148030011

Legislation under which the Company
oparates

Legal person {registration) code




Date of incorporation 27 November 1885

Length of life of the Company Indefinite

Domicile Smélynés 2C, LT-35143 Panevezys, Lithuania
' ' “Tel. +370 45 507 303

Contact details Fax +370 45 507 304

E-mail; group@Elinasagro.it

The Company was incorporated as a private limited liability company (in Lithuanian: vZdarofi akcing bendrove or
abbreviation UAB) under the name of UAB Agriveta. On 12 September 2008, afler restructuring of the Group, the
Company's legal form was changed from the private limited liability company to the public limited liability company (in
Lithuanian: AB) and the name of the Company was changed from UAB Agriveta to AB Linas Agro Group.

History

The origins of the Group date back to & July 1991, when UAB Linas ir Viza (the current name AB Linas Agro), a
Lithuanian private limited liability company, was founded by several Lithuanian individuals lead by Darius Zubas (Darius
Zubas remains deeply involved in the development of the business and currently is the Chairman of the Management
Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company). In its early years, UAB Linas ir Viza was engaged in the
international marketing of agricultural goods, primarily of rapeseed. Being the oldest member of the Group, this entity is
currently a fully-owned subsidiary of the Company,

In 1993, the Group introduced agricultural contracling agreements to Baltic farmers to secure supply of grains and
rapeseed, which later evolved into the Agriculture Growing Programme, The Programme was intended to deepen the
relationships with farmers by giving them advice on how to improve yields of their crops as well as enlarge the Group's
business portfolio with agricultural inputs such as certified seeds, ferilizers, agricultural machinery and similar.

The Group's entrance into the agricultural supplies business was marked by the acquisition of 50% stake in UAB
Dotnuvas projektal during 1998, The inilial business model of UAB Dotnuvos projektai was built around reselling of
agricultural machinery and products may by other manufacturers to Lithuanian farmers but in 2001 the company
launched a seed preparation factory and started marketing of its own certified seeds.

In 2002, the Group continued expanding its presence in the agriculture value chain by adding distribution of plant
protection products and microelemental fertilisars via another Joint Venture, UAB Kustodija. In the same year, the Group
built its first modern grain elevator and started grain handling and slorage services. UAB Linas Agro Gridy centras KOB
{to be transtated as Linas Agro Grain centre) was established to run this business.

The Group's entrance into the agriculture production business in 2003 was another important milestona continuing a
vertical integration process. During this year the Group acquired several Lithuanian farms engaged In milk production
and grain, rapeseed and sugar beet growing. With this investmant, the Group was seeking better understand of its main
partners and farmers and was equally exploring additional business opporunities.

The Group slighlly expanded its products and services portfolio by introducing distribution of livestock feed through grain
elevators in 2008,

In 2008, the Group starled international marketing of sofid biofuels. During the same year the legal form and the name of
UAB Linas ir Viza was changed to AB Linas Agro. The new name was considered to represent the spirt and the
activities of the Group in a better way.

The Group confinued strengthening its presence in the supply chain of rapeseed in 2007, when UAB Mestilla, the largest
rapeseed crushing and biodiesel production plant in the Baltics, with the capacity of approx. 100,000 tonnes, was buill in
Klaipéda, Lithuania. Sharehalders of UAB Mestilla are the Selling Shareholder and Statoil New Energy AS. The Group
signed an exclusive long-term contract with the biodiesel plant for supplying of rapeseed and rapeseed oil and for
marketing of rapacake and glycerol,

On 14 March 2007 AB Linas Agro sold 90 % of UAB Linas Agro Veterinarijos Centras shares for LTL 12,926 thousand.

investmeant into the said associate amounted to LTL 785 thousand.
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In 2008, the Group acquired a grain elevator in Siauliai currently being the largest elevator owned by the Group, This
acquisition increased the owned grain siorage capacity by 43,000 tonnes, |.e. to 125,800 tonnes. In the same year, the
Company underwent reorganisation when its legal form and name were cganged from UAB Agriveta to AB Linas Agro
Group. In Seplember 2008 all shares in AB Linas Agro were formally contributed to the share capital of the Company.
Finally, in 2008 the Group acquired 60% of shares in Rosenkrantz AJS, its long-term trading partner. Since then
Rosenkrantz AFS is the main sales hub of the Group to Western Europe and North Africa,

Investments
General Information

The information in this section presents the overview of the investments made in non-current assets (intangible assets,
properly, plant and equipment, investment property and financial assets) during the financial years 200672007 through
2008/2008 and of the projected investments for the years 20092010 through 2011/2012. In addition, the section
includes investments into shares of the Subsidiarias for 200672007 through 2008/2008. Investments of the Group include
investments made by the Company and its Subsidiaries but exclude investments made by its Joint Ventures and
Associates,

The projected investments for 2009f2010 through 2010/2011 are provided for general understanding only and do not
represent firm commitments of the Group. A substantial number of these investments are contingent on the Group's
ability to negotiate beneficial terms of purchase agreements, obtain necessary regulatory approvals and secure bank
financing.

Intangible Assets, Property, Plant and Equipment

A breakdown of the historical investments of the Group into intangible assets as well as in property, plant and equipment
is provided in the table below:

Table 6. Acquisitions of intangible assets, and property, plant and equipment by the Group (LTL in thousand) '

Inlanglb:la assels

Property, plant and equipment 7,086 13208 iE,_?a_a
Land 1256 1,202 1,467
Buildings and structures ) 8 2,018 15,478
Machinery and equipment 3,346 5,018 2,233
Vehicles " 252 1.214 835
chsr_laru_gihla assels _ 32_1 _ ?_?_E B 9_?1_ _
Construction in progress 1,808 2,978 1,799

Total 7,088 13,276 22,817

'_'_Ex_m'_udr'm acquwizitions related lo acquisiions by the Subsidiaries;
Sowrce: the audited consofidated fnancial statements of the Company

During 2006/2007, 20072008 and 2008/2009 the Group acquired 348 ha, 258 ha and 275 ha of agricultural land in
order to expand its presence in the farming business and to reduce dependence on external parties. The investment
valued at LTL 4.0 millicn have been mainly financed by bank loans.

In 2007/2008, the Group purchased a building in Vilnius for LTL 1.8 million for its future office in Vilnius (currently the
Group rents an office in Vilnius). The acquired building requires renovation, such renovation being in the design stage
now. in the following year the Group has made the LTL 14.0 million acquisition of Siauliai elevator to strengthen its grain
sourcing position in Northern Lithuania. The majority of investments into bulldings and structures have been funded by
bank loans.

Capital expenditures into machinery and equipment have been basically made for upgrading agricultural machinery in
farms. Such investments comprised LTL 3.3 million, LTL 5.0 million, and LTL 2.1 million in 2006/2007, 2007/2008 and
200872008 respectively. The Group's commitment 1o these capital oullays has been aimed al increasing farm production
output and reducing production costs. 67% of investments have been financed by bank loans and finance leas
agreements, while the rest 33% - by internally generated cash.
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Construction in progress mostly comprises constructions of catlle and manure houses which are not yet completed,
Construction works are usually financed by a mix of intemal funds and bank loans.

As al 30 June 2009 the Group was commilted to purchase property, plant and equipment for the total amount of LTL 0.4
million. The most material item of LTL 0.3 million included in this amount was related to manure tank construction project
in Sidabravo Z0B financed from the EU funds. In accordance with the agreement with Mational Paying Agency the
construction stage of the project is postponed until May of 2010,

A number of assets acquired by the Group were co-financed by the EU funds. The Group received LTL 894 thousand,

795 thousand and 1,442 thousand of such funds in 2006/2007, 2007/2008 and 2008/2009 respectively. The majority of
these funds have been related to purchase of machinery and equipment.

Investment Property

The investment property of the Group mostly consists of land and buildings leased out under operating lease, which
generate lease income. Some investment property is leased oul oulside the Group.

Table 7. Acquisitions of investment property by the Group (LTL in thousand)

Land for agricultural activilies 2,009 3,933 6&1

Land for commercial development 6,734 4,784 -

Total 8,742 8,728 681
Inzcludlngh additions resulting from acquisitions of Subsidiaries 5,208 - .

Source: the avdited consolidaled fnancial stalerments of the Company, the Company

Landvestas, the land holding companies of the Group, acquired 485 ha, 758 ha and 152 ha of agricultural tand in
200672007, 20072008 and 20082009 respectively.

LIAB Sinrena, UAB Consonus and UAE Invisco invested LTL 6.8 million in 2006/2007 and LTL 4.8 million in 2007/2008

into land lo be used for commercial development projects. However, these Subsidiaries were sold in 2008/2009, when
the Group took a strategic decision to stop its involvement in the real estate development,

In 2006/2007 through 2008/2009 purchases of investment property were mostly financed by bank loans.

Financial Assets

In 20082009 the Group acquired 13.38% shares in ZAT UkrAgro NPK, the Ukrainian manufacturer of NPK fertilizers, for
LTL 5,545 thousand.

Investments into Shares of Subsidiaries

The table below summarizes share acquisitions by the Group during the periods 20062007 and 2008/2009:

Table 8. Acquisitions of shares in Subsidiaries

2006/2007 B0% shares of ZUB Landvesta 1 a2 Acquisition
80% shares of ZUB Landvesta 2 a1 Acguisition
" B0% shares of 0B Landvesta 3 a1 Acquisition
T0% shares of LAB COHS'_:HI._.!E 7 A_oql._tlslﬁnn
70% shares of UAB Sinrena 70 Acquisition
5.13% shares of Sidabrava ZUB 27 Acguisition from minority sharehalders
21.34% shares of Luksiy 208 854 Acquisition from minority shareholders
0.78% shares of Aukstadvario Z2UB 4

Total 1,089

BENDRUIU

REIKALL
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2007/2008  25.15% shares of Linas Agro Gridy centras KOB

Acquisition from minority shareholders

5.08% shares of Luk3iy ZUB Acquisition from minority sharehoiders
0.68% shares of Aukstadvario 208 2 Acquisiion from minority sharehalders
Total 3,724 )

2008/2009  20% shares of 208 Landvesta 1 628  Acguisiion from minority shareholders
20% shares of 208 Landvesta 2 628  Acguisiion from minority shareholders
20% shares of Z0B Landvesta 3 628  Acquisition from minority shareholders
2.47% shares of Luksiy Z0B 82 Acquisition from minorily shareholders
2.13% shares of Aukstadvario ZUB 10 Acquisition from minority shareholders
2.20% shares of Medaikiy 208 5  Acquisition from minorty shareholders
60% shares of Rosenkrantz A/S 8,000 Acquisition from Akola ApS
Total 10,084

Sowrce: fhe aunifed consolidafed fnancial sialemeants of the Company
The Group's historical acquisitions of the company shares have been financed from the internal resources,

The Group was not only an active acquirer of businesses bul established some companies as well, ZUB Landvesta 4
was founded in 2006/2007 followed by the founding of 208 Landvesta 5 and ZUB Landvesta 6 in 2007/2008,

In July 2008 AB Linas Agro has signed a shareholders' agreement with the members of ZUK Kupigkio gridai. The
angregate percentage held by the members entering into the agreement was 63.63%. Taking into account that
according to the provisions of the said agreement AB Linas Agro obtained control over operations and financial
decisions of ZUK Kupidkio grodal and was given the rights to appoint the chalrman and the majority of the board
members of 20K Kupigkio gridai, the said company was consolidated into the Group as of 1 July 2008,

In September 2008 the Company increased its share capital from LTL 150 thousand up to LTL 41 million by issuing
20,425,000 new shares of the Company with the nominal value of LTL 2 each. Part of the shares (2,779,503 shares)
was issued for the issue price of LTL 2 per share and was acquired and paid up by the Seling Shareholder in cash, The
remaining part of the shares (17 645 497 of shares) was issued for the issue price of around LTL 8.91 per share and
was acquired and paid up by Darius Zubas, Vytautas Sidlauskas, Dainius Pilkauskas and Arlinas Zubas by contributing
100% of the shares in AB Linas Agro (i.e. 3,500 shares in AB Linas Agro with the nominal value of LTL 2 thousand per
share). The total value of the contribution was equal to LTL 157.2 million. Due to the difference in the nominal value and
the issue value of such shares, following such increase the share premium has been accounted in the Company.

Projected Investments

The Managemeant plans further development of the Group, which should result in growing business velumes and profits.
Growing business volumes will require a LTL 40 million increase in working capital. Part of this increase will be allocated
for the expansion of the product range and the base of Group's suppliers.

Volume growth is hardly feasible without the adequate investments into business infrastructure. Due to this reason the
Group plans significant funds for its new acquisitions and developments of existing assets,

Dwring the years 2008/2010 and 2011/2012 the Group plans to spend up to LTL 70 million for the construction of new
elevators and extension of the existing elevator storage capacities in Lithuania and Latvia. Additional elevator
Infrastructure is needed lo accommodate increasing participation in the Agricullure Growing Programme and
consequently growing volumes of grains and oilseeds provided by farmers.

The Group plans to spend up to LTL 40 million for development of its farming activities, which are intended 1o provide
extra volumes of crops for the Grains and Oilseeds segment and would purchase significant quantities of agricultural
inputs sold by other companies of the Group. In addition, own farming sites are important as demo fields for
neighbouring farmers in terms of possible achievements in crop yields and milk production, which result from right
growing technologies and quality agricullural inputs.

32



Furthermore, the Group plans to spend up to LTL 40 million for acquisitions of similar businesses 1o its current activilies
and increases of curment shareholdings.

Investment plans are dependent on the Group's ability to negotiate beneficial terms of the acquisition contracts and
receive subsidies for the construction of elevators. The Group will also make replacements and small improvemenls of
its existing assets, which would be close to current levels of depreciation,

Future investments will be financed by the proceeds of the Offering, earned profits and bank loans. Usually working
capital and elevator construction can be co-financed by bank loans up to 50%. In addition, elevator construction may
receive approximately 20% subsidy in Lithuania and 40% subsidy in Latvia. Farming activities can be co-financed by
bank loans up o 30% of the acguisition value. The exact use of financial leverage will depend on the timing of the
acquisitions and bank policies towards lending.

Business Overview

Principal Markets

The Overview of the principal markels deals with the main aspects of the Group’s business environment, which the Company
reckons significant in connection fo its present and future operations, Stalislical data and other faciual statements concerning
the marke! situation and the agricuffural secfor discussed in this part of the Prospecius, inciuding those relating fo actual
economic, fiscal, compelithe and legal mallers, have bean taken from sources considered appropriate by the Group.

While the Company considers the following to be a comprahensive disclosure of sifuation on the principal markets parficipated
by the Group, the operafions of the Group may be sffected by other market factors that are either nol known or have not
occurrad by the date of this Prospectus.

Market Overview
Global Industry Trends

Although sales of agricultural production are implemented through a sales desk in Denmark, the worldwide prices of
agricultural production are relevant for the Group, as= the final customers of the Group are international clients.
Therefore, further Is provided an overview of global trends in the agricultural sector,

Prices of crops

The prices of main grains, which remained rather stable in the preceding decade, started growing in the 2005/2006
harvest season . The significant increase in crop prices during the period 2005 - 2008 was mainly the resull of adverse
weather conditions in major grain-producing regions of the world and low global grain stocks. In addition, the growing
prices of crops have been to a great extent related to the expansion of biofuels as bioenergy sector has been the main
source of new demand for grain over the past decades. Finally, financial investors played a major role driving up prices
of agricultural commodities as a reaction of demand-supply disbalances,

Pricas of the main cereals during the period 2005 - 2008 are provided in the table below.

Table 9, Averaie prices of the selected crops dur‘iﬁ the period 2005-2008 iln USDI
Wheat 146 184 304

117 : _
Barley 108 127 158 216
Rapeseed a 255 245 339 T
Source: FAPR! = =i_

Prompted by exceptionally high prices of cereals and supported by favourable growing conditions farmers around the
world delivered the record wheal and other grain harvest in 2008. Importantly, the growth in output enabled

inventories to be replenished to the levels that calmed down and restored confidence on the markels and led ZhY
decreases, As to the prices, they have also been affected by the economic downturn. Although the di '5-11"-,
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consumption of grains is generally resilient to falling household incomes, demand for grains from other sectors is much
maore exposed to macroeconomic turbulences,

However, during the medium-term, and long-term the growth prospects in the global grain trade are firm, Grain prices
are forecasted (o be affected by long-term trends delermined by the supply and demand factors, On the supply side,
only the limited growth is expected and is mainly attributable to productivity gains rather than new areas of land brought
into cultivation. Meanwhile, both extensive and intensive growth is expected on the demand side and is forecasted to
stem from the ever-growing world population and the changing dists. The sector of biofuels is going to underpin the
strong demand for crops. As a result, the forces of supply are anticipated to outweigh the demand side and lead to
increases in grain prices. Both leading organisations providing forecasts of agricultural production prices (the FAO and
the FAPRI) reckon the average prices of grain in the coming decade to remain substantially higher than the averaga
levels observed during the past 10 years.

The forecasted price levels on the grain market may also be characterized by higher volatility as compared to the past
periods, because the demand side is becoming less sensitive to changes of the farm gate prices of agricultural
production mainly due to the falling share of raw material costs in the final food bill. In addition, cereal stocks are not
anticipated to be replenished fo the substantial levels in the coming decade thus resulling in sudden price increases.
Unfavourable weather conditions due to climate changes and speculations on the market may increase the price
volatility of the agricultural production.

Price projections of the selected agricultural production for the period 2009 - 2013 are provided in the table below.

Table 10. The projections of the selected agricultural production prices during the periods 2009/2010 to

2018/2019 IUSI’.‘I ir mnnﬁi

wmat - - ———

U.S. FOB Guif 225 224 231 235 241 247 251 252 253 253
% change (y-0-y)  (04%) 31%  198%  28% 24%  14%  04%  04%  03%
E e i

Canada Feed 162 164 170 175 179 184 186 188 183 191
%% change (y-0-y) 14%  35% 31%  23%  25% 12% 09% 07%  1.1%
Rapeseed —

CIF Hamburg 420 460 466 466 473 475 477 479 476 475
% change (y-0-y) ' 96%  13%  00% 16% 03% 03% 05% (0.6%) (0.2%)
Source. FAPRI —_— e

According to the FAPRI, during the period 2009 - 2019 the compound annual growth rates of wheat, barley and
rapesead prices are forecasted to stand at 1.3%, 1.9% and 1.4% respectively,

World cereal production, consumption and trade
Global grain market

Over the past decade the supply/demand balance of the global grain market has remained tight, The consumption of
grain has been steadily increasing whereas the production and the level of stocks do not follow the same paltern as the
production of grain fluctuates greatly from year to year. Meanwhile, the consumption was steadily increasing at a rate of
2.1% per annum in the last five years. Paricularly, greater food and feed use in parts of Far East Asia is increasing
imports there. In the future the world grain consumption is forecasted to increase even higher largely due to greater use
of grain in the industry of biofuels,

According to early estimates, the harvest of 2009 is reported to be the second season in a row, when farmers around the
world delivered an exceptionally high grain harvest, which was mainly stimulated by favourable whether conditions. The
level of global grain production in 20092010 is estimated o exceed 2,100 million tonnes. However, dua to the global
economic downturn the levels of trade and grain consumption are forecasted to shrink during the 20092010 season.
Therefore, the growth in output should enable grain inventories to be replenished to higher levels than those cbserved in
the past few years,




The US, the EU and Australia are set to govern the global wheal supplies in the coming years though according to the
FAOQ, by the end of the forthcoming decade, countries of the CIS (starting with Ukraine) are anticipated to become the
prevailing source of grain (first of all wheat) exports. In the meantime, developing countries will continue to fuel global
demand for grains in order to feed fast growing local populations. The main consumers of grain are expected be the
countries located in South and Easl Asia, as well as some African countries such as Egypt and Migeria.

Table 11, Data on iruductiun. cmumﬁiuﬂ and trade of the selected airicultural inductinn |tunnu in milllunul

Grain

Trade 240 241 263 250 268 267
 Production 1,858 2,043 2,017 2,005 2,113 2,165
Consumption 1,948 1,994 2,031 2,051 2,110 2,162
Wheat

Trade 104 113 13 115 111 117
Production 554 626 621 592 806 856
Consumption 589 807 624 615 620 642
Barley '

Trade 15 17 17 14 15 18
Production 143 153 137 138 134 142
Consumption 147 142 141 146 139 140
Rapeseed g = ' = = =

Trade s s 7 I A
Production 39 46 49 47 48 A
Consumption 39 49 47 48 T AT
' Not availabie as of the dafe of preparation of the Prospectus

Sowce: USDA

Wheat

According o the estimates of USDA, the harvest season of 2008/2009 has been reported to be the first during the
preceding four-year period during when the global wheat production exceeded the level of the global wheat
consumption. The global wheal production Is estimated to have reached the record heights of 656 million tonnes in
2008/2009 whereas the global consumption is estimated to have surged to 642 million tonnes, which is almost 22 million
tonnes above the 2007/2008 level. Despite such larger production, the global stocks will remain at historic lows (only
200772008 has seen lower stocks in the past 28 years) while the global trade has climbed to a record of 117 million
tonnes.

As regards other grains, the 2009 harvest season has been favourable and has enabled to produce more than 650
million tonnes of wheat globally. Such harvest combined with the declining trade and consumption affected by the global
recassion is forecasted to result in higher levels of stocks.

Barley

Fuelled by the growing consumption and sharp increase in the production, the international trade in barley has been
growning substantially during 2008/2009. Australian, Ukrainian, and the EU-27 exporters have contributed mostly to the
growing trade on the side of exports whereas the strong import demand has been mainly concentrated in Asia and North
Africa. The demand for barley rises together with the growing demand for meal, which accordingly raises the demand for
feeds. In addition, the increasing demand in bioenergy sector for barley substitutes, such as comn and sorghum, also has
an effect on the barley price and demand.

Global rapeseed market

In three years the production of rapeseed rose from 39 million in 2004 lo 48 million tonnes in 2007, which translates into
an annual average growth rate of 7%. In 2008, the world rapeseed trade was estimated to increase by 45% as

of biodiesel, The substantially increased demand for rapeseed and rapeseed oil from biodiesel producers
five years resulted in growing interest of the world agricultural producers in manufacturing of this oil-bearing
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resull, the demand for rapeseed has risen greatly. Many EU countries are willing to buy rapeseed because of the
increased capacity in biodiesel production.

Global animal feed markef

The Group trades in ollseed meal, sugar beel pulp and rapeseed cake, which all are by-products of processing the
corresponding cereals and are used extensively in animal feeds. Strongly influenced by the demand for meat and meat
products, the worldwide animal feed market is expected to reach US$15.4 billion by 2010, The EU livestock sector
consumes about 394 million tonnes of feed each year of which 122 million tonnes are the manufactured compound feed.
Within this, feed for cattle/calves, pigs and poultry account for 27%, 36% and 29% of the total manufactured feed output
respectively.

Europe, Asia and North America are the leading consumers of animal feed while pork is the largest type of meat
producead followed by poultry. The increased demand for meal around the world over the pasl decades has helped to
fuel a large increase in the demand for high quality feedstuffs for these livestock sectors. An important point to stress is
that disease outbreaks such as avian flu, mad cow disease or foot-and-mouth disease have little impact on the global
demand dynamics since consumption does not cease but shifts from one species to another. As a resull, consumption of
feedstufis remains stable and grows at a stable pace.

Meat consumption in the world during the period 2004 - 2009 is provided in the table below.

Table 12. Meat consumption in the world during the period 2004 - 2009 (tonne in thousand)

Beef and veal, carcass weight 55,244 56,204 57,368 58,308 57,769 57,038
Pork, carcass weight 91,860 84189 95920 04549 98269 100,171
Broiler & turkey, ready 1o cook weight 63,780 67,172 68,804 72,935 75.570 76,227
Total - 210,884 217,565 222,182 225792 231,608 233,436

S ST A R LI =
Saurce: the USDA

Sourcing Markets of the Group

Lithuania
Agricultural sector overview

Cutput of the agricultural seclor accounted for 6.9% of the Lithuania's GDP in 2008. Wilised agricultural area in 2008
amounted to 2,672 thousand hectares, including 1,859 thousand hectares classified as arable land. As compared to the
rest of the EU, arable land comprises a bigger share in the total area of Lithuania (28.5% in Lithuania vs. 24.4% in the
whola EU), which is mainly the result of Lithuania's flal landscape. In addition to that, Lithuania has deep agricullural
traditions and the majority of industries in the country are based on processing of agricultural products.

According to Eurostat, the agriculture sector's outpul {at current prices) in Lithuania amounted 1o EUR 2,225 million in
2008 comprising 0.6% of the EU-2¥ aggregate agricultural output. The output of the agriculture sector has grown by
61% since Lithuania's accession to the EU in 2004 or growing by 12.6% annually during the period 2004-2008.
However, the agricultural outpul per hectare of the utilised agricultural area still lags way behind the EU-wide level of
EUR 2,085 {data for 2008). The corresponding figure for Lithuania was EUR 833 or 60% lower,

Histarically the agricultural production in Lithuania has been largely based on livestock farming, the latter comprising
more than half of the gross agricultural output in the 1990s, However, the common pattern showing livestock prevailing
in the structure of agriculture has been gradually changing. Aaccording to the data available for 2008 crops constitute
56.5% of the total output of agriculture in Lithuania and thus holding a dominant pasition in the breakdown of income by
sector,
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Table 13. Main information on the sector of airlculture in Lithuania and cnmiaratlvﬂ data on the EU-27 izuuai

Country’s area {ha in thousand) 6,530 432,526
Utilised agricultural area (ha in thousand) 2,672 181,094
as % of country's araa o B 40.9% 41.9%
Arable land (ha in thousand) 1,859 105,536
" as % of country's area ' 28.5% 24.4%
Output of the sector of agriculture — Estimate (EUR in millions) 2,225 377,527
“as % of country's GDP ' 69% = 31%
Cutput of the sector of agriculture per hectara of ulilised agricultural area 833 z,t}ﬂﬁ-

Souwrce; the Lithuanian Statistics Departmen!, Eurostal

Crop area

The total crop area amounted to 1,748 thousand hectares in Lithuania in 2008. The total crop area has not changed
much since 2005 and remains close to 1,750 thousand hectares during the four year period from 2005 to 2008, Grains
have been dominating in the structure of crops in Lithuania with their share slightly increasing from 54.6% in 2005 up to
58.5% in 2008. Wheat has been the most popular single crop in Lithuania, there baing 403.5 thousand hectares sownn
in wheal in 2008, Areas sown in rapeseed more than doubled during the six-year period from 2003 to 2008 and
amounted to 161.6 thousand hectares in 2008. Due to the increased demand and favourable price developments the
area of rapeseed was growing at a rate of 27.2% annually during the period 2003-2007.

A sharp growth of the rapeseed crop area has bean mainly influenced by substantial support to this sector. In addition to
usual direct payments for the crop areas, materal payments have been granted by the European Commission for
rapesesd grown for energy purposes. As a resull, more than two thirds of rapeseed crops have been declared for biofuel
production in the recent years,

The sector of biofuels is the main driver of the increasing crop areas (mainly of rapeseed and wheat) in Lithuania,
According to the commitments to the EU, Lithuania is obliged to increase the conpsumption of renewsble energy
resources to 12% until 2010. Biofuels should account for 5.75% of the total fuels by 2010, As a result, the total annual
production capacity of biofusl producers increased approximately by 18 times to 305 thousand lonnes during the period
2004-2008. Currently, there are four companies producing biodiesel (Rapsoila, Mestilla, Arvi, 3V Obeliy aligjus) and two
companies producing bioethanel (Biofuture, Kurana) in Lithuamnia.

Crop production

The production of grain was increasing in Lithuania with an average annual growth rate of 5.4% during the period 2003-
2008 to total 3,422 thousand tonnes in 2008, The output of grain was growing steadily over the past six years except for
the harvest season of 2006, when the production shrank by 34% as compared to 2005, The steep decrease in the
output of grain during the harvest season of 2006 was mainly attributable to adverse weather conditions.

Wheat and barley outputs have been highest among grains comprising 50.4% and 28.3% of the fotal grain output
respectively. Lithuania's climate is mare favourable for growing winter grain, which accounts for more than half of the
total production,

The production of rapeseed rose almost three-fold during the period 2003-2007 or by some 22.5% annually fo amount to
330.2 thousand tonnes in 2008. Preliminary estimates of the harvest season of 2000 show that the growth of the
rapeseed oulput is going lo keep its pace and the volume of rapeseed to be harvested in 2009 is expecied to exceed
400 thousand tonnes. The growth in rapeseed as well as other crop production is mainly linked to increasing grain crop
areas and convergence to the EU average crop yields.

Crop yields

Adverse climate conditions in 2006 diminished the crop yields substantially. However, the yields recovered reaching the
pre-drop figures by 2007 and were growing by 11.3% and 14% for grain and rapeseed respectively in 2008, In case of
favourable weather conditions, the yield growth is expected to fluctuate in the range of 5-10% per annum duri
period of the coming five years, as the yields still lag way behind the levels of Western Europe.
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Table 14, Erni area, iraduelion and ﬁlds in Lithuania durini the iarlnd 2003 - 2008

l:rup area [I'ra in thousand:—

Grain Bes 879 956 963 1,003 1,022
 Wheat 337 355 370 344 355 404
Barley 308 203 349 383 38 333
Other 220 231 237 236 2867 286

Rapeseed 67 101 109 151 LG 161

Other 440 451 684 639 549 565

Total crop area 1,371 1,431 1,750 1,753 1,727 1,748

Crop output (tonne in thousand) o - B

Grain 2632 2,859 2,811 1,858 3,017 3,422
Wheal 1,204 1,430 1,379 B10 1,391 1723
Barley 900 86D 948 744 1,014 970

Rapeseed 120 205 201 170 312 330

Crop yield (tonne per hectare) N __ -

Grain 3.04 3.25 2.94 1.93 3.01 3.35
Wheat 3,58 403 3,73 2.36 3.02 427
‘Barley ' 202 2.84 2.7 1.94 2,66 292

Rapeseed 1,78 2.03 1.84 1.12 1.78 204

Saurce: The Lithuanian Sfalisfics Dopartment, Evrostal

Crop prices

Fluctuations in crop prices in Lithuania are completely determined by the corresponding crop price changes on the
international market, However, there are some country specific factors determining the price deviations as compared to
the international market. In general, Lithuanian wheal prices are lower approximately by 10 EURfon {or 34.5 LTL/on)
than in the EU markeis. MATIF price, which is FOB prices of wheat futures, indicates market price of actual trades with a
deviation of +/- 10 EURMon (or 34.5 LTLon). Year 2007 should be excluded from analysis, since MATIF prices have
been inflated by financial investors and do not indicate prices of actual wheal trade,

Table 15. Lithuanian wheat price comparison with MATIF one month wheat future contract price (average prices
for September)

Wheat price in Lithuania (LTL) 366.9 4?0 0 742.8 B05.5 352.0
MATIF price (LTL) 3813 374, 2 4807 9109  BO58 4206
Price differance 14.4 402 18.7 168.1 03 8.6
Price difference in % ' 38%  107%  40% 1B5%  00%  16.3%

* Source: The cantre of Agricuitural information and rural activities of Lithuania

The pattern of lower local prices as compared to the international levels is common to all major crops, including wheat
and rapeseed.

Table 16, Lithuanian rapeseed price comparison with MATIF one month wheat future contract price (average

rices for Septem
“----—‘

Hapeseed DHE-E in Ll'thuanla fLTL} B53.8 622.5 812.3 1241.3 B23.7
Rapeseed price MATIF (LTL) o 7614 7872 8958 12210 12022 8947
Price difference 1076 1647  B38 2743 50.9 71.0
Price difference in % 14.1%  208%  9.3% 225%  39%  7.9%

Sowce: The cenfre of Agricuttural information and rural activities of Lithuania

International trade in grain

Exports of Lithuanian grain totalled LTL 1.1 billion in 2008. Meanwhile, the flow of grain imporis remains Insignificant
is mainly intended 1o compensate for local production in the years of unproductive harvest or is connected wit
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exporis of grain through Lithuanian ports. As a resull, Lithuania proved to be a netl exporter of grain, In 2008 alone,
Lithuania's grain net exports more than doubled as compared to the pravious year, whereas during the five-year period
from 2004 to 2008 increased the growth amounted to LTL 676.1 million in absolute terms and grew from LTL 182.5
million in 2004 to LTL B58.5 million in 2008, according to Lithuanian Department of Statistics.

According to Eurostal, grain consumption in Lithuania has decreased by 17.4% over the period of four years from 2.4
million tonnes in the 200372004 season o 2.0 million lennes in the 2007/2008 season . Lithuania's grain output during
the same time increased by 385.2 thousand tonnes, or by 14.6% from 2.6 million in 2003/2004 up to 3.0 million in
2007/2008. The decreased consumption and agricultural production facilitated by the increasing crop area, usage of
agricultural inputs and new agricultural machinery resulled in the growth of Lithuania's grain export capacity and export
volumes soaring by 87.4% during the period 2003-2008,

Table 17. Lithuanian international trade in imin I!..TL in thuusmi'

import 8,009 55,663 104,504 137,371 258,649

Export 250,487 415,100 314,361 531,859 1,117,197

Net export o 182,478 350,217 200,857 394,488 858,548
Souroe: Eurostat

Maore than one quarter of Lithuanian grain was exported o Algeria and Saudi Arabia during the period of 2007-2008, The
flows of exports to Latvia, which is the third Lithuanian grain exports market, are mainly refated o re-exports of
Lithuanizn grain through Latvian ports, The main markets of Lithuanian grain exporis do not vary significantly and remain
rather stable from year to year.

Table 18, Main destinations of Lithuanian iraln aﬁrts in the iurtod of 2007 - 2008 ias % from total uxiurtl

Algeria - 12.8%
Saudi Arabia o 12.5%
Latvia i - 11.8%
Marocco o 10.6%
" Germany a - B T am%
Poland 8.1%
Other 36.1%

—— T

Source: Department of Stalistics of Lithuania
Wheat

Based on the information provided by Eurostat, wheat production in Lithuania increased by 15.5% during the period
2004-2008 and amounted to 1.4 million tonnes. Domastic consumption shrank by 22.1% or by 181 thousand tonnes
from 817.3 thousand tonnes in 2004 down o 636.3 thousand tonnes in 2008 and causing the net wheat exports soar by
249.9 thousand tonnes during the same period. A substantial drop in the production of wheat and the subseguent
decrease in exports in 2007 were influenced by adverse weather conditions.

Barley

During the reviewed period 2003-2008 the production of barley increased by 113.9 thousand tonnes to amount to 1.0
millien in 2008. Domestic consumption in 2008 totalied to 0.7 million tonnes, a 21.6% decrease as compared to 2004,
Due 1o the increasing output and the decreasing inland consumption of barley the net exports of grain more than tripled
during the period 2003-2008.
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Table 19, Wheat, barley and rapeseed balances in Lithuania during the period 2003 — 2008 (tonne in thousand)

Wheat

Production 1,204 1430 1379 810 1391
Consumption B17 20 464 731 636

Import 56 31 52 134 115

Export 591 473 980 186 900
Net export N - 535 442 928 52 785
 Change in stock ' (148) 68 (13) 27 (30)

" Final stock B ' 68 136 124 151 121
Barley — N— ]

Production ano 860 948 744 1.014

" Consumption 911 720 672 566 714
Impart T 51 3 87 46

Export 131 213 243 280 334

Net export - 82 2 213 213 288

Change in stock (93) (22) 64 (35) 12

Final stock 168 54 "7 83 95

Rapeseed -
" Production a 120 205 201 170 nz
" Consumption —— 6 /A a2 89 144
Import 0 1 2 13 11

Exporl g9 157 172 a1 175

Net export = 99 156 171 77 183
Change in stock a CONA NIA (1) 4 5

Final stock .  Na 9 7 11 16

* - 20032004 reprasents the crop year starfing 1 July 2002 and %0 JUHB.E[R}E_
Sowrce: Ewrostal ¥

Rapeseed

Motwithstanding the fact thal rapeseed consumplion has been almost doubling each year during the reviewed period,
Lithuania =till remains a net exporter of rapeseed. However, the share of net exports in the total rapeseed production
diminished from about B0% in 2003-2006 down to 45-53% in 2006-2008. There were no significant flows of imports of
rapeseed during the period 2003-2008. In addilion to this, due to the growing consumption and the strong demand for
rapeseed on exports markets the cpor stocks remained low during the said period. The growth of rapeseed production
has been mainly fuelled by the established EU support whereas the surging domestic consumplion has been Tacilitated
by origination of rapeseed processing faclories.

Storage facilities

The majerity of the grain storage facilities currently operating in Lithuania were built in the Soviet times. In addition, a
great number of high capacity industrial storages are situated in low or average agricultural productivity areas and due lo
inefficiencies are no more operated after Lithuania regained its independence.

Based on the estimates of the Management of the Group, the total projected grain storage capacily of grain elevators in
Lithuania currently amounts to 2.9 million tonnes: the capacity of 1.7 million tonnes is controlled by agricultural holdings,
processors of agricultural production and independent operators, whereas the remaining capacities of 1.2 million tonnes
are owned by farms and farmers. Only 2-3 times capacity annual turnover is achieved in Lithuanian elevators on
average, as fully depreciated elevalors dominate and the current equipment in most of the grain storage facilities cannot
fully utilise the capacities available and very few companies have business models, which produce efficiency
comparable to the Group.
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Table 20. The breakdown of iraln sﬁ l:aﬁl:itlaﬂs in Lithuania |tunna in Ihmmandl

Commercial entities 1,680
Agricultural holdings = 880
Processors o - 524
Independent operators o 286

Farms and farmears _ 1&35

“Total - 2,875
© Source: the Company T a .

According to the estimates of the Management of the Group, agricultural holdings, processors and independent
operators control more than 50 grain elevators offering grain drying, cleaning and storage services across Lithuania.
Largest grain elevators with a capacity of 50 thousand tonnes or more have 702 thousand fonnes aggregate grain
storage capacity and comprise 42% of the total capacily owned by commercial entities.

Table 21. Fru|anted cﬁli distribution of irairl sturﬁ facilities owned bi commercial entities in Lithuania

50 and maore 702 8
30-50 - 412 11
15-30 O am 21
Less than 15 B 146 B 16
Total ' 1,690 56

Sowrce: the Company

Grain elevators, which have been newly constructed or renovated, are mainly located in high agricultural production
areas. Such facilities report better energy efficiency, better temperature control, higher degree of automation, faster
uploading and unloading speed and may therefore reach higher capacity umnover rates,

Recently, the grain storage facility sector has undergone a consolidation process. Currently, the ownership, especially in
case of larger facilities, is concentrated in the hands of several |arger agricultural holdings. The Group, Agrokoncernas
and Litagra own more than 50% of the total agricultural holdings grain storage capacities whereas KG Group, Malsena
plius and Amilina own approximately 50% of the total processors grain storage capacities.

Subsidies to agriculture sector

The support to the Lithuanian agriculture sector may be split into three main sources: the Rural Development
Programmie, the Mational Support Schemes and the support of the Direct Payments.

The current Rural Development Programme has been established for the period 2007-2013 and aims at encouraging
diversification and competitiveness of the agriculture sector in Lithuania. The projects supported under this programme
usually pursue increased effectiveness and farms' modernisation, The support granted by the Rural Development
Programme to Lithuania for the period 2007-2013 totals EUR 2.3 bn. On average, 77.13% of the support is derived from
the European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development (EAFRD). The remaining funds come from the Lithuanian budget.

Table 22, Annual available funds from the Rural Development Programme 2007-2013 (EUR in millions)

S0 2010 201 202 2013 Total
250

EAFRD contribution 261 249 237 245 248 254 1,743
Total RDP available funds * 338 323 307 317 322 324 329 2260

" based on the assumption of the average 77.18% financing from the EAFRD .
Source: the National Paying Agancy

The direct payments is another important form of support to Lithuanian farmers. The majority of such Direct Payments
are allocated for crop areas. In addition to that, there are certain Direct Payments for farmers in the areas less suitable
for farming and for farmers engaged in the energy crop production.
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Table 23, Annual sum of the Direct Paﬁms in the iriud 2004-2008 lLTL in millinnsl

Direct Payments to farmers 604 1.3

© Source: the Nalfanal Paying Agﬁmy

In order to increase the afficiency of agricultural holdings and fo enable them to compete on the Lithuanian and foraign
markets the Lithuanian government has established the National Support Schemes. The support allocated through the
Mational Support Schemes has more than doubled in 2007 and totalied LTL 324.4 million. However, due fo the shrinking
budget of the state, the National Support has returned to the previous level and is forecasted to further shrink in 2009
either,

Table 24. The support allocated through the National Support Schemes during the period of 2004-2008 (LTL in

e o T T G as e mw

The support allocated mmugh national support schemes

Sowrce: (he Nabional Pay:ng Ap'erh:r

Milk production quotas

Milk producers in the EU countries are subject to a quota regulation in the milk production, which determines a national
limit for the amount of milk each EU country is expected to produce. The national authorities allocate the milk quota
between milk producers. If a producer exceeds its milk quota,no subsidies will be paid for milk volumes exceeding the
guota of a producer.

At present, the EU seeks a flexible transition to the new subsidy policy before the milk quota system expires on 31
March 2015. It Is expected that milk producers in Europe will be reoriented from quota based payments to other forms of
subsidies, most likely direct payments to farmers.

The milk production quotas are classified inlo two lypes: the quota for processing and the quota for sales fo direct
consumers. Currantly, the total national quota imposed onto Lithuania is 1.64 million tonnes. The quota for transfer for
processing s 1.28 milllon tonnes and the quota for sales to direct consumers is 0,37 million tonnes.

According to the Management, Lithuania currently utilizes 85% of the quola allocated to the country. Therefore,
reducing of the milk production quota is possible only when the milk producer does not reach 60-70% of the quota
utilization ratio. Furthermore, the Lithuanian milk production quota is increased by 2% annually.

Sugar production guotas

According to the EU regulations, each member state is entitied to the sugar production quota. Within a member state,
the sugar production quotas are allocated by the national authorities to the sugar processing companies, which in turn
allocate the sugar-beet purchasing guotas lo farmers. The volume of sugar-beet determined by the quota system is
purchased al a fixed price. Additional sugar-beet volumes above the quota limit may be sold by farmers based on
separate agreement between the farmer and the sugar processor,

Latvia
Agricultural sector overview

Output of the agricultural sector accounted for 4.5% of Latvian GDP in 2008. Utilised agricultural area totalled 1,825.1
thousand hectares in 2008, Arable land accounted for 64% of this number (1,168.9 thousand hectares). Based on the
statistical figures of Eurosiat, the agriculture sector's output (at current prices) In Latvia amounted to EUR 1,050.3 million
in 2008. The output of the agricuflure sector grew by 55% during the period 2004-2008 or by 11.6% annually. The
Latvian agricultural output per hectare of the utilised agricultural area is almost four-fold lower as compared to the EU-
wide lavel and by 30% lower in comparison to the respective figures of Lithuania. Crops constitutes 48.2% of the lotal
agricultural output in Latvia,
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Table 25. Main information on the sector of airinulture in Latvia and cnmimﬂve data on the EU-27 izuﬂai

Country's area (ha in thousand) 6,459 432,526
Utilised agricultural area (ha In thousand) 1,825 181,094
as % of country's area 28.3% 41.9%
Arable land (ha in thousand) ' 1,170 105,536
& % of country's area 18.1% 24.4%
Output of the sector of agriculture — Estimate (EUR in milions) 1,060 377,527
as % of country's GOP 4.5% & 1%

" Output of the sector of agriculture per hectare of utilised agricultural area 575 2,085

T == —_——

Source: Eurostat
Crop area

The crop area exceeds 1.1 million hectares in Latvia, growing moderately from the level just below 1 million hectares
during the period 2003-2008. The growth has been mainly due o the increased areas of perennial grasses and grain
crops. Grains have been the dominating crop in the breakdown of crops accounting for approximately half of the total
crop areas, followed by perennial grasses and rapeseed,

Wheat Is the prevailing crop in the segment of grains in Latvia. The area sown in wheal amounted to 256.6 thousand
hectares in 2008, which is 86.7 thousand of hectares increase as compared to 2008, The increase represented a 10.9%
average annual growth rate during the period 2004-2008. Despite some fluctuations the area sown in barley did not
change much during the period 2004-2008 as there was an average growth rate below 1% recorded.

Rapeseeds were sown on 85.2 thousand hectares in 2008. The figure was by 14.5% lower as compared to 2007 but by
§4.9% higher than in 2004, representing an average annual growth rate of 11.6%. The increase in rapeseed crop area is
related to the direct payments granted for cultivated land, field crops and energy plants, Latvia is also obliged by EU
Directive 2003/30/EK to increase the consumption of biofuel to 5.75% of the total fuel consumption by 2010, Thera was
one company producing bioethanol and 5 companies producing biodiesel in 2007, Their aggregate production capacily
amounted fo 32.5 thousand tonnes. However, there are two high capacity plants under construction having the
combired annual production capacity of ca, 100 thousand tonnes. It suggests the further demand for rapeseed crops
and the increasing rapeseed agricultural output in the foreseeable fulure,

Crop production

Grain output in Latvia was growing at 18.6% annually during the period 2004-2008, A sharp decrease in the grain output
by 11.8% in 2006 was caused by adverse climate conditions in the region. However, crops of Lalvian farmers were
affected less in comparison to their Lithuanian peers, where the production shrunk by one third compared to the harvest
of 2005. The grain crop production in 2007 not only returned to the previous level, but showed a material increase and
amounted 1o 1.5 milllon tones. The increase by 16.8% as compared to 2005 and by 45% as compared to 2004 was
reported. Latvia's climate conditions are more favourable for growing winter grain crops. The share of winter grain crops
accounted for 54.9% of the total grain output in 2007 and was close to this level in 2008 as well. Wheat output was the
highest among grains in 2008 and comprised 58.6% of the total grain output whereas barley accounted for 18.2%. The
growth in the grain crop production is associated with the increasing grain crop areas and even more so with the crop
yields convergence to the EU average. Latvia's rapeseed output aimost doubled frorm 2004 1o 2008 and amounted to
204.7 thousand tonnes in 2008. The increase of the rapeseed output can be explained by both the extensive growth of
rapesead crop areas and the intensive growth connected with the rising yields,
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Table 26. Crop area, production and yields in Latvia during the od 2003 - 2008
“ﬂ . =0s 2006 2007 2008

Crop area (ha in thousand)

Grain 437 469 512 522 544
Wheat 170 188 215 225 257
Barley 127 149 154 145 131

Other 140 133 143 152 156

Rapeseed . = 55 T2 84 100 85

Crop output (tonne in thousand)

Grain 1,080 1,314 1,159 1,535 1,689
Wheat a 500 677 598 807 990
Barley 284 366 307 351 307

Rapeseed 105 146 122 212 205

Crop yield (tonne per hectare)

Grain 243 2.80 226 2.94 3.10
Wheat 2.94 3.61 2.78 3.59 3.86
Barlay 2.23 2.46 1.99 2.41 234

Rapeseead 1.80 2.03 1.45 243 2.40

Source: Eurostal
Crop yields

Thera is a significant difference when comparing Western European agricultural countries with the Latvian crop yields.
Adverse climate conditions in 2006 diminished the crop yields to the record lows but in 2007 the yields recovered and
reached the pre-drop figures.

The country wide vield of grain has increased on average by 6.4% during the period 2004-2008, whereas the yield of
wheat alone was growing by 7% annually during the said period. The yield of rapeseed was increasing by 6% annually.

Crop prices

Tahble 27. Latvian wheat price comparison with MATIF one month wheat future contract price (average

September prices
hm——-—

Wheat price in Latvia (LTL) 4125 743.7 571.6 369.8
MATIF price (LTL) 374.2 489.7 E‘HEQ B{]_’E.B ) 420.6
Price difference 274 Fif s 167.2 34.2 50.8

Price difference in % 7.3% 15.8% 1B.4%; 5.6% 12.1%
Sowce: The cenlre of Agricultural information and rural aclivities of Lithuania '

International trade in grain

Trade in agricuttural goods accounted for 2.6% of Latvia's intemational trade in 2008, During seasons of 2003/2004-
2007/2008 Latvia was steadily increasing production and consumption of grains. According to Eurostat, grain production
and consumption during the said period of time increased by 6028 thousand and 296.7 thousand tonnes and in
2007/2008 amounted to 1.5 million and 1.2 million tonnes, respectively. Such increase in the production relative to the
consumption widenad Latvia's net grain export capacity, which in 2007/2008 amounted to 277.1 thousand tonnes.
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Table 28, Grain balance in Latvia durii the Erlnd 2003 - 2008 1tanne~ in thuusandl

Production 89324 1,059.5 1,214.3 1,158.7 1,535.2
Consumption 8844 0895 957.2 1,005.4 1,181.1
Import - 103.5 97.3 159.6 120.6 2285
Export 184.5 175.0 5026 2985 505.6
Net export 81.0 777 3430 1778 2771
Change in stock B (33.0) (7.7) 14.1 (24.0) 77.0
Final stock 1472 139.5 153.6 1296 2066

Sourge: Eurosfal

Latvia has been a nel exporter of grain over the past decade. The Latvian export of grain was steadily growing excepl
for the unproductive 2006 and reached EUR 182.1 million in 2008, The net exports totalled EUR 121.8 Million in 2008.

Table 29, Latvian international trade in iraln iLTL in ﬂwuuand!

Impart 58,549 30,629 57,169 207,078
Export 174,938 136,409 225,601 523__?'31
MNel export 116,388 105,780 168,433 420,803

Source: Lahvian stalistics
Wheat

Based on the information of Eurostat, the domestic consumption of wheat during the period 2003-2008 rose by 193.9
thousand tonnes, However, wheal production volumes were growing much faster as the output of wheat increased by
338.9 thousand tonnes or by 72.%, from 468.4 thousand tonnes in 2003/2004 to 807.3 thousand tennes in 2007/2008.
As a result, Latvia's net export increased by 97.2 thousand tonnes and in 2007/2008 totalled 226.6 thousand tonnes.

Barley

The production of barley in Latvia during seasons of 2003/2004-2007/2008 increased by 103.9 thousand tonnes and in
2007/2008 amounted to 350.5 thousand tonnes, according to Eurostat. The domestic consumption in 2007/2008 totalled
310.8 thousand tonnes, a 16.5% increase from 266.7 million metric tonnes consumed in 2003/2004. During the seasons
2003/2004-2007/2008 Latvia made a shift from being a net importer to becoming a net exporter of barley. The Latvian
net exports of grain amounted to 24.8 thousand tonnes in 2007/2008.

Table 30. Wheat, barley and rapeseed balances in Latvia during the period 2003 - 2008 (tonne in thousand)

Wheat

Production 468 500 877 598 807

Consumption 386 393 384 449 580

mport - 39 52 137 42 81

Export ' 169 140 419 196 308

Net export B 129 88 283 154 227
Change in studt a {47) 20 10 (&)

Final stock & 83 93 88 89
Barley _ )

Production 247 284 %6 307 351

Consumption 267 303 289

Import 32 26 1

Export 3 18 T2

‘Net export == (29) (8] 71

Change in stock - 9 (1) 6

Final stock 3 25 31

Sowrce: Eurosial = =55 :




Storage facilities

Most of the grain storage facilities in Latvia were built during the Soviet era. Similar to Lithuania, a number of high
capacity Industrial storage facilities were located in low to average agricultural production areas and had a strategic
importance for the Soviet economy. After Latvia's regaining its independence only few of them remain in use,

According to the Management estimates, currenily the total theoretical capacity of grain storage facilities in Latvia
amounts to one million tones, of which 0.6 million tonnes are under agricultural holdings, processors and independent
operators; and 0.4 million tonnes are owned by farms and farmers.

Support to the sector of agriculture

Since Latvia's accession lolhe EU, there has been general support granted to farmers as part of common area
payments, supplementary state payments, less favourable area payments and agri-environment payments. The Rural
Development Programme for 2007-2013 is almed at increasing competitiveness, impraving environment and land
management, rural economy and education. The total public budget for the programme amounts to EUR 1.4 billion
during the period of 2007-2013.

Principal Activities

General Overview

In recent years, the Group has experienced a rapid development resulting in the significant growth of its assets,
revenues and profits. During the last financial year the Group has booked LTL 1,114 million revenuas and LTL 32 million
net profits. Together with its Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates it employs 730 employees located in three
countries (as on 30 September 2009).

The Group's operations are classified into five reportable business segments: Grains and Oilsesds, Feedstuffs, Farming,
Agricultural Inputs, and Other. Each of the segments is organized depending on the nature of products and business
activities.

The table below lllustrates contribution made by each segment to the overall resulf:

Table 31. Breakdown by segmenis

Sales (LTL in thousand) Grains and Oilseeds 197,432 476,006 662,145
Feedstuffs 382,592 329,083 349,382 [4%}
Farming 22 849 32,644 37,056 27%
Agricultural Inputs 52.326 73,314 58,176 5%
 Other o 25 566 32,172 43,216 30%
Intersegment eliminations {19...'5-.94} Iﬂ-? 25}3} {E-E.ﬁﬂ;ﬂ:} - _376_%
- Total 661,371 907,006 1,113,880 30%
Gross profit (LTL in thousand) Grains anﬂ Oilseads B Eﬂi} 17,679 33.513 a7%
a Feedstuffs 15,780 30,628 18,395 8%
B Farming 6,869 11,978 5,368 (12%)
- Agricultural Inputs 5279 7,560 3,817 (15%)
Other 6239 8084 14845 53%
a Total 42,767 75,929 75,730 33%
Gross margin (%) Grains and Oilseeds 4,4% 3.7% 5%
Feedstuffs a 4.1% 9.3% 5.3%
- B Farming 30.1% 36.7% 14.5%
o  Agricultural Inputs a 10.1% 10.3% 6.6%
Other 24.4% 25.1% 33.9%
Total - Bs% 8.4% 6.8%




Sowroe: the Company

Interzegment eliminations indicate the value created in several segments. For example, when agricultural inputs are sold
to the Farming segment, profits earned remain in the Agricultural Inputs segment. However, sales of the Agricultural
Inputs within the Group are eliminated. Similarly, when products of the Farming are sold to the Grains and Qilseeds,
intersegment sales are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. In addition, some feedstuffs are supplied to
the farming while elevator services (part of the Other) are provided to the Grains and Oilseeds. More datailed comments
on the segments are provided below,

Grains and Oilseeds

The Group is involved in origination, storing and international marketing of various grains and oilseeds. Grain products
include wheat, barley, rye, maize, oat and some other grains. Oilseeds comprise rapeseeds and linseeds, The Grains
and Oilseeds s the largest segment of the Group having generated LTL 662 million revenues and 868 thousand lonnes
in 2008/2009, The Group links its sourcing markets with ils cuslomers by providing value-added services like grain and
oilseed cleaning, drying, storage, transportation, and marketing. Main customers of the Grains and Cilseeds are flour
mills, fodder producers, blodiesel makers and large grain trading companies, Products are mostly sold to Scandinavia
and Lithuania as well as to the other European countries and North Alfrica,

The following table summarizes volume, revenue and gross profit split by key products:

Table 32. Breakdown of the Grains and Qilseeds

Volume (tonnes) Wheat 110,507 266,085 372816
- Rapeseed 66,387 105,007 161,344
Badey 68,198 108,676 112,128
o Maize 20228 20,683 178,881
Linseed 12,634 10,918 18,907
- Other grains and oilseeds 13,581 43,955 24,409

Total 300,535 564,324 868,486 70%

Sales (LTL in thousand) Wheat 63,282 223,271 247 882 o
o Rapeseed 58,871 114,973 200,519
Barley 32,915 69,064 78,008
Maize B 21,292 20,917 42,801
.~ Linseed 10638 13,425 23,166
Other grains and cilseeds 10,433 34,445 19,768

- Total 197,432 476,006 662,145 83%

Gross profit (LTL in thousand)  Wheat _5_,_|_:!?2 4 864 13,848
Rapeseed 259 12,554 17,287
Barley 1,845 (7.936) 2,074
Maize 556 1,328 _4,138
Linseed 233 3,386 (4,743)

Other grains and oilseeds 635 3,482 _?53 -

Total 8600 17,679 33,513 97%

Gross margin (%) Wheat N B.0% 2.2% 5.6%
' Rapeseed 04%  10.9% 86%
Ea'rla:.r 5.6% {11, 5%) 2.7%
Malze 2.6% 6.4% 4.5%

Linseed 2.2% 25.2% {20.5%) )
- Olher grains and oilseeds 6.1% 10.1% 3.8%
Total 4.4% 3.7% 51%

Source: the Company

In recent years, the Graing and Qilseed segment has demonstrated a significant growth, Revenues advan
CAGR and gross profits at 97% CAGR. The success should be attributed fo several factors such as experi
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agricullure business, refationships with farmers, investments into elevator infrastructure, and skitful sales team. In
addition, 2008/2009 was a year of a good harvest. The margins of wheat and barley were negatively influenced by falling
prices in 2007/2008 (which declined significantly from the purchase moment to the sales date). The margin
improvements in rapeseeds resulted from increasing scale of this business. Profitability of linseed fluctuales due to
nature of contracts: the Group sources linseed al fixed price for a season and sells for a spot price. Other grains and
oilseeds ware more profitable in 2007/2008 due to successful rye sales resulling from favarable market conditions,

Over the years, the margins of individual grains and cilseeds have had a tendency to fluctuate due to various factors
such as changes in the price direction or weather conditions or any unexpected twists in the demand and supply or
lurbulences in the competition. Please refer the section Risk Facfors, page 17, for more details. As a resull of changes in
the price direction or competition, an exceplionally good year is frequently followed by a mediocre year or vice versa.
However, the margins of individual grains and oilseeds frequently offset each other and the overall margin remains
relatively stable oscillating in 3.5-5.5% range. The extent of the marging also depends on the extent of the services
performed internally. Through the expansion of its elevator capacities the Group succeeded to strengthen its margin in
2008/2009. The sustainability of profits largely stems that sourcing markets of the Group are net exporters and prices on
these markels are lower on the global markets. More comprehensive explanation can be found in Section Sowrcing
Markets of the Group, page 36.

Grains and cilseeds are orginated from 4 sources: own production, purchases through the Agriculture Growing
Programme, independent farmers and other industrial sellers. Majority of grains and oll seeds are sourced through the
special Agricullure Growing Programme, which provides farmers with pre-financed agricultural inputs like certified seads,
fertilizers, plant protection products and similar. Agronomists employed by the Group regularly advise the Programme's
members by inviting them into workshops or through the frequent field visits. Pre-financing and close relationships with
farmers creale a competilive advantage for securing harvests of the farmers. The number of the Agriculture Growing
Programme participanis in 2008/2009 has reached 1,324 growing from 821 in 2007/2008. Total aggregate contracted
area in 2008/2009 has been 99,571 hectares in Lithuania and 11,000 hectares in Latvia, which Tavourably compares
with 71,771 ha and 7,170 ha in 200772008,

Rapeseed business is largely driven by relationships with UWAB Mestilla, the largest rapeseed crushing and biodiesel
plant in the Baltic States {its production capacity is 100 thousand fonnes of biodiesel, which requires 200 thousand
tonnes of rapeseed). An exclusive long-term contract between UAB Mestilla and the Group entitles the Group to supply
rapeseed and rapeseed oil and to take biodiesel co-products such as rapecake for further marketing. Biodiesel is sold
through the Norwegian partner Statoil New Energy AS.

The Group's main competitors in Lithuania are other agricultural holdings such as: Agrokoncemas, Litagra, Agrochema
and Siaurés Vilkas. In Latvia, the Group shares market with Kesko Agro, Agrokoncernas, BTC and Kemira, Besides, the
Group is indirectly competing with other large purchasers of grain, i.e. local mills and fodder producers. However, these
consumers are al a disadvantage as compared to agricultural holdings because they do not maintain close ties with
farmers as the integrated agricultural companies do. In addition, flour and fodder producers have a constant demand
(400 thousand tonnes of grain per annum in Lithuanian and 350 thousand tonnes in Latvia) and cannol promise to buy
the entire crop from farmers during the years of good harvest,

Feedstuffs

The Feedstuffs segment represents international sourcing and marketing of food industry co-products like sunflower
seed cake, sunflower seed extraction, sugar beet pulp pellets, rapecake and similar products. In addition, the segment
includes other feedstuff related products like soybean, soymeal and vegetable oil. The Group purchases and transports
various food industry co-products and buffers them into exportable batehes. The CIS countries are the primary sourcing
markets of these products. The Group deals with the Belarusian, Ukrainian and Russian markets where more than 18
years of the agricultural sourcing experience has created a compefitive edge in accessing and serving their largest
producers. The sourcing activities are backed by a sophisticated logistics system, which allows flexible small-size
pickups from suppliers and timely midsize and large shipments to consumers from numerous seaports, The Feedsiufs is
the second larges!t segment of the Group having booked LTL 349 million revenues and 413 thousand tonnes in
2008/2009. The main customers of the Feedstuffs are fodder producers, livestock raisers, and salmon breeders.
Products are mostly sold to Scandinavia but are also exported to MNorth Africa, the Baltic States and some other
countries.

The following table sets forth volume, revenue and gross profit split by key products:
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Table 33, Breakdown of the Feedstuffs

Sunflower sead cake and

Volume (tonnes) axtraction 219,643 153,754 141,811
Sugar beet pulp pellets 167,547 114,935 36,181
a Soybeanand soymeal 68,107 59,103 84,492
Vegetable ol 66,828 25448 45581 -
Rapecake 4,045 48,106 88,336
Fishmeal 7,983 —~n — o
Other feadstuffs 4,925 18,445 16,287
Total 539,078 420,791 412,688 (13%)
Sales (LTL in thousand) :‘E‘m saed cake and 89,576 107,507 95,203
Sugar beet pulp pellets 78,769 84,057 18.316_ -
Soybean and soymeal 47,239 67,382 114,655
Wegelable il 135,764 51,609 94,623
Rapecake - aze7 11,360 20,864
Fishmeal 22 049 = -
Other fesdstuffs 3,939 8,069 5,131
Total 382,502 320,083 349382 (4%)
Fﬁ:ﬂﬁ;ﬁ;ﬁt (LTL in Sm:::!' seed cake and 5.470 5078 13,525
Sugar beel pulp pallets 4,840 17,767 (2,436)
Soybean and soymeal 1398 4,607 8478
= Vegetable ol 1,941 1,628 (3,217)
Rapecake 281 950 1,853
a Fishmeal 1,574 - :
© Other feedstuffs 178 599 192
Total 15,780 30,628 18,395 8%
Gross margin (%) Eﬂm seed cake and 6.1% 4.7% 14.2%
Sugar beet pulp pellets 6.2% 21.1% (12.9%)
Soybean and soymeal 3.0% 6.8% 7.4%
o Vegetable ol 1.4% 3.2% (3.4%)
Rapecake 6.6% B.4% 8.9%
o Fishmeal 7.1% 5 -
Other feedstufis  45% 7.4% 3.7% -
- Total 41% 9.3% 5.3%

Source: the Compariy

The Group demonstrated a significantly increasing gross profit in the Feedstuffs in 2007/2008 and a healthy gross profit
in 2008/2009 while revenues were decreasing slightly. Some items such as soybean, soymeal and rapecake were
showing a stable growth in revenues and profits whereas a number of Individual producis were demonstrating ups and
downs. The biggest impact on the profits comes from sugar beet pulp pellets, where, contrary to the absolule majority of
the products, the Group has been committed to fixed purchasing and floating sales prices. Raising prices produced a
phenomenal profit in 200772008 while the following year was very disappointing due to the falling prices. Sunflower sead
products have declined in sales but grown in profits since the Group tries to till its sales from less profitable seed
extraction products to seed cake products. The Group took a strategic decision to stop selling the fishmeal product in
2006/2007, since it considered this product oo risky due o possible issues related to the product quality. During this
year sales of fishmeal were LTL 22,049 thousand. Volumes and sales of vegetable oil declined singnificantly in
2007/2008 due to the start up of UAB Mestilla. The partnership contract with Statoil New Energy AS required direct
purchase of vegetable oll by UAB Mestilla where the Group receives a commision for sourcing activities. Currently the
Group is developing additional sourcing markets but it takes time. Vegetable oil margin was significantly affected in
2008/2009 by a LTL 5,274 thousand provision for onerous contracts.
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Competition in this segment depends on the product, The Group most often competes with Feedimpex and A.C.
Toepfer, @ member of Archer Daniels Midland Company, and biodiesel producers such as WJ, Agerona, Tegra Baltic,
DanStore, and Inerco.

Since some feedstuff products might sound unfamiliar, their brief description is provided below in order to give a better
understanding of the nature of these products:

- Sunflower seed cake and seed exiraction are co-products in the sunflower oilseed indusiry. Seed cake and seed
exiraction are coproducts of sunflower oil production, which result from two different production processes: cold oil
pressing and oil extraction with the help of chemical materials. Sunflower seed cake and sunflower seed extraction
are both rich sources of proteins, especially rumen, which is non-degradable protein and has high concentrations of
methionine and lysine. Therefore, both products are widely used as caitle and swine feed components.

- Sugar beet pulp pellats are a solid residue after extracting sugar from sugar beets and is a co-product in the sugar
production industry. The wel pulp left after the extraction of sugar is pressed to remove the excess waler thereby
raising the dry matter content, which makes the transporiation and storage of sugar best pulp easier, The nutrition
value of sugar beet pulp can be compared to that of corn. Dried beel pulp pellets are mostly fed to dairy cattle, for
which it Is very suitable, as the crude fibre content of sugar beet pulp is well digested by callle.

- Soymealis derived from soybeans after extraction of oil. Soymeal is one of the most valuable sources of vegetable
protein. The amino-acld composition of soymeal is comparable to that of milk protein. For this reason, soymeal is
widely used as a feedstuff for livestock.

- Rapecake is co-produced with rapeseed oll in the process of rapeseed crushing. Mowadays biofuel production is
the main sector generating substantial amounts of rapecake. Due to specific rapecake characteristics, which
increase digestibility of proteins, it is mainly used as a protein-enrichment element of catlle feed.

Farming

The Group owns four farms in high productivity areas of Lithuania providing part of the supplies to the Grains and
Oilseeds segment. The Farming covers milk production and growing of grain, rapeseed and sugar beet. Farms also
produce different types of fodder, which is mainly used to feed own cattle. In addition, involvement inta farming activities
helps to accumulate addifional expertise, which can be shared with farmers participating in the Agriculture Growing
Programme.

The following table illustrates key products of the Farming segment.

Table 34, Breakdown of the Farming segment

Volume (tonnes) Grains and oilseads (farming) 16,331 23,823 34,671
Mik T Bam 8,625 9,047
= Caltle 542 517 516
Sugar beet o 3,085 3,663 5088 -
- - Total 28,060 36,628 49,332 33%
Sales (LTL in thousand) Grains and ollseeds (farming) 8,086 15,849 20,366
- Milk 7,721 10,007 8,423
a Cattle 1,486 1,562 1,525
Sugar beet 240 342 713
Subsidies 4,415 4,884 6.029
Total 22,849 32,644 37,056 27%
Gross profit (LTL in thousand)  Grains and ollseeds (farming) ' 1,534 6,737 3,arg
Milk 2,268 1,740 (1,272)
Cattie - (1307)  (1,429) (2,768)
- Sugar beet (41) a6 0 m\
B ~ Subsidies 4,415 4,884 6,020 @
- Total 6,869 11,978 5,368 O25Y e 2
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Gross margin (%) Grains and oilseeds (farming) 17.1% 42.5% 16.6%
Milk 20.4% 17.4% (15.1%)
Callle (88.0%) (91.5%)  (181.6%)
Sugar beet (17.2%) 13.4% 0.0%
. Subsidies 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Total 30.1% 36.7% 14.5%

Source: the Company

The gross margin went down in 2008/2009 due to unusually low prices of grains and milk, which resulted in lower profits
and negative changes in the value of biological assels. Caltle results should be viewed together with the milk production
since catfle is a co-product of the milk business (old milking cows and bulls are sold for meat). Nevertheless, the
Farming segment is consistently showing higher margins as compared to other segments and driving a lot of additional
businesses such as supply of agricultural inputs and feedstufis, export of grains and usage of elevators. The Farming
profitability is also largely depending on subsidies, it being highly unlikely that the subsidy levels might decrease in
future. The majority of subsidies come from the European Union defining long-term and very stable support programs.

Grains and ollseeds produced in own farms are mostly sold to the Grains and Oilseeds segment or fed to own cattle.
Milk is sold to milk processors while sugar beet Is sold to sugar makers. These products are sold in Lithuania.

The total praduction of the farms is summarized in the tables below;

Table 35. Production of the Farming segment (tonnes)

Grains and rapeseed 23,040 33,791 43,138 arn
Wheat 7.718 10,713 13,784
" Rapeseed 2,560 4,548 7,006
Barley 7.157 O 7om 9.622
Rye 258 1,271 2.059
Triticale 2267 3,538 6,105
Com - - 3,080 6,710 T as62
Milk 8,958 9,386 9,923 5%
' Cattle 543 517 519
Sugar beet 2335 3,663 5,008 =
Fodder related products 39,582 33,038 42,711 4%
Feed mass from grass and com 18,466 10,871 19,042
" Silage o 9,634 13,766 14,900
Haylage and hay 8,886 6,284 6.976
 Pasture feed 2,506 3,017 1,793
Other products — 538 548 G685 3%

Sowrce; the Company
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Table 36. Production breakdown by farms in 2008/2009 (tonnes)

Grains and rapeseed 10,492 14,139 8,525 9,982 43,138
Wheat = = 7055 2,877 3852 13784
Rapeseed 1,381 1,699 1,301 2,625 7,006
Barey 1,656 3,830 1,998 2,129 9,622
Rye 982 - 1077 . 2,059

* Triticale ) - 2,354 1,546 1,272 933 6,105
Con 4118 : i 443 4,562

Milk 1,053 5918 . 2,051 9,923

Cattle 128 257 - 13 519

Sugar beet 5,088 - - - 5,098

Fodder related products - 36,450 - _6.2'51 4-2_ﬁ1
Feaed mass from grass and com - 18,042 - - 18,042
Silage - 10337 = 4561 14,900
Haylage and hay - 5,278 - 1,698 6,876
Pasture feed - 1,793 - : 1,793

Other products - 446 238 - 685

Sowrce: the Comparny

Over the past three years there have been no significant changes in the agricultural assels employed. Land in use
varied by less than 1% while the number of milking cows decreased from 1,443 to 1,381 during the year 2008/2009.
Therefore, the significant growth in the production output should be attributed to the following two factors: favourable
weather conditions and productivity increase. The latter confirms the importance of the accumulated experise and
importance of the guality agricultural supplies.

The table below sets forth production assets of farms:

Table 37. Production assets of farms in 2008/2009

Land in use (hectares) 1,851 1,950 2,630 9,898
own 51 6 2 @1 280
Rented from Landvestas a 620 192 609 553 1,083
Rented from external parties 1,384 3,168 1,339 1886 7,788
Rented to extemal parties S (123) = 3 5 (123)

Indices of milk production o
Mumber of milking cows 36 T15 - 350 1,381
Number of heifers and bulls 521 799 : 520 1,849
Milk sales quota (tonnes) 2,337 6,579 - 2,164 11,080

Source: the Company

Agricultural Inputs

The segment supplies vilal Inputs such as cerlified seeds, fertilizers, plant protection products and agricultural machinery
to farmers. In addition, it consults the affiliated farmers of the newest agricultural trends and growing technigues. By
sharing its resources and know-how the Group helps farmers to achieve higher yields and secures access fo their
harvests.

Agricultural inputs are sold to farmers through the Subsidiaries and the Joint Ventures of the Group. The supplies
provided by the Subsidiaries are reported in the Agricultural Inputs segment while the supplies provided by two Joint
Ventures, i.e. UAB Dotnuvos projektal and UAB Kustodija, are not reported in the segment because these companies
are accounted using the equity method (the Group owns 50% stake in both companies).
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The table below lists volume, revenue and gross profit split of the Agricultural Inputs segment {l.e. the results

Subsidiaries) by key product groups: BENDREN,
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Table 38. Breakdown of the Agricultural Inputs

Sales (LTL in thousand) Certified seeds _2.1]2_1_ _ 1,401 1.559
Fertilizers 39,039 59,508 46,069
- Plant protection products 10,365 12405 10,548
Total 52,326 73,314 58,176 5%
 Gross profit (LTL in thousand) Certified seeds 1,330 140 143 -
- Fertilizers 2,654 5,681 2,246
- Plant protection products 1205 1,739 1,429 o
Total 5279 7,560 3,817 (15%)
Gross margin (%) Certified seeds 65.8% 10.0% 9.2%
o Fertilizers 6.6% 95%  49%
Plant protection products 12.5% 14.0% 13.5%
Total 10.1% 10.3% 6.6%

Sowrve: the Carmpany

The gross profit of cerified seeds was distorted in 200672007 by service revenues related to the certified seed business
{these revenues carry no cost of goods),

The grawth in the volume, sales and gross profit of agricuttural inputs was interrupted in 2008/2009 due to the general
economic downturn and low crop prices. However, the growth of the Agricultural Inputs is expected to recover along with
the economic recovery and the price corection of agricultural product prices.

Since UAB Dotnuvos projektal and UAB Kustodija are the major sellers of the agricultural inputs with the Group acting as
their sales channel, a short overview of these firms is provided further.

UAB Dotnuvos projektal was the first company to enter the certified seed market in Lithuania in 1996, Certified seeds are
very impertant to farmers since yields may be increased by 10-20% using these seeds. As a pioneer in the market UAB
Dotnuvos projekial had the first mover advantage to establish business relationships with the leading international
players like DLF Trifolium, Saaten Union, DSV, Lembke, Monsanto, SW Seed and others. In addition, the top
management and the founders of UAB Dotnuvos projekial were alumni of the Lithuanian Institute of Agriculture who
brought invaluable expertise from their former employer. The Management estimates that UAB Dotnuvos projektai
currently holds 60% of the Lithuanian seed distribution market and is an unguestionable market leader in the country.
The markel is exposed to limited competition and is virtually shared with another big player, Kemira Grow How, a
member of DLA Group since 2008,

Furthermore, UAB Dotnuvos projektal is one of the three leading vendors of agriculiural machinery in Lithuania and,
according to the Management's estimates, holds 18% market share. The company represents such well-known
international brands as Case |H, Kvemeland Group, Bogballe and others. The main competilors on the market of
agricullural machinery are Dojus, an official dealer of John Deere, and Kesko Agro Lietuva, a distributor of Class.
Maintenance and repair services are provided by UAB Dotnuvos agroservisas, in which UAB Dotnuvos projekial holds a
99.95% siake. According to the Management, service business has an enormous polential to grow since in Westemn
Europe 50% of revenues are derived from the sale of machinery and the remaining 50% come from maintenance and
repair services while current mix in Lithuania is 90% and 10%.

The leading market positions in seed and agricultural machinery distribution are backed up by efficient sales
organization, The sales network of UAB Dolnuvos projektal includes a central office and a warehouse in Dotnuva, and
also additional six sales oullets o cover high productivity farming areas of Lithuania.

UAB Dotnuvos projektal also holds a leading position in Lithuania in the elevator and silo construction business. The
company usually acts as a general contractor for these projects providing technical design, equipment supply and overall
project suparvision sarvices. As a rule, construction services are usually outsourced. The main source of revenues is the
supply of equipment, which is purchased from such long-term partners as Cimbria, Symaga and Bin.

The following table provides volume, revenue and gross profit split of UAB Dotnuvos projektai by product grou,
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Table 39. Breakdown by product group of UAB Dotnuvos projektai

Volume Certified seeds (tonnes) 11,176 14,714 12.355
Agricultural machinery (units) 972 1073 781
Elevator construction (projects) 12 25 27
Sales (LTL in thousand) Certified seeds 27,531 37,214 30,947
Agricultural machinery 59,191 71748 69741
. Elevator construction 24,150 28,808 40754
Other 5808 7,080 5,405
Total 116,682 144,859 146,846 12%
Gross profit (LTL in thousand) _ Certified seeds — n/a' 83252 8,249
Agricultural machinery nfa’ 11,444 8,799
. B Elevator construction nfa' 4,012 7.246
Other na' 1,150 1,428
- Total 17,588 24,858 25,722 21%
Gross margin (%) Cerlified seeds - na 22.9% 26.7%
o Agricultural machinery na' 16.0% 12.6%
Elevator construction n'a’ 13.8% 17.8%
o Other a na' 16.2% 26.4%
Total 15.1% 17.2% 17.5%

" The gross margin for product groups in 20062007 is not provided bacause UAB Dolnuvas projekial was implermenting niw acoounting soffwane
fn this year, and during the implemenfation process not alf the costs wers affibited fo the prodiuct groups, Conseguently, it is impossibie fo
determing the mangin wilh accuracy.

Sowrce: the Company

The year 2008/2009 was especially successful for the elevator and silo construction business. The company succeeded
to complete 27 projects, to increase sales by 41% and to improve the margin by 3.9% at the same time. Selling of
certified seeds and agricultural machinery howaver was not so smooth because these product groups were affected by
the lower demand from farmers caused by the general economic downturn and low expectations of the future grain
prices. Regardless such unfavourable economic environment UAB Dotnuves projeklal succesded lo increase iis total
sales and to improve the overall gross profit. Some less important products and services provided by the company fall
under the category of the Other, which includes sales of used machinery, machinery supplies and other activities. UAB
Dotnuvos projektai is relatively independent from the Group with its sales to the Group comprising only a small part of it's
the total revenues (LTL 4,088 thousand or 2.8% in 2008/2009),

Another Joint Venture of the Group, UAB Kustodija, specializes in distribution of plant protection products,
microelemental fertilisers and some other niche products. The company has business relationships with reputable
international vendors like Intermag, Syngenta, Mufarm, BASF, Bayer Cropscience and others. According to the
Management's estimates, UAE Kustodija holds a 15% market share in this business segment. The main compelitors are
Litagros Prekyba, Kemira Grow How and Agrokoncernas. Sales are executed from the office in Siauliai with the sales
managers being assigned for each administrative region of Lithuania. The company has 2 warehouses in Siauliai and
Sakiai.

The table below illustrates volume, revenue and gross profit split of UAB Kustodija by product groups;

Table 40. Breakdown by product group of UAB Kustodija

Sales (LTL in thousands) Plant protection products 25,210 32,500 25,687
B Microelemental fertilizers 4596 8445 3.353
Niche products - 560 1,353 2,197
—————  Services - 237 281

Total a 30,366 42,535 31,498 2%
 Gross profit (LTL in thousands) _Plant protection products 2,033 4050 2009
Microalemeantal fartilizers 998 880 1.003
Miche products 9& ) : EB_E_ B 1,039
Services s 237 261




Total 3,124 5138 4,402 19%

Gross margin [%) Plant protection products B.1% 12.5% B.2% -
Microelemental fertiizers 1.7% 1M6%  29.9%
Miche pruducts 16 6% &3 ?% dT 3%
Services - 100, u% " 100.0%
Taotal 10.3% 14.4% 14.0%

Saurce: the Company

Similar to agricultural machinery, revenues of plant protection products and fertilizers declined in 2008/2009 due to low
crop prices. The profit margins of microelemental fertilizers and niche products are much higher as compared to plant
protection products because UAB Kustodija has exclusive distribution rights for many fertilizer and niche products
whereas identical plant protection products are offered by several distributors. The margin spike of plant protection
products in 2007/2008 may be explained by the shortage of some specific products on the market. UAB Kustodija has
succeadad 1o encure supply of these products when others could nol. The Group is an important distributor for UAB
Kustodija's producis, Sales o the Group have been LTL 8,161 thousand (or 29.1% of tolal revenues) in 2008/2009,

Other
The Other segment comprises the activities, which cannot be grouped under the preceding four core segments, and

includes solid biofuel, elevator services and other products and services non attributed to any of the core segments, The
year 2006/2007 also included velerinary business which was abandoned in the same year.

The table below summarizes the Other segment:

Table 41. Breakdown of the Other segment

Sales (LTL in thousand) Solid biofual 77 8.692 16,876
- Elevator services 9,805 22436 21978

Other products and services 14,990 1,045 4,362

o Total 25,566 32,172 43,216 30%

Gross profit (LTL in thousand) Solid biofuel {519) (1.024) 1472

Elevator services 2.&51“ 8.&&5. 9,823
o Other products and services 4,707 2g4_ 3,250

Total - 8,239 8,084 14,645 53%
Gross margin [%) Solid biofual (B7.3%) (11.8%) 8.7%
' i Elevalor services 20.9% 39.6% 45.2%
Other products and services 31.4% 21.4% 74.5%
S Total 24.4% 251%  33.9%

Source: the Company

Elevator services are the top driver of profitability in the Other segment. In addition, elevators provide critical services to
the Grains and Oilsesds segment by helping to source the necessary volumes of grains and oilseeds. Solid biofules
show betier profitability due to the increasing business scale and the accumulated expertise. Other products and
services in 2006/2007 include the veterinary business, which was abandoned in the same year.

Commercial and Support Activities

Commercial Operations

Commercial operations of the Group are concenirated in the hands of Rosenkrantz A/S and AB Linas Agro. Rosenkraniz
A/S performs most of the intemnational sales operations. It employs 2 commercial persons, who mostly deal wi
international brokers of agricultural products. In addition, Rosenkrantz A/S has 3 logistics persons, who execu
orders and -::rgamze transpnrtahm AB Linas Agro employs 30 contractors, who sign crop suppl:.r contracts wit
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is responsible for sourcing and marketing of soymeal and soybean. The second desk is in charge of oilseed and
vegetable oil sourcing while the third one performs sourcing of sugar beel pulp from Belarus, Ukraine and Russia, Lastly,
the fourth desk organizes sourcing of other feedstuffs from Ukraine, Moldova and Russia. Commercial people are
assisted by 2 logistics persons. AB Linas Agro employs more commercial people because it deals directly with clients
nol brokers,

Storage and Handling

The Group operates a network of owned and |leased elevators in high agricultural productivity areas of Lithuania and
Latvia with a special focus on locations of the Agricultural Growing Programme participants. In picking locations for
elevators a particular altention s paid to road and railway infrastructure because convenient and high-throughput
transportation makes a significant impact on the silos capacity utilization and the elevator turnover ratio. Elevators are
the core assets of grain and oil seed business assuring necessary capacities during the harvest season, serving as the
supply-demand buffers and allowing better quality management.

After acquiring the Siauliai elevator in 2008/2009 the Group owns 5 elevators with 128,100 tonne storage capacity and
leases additional 79,430 tonne storage space in 17 elevalors in Lithuania, 6 elevators in Latvia and in 4 Baltic ports. All
own elevators with an excepfion of the Siauliai elevator are well maintained and do not require significant investments in
the foreseeable future. The Siaulial elevator is also expected 1o increase its turnover ratio significantly, since the elevator
is located in high agricultural production area but it takes time to develop business by attracting new farmers.

The following tables provide key data on own and rented elevators of the Group:

Table 42. Own n elevators of the Gmi and their r.niuﬂlas
2008

Siauliai elevator 42,000 53,510 13

Kédainiai elevator 2003 26,900 93,620 35

Vilkaviskis elevator 2003 23,600 54,920 40

Jonigkis elevator 2002 24,600 90,430 27

Kupiskis elevator 1898 11,000 42,550 39

Total 128100 375,030 .
“Source: the Company S T

Table 43, Rented s capacities of the Grou|

Lithuanian elevators 17 28,380
Latvian elevators 6 7,550
Lithuanian and Latvian ports S 4 43,500
Tatal 27 79,430

Sowrce: the Company

In the operations of the Group, elevators are used not only as storage faciliies but also as hubs for grain or rapeseed
purchase and pre-processing. Elevators have high intake and oullake capacities allowing high-turnover ratios, Turmnover
ratios are the key drivers of the elevator profitability.

Logistics

Logistics is a crucial success factor for the operations of the Group. AB Linas Agro and Rosenkrantz A'S are the main
companies within the Group managing the logistics operations of the Group. In addition, some logistics tasks are
delegated to Joint Venture UAE Jungting Ekspedicija, which is a freight forwarding company co-established by the
Group and engaged in cargo shipments from to the Baltic Sea ports.

The logistics system of the Group includes the following main elements: storages facilities, mainland transportation
maritime transportation. Customary, suppliers are responsible for delivering harvest to an elevator. Agricu
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production fram the Group companies or other suppliers is transported to storage facilities by road or railway transport,
Elevators are the hubs where the logistics of the Group starts. As all elevators owned by the company have railway
connections, railway transport is employed to carry the agricultural production from storage facilities to ports. Maritime
transportation mode is usually employed to reach the ultimate consignee. The Group is outsourcing major part of the
transportation services and is working with such well-known freight forwarding companies in the region as Dala
Transports {railway), Rivita ir ko (railway), Arvi Fertis {railway), Transwide service (port) and Ventspils Grain Terminal
{port), Steder Group (ports), Savane Shipping (poris), CopenShip (ports) and JMB Bjerrum (ports).

Mainland logistics

Mainland logistics of the Group includes two main elements — storage facilities and mainland transportation. In the
activities of the Group, mainland transportation is usually employed in the stage of operations when the agriculural
production has to be carried from the supplier or the Group's storage facilities (o the ultimate consignee or the port of
shipment directly. The main sourcing markets of the Group, namely the Baltic and the CIS countries, have well
established and connected railway networks enabling the agricultural production to be carred via railway. The elevators
of the Group owned in Lithuania are all connected to the national railway network either,

Qutside the Baltic States the Group does not own any logistic facilities. Howaver, due to the long-term experience and
contacts on the market the Group has established strong presence and partnership with both the agricultural production
suppliers and freight forwarding companies, After the agricultural production is purchased the Group employs a freight
forwarding company to arrange for transportation from the supplier to the port of shipment or to the ulimate consignee
directly. In this case, carriage is usually made via railway as most of the suppliers have access to rallway branches.

Maritime transportation

Maritime transportation is an important part of the logistics chain of the Group as more than two thirds of the agricultural
production of the Group is transported via this type of transportation. In addition, the main sales destinations of the
Group are located in Southem Europe and North Africa, and maritime transportation is the most efficient means to reach
the ultimate consignes. Rosenkrantz A/S and AB Linas Agro are the main companies of the Group coordinating the sea
logistics.

Although the majority of maritime transportation takes place in the Baitic Sea and the Black Sea ports the Group
operates from many other European ports as well. The Group has established a wide maritime transportation route
network from to the Baltic States, and between the Black Sea, the Middle East and the Mediterranean, including North
Africa, a robustly developing agricullural production market,

The Group companies achieved a total maritime transportation volume (or, in other words, the total port throughput) of
1.1 million tonnes in the financial year 2008/2009 or a 65% growth, The Ballic Sea porls remain strategically most
impartant to the Group since throughput made by the Group companies through the ports of the Baltic Sea accounted
for 73% of the total port throughput and reached 815 thousand tonnes in 2008/2009. Liepaja, Ventspils and Klaipéda are
the main carriage porls with their combined share in the total port throughput being 70%. The throughput of the Black
Sea ports rose from 31 thousand tonnes in 2007/2008 to 297 thousand tonnes in 2008/2009 amounting to 27% of the
total port throughput used by the Group. The Group has been active in 6 ports in the Black Sea region.

As the majority of the total port throughput used by the Group is exports, a mainland-to-vessel direction is dominant in
the maritime transportation. The movement of agricultural production through ports is presented in the table below.

Table 44, The movement of aiﬂculmral imdumiun of the Grﬂui mmih irta

Baltic Sea ports
Liepaja L,_aluia Baltic Sea
 Ventspils Latvia Baltic Sea
Klalpéda Lithuania Baltic Sea
Riga Latvia Baltic Sea
Hamburg Germany Baltic Sea
Kaliningrad ' "~ Russla Ballic Sea
Aarhus ~ Denmark Baltic Sea
Total - o
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Black Sea ports
Rani Likraine Black Sea 158.3
Constanza Romania Black Sea 66.0
Kherson - Ukrasine ~ Black Sea 48.8
lljichevsk Ukraine Black Sea 12.0
Nikolayev  Ukraine Black Sea 5.4
Azov Russia Black Sea 51
~ Total 296.6
Danube river ports
Novi Sad Serbla Baltic Sea/Black Sea 2.1
Total throughput 1,136

Source: the Company

The Group hires well known shipping companies for carriage of agricultural commaodities. Transportation is made by
ships of virtually all sizes. Mainly, medium-sized shipments are handled by the Group because the main ultimate
consignees are usually the end users purchasing medium amounts of commodities.

Clients

Since the Group is an industrial seller, the number of its clients is not very big. However, the client base is relatively well
diversified and a loss of several large clients may be expected to make only a limited impact on the Group. Tha top 10
clients of the Group comprise about 40% of the total sales and their respective shares are listed In the table below.
Client 1 means the largest client, which may change over the years. The table excludes related parties, which are
presented in Seclion Related Parly Transactions.

Table 45. The Ii&at clients of the Gruui

Client 1 56,877 58,328 83,719 B.6% B.4% 7.5%
Client 2 58,570 49,326 67,050 86% 5.4% 6.0%
Ciient 3 31,344 46519 52,200 4.7% 5.1% 4.7%
Ciient 4 30,683 45,551 44,663 4.6% 5.0% 4.0%
Ciient 5 " 20,168 35717 37,954 4.4% 3.9% 3.4%
Client 6 25,403 31,853 37,883 3.8% 3.5% 3.4%
Client 7 20,066 30817 37.534 3.0% 3.4% 3.4%
Cilent 8 15800 21663 33,375 2.4% 24% 3.0%
Client 9 13,552 17,261 26,625 2.0% 1.9% 2.4%
Client 10 11,155 17,204 26,380 1.7% 1.8% 2.4%
Total top 10 290,617 354,041 447 392 43.9% 39.0% 40.2%
Total sales B 661,371 907,006 1,113,880 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Markets

Europe, especially the Scandinavian and Bailtic countries, is the core market of the Group. Less important markels are
the in CIS and Morth Africa, The fable below shows sels for revenue breakdown by countries:
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Table 46. Sales markets of the Grou

Europe (except for Scandinavian countries,

_CI_S E’J.‘.’. LIIhLIEHIa]- 178,293 231,483 327173 2T.0% 25.5% 20.4%
Lithuania 133,894 245795 234,626 20.2% 27.1% 21.1%
 Scandinavian countries 202,832 147658 222,994 30.7%  16.3%  20.0%
Africa a 60,713 189,873 135,853 9.2% 20.9% 12.2%
Asia 20,394 66,272 100,106 3.1% 7.3% 9.0%
cis . 62,258 25,258 92,230 9.4% 2.8% B.3%
Other 2,987 667 798 0.5% 0.1% 01%
Total - 661,371 007,006 1,113,880 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Source: the Company

Risk Management and Insurance
Credit risk management

Debtors of the Group can be classified into 3 segments: buyers in Western Europe and North Africa, clients in the CIS,
and Lithuanian and Latvian farmers. West European buyers are insured by Danish Coface through Rosenkrantz AfS.
The coverage is limited to 50 times insurance premium, which translates into a LTL 12 million insurance limit. This limit is
sufficient since most of the customers pay within 1-2 days after delivery. If the debtor is not insured, more secure forms
of payment such as prepayments and document collections are reguired. African customers most frequently pay using
document collections. Credit risk management in the CIS countries is based on the 18 year experience of the Group and
a close follow-up on the important clients. In addition, exposure to the CIS clients is relatively insignificant as compared
to the total credit portfolio. The largest credits are provided to farmers in Lithuania and Latvia who pay for the supplied
seeds and fertilizers after they sell their harvests. Farmers are closely followed-up by contractors for the Agriculture
Growing Programme. Such contractors are in constant contact with farmers and are well informed about their status.

Currency risk management

The Group mainly uses & currencies in its operations: US dollars, euros, Danish kronas, Lithuanian litas and Latvian lats.
Since Lithuanian litas and Latvian |at are pegged to euro, the Group essentially deals with 2 currencies, i.e, US dollars
and euros, When the Group opens a position in USD (i.e. goods are bought for dollars and sold for Euros or vice versa),
it hedges dollar exposure by changing positions in its credit line, L.e. buys or sells USD to close the open position. The
Group is also relatively immune to the risk of devaluation of Lithuanian litas or Latvian lat, since its revenues in these
currencies are smaller than expenses. The Group's policy allows having up to 100 thousand euro equivalent in open
currency positions.

Price risk management

The Group usually buys and sells its products at spot prices and has only short-lerm exposure to price fluctuations,
However, the Company occasionally commits to future purchases or deliveries at fixed prices. In such a case the Group
trles to manage price risk by selling or buying futures on the commadity exchange. It has a risk managemant policy to
define the limits of open positions. Such limits are based on quantities and price volatility, In addition, the Group has a
trading platform allowing netting of long and short positions of fulures, The life experience shows that price risk
managemant is used only for products with the largest turnover (wheat grain and rapeseed) and is unavailable for such
products as sugar beet pulp pellets and linseed.

Property insurance

Inventories of inland silos and fixed assets (buildings, equipment and means of transport) are mainly located In Lithuania
and Latvia. Assetls are insured by Lietuves Draudimas, a leading Lithuanian insurance company,, a member of Royal
SunAlliance group, and also by Swedish |F P&C Insurance. Goods in transit are insured through the AON broker with
trustworthy Western European companies on terms of from anywhere in the world fo anywhere in the wor
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assets is used as collateral for bank loans. In case of material asset loss, banks have a priority to demand that insurance
paymants cover their loans first.

Product liability insurance

In general, product liability is not insured. However, occasionally the Group does use this type of insurance when
required by clients.

Health care insurance

In the year 2008 the Group offered health care insurance to some of ils employees as a motivational tool. Health care
insurance covers medical fees for private health care services and for the paid services provided by state-owned health
care centres. Currently about 90 employees are insured under this program. The health care plan is run by UAB SEB
Gyvybés Draudimas.

Certificate of Good Trading Practice

Two companies of the Group, i.e. AB Linas Agro and Rosenkrantz A/S, own the Good Trading Practice Certificates. The
Good Trading Practice certificate system is based on the rules established by the European Union and COCERAL (the
organization representing European cereal traders) and is aimed at ensuring that agricultural products are always
treated in accordance with good professional practice and procedures complying with the EU regulations on food and
feed safety and plant origin,

AR Linas Agro and Rosenkrantz A/S have been audited by an independent auditor in accordance with requirements of
the European Code of Good Trading Practice and received lhe relevant certificates. The fact that someone within the
Group possesses the said Cerificate contributed mush fo the reputation of the Group as a refiable pariner because
customers and partiners may now be fully assured of strict adherence 1o the control measures throughout the operations
of the companies.

Organisational Structure
Structure of Akola ApS Group

The major shareholder of the Company is Akola ApS (the Selling Shareholder) incorporated and existing in Denmark.
The Selling Shareholder was established in 2000 lo serve as a holding company. The Selling Shareholder conirols
companies in the Baltic States and Eastern Europe.

On the date of this Prospectus, Akola ApS (the Selling Shareholder) is controlled by the same individuals who, along
with the Selling Shareholder control the Company. The major portion of the capital in the Selling Shareholder is held by
Darius Zubas, the shareholder and the Chairman of the Management Board as well as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The full list of the shareholders of the Selling Shareholder is indicated in table below,

Table 47. Shareholders of Akola Aps

Darius fubas ?1 o

1.
2. Vytautas Sidlauskas ) ) 25%
3. Ardinas Zubas 2!:-'& -
4. Dainius Pilkauskas 2%
Total - 100%

- Sowrce: the Compamy

Below is the structure of Akola Group Indicating the companies belonging to such group as well as the percentage of the
capital therein controlled by Akola ApS (the Selling Shareholder) directly on the date of this Prospectus.
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79.99% 30.90%

‘L 29.98% J/ 45.00% 30.00%

Figure 2. Structural chart of Akola Group

ZAO Ukragro NPK. ZAO Ukragro NPK was established in 2002 in Ukraine. This entity is engaged in feriliser imports,
the impaorted fertiliser blending In own production units and distribution of the imported and blended fertilisers via a
country wide network of warehouses in Ukraine.

UAB Mestilla. UAB Mestilla was incorporated in 2005 in Lithuania. On the date of this Prospectus UAB Mestilla runs the
largest rapeseed crushing and biodiesel production plant in the Baltics with the capacily of approx. 100,000 tonnes. The
plant is located in Klaipéda, Lithuania.

000 Akola. Established in 2004 in Ukraine, on the date of this Prospectus 000 Akola s not engaged into any activities
and liguidation proceadings have besb initiated against it.

0AQ Raiagrochim, OAQ Raiagrochim history dates back to 1999. On the date of this Prospectus it does not engage
into any business and is the process of liquidation.

000 su |l Ukrkalyi. Established in 2000, on the date of this Prospectus 00O su Il Ukrkalyi is not engaged into any
active business and is the process under liguidation,

In addition, on the date of this Prospecius the Selling Shareholder owns shares in two Belarusian companies 000
Krupica and 000 Selskochozalstvenyje uslugi (44.53% and 71.02%, respectively). Albeit Akola ApS is the legal owner
of the shares, it has no effective control of or benefits from the said companies. Pursuant to the agreements signed
between the respective parties to that effect, the Selling Shareholder has assigned the actual control over, the
management of and the benefits from these companies to other third parties (the remaining shareholders of 00O
Krupica and 000 Selskochozaistvenyje uslugi), such assignment being of indefinite duration. As following such
assignment neither 000 Krupica nor OO0 Selskochozaistvenyje uslugi is controlled any longer by the Selling
Shareholder, they are considered a5 entities not belonging to Akola Group and thus not related to the Company.

Structure of the Group

The current structural chart of the effective share of stock held by the Company within the Group is provided in the figure
below:
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Figure 3. Structural chart of the effective share of stock held by the Company within the Group

The Group is comprised of 24 entities. A complete list of such entities in which shares are held by the Company either
directly and indirectly is presented in the table below. For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements for the
financial year 2008/2009 the Company has 18 Subsidiaries, 4 Joint Ventures and 1 Associate. The consolidated
financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

Table 48. Description of direct and indirect shareholdings as well as the effective shares of stock held by the
Company within the Group

AB Linas Agro Subsidiary 100% 100%
Rosenkrantz A/S Subsidiary 60% - 60%
SIA Linas Agro Subsidiary 100% 100%
UAB Linas Agro Gridy )
i, Subsidiary 100% 100%
UAB Linas Agro Griidu
i m;‘% Subsidiary  0.025%  99.950% 0.025% 100%
UAB Gerera Subsidiary ) 100% 100%
UAB Linas Agro — . =
Konsultacijos Subsidiary 100% 100% _,,..-__.-='.,--.._,_‘\
Aukstadvario 208 Subsidiary 65.35% NBRT i
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 Sidabravo 208 Subsidiary 55.90% 55.90%
Luksiy 208 Subsidiary 93.03% 93.93%
 Medeikiy 208 Subsidiary _ 96,54% 96.541%,
208 Landvesta 1 Subsidiary 29%, 1% 100%
20B Landvesta 2 Subsidiary 99% 1% _ 100%
Z0B Landvesta 3 Subsidiary 89%, 1% 100%
ZiB Landvesla 4 Subsidiary BO% 20% 100%
208 Landvesta 5 Subsidiary BO% 20% 100%
; EB_ Landvesta 6 Subsidiary B0% 20% 100%
= = Joint =S
UAB Kustedija Mot 50% 50%
UAB Dotnuvos projektai Uﬂ:ﬂ_ﬂ 50% 50%
ZUBE Dotnuves Cdoint
- Siriey Felonl 99.95%  49.975%
Joint
UAB Dotnuvos technika Veaharg - 100% H0%
UAB Jungliné ekspediciia  Associale 45.05% 45.05%
g Associate ! AB Linas Agro, Lukgiy ZUB, Medelkiy Z0B, Auk&tadvario 20B and
20K Kupiskio grodai Subsidiary  Sidabravo ZUB own 9.09% shares of 20K Kupiskio gradai each STA3%

' Esch of A8 Linas Agro Group and LIAB Linas Agro Grigy cantras retatns 509 of the valing rights fn UAB Linas Agro Gridiy centras KUB;

 On 1 July 2008 AB Linas Agro signed a joinl confrol agreement with ofher members of 20K Kuplskio gridal, According o the clauses of the
agreemen! AB Linas Agro exercices conlral over 20K Kupi$kio gridal operations and firancial dacisions and has the authority fo appoint the
chairman and the majority of the board members of 20K Kupiskio gridal. Far this reazon, the said company is consolidated inlo the subgroug of

A Linas Agro as of T July 2008,

Sowrce: the Company, the awdited consolivated financial statemants of the Company

In 2008/2009 the Company sold 55% shareholding in UAB Invisco. During the same year UAB Linas Agro Grildy centras
sold 70% sharehalding in UAB Consonus. In addition, UAB Gerera sold its 70% shareholding in UAB Sinrena in the last
financial year. All such companies sold were involved in the activities not related to the core business of the Group.

Part of shares in several Group companies, in which the Company holds less than 100% of the effective stock, are
owned by senior management of these companies, i.e. Rimantas Dapkus, the Chief Executive Officer of UAB Dotnuvos
projeklai, and Rimvydas Brazauskas, the Manager for Commerce of UAE Dotnuvos projektal, together control remaining
50% of shares of UAB Dotnuvos projektal as well as Vytautas Rauckis, the Chief Executive Officer of UAB Kustodija,
controls remaining 50% of shares of UAB Kustodija. 40% of Rosenkrantz A/S is owned by Baltic Agro Group A/S, which
is controlled by Henrik Klindt Petersen, the Chief Executive Officer of Rosenkrantz A/S. Such direct involvement of the
senior staff in the control of the companies helps to strengthen their motivation,

In 2006 the ultimate shareholders of the Selling Shareholder and of the Group (Darius Zubas, Vytautas Sidlauskas,
Painjus Filkauskas and Arlinas Zubas) signed the Common Control Agreement of an indefinite duration in which they
agreed thal the entities where the ultimate shareholders collectively hold direct or indirect control will be managed as a
single group and that the management of such group entities will be centralised. The ultimate shareholders agreed to
cooperate with each other and use their voting rights in the directly controlled companies as well as cause such directly
controlled cormpanies to use their vofing rights in the indirectly controlled companies for pursuance of the most effective
common control over the group entities. Each of the ultimate shareholders undertook to be actively involved in the day-
to-day business of the group and to be responsible for the management and supervision of certain predetermined
business areas of the group. It was further agreed that until 31 December 2010 the ultimate shareholders shall
collectively hold at least 50% plus 1 vote at the general meeting of shareholders of each directly or indirectly controlled
entity and shall refrain from any share transfers that may infringe the implemantation of such undertaking. The rules lald
down in the agresment are also applied to companies newly acquired by the Group.

The Group is comprised of 3 holding companies (i.e. the Company, AB Linas Agro and UAB Linas Agro Kons
15 companies engaged in the production and services, 6 marketing companies (AB Linas Agro being a holdi




at the same time) and one company involved in logistics. The table below summarises information on activities as well
as a registered office/ couniry of the Company’s shareholdings.

Table 49. Description of activities with the registered office of the Group companies

AB Linas Agro

UAE Llnas Agrﬂ Gridy centras KOB

Panevéiys, Lithuania
Panwéui_',_rs, Lithuania

LAB Linas Agro Grildy centras
UAB Gerera
ZU8 Landvesta 1

___Eaneuézys. Lithuania

Sourcing of grains, oilseeds and feedsiuffs, and sales
of agricultural inputs

Elevator services and sales of fodder
Management services

Panevéiys, Lithuania
Fanevétys Lithuania

Lease of real estale

Rent and mamgamemt of agrhuul:ural land
Rent and management of agnnunural land
Rent and management uf agricultural land

Z0B Landvesta 2 Panevéiys, Lithuania
Z0B Landvesta 3 Panevelys, Lithuania
Z0B Landvesta 4 Panavezys, Lithuania
ZUB Landvesta 5 Panevetys, Lithuania
EDE Landvesta & Panevézys, Lithuania
LIAB Linas Agro Konsultacijos Panevédys, Lithuania
Medeikiy 0B Medeikiai vil., BirZal ragion,
Lithuania
Lukdiy 208 Luksiai vil., Sakiai region,
* Lithuania
Aukétadvario 208
region, Lithuania
Sidaravo 2':’5 Sidabravas vil., RadviliSkis
e region, Lithuania
20K Kupiskio Grodal Kupiskis, Lithuania
UAB_ Ku?t_t_j-lillj_a_ Vilnius, Lithuania
UAR Dotnuvos nroiaktal Akademija vil., Kédainial
projekta region, Lithuania
. Akademija vil., Kedainiai
208 Dolnuvos AGrosenisas  region Litwaria
UAB Datn Teahiii Akademifja vil., Kédainial

UAB Jungtiné ekspedicija

SIA Linas Agro

Rosenkrantz A/S
Source: ma'Cmpan'" ”5-

Rent and management of agricultural land
Rent and  management of agricultural fand
Ranl and management of agricultural ranc!
Management of the Subsidiaries engaged in farming

Growing and sale of crops

Growing and sale of crops, and milk pdeu::ﬁun

Aukstadvaris vil., Panevezys Growing and sale of crops and mifk pmdunmn

Growing and sale of crops and milk production

region, Lithuania
Kiaipeda, Lithuanla

Riga, Latvia

Copenhagen, Denmark

 services

Elevator services
Sale of plant protection products

Sale of seads, agricultural machinery and elevator
construction services

Agricuttural equipment maintenance and related

Darmant

Expedition and logistics services

Sourcing of grains and oilseeds, and sales of
agricultural inputs

indusirial sales of grains and oilseeds, feedstuffs and
other simifar products and services

Property, Plant, Equipment, Investment Property and Livestock

General Information

The core fixed assets of the Group comprise elevators, farm buildings and their equipment, agricullural machinery and
agricultural land. In addition, the Group owns livestock and several investment assets, which are leased o external

parfies.

The table below llustrates the content and development of the Group's tangible fixed assets:

Table 50. Earilni value of tangible fixed assets and biological assets (LTL in thousand)

Property, plant and equipment

Land

Bulldln-gs and structures
Machinery and equipment

Wehicles

3708 38 418

24,445 25,553

2,580 2,828




Other property, plant and eguipment 2,358 2,433 2,987

Consfruction in progress 1,672 3,503 1,043
Total property, plant and equipment 72,704 77,732 84,132
Investment property 12573 19,017 8.176
Animals and livestock ' o 7,625 7.188 6,502

Source; the Company 5 consolidaled financial stalemers
Given betow is a brief overview of the Group’s fixed assets as al 30 June 2009.

The Group owns 2,234 ha of agricultural land used in its farming activities, 1,984 ha belong to Landvestas while the
remaining 250 ha are directly owned by the farms, In addition, the Group has over 100 ha of land used for infrastructure
purposes such as roads, buildings and the like, During Z008/2009 the Group acquired 192 ha of land for LTL 1,467
thousand to be used for agricultural activities. Furthermore, some of the land with the value of LTL 487 thousand has
been reclassified from the Land into the Investment property because the Group leases this land to external parties. In
addition, the value of land has been reduced by LTL 278 thousand impairment charga.

Buildings and structures are mostly comprised of assels relaled to elevator and farming activities. Elevator-relating
assets (LTL 39 milllen) include buildings, storage capacities, fodder shops and warehouses. Farming- relating assetls
(LTL 15,598 thousand) consist of cow houses and warehousing facilities. LTL 2,318 thousand of the remaining LTL
2,380 thousand are aliributable to the administrative building of AB Linas Agro. The increase in the Buildings and
structures in 2008/2009 was mainly due to the LTL 14,038 thousand acquisition of the Siauliai elevator,

Similarly 1o the bulldings and structures, machinery and equipment are also mainly used in relation to efevator and
farming activities. LTL 24,551 thousand of the machinery and equipment may be broken into LTL 11,622 thousand of
elevator equipment, LTL 12,925 thousand of agricultural machinery and LTL 4 thousand of other assets.

Vehicles include primarily cars, which are used for sales and administrative purposes. The majority of cars belongs 1o
AB Linas Agro (LTL 1,634 thousand) and farms (LTL 981 thousand).

Other property, plant and equipment include LTL 2,071 thousand of small equipment and tools allributable to elevators,
and LTL 383 thousand of farming lools. The remaining LTL 523 thousand of assels belong to companies such as AB
Linas Agro, Rosenkrantz A/S, SIA Linas Agro and include mainly furniture and computer hardware,

Construction in progress is mostly related to unfinished farm and manure houses in Luksiu 208 (LTL 959 thousand),

Part of property. plant and equipment of the Group with the nel book value of LTL 82,603 thousand has been pledged to
as collateral for bank loans (B88% of the lotal value of property, plant and equipment). The value of the assets acquired
under financial leases is LTL 5,330 thousand. Principal amounts of the financial lease payables equal to LTL 3,446
thousand.

Investment property comprises land (LTL 7,229 thousand) and buildings (LTL 247 thousand), great part of which are
leased to external parties or the Joint Ventures. The Group leases out 1,657 ha of land owned by Landvestas and 123
ha of land owned by Aukstadvario ZUB. 840 square meters of warehousing area is leased to UAB Dotnuves projektai,
The Group intends to lease additional 502 square meters of its properties. The significant decrease in investment
property during 2008/20089 is mostly attributable to disposal of commercial real estate activities, which reduced the book
value of the Investment properly by LTL 10,956 thousand. All the ewsting investment property has been pledged as
collateral for bank loans received.

Livestock can be split into milking cows, young livestock (heifers and bulls) and horses. As at 30 June 2009 1,381
milking cows are valued LTL 4,374 thousand, 1,849 heifers and bulls — LTL 2,121 thousand and 7 horses — LTL 7
thousand. As at 30 June 2009 par of the livestock of the Group with the valued at LTL 4,427 thousand has been
pledged as a collateral for bank loans.

For the information on the planned material tangible fixed assets see Seclion Investment, page 30.
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Environmental Issues

The Group and, especially its farming companies, are and will remain subject to environment protection rules.
Environmental laws and regulations impose various requirements and obligations on the Group companies, including
thosa relating o waste management, installation of leakage systems, use of waler, elc.,

Sidabrave 20B and Aukstadvario ZUB, the Group's farming companies, are still in the process of the implementation of
cariain environmental standards in their activities. Both companies are reconstructing their liquid manure systems and
gas stations. The estimated investments necessary for completion of such reconstruction projects amount to LTL 1.3
million in total, ie. LTL 650 thousand for each Sidabrava 208 and Aukstadvario Z0B. Aparl from the above, the
Company is nol aware of any current or potential material infringements by any of the Group companies of the
environmental requiremeants.

The Company is not aware of any material contamination on the properties owned by the Group comparies. However,
the environmental condition of each of the Group's properties has not been tharoughly examined. Upon acquisition of
naw properties the Group aims al receiving warranties from the sellers about non-contamination of such properies
though sometimes such warranties might cover not all the risks or be insufficient. In the event any residual poliution be
found on such properties, the Group as an owner may be liable for it. In fact, the Group may be required either to clean
up the property andfor to compensate for the damage caused by environmentally hazardous substances.

Operating and Financial Review

This Sectlon accommodales the discussion on the resulfs of the operation of the Group for financial years 2007/2008 and
2008/2009 ta compare fo 8 respechive previous year. This Section shoufd be resd in conjunciion with the other paris of the
Frospecius which include impartant infarmation on the operations and financial condition of the Group, as well as in confunclion
with the audited consolidafed financial statements of the Company for the financial years 2008/200% including the comparative
financial infarmation on 2007/2008 and corresponding financial information on 2006/2007,

Developments Having Effect on Results of Operations

The Group is a dynamic organization, which constantly adapts to changing market conditions and explores new market
opportunities. During the financial years 2006/2007 - 20082009 it entered and exited a number of businesses. In
addition, lhe Group has operated in significantly changing economic environment, which includes both economic boom
and recession. The most important developments in the Group's operations are summarized below:

- Disposal of veterinary business. At the beginning of 2007 AB Linas Agro sold 90% of shares in UAB Linas Agro
Veterinarinarijos centras (its entire shareholding), and exited the veterinary business, since this business was
producing limited synergies with other activities and was treated as non-core. During the financial year 2006/2007
the Group consolidated LTL 12,656 thousand revenues and LTL 3,565 thousand gross profit of the company (the
result of the first two quarters). The company was sold at LTL 9,201 thousand profit.

- Fishmeal exit. The Group took a strategic decision to stop selling the fishmeal product in 2006/2007, since it
considered this product too risky due o possible issues related to product quality. During this year sales of fishmeal
ware LTL 22,049 thousand, Gross profit was LTL 1,574 thousand. There are no fishmeal revenues in later years.

- Rapeseed supply to UAB Mestilla. The Group strengthened its presence in the supply chain of rapesead in 2007,
when UAB Mestilla, the largest rapeseed crushing and biodiesel production plant in the Baltics, was built in
Klaip&da, Lithuania. The Group secured an exclusive long-term contract with the blodiesel plant for supplying
rapeseed, rapesead oil, and marketing of rapecake and glycerol. The shareholders of UAB Mestilla are the Selling
Shareholder and Statoil New Energy AS.

- Entrance into solid biofuals. The Group started International sales of solid biofuels in 2006 and developed sizable
volumes in this business during following years. Sclid bicfuel products include wood pellets, wood briguattes, wo
chips and logs.




Fluctuation of grain and oilseed prices. After relatively flat 2006/2007, crop prices started to rise sharply in the
sacond half of 2007, In the first half of 2008 the price direction suddenly reversed and continued the same trend in
the second hall of 2008 stabilizing In 2009, This turbulence produced a stress test on the risk management system
of the Group. Some products resulted in atypical gains, and some - in losses. However, overall the Group managed
to deliver relatively stable results in a vaery challenging market environment.

Mavements in milk prices. Similar to crop prices, milk prices were subject fo large movements in 2006/2007 -
2008/2009. Base price of raw milk was fluctuating between LTL 460-920 per tonne. Price movements inevitably
cause milk profitability fluctuations, which are further amplified by change in value of livestock assets because
livestock value goes down, when milk prices decline. Livestock value is also dependable on beef price. However,
milk and beef prices usually move in tandem.

Sales of agricultural inpuis. Sales of agricultural inputs correlate with prices of agricultural products, Higher prices
create bigger opportunities for agricultural supplies, since farmers are more willing to inves! into certified seeds,
fertilizers and plant protection products when they can profit from higher yields. Rising prices helped to grow
volumes of agricultural inputs in 2006/2007 and 2007/2008. However, volumes in 2008/2009 contracted due to
negative price trends.

Losses in real estale development business. In 200672007 the Group became an investor in the commercial real
estale development business by acquiring 55% of shares in UAB Invisco, 70% of shares in UAB Sinrena and 70%
of shares in UAB Consonus, As a result, it lost LTL 201 thousand in 200672007, LTL 1,205 thousand in 200772008
and LTL 821 thousand in 2008/2009. All shares in these companies were sold back o the development partner of
the Group for a symbolic amount during 2008/2009. The loss of 2008/2009 is a sum of three components: operafing
loss of these companies during 2008/2008, gain on share disposal transactions and provisions for loans provided to
fhese companies.

More detail overview of business operations, including quantified effects on profitability, is provided in Section Principal
Activitias on page 46,

Factors with Constant Effect on Results of Operations

Rapeseed supply to UAB Mestilla. Since the opening of the biodiesel production plant, supplies to UAE Mestilla
have produced revenues of LTL 1,084 thousand in 2006/2007, LTL 80,285 thousand in 2007/2008 and LTL
122,142 thousand in 2008/2009. Rapeseead is supplied on cost basis plus agreed margin, Therefore, UAB Mastilla
has created a new stream of recurring revenues and profits. In addition, the Group earns extra income from
rapecake and glycerol marketing. Rapecake and glycerol are byproducts of biodiesel production,

Solid biofuels. Entrance into solid biofuels is another new business of the Group. This business line generated
revenues of LTL 771 thousand in 2006/2007, LTL 8,692 thousand in 2007/2008 and LTL 16,876 thousand in
2008/2009. Solid biofuel produced LTL 519 thousand loss in 2006/2007. However, the Group earned gross margin
of LTL -1,024 thousand in 2007/2008 and LTL 1,472 thousand in 2008/2009.

Expansion of elevator network. During 2007/2008 the Group increased its shareholding in UAB Linas Agro Gridy
centras KUB by 25.15%. During 2008/2009 the Group oblained control over ZUK Kupiskio Grildai and acquired the
elevator in Siauliai. The acquisition of the Siauliai elevator increased Group's storage capacities by 42,000 lonnes
frorn 86,100 tonnes to 128,100 tonnes. Elevators are core assets of grain and oilseed business. which produce
significant savings for the Group. UAB Linas Agro Gridy centras KUB, which provides elevator services to other
Subsidiaries of the Group at market prices, has booked LTL 5.4 million net profit in 2008/2009. Without elevator
infrastructura this profit would be outside the Group.

Increased shareholdings in farms. During 2006/2007 — 2008/2009 the Group increased its ownership in all farms.
Higher shareholdings provide greater control over the farms, Furthermore, fewer profits are allocated to minority
shareholders.

Productivity improvements in farms. In two years farms managed o increase production output by 87% in grains
and oilseeds (from 23,040 tonnes to 43,138 tonnes) and by 11% in milk production (from 8,958 fonnes to 9,923
tonnes) without material change in assets employed (area of agricultural land and a number of livestock), -
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- Agricultural Growing Programme. The number of the Agricultural Growing Programme participants in 2008/2009
reached 1,324 growing from 821 in 2007/2008. Total aggregate contracted area In 2008/2009 has been 99,571
hectares in Lithuania and 11,000 hectares in Latvia, which favourably compares with 71,771 ha and 7,170 ha in
2007/2008. Growing membership in the Programme create greater opporiunities for grain and oilseed sourcing.
Furthermore, it provides additional sale possibilities for agricultural inputs such as cerlified seeds, fertilizers, plant
protection products and agriculiural machinery,

- Acguisition of Rosenkrantz A/S. By acquiring Rosenkrantz A'S the Group has established itsell as a truly European
player because customers and, to some extent, banks treat the Group as a Western European counterparty. |t
provides additional credibility and, consequently, extra financing and sales opporiunities for new customers and
new markets,

Developments of Different Financial ltems

Composition of the Group
Subsidiaries

During 2006/2007 — 2008/2009, the structure of the Group underwent significant changes in terms of share ownership of
concrete companies within the Group albeit that has not affected the Group's results significantly. Prior to the financial
year ended 30 June 2009 part of the Group companies did not constitute a legal group but were ultimately controlled by
the same shareholders. In July 2008 AB Linas Agro has acquired 60% of shares in Rosenkrantz A/S from the Selling
Shareholder. Later in September 2008 the shares of AB Linas Agro were contributed inlo the share capital of AB Linas
Agro Group. As a result of these two fransactions the subgroup of AB Linas Agro (together with its Subsidiary
Rosenkrantz A/S) entered under control of AB Linas Agro Group. The share purchase and the share confribution
ransactions were made with a view to restructuring the Group. Al the date of the ransactions described above and
through the periods covered by the financial statements for the 2008/2009 (including the comparative figures of
2007/2008 and corresponding figures of 2006/2007) AB Linas Agro, the Selling Shareholder and the Company were
controlled by the same individual shareholders operating under a common control agreement. According to the
agreement all the companies in which these individuals have direct or indirect control (in their combined share) are
managed collectively under the terms of the agreement. As a result, acquisitions of shares in Rosenklanz A/S and AB
Linas Agro did not result in a change of an ultimate controlling party and, therefore, were consldered to be the common
control transactions. The Company's management applied judgment to determine an appropriate accounting policy for
such transactions and applied a pooling of interest method for accounting for acquisition of AB Linas Agro and
Rosenkrantz A/S shares. In the financial statements for 2008/2009 the comparative information of the Group was
restated to reflect the combination of AB Linas Agro subgroup and Rosenkrantz A/S as if it had occurred in the earliest
period presented in these financial statements (from the beginning of the year 2006/2007), regardiess of the actual date
of the combination.

Below is presented a detailed structure of the Group for the financial years 2006/2007, 200772008 and 2008/2009,

Table 51. The structure of the Grnui for the iuriums of consolidated financial statements

AB Linas Agro Subsidiary 100% 100%

Rosenkrantz A/S Subsidiary 60% 60%
_SIA Linas Agro - Subsidiary ) 100% 100%
UAB Linas Agro Gridy centras Subsidiary 100% 100%
_UAB Linas Agro Gridy centras KOB Subsidiary 74.85% 100%
_UAB Gerera  Subsidiary 100% 100%
20K Kupikio gridal Associate/Subsidiary ' 36.29% 36.81%
UAB Linas Agro Konsultacijos ‘Subsidiary 100% 100%
_ Aukstadvario ZUB Subsidiary BZ.54% 63.22%
Sidabrave ZUIB B Subsidiary 55.90% 55.90%
LukSiy ZUB. Subsidiary 86.40% 9.46%
Medeikiy ZUB Subsidiary 94.34% 94.34%
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20B Landvestal Subsidiary BO% 80% 100%
_Z2UB Landvesta 2 Subsidiary BO0% BO% 100%
2UB Landvesta 3 Subsidiary BO%: BO% 100%
208 Landvesta 4 Subsidiary 100% 100%  100%
Z0B Landvesta 5 Subsidiary - 100% 100%
208 Landvesta B Subsidiary - 100% _100%
UAB Invisco * Subsidiary 55% 55% =
UAB Consonus * Subsidiary 0% 0% -
LUAB Sinrana Subsidiary B T0% 70% -
_UAB Jungting ekspedicija Associale 45.05% 45.05% 45.05%
UAB Kustodija Joint Venture 50% 50% 50%
UAB Dotnuvos projektai Joint Venture 50% 50% 50%
Z0B Dotnuves agroservisas Joint Venture 49.975% 49.975% 49.975%
UAB Dotnuvos technika Joint Venture 50% 50% E0%
Z0B Zvirbloniai * Associate 28.75% - -

' On 1 July 2008 AB Linas Agro signed a joint cortrol agreement with the members of 20K Kupdkio geidai. Aceording lo the clavsss of the
agreement AB Linas Agro has control over Z0K Kupidkio grifdal operations and financial decizgions and has the authorty fo appoint the chalrman
and the majarity of the board members of 20K Kupiékio gridal and, therefare, the mentioned company is consolidaled to the subgroup of AB
Linas Agro fram 1 July 2008,

? In March 2008 AB Linas Agro Group sold the shares of UAB fnvisco, As of 31 March 2008 UAB Linas Agro Gridy cantras sold shares of UAB
Consonus. On the same date UAB Gerera sold shares of UAE Sinrena.

* in 2008 the Group soid iis holdings in 208 Fvittlonial

Souwrce: the Company, the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company

The Group has recognised its interests in the Associates companies, applying the equity method. The Group's interests
in the Joint Ventures have been recognised applying the aquity method as well.

Results of Operations for the Financial Years 2006/2007 — 2008/2009

Selected financial information on results of operations for the financial years 2006/2007, 2007/2008 and 2008/2009 is
provided in the table below:

Table 52. Financial highlights of the consolidated Income statement (LTL in thousand)

Sales (1) 61,371 907,006 1,113,880
Cost of sales (2) (618,604) {831,077) {1,038,141)
Gross profit 42,767 75829 75739
Total aperating expenses 3 {:i]_ {25,849) {26,117) {35,025)
Other operating activities (net) (4) 9,551 2389 3817
Oparating profit - S 26,469 52,201 44,531
Financing activities (net) (5) (6.374) (11,018) (8,261)
Gain from disposal of Investments into Associates . 785 2
Share of profit of Associates (6) 106 450 113
Share of profit of Joint Ventures (6) 2,021 7,566 3,965
Profit before tax N 22,222 49,986 40,348
Income tax expansas (4.1 QE!_} (8.717) (8,577)
Net profit {loss) 18,023 41,269 31,771
Attributable to: o
The shareholders of the parent - 16,737 38,394 28,114
Minority interest ) 1,286 2,875 3BT
Source: the audited cansolidated Ananclal statements of the Company @*" 2y
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(1) Sales

The lable below provides breakdown of sales by operating segments:

Table 53. Breakdown of sales (LTL in thousand)

Sales (LTL in thousand) Grains and Qilseads 197,432 476,096 662,145
Feedstuffs 382,592 329,984 349 381

* Farming 22,849 32,644 37,05

Agricultural Inpuls Sﬁ',-;a‘-z"'s' o fél...'s!-l 58,176

. Other 25,567 32,172 43,216
Intersegment eliminalions a (19,394) {3?.'2'&4} (36,004)

Total 661,371 907,006 1,113,880

Sowrce: the Company

Grains and vilseeds were a key driver of the overall growth. This segment grew by LTL 279 million (or +141%) in
2007/2008 and LTL 186 million (or +39%) in 2008/2009. In terms of individual products, top performers were wheat,
rapeseed, barley and linseed. Growth in this segment resulted mainly from increased membership in the Agricultural
Growing Programme, extension of elevator network, supplies to UAB Mestilla, a biodiesel maker, and skilful commercial
oparations, In addiion, good harvest helped to lift results of 200872009,

Feedstuffs showed a mixed performance. During 2007/2008 sales decreased by LTL 52,609 thousand {or -14%). The
decline could be atributed to key factors: fishmeal exit, which produced LTL 22 049 thousand sales in 2006/2007, and
contraction of vegetable oil by LTL 84,155 thousand, which resulted from the transfer of existing sourcing capacities to
UAB Mestilla. This decline was partially offset by growth in several other products: LTL 17,931 thousand in sunflower
seed cake and extraction, LTL 20,143 thousand in soybean and soymeal, and LTL 7,103 thousand in rapecake. During
2008/2009 feedstuffs grew by LTL 18,397 thousand (or +6%). The growth resulted from the development of new sources
of vegetable oil and further growth of rapecake, soybean and soymeal. Sugar beet pulp pellets declined dramatically due
to inability to source this product at attractive prices (market prices were very low while sourcing at competitive cost was
impossible).

Farming demonsirated stable sale increments in both years producing LTL 9,795 thousand (+43%) growth in 2007/2008
and LTL 4,412 thousand (+14%) in 2008/2009. Improvement in the Farming sales is mainly attributed to increased
productivity, The year 2008/2009 is partially distorted by falling prices of agricultural products. If price effect eliminated,
the growth would be significantly higher.

Agricultural Inputs advanced LTL 20,988 thousand (or +40%:) together with growing volumes of grains and oilseeds in
2007/2008 as a result of close collaboration with farmers. Sales of the Agricullural Inputs have declined by LTL 15,138
thousand (or -21%) in 2008/2008, since these sales are dependent on prices of agricullural products, which have been
refatively low in 2008/2009.

Cther segment grew by LTL 6,606 thousand in 2007/2008 regardiess the sales of the veterinary business, which
produced LTL 12,656 thousand revenues in 2006/2007. The growth resulted from LTL 7,921 thousand advance in solid
biofuels and LTL 12,631 thousand growth in elevator services. Solid biofuels advanced further by LTL 8,185 thousand
and became profitable in 20082009,

More detailed overview of business operations, including quantified effects on profitability, is provided in Section
Frincipal Activities, page 46.

(2) Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Breakdown of cost of sales by type of expenses

The breakdown of the consolidated cost of sales by type of expenses is provided in the table below:
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Table 54. The breakdown of the consolidated cost of sales by type of expenses (LTL in thousand)

Costs of m-.rmtunes remgnlsed a5 an expense 557,260 723,282 BBZ1TT7
As % of sales 84.3% 79.7% 79.2%
Logislics expenses 49,816 B8,688 125.9&5
As % of sales - 7.5% 9.8% 11.3%
WEIQBE salarleﬁ and social security 5 383 6,939 8,808
As % of sales ' . 08% @ 08%  09%
Prtwlslons for Onerous l:un'tfac.ls - a0 5,433
* As % of sales - 00%  05%
Depraciation and amaortisation 2,613 3,746 5378
 As % of sales - 0.4% 0.4% 0.5%
Utilities expenses a74 1,530 2,822
.l'.‘-‘.hange in %&Ir value Dﬂ_:u;nlogjcalassﬂ{; - t4,ﬂﬁéj- {1,829) 345
{Income) expense from change in value of financial instruments - 1,694 {907)
Other - - 6,723 6,047 777
Total 618,604 831,077 1,038,141

Scurce: the audited consolidated financial stalements of the Company

15 2 g5 re expanse. Cost of inventories (which mainly are rapidly marketable products)
canstituted lhe iarge&t share ::-f the Group's cosl of sales (87.0% and 85.0% in 2007/2008 and 2008/2009 respectively).
During the last two financial periods the cost of inventories recognised as an expense has changed in line with the

related change in sales.

Logistics expenses increased by 78.0% in 2007/2008. This trend is explained by increase in volume of agriculiural
products sold as well as by transition of shipping conditions in sales of grains, oilseeds and feedstuffs from FOB (Free
On Board) to DAF (Delivered At Frontler). The latter is defined by closer position to end customer in the logistics chain.
The increase in logistics expensas in the year 2008/2009 is related to volume growth of Grains, Oilseads and Feedstuffs
segmanis by 30.5% as well as lo increased tariffs for transporiation.

Wages, salaries and social security expenses have demonstrated steady growth in the year 200772008 and 2008/2009
(28.9% and 41.3% respeclively). The increase in wages, salaries and social insurance during the last two years is
related to the expansion of elevator and farming activities and, to some extent, salary raises.

Provisions for onerous contracts increased from LTL 80 thousand in 2007/2008 o LTL 5,433 thousand in the last
financial year. During 2008/2009 the Group concluded vegetable oil purchase agreements according to which the
purchase price is higher than the expected sales price. The estimated loss of the contracts was recognised as provisions
for onerous contracts and was charged to cost of sales. Based on the purchase contracts the Group is committed to
purchase the goods according to the following schedule: July 2009, March 2010 and June 2010. The market price as of
30 June 2009 was used to estimate part of the provision amounting to LTL 5,274 thousand. The amourt of the provision
may change depending on the actual price agreed in the sales contract in the future.,

The share of Depreciation and amorisation expenses from sales remained stable during the covered periods.,

Utilities expenses increased during the |ast two years: by 75.1% in 2007/2008 and 84.4% in 2008/2009, The increase
mainly demonsirated by electricity and gas expenses in elevators was related to the growth of both, prices and
guantities. In addition, the increase in gas expenses was caused by the increased humidity parameters of grain harvest
delivered right from the fields. It is also worth mentioning that the new elevator acquired in Siauliai increased the utility
costs by LTL 0.5 million compared with the previous year,

The change in fair value of biological assets was positive during the years 2006/2007 and 2007/2008 and made LTL 4.1
million and LTL 1.8 million respectively. In 2008/2009 tha Group incurred the expenses of LTL 0.3 million on decrease in
fair value of biclogical assets. The Group's biological assets include animals, livestock and crops. The biological assets
are accounted for at fair value less point-of-sale costs. The fair value of milking cows and crops is measu i
discounted cash flows method. Other livestock is measured at comparable market prices. The fair value ""'-_-1?“ 3
measured using a discounted cash flows method, Thus the fair value of biological assets depends on pr,.r grains 3,
[ llE'I‘u“l'n .
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and milk as at the end of the financial period. In the end of the year 200772008 growing prices determined the increase
in fair value of biological assets, while decreasing prices in the end of 2008/2009 caused the negative change in fair
value of biological assels,

{Income} expense from change in value of financial instruments represents changes in fair value of the financial
instruments held for trading. As of 30 June 2009 financial instruments held for trading consisted of fulures contracts
traded by the Group at MATIF France's Futures & Options Exchange. The Group enlers into futures contracls to
manage price risk arising on the purchase of rapeseed from farmers in Lithuania that have purchase confracts with fixed
price.

(3) Operating Expenses
The breakdown of the consolidated operating expenses is provided in the table below:

Table 55. The breakdown of the consoclidated operating expenses (LTL in thousand)

Wagas salaries and social security 13,131 13.679 16, 9?2
As % of sales 2.0% 1.5% 1.5%
G-hanga in allowance for receivables and prepawnents - 488 2,108 3,485
Consulting expenses 1,313 1,009 3,451
~ Depreciation and amorlisation _ 1,453 263 805
Rent of administration and c'.nmmarcum pmrnlsas and malntenanca EXpENSEs 1.257 650 208
_ Change in 1mpah'mant for propeny p!ant and equlpmenl E 57 568
Rent of vel'dcles and maintenance BXPENSES 1,093 a01 E_-E:E
Business trips 1,018 T80 737
Stationery and office services 330 577 693
Bank fees . 536 1,062 632
 Telecommunications 602 58z 502
Warehousing and insurance expenses a 758 695 585
Insur_aﬁc_e ofﬂomunts receivables i 407 492 472 -
Taxes other than income tax 209 T2 451
Reprasentation expenses 397 442 430
Adﬂré;liéing expenses _ 27T 200 364
Other ' o 2,510 1,632 2,913
Total 25,849 26,117 35025

Source: the auvdited consofidated nanclal stalermants of the Company

Consolidated operating expenses increased by LTL 0.3 million and LTL 8.8 million In the year 2007/2008 and 2008/2009
respectively. The most material groups of the consolidated operating expenses were as follows:

Wanes, salaries and social security constituted the largest share of the consolidaled operating expenses: 52 4% in
2007/2008 and 48.5% in 2008/2009. The Group increased its expenses on wages, salaries and social insurance in
200772008 and 2008/2009 by 4.2% and 24.1% respecfively. The increase in wages and related costs in the last financial
year is explained by growth in the Group's turnover and bonuses to management paid for the results of the previous
financial period,

Change in_allowance for receivables and prepayvments made LTL 2.1 million in 2007/2008 and LTL 3.5 million in
2008/2009, Included in this amount there is the allowance for doubtful prepayments to other suppliers of LTL 1.9 million
accounted in 200772008, In addition, the Group incurred the expenses on allowance for doubtful trade receivables of
LTL 0.2 million and LTL 0.5 million in 2007/2008 and 2008/2008 respectively. Finally, during the |ast financial year the
Group established the allowance of LTL 3.0 million for doubtful other accounts receivable (no such provision was
established in previous years). This balance includes allowances established for loans issued to former Subsidiaries of
the Company: UAB Invisco, UAB Consonus and UAB Sinrena. These companies have been engaged in management of
commercial real estate projects. The Group disposed these investments in the year 2008/2009 as not related to its co o5 VERT P2
business, The allowances for the loans issued to the former Subsidiaries have been established at the level of 75 q"/\w'i?.:.
BE‘\'TJJ{L
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Consulting expenses increased in 2008/2009 from LTL 1.1 millien to LTL 3.5 million. Included in this amount thera is the
balance of consulling expenses incurred by the Company — LTL 1.6 million. The structure of these operating expenses
was as follows: LTL 1.1 million and LTL 0.5 million paid by the Company for legal and auditors consultancy services
respectively.

Expenses on the change in impairment for property, plant and equipment of LTL 0.6 million in 2008/2009 included the
following amounts: LTL 0.3 million of impairment of lands rented by Landvestas to Medeikiy ZUB, Sidabravo ZUE,

Aukétadvario ZOB and Luk&iy Z0B, and LTL 0.3 milllon of impairment mainly incurred in respect of unused buildings in
the companies mentioned.

(4) Other Operating Activities (Net)
The breakdown of other operating income of the Group is provided in Table 56.

The other operating income of LTL 10.7 million in the year 2006/2007 included the gain of LTL 9.2 million earned from
disposal of Subsidiary UAB Linas Agro Veterinarijos Centras,

The most matenal items of other operating income in 2007/2008 were the currency exchange gain of LTL 1.4 million and
income from sale of Dotnuvos Projektal brand name of LTL 1.5 million. The dispesal of the brand name was the
transaction between AB Linas Agro (originator and former owner of the brand name) and UAB Dotnuvos projekial (actual
user of the brand name). The price of the brand name was based on its valuation performed.

In 2008/2009 the Group accounted for the gain of LTL 2.1 million resulting from the accounting of disposal of
Subsidiaries UAB Invisco, UAB Sinrena and UAB Consonus in the consolidated financial statements, The cumency
axchange gain of LTL 1.5 million was the second significant item included into other operating income in the last year,

The most material item of other operating expenses during the last two years was the impairment of investment property
of LTL 1.6 million and LTL 0.9 million in 2007/2008 and 2008/2009 respectively, The balance of the impairment of
investment property in 2007/2008 consisted of the impairment of the warehouse in Jonigkis rented to UAB Dotnuvos
projektai. In the last financial year the Group calculated the impairment expenses in respect of lands rented lo third
parties by Landvestas.

Table 56. The breakdown of consolidated other operating income and expenses (LTL in thousand)

Other operating income:

Galn from disposal of mvesu'nanls into Sui:ﬁld»iadeﬁ 9 201 - 2 148
Curremy exchange gain - 118 1,411 1.453
Gain from disposal of property, plant and equipment 507 314 522
i Renlal income frclrn investment pmpert'_.r 210 204 447
Rentai income from property, plant anc aqulpmanl - 181 'éa'l'
Income from sale of Dotnuvos Frojektai brand name - - 1,500 -
Dividends 303 278 -
~ Other 383 830 599
Total other nparatlng income 10,723 4,519 5,253
 Other operating expenses: '
Impairment of investment property = (1,593) (857)
Other - . (1,472) (537) (579)
Total other operating expenses {1,172} {2,130) (1,436)
Other operating activities (net) 9,551 2,389 3,817

Source: the audited consoiidated financial stalements of the Company

(5) Financing Activities (Net)

The income and expenses from financing activities have mainly consisted of interest income and inter
respectively. See the table below for delails:
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Table 57, The breakdown of consolidated income and expenses from financing activities (LTL in thousand)

Inzome from financing activitias:
Interest income - 828 2,554 2,025
Income from overdue payments - 44 1,313
Total income from financing activities 828 2,598 3,338
Expenses from financing activities: B
_II:IEG_I'ESI eXpENSEs (7,131) (13,536) (11,276)
Other (71) (78) (323)
Total expenses from financing activities . (7,202) (13,614) {11,599)
Total financing expenses (net) (6,374) {11,018) (B,261)

Source: the audited consolidated financial stafements of the Company

The increase of interest income in the year 2007/2008 by LTL 1.7 million was mainly 2arned on loans to related parties.
The Group atinbutes the increase in interest expenses in the year 2007/2008 of LTL 6.4 million to increase in
borrowings.

(6) Share of Profit of Associated Companies and Joint Ventures

Table 58. The breakdown of the consolidated share of profit of Associates and Joint Venture by companies (LTL
in thousand)

Share of profit of Associates:
Share of result of UAB Jungting ekspedicija 286 305 113
20K Kupiskio gridai o a (180) 145 :
Total share of profit of Associates ) 106 450 113
Share of profit of Joint Ventures: )
Share of result of UAE Dotnuvos projektal 2,442 7063 4,763
~ Share of result of UAB Kustodja (288) 807 (267)
Share of ZUE Dotnuvos agroservisas {133) (304) {(531)
Total share of profit of Joint Ventures 2,021 7,566 3,965

Soprce: the Company

Capital Resources

Capital Resources, Borrowing Requirements and Funding Structure

The total balance sheet of the Group as of the financial year 2008/2009 was LTL 387.2 million (a decrease by 10.8%
compared to the financial year 2007/2008). Of the above, current assets formed 58.6% (LTL 227.0 million) in the year
2008/2009, with the remaining 41.4% (LTL 180.3 million) in nen-current assets.

Equity and total financial liabilities {excluding irade payables) financed 40.3% and 39.4% respectively of the Group's
total assets as at the end of the year 2008/2009,

Working capital of the Group as at the end of the financial year 2008/2009 totaled to LTL 39.8 million {a decrease by
15.4% compared to the financial year 2007/2008).

For mare information conceming the Company's capital resources, please refer to the consolidated financial statements
of the Company {Appendix 1).
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Table 59. Highlights of capital resources and funding structure of the Group, related ratios (LTL in thousand)

Total assets 3071 434209 387228

Total non-current assets 135,102 15?.%5? 160,250
- TFItE! current assets 174,569 276,522 226,978
Total equity 96,545 132175 156,071
Total non-current liabilities 42,005 72,536 43,961
Total current liabilities 172520 229,498 187,196
i _P:Jel financial debt ___s_.a.ma 154,873 117,086
Total financial liabilities 110,392 189,183 152,541
Non-current financial loans receivable ' (13,251) (25,746) (16,991)
Current financial loans receivable ' - (738) (8,374)
Cash and cash equivalents (7.873) (7.826) (8,190}
EBITDA 32,826 65,331 56,001
Related ratios: N
Total currani__a?_uets.f Total current liabilities a 1.0 1.2 1.2
Total equity/ Total assels, % 31.0% 30.4% 40.3%
Met financial debt! Total assats, % 28.7% 35.7% 30.5%
Net financial debt! equity, % 92.4% 17.2% 756%
Met financial debt/ EBITDA 27 2.3 2.1

T Financial pans are provided fo related parfies
Source: the Company. the audited consofidaled financial statements of the Company

The structure of the financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) of the Group is presented in the table below:

Table 60. The structure of the Group's financial liabilities (LTL in thousand)

Naon-current borrewings and finance lease obligations 27.571 59,885 30,280
Bank borrowings secured by the Group's assets 24,471 27,867 26,585
Bonds issued ' - 15,000 -
Finance lease obiigations 1.697 2,327 2,308

- Other non-current borrowings 1.403 14,591 1,387

Current borrowings and finance lease obligations 82,821 129,208 122,261
Current portion of non-current bank borrowings 8,303 8,780 22,112
Bonds issued ' 15,000 ” 14,700
Accumulated bonds interest | 968 1127 1,124

Current partion of other non-currant borrowings - T3 2,851

Current bank borrowings secured by the Group's assets 55,546 110,644 75,425
Factoring with recourse liability 3.964 4.506 3,433
Current portion of finance lease obligations 935 1,270 1,138
Other current barrowings 1EH_ 2,971 1,478

Total financial liabilities 110,392 188,183 152,541

Tl July 2009 AB Linas Agro hias redesmed bonds issued logether with inferes! accrued.
Souvee: the audifed consalidated financial statements of the Company

The total financial liabilities excluding trade payables of the Group as of 30 June 2009 were LTL 152.5 million, consisting
of the non-current financial liabilities of LTL 30.3 millien and the current ones of LTL 122.3 million. As of 30 June 2009
unutilised part of credit lines of the Group comprised LTL 1326 million (LTL 24.2 million and LTL 1.6 million as of 30
June 2008 and 2007, respechively.

Major part of the bank borrowings with the total balance of LTL 124.1 million as of 30 June 2009 were secured by the
Group's assets. As of 30 June 2009 property, plant and equipment, investment property, biological assets, inventories,
prepayments, trade receivables and bank accounts were pledged to banks as collateral for the loans.

See below the breakdown of items pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the Group:
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Table 61. The breakdown of asseis pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the Group (LTL in thousand)

_ Property plant and equipment 63,537 69,203 82,603
Invesiment property 12,573 19,017 E_;?ﬁ
Biological assels 268 5,633 4,427
Inventories 7,665 41,850 45,047
 Prepayments = 9,856 5,334 8,860
Trade receivables B 59,574 102,483 87442
Total assets pledged o 153,473 ME_ZD 236,555

Source: he sudied consalinaled financial stalemants of the Company

In addition to the pledged assets presented in the table above a part of the Group's accounts at banks and cash inflows
are pledged o banks as a collateral for the loans. As at the end of the financial years 2006/2007, 2007/2008, 2008/2009
there were no restriclions on use of cash balances held in the pledged accounts.

Also UAB Linas Agro Konsultacijos pledged shares of Medeikiy 208, Luksiy 208, Aukstadvario Z0B, Sidabravo Z0B
as well as Eriskiy 20B and Zibartoniy ZUB to banks as a collateral for the loans,

In terms of currencies, the Group mainly borrows in EUR and LTL. The breakdown of financial liabilities by currencies is
illustrated in the table below.

Table 62. Breakdown by currencies of the Group's financial liabilities, excluding trade payables (LTL in

thousand)

Financial lisbilities, excluding trade payables ~ As%oftotal
____ 130 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2009
EUR {LTL Bql.ﬂ\"%'l'ﬁl'lt:l 16,028 128,321 98,987 14.5% B7.8% 64.9%
L 79,672 42374 48015 72.2% 22.4% 31.5%
USD (LTL equivalent) 4,822 11,028 4,673 4.4% 5.8% 3.1%
"DKK (LTL equivalent) 9,709 7,308 692 8.8% 3.9% 0.5%
GBP (LTL equivalent) 181 152 174 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Total 110,392 189,183 152,541 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Sowce: the audifed consolidated fnancial stalements of the Company

The major part of the Group’s borrowings is with variable rates related to LIBOR and VILIBOR, which creates and
interest rate risk. No financial instruments are used to manage fluctuations of interest rates.

The borrowings from the related parties made LTL 2.3 million as of 30 June 2009. See Section Related Party
Transactions, page B8, for details.

In July 2007 AB Linas Agro issued the two years bond emission with the balance of LTL 15 million and with the
repayment due till 21 July 2009. It was already the fourth bond emission issued by AB Linas Agro. Funds received from
the bonds issued were used to finance the working capltal needs. In July 2009 AE Linas Agro redeemed bonds issued
together with interast accrued,

The total liability of the Group under finance lease contracts made LTL 3.4 million as of 30 June 2009, The assets leased

by the Group under finance lease contracts consist of land, buildings and structures, machinery and equipment, vehicles
and other property, plant and equipment.

Cash Flows

The following table summarises the consolidated cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Table 63. Highlights of the consolidated cash flows (LTL in thousand)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,782 7973 7,826
Cash flow from (to) operating activities ' (3.970) (36,450) 64,515
Cash flow from (to) operating activiies before changes in working capital 16,581 62,272 60,843
Changes In working caplital (20,551) (98,722) 3,572
" Cash flow from (to) investing activities - (3,845) (24,478) {25.925
Cash flow from (to) financing activities 3,006 60781  (38,225)
Net increase (decrease) in cash equivalents [4,B09) {i-t?_:l_ 364
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year 7,973 7,826 8,190

" Source; the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital increased from LTL 16,581 thousand in 2008/2007
to LTL 62,272 thousand in 2007/2008 and slightly decreased to LTL 60,943 thousand in 2008/2009. Growth in
2007/2008 resulted from growing volumes and higher profitability. In 20082002 business volumes kept growing but
prafitability declined due to significant shift in profitability of sugar beet pulp pellets and some other faciors.

Malume growth and growing prices of agricultural commodities consumed LTL 20,551 thousand of additional working
capital in 2006/2007. The next financial year demanded much more significant increase in working capital (LTL 98,722
thousand) due to growing volumes and record-high prices of agricultural products. In addition, the Group accumulated
unusually high inventory levels hoping for further price advances. The year 2008/2009 resulted in plunging prices of
agricultural products, which reduced working capital by LTL 3,572 thousand regardless growing volumes.

Cash outflows from investing aclivities were unusually low in 2006/2007 due fo sales of UAB Linas Agro Veterinarijos
Centras shares, which generated an inflow of LTL 12,926 thousand. During 2007/2008 the Group made LTL 9,930
thousand investment into land {used for agricullural and investment purposes), LTL 5,019 thousand investment into
equipment, LTL 4,996 thousand for buildings including construction in progress and LTL 3,565 thousand to purchase
25.15% shares of Linas Agro Griidy centras KUB, The biggest purchases of 2008/2009 were LTL 14.0 million acquisition
of Siauliai elevator and a LTL 9.0 million acquisition of 60% shares of Rosenkrantz ApS.

Financing cash flow was a mirror reflection of operating and investing cash flows. Due to low changes in operating and
investing cash flows the Group required only LTL 3,008 thousand of financing inflows in 2006/2007. Dramatic changes in
working capital and significant cash outflows in investing activities required LTL 60,781 thousand of additional financing
in 2007/2008. When prices of agricultural products dropped, operating activities generated LTL 64,515 thousand, which
allowed returning LTL 38,225 thousand to equity and debt holders in 2008/2009,

Research and Development, Patents and Licences

The majarity of trademarks of the Group (i.e. linas, linas agro, linas inagra, V L, rapsaili, L V linas agri, linas wiza,l i
kupiskio griidal, LA gridy centras, UAB Dotnuvos projektai, sidabrave Zemés (kio bendrové, Zibartoniy Zemés Okio
bendrove, medeikiy Zemes Okio bendrové, lukfiy Xemés Gkio bendrove, aukdtadvario Zemes Gkio bendrové) are
registered with the State Patent Bureau of the Republic of Lithuania. In addition, the Group holds one European
Community trademark (i.e. linas, trademark Mo. 004030946}, which is registered in the name of AB Linas Agro and one
pending European Community trademark application (i.e., linas agro, trademark Mo. 007236556) filed by AB Linas Agro.
Furthermore, AB Linas Agro has one trademark (l.e. linas inagra, registration No. BE7003), registered under the Madrid
Protocol of 27 June 1989, Registration of the said trademark is extended (with certain exceptions) to Belarus, Russia,
Ukraine as well as the European Union. The trademark UAB Dotnuvos projektai is pledged in favour of AB SEB bankas
to secure the performance of financial obligations arising under the credit agreement made with the bank.

The Group has no registered patents or industrial designs.

Currently the Group does not carry out any significant research and development activities, except for its close
cooperation with Lithuanian agriculture research institutions taking advantage of agricultural technology and kn

development. Mo significant expenses are incurred in this cooperation. e _:; ,
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Trend Information

Global prices of agricultural commodities were refatively stable up to 2006/2007 with moderate ups and downs in
individual years. However, prices began to rise rapidly in the second half of 2008, skyrocketed in the third quarler of
2007 and suddenly dropped down. Then they equally surprisingly recovered to al-time-highs and afterwards starled
falling rapidly for nine consecutive months in 2008 returning to 2006 levels. Unusual volatility in prices most likely is
related to the entrance of financial investors inlo agricultural commodity markets and their irrational behavior. The Group
sees more positives than negatives in this new trend. First, uncerlain markets provide better opportunities for market
professionals and should result in wider margins, Second, financial investors brought into the market a set of new
financial instruments, which can be used lo manage price risk exposure. Price levels of 2009 remain relatively low for
agricultural products. Therefore, many professionals expect prices to go up in 2010 but this won't be comparable to the
peaks of 2007-2008,

Lithuanian and Latvian markets are being influenced by several new trends as wall. First, high prices of 2007-2008 have
brought to the markel a number of new small competitors, which are gradually disappearing now. However, some of
them have succeeded to find their niches in the market. Second, farmers are increasingly aware aboul benefits of
participating in the growing programs of agricultural holdings. Therefore, membership in such programs is growing
rapidly. Lastly, agricultural holdings are accelerating consolidation of farms, since farms provide several benefits for
them such as a full control over future harvests and an opportunity to eam extra profits in crop growing. In addition,
farms can be used as demo fields for other farmers displaying what can be achieved when madern growing technologies
and agricultural inputs are used,

Profit Forecasts and Estimates

Profit forecasts are not included in this Prospecius because they have not been reviewed by independent auditors.

Administrative and Management Bodies and Senior Management

Management Structure

General Information

The Company has a two-tier management system, i.e. the Managemenl Board and the Chief Executive Officer (the
General Manager) of the Company. No Supervisory Council is formed in the Company. The Management Board is a
collegial management body, which is responsible for the strategic management of the Company, the appointment and
removal of the Chief Executive Officer, calling the General Meelings of Shareholders, adoption of other corporate
decisions which are economically feasible for the Company, elc. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Company and enjoys an exclusive right of representing the Company vis-a-vis third parties.

In addition. the Company employs several Key Executives: Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Corporale Communication Manager, Human Resources (HR) Manager and Chief Accountant. As the Company is a
holding entity with no extensive business operations, apart from the Key Executives only one employes (Senior
Accountant, who is not considered as the Key Executive) is employed in the Company. All the employess of the
Company are directly subordinate and report to the Chief Executive Officer with the exception to the Chief Accountant
and the Senior Accountant who are subordinate to the Chief Financial Officer,
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The internal management structure of the Company is shown in Figure 4 below.

Figure 4. Organizational structure of the Company

Management Board

The Company's Management Board is comprised of seven members elected for the tenure of four years. The
Management Board has the Chairman elected by the Management Board from among its members, The business
address for all members of the Managemeni Board is AB Linas Agro Group, Smélynés 2C, LT-35143 Panevéiys,
Lithuania, The list of the members of the Management Board Is presented in Table 64 below. The tenure period of the
Management Board is indicated in Table 68, page 85,

Table 64. Members of the Management Board

Darius Zubas Chairman of the Management Board, CEQ
Vytautas Sidlauskas Deputy Chairman of the Management Board '
Ardnas Zubas Member of the Management Bnam_ o
Dainius Pilkauskas Member of the Management Board -
Arinas Jamolavigius Member of tr-\e I'Jhnaganmt Board
Andrius Pranckevitius - Member of the Management Board, Daput‘y Chief Executive Officer
Tomas Tuménas Member of the Management Board, Chief Financial Officer e

" Although neither the Law on Companies nor the Articles of Association of the Company provide for the election of the { Deputy ‘Chatrman of the
Managemant Board, this position i3 indicated in the Work Regulations of the Managemen! Bosrd approved on 16 October 2008, The Deputy
Chalrmar is elecied by the Managemaen! Board from amang its mernbers.

Sowrce: the Company

Darius Zubas. Darius Zubas, born in 1965, is the main founder of the Group. He incorporated AB Linas Agro (former
UAE Linas ir Viza) and since 1991 occupies the position of the Chief Executive Officer and, since 2006, the position of
the Chairman of the Management Board of the sald company. Since 1997, he is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. In 1993-1993 he was the Deputy General Manager of UAB Gerera. In addition, he also serves as the
Chalrman of the Management Boards of UAB Mestilla and Rosenkrantz A/S, Darius Zubas graduated from Lithuanian
Veterinary Academy in 1988 and obtained a diploma of Veterinarian. Darius Zubas has nearly 20 years of experience in
strategic management and business organization,
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Vytautas Sidlauskas. Vytautas Sidlauskas, born In 1963, is one of the incorporators of AB Linas Agro (former UAB
Linas ir Viza). Since 1999 he occupies the position of the Director for Commerce and in addition since 2006 serves as
the member of the Management Board in AB Linas Agro. At the same time, Vytautas Sidlauskas acts as the Chief
Executive Officer of UAB Gerera (since 1993) and serves as a member of the Management Board in LAB Mestilla and
Rosenkrantz A/S, Vytaulas Sidlauskas is a graduate of Faculty of Chemistry, Kaunas Polytachnic Institute, where in
1987 he obtained a diploma in Public Nutrition Technology and Management. Viylautas Sidlauskas has more than 15
years of exparience in business management.

Arinas Zubas. Arlinas Zubas, born in 1962, is the member of the Management Board of the Company. He joined the
Group in 1885 as the Manager for Commerce in AB Linas Agro (1996-2008). Prior to that, he worked as the
Technologist in Panevélys Meal Processing Factory (1985-1988), as well as the Project Manager of the factory (1983-
1992) and, later, as the Managing Director (1992-1994) in AB Krekenavos Agrofirma. On the date of this Prospectus, he
alzo serves as a mamber of the Management Board in AB Linas Agro (since 2006) and the Chief Executive Officer in
UAB Mestilla (since 2005). Ardnas Zubas graduated from Kaunas University of Technology in 1985 and holds a diploma
in Chemical Technology. Arlnas Zubas has 20 years of experience in project, production and business management.

Ardnas Zubas is a brother to Darius Zubas, a shareholder, the Chairman of the Management Board and CEQ of the
Company.

Dainius Pilkauskas. Dainius Pilkauskas, born in 1966, is serving for the Group for 18 years already. Starled as the
Manager for Commerce in AB Linas Agro (former UAB Linas ir Viza) In 1881, since 2006 he was promoted to and
currently serves as the Manager for Commerce for the Baltic States and a member of the Management Board in AB
Linas Agro. Dainius Pilkauskas is a graduate of Lithuanian Veterinary Academy where in 1999 he oblained a diploma of
Zoo Engineer, Dainjus Pilkauskas is highly experienced in business management and business organization.

Ariinas JarmolaviGius. Arlnas JarmolaviGius, born in 1984, joined the Group eight years ago. In 2001 he started his
carrier within the Group as the Project Director in AB Linas Agro and serves in this position since then. In 2008 he was
nominated as a member of the Management Board of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Contraller in
the State Confrol Department (1991-1992), the Sales Manager in UAB Prieglius (1993-1984), the Sales and Marketing
Director in AB Kalnapilis (1994-1997) and In Baltic Beverage Holding AB (1997 — 1999} as well as the Managing Director
in UAB Jungtinis Alaus Centras (1999-2001). In 1891 Arinas Jarmolavidius graduated from Vilnius University and holds
a diploma in Econemics, Industry Planning. His experience In business, marketing and investments fields already counts
for 15 years,

Andrius Pranckevicius. Andrius Pranckevidius, born in 1976, joined the Group In 1999 as the Marketing Manager
(1999-2000) in AB Linas Agro (former UAB Linas ir Viza). Afterwards, he served as the Project Manager (2000-2003)
and Business Development Manager (2003-20035) in the same company. Since 2005 he serves as the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer and since 2006 as a member of the Management Board in AB Linas Agro. He also occupies the
position of the Deputy Chiel Executive Officer of the Company. In addition, Andrius Pranckevitius holds the position of
the board member of the Lithuanian Agricuttural Companies Association, Prior to joining the Group, he was the
Customer Service Manager in UAB DHL International Listuva (1998-1999). Andrius Pranckevitius js a graduate of
Kaunas Technological University where in 1998 he obtained a bachelor's degree in Business Administration and, in
2000, a master's degree in Marketing Management. He also took execulive education programs in Harvard Business
School, Wharton Business School, Stanford Business School, and Berkeley Business School (2004-2007) and
programme of leadership development in Harvard Business School (2009). Andrius PranckeviGius is experienced in
project management, marketing, investrment and finances.

Tomas Tuménas. Tomas Tumenas, born in 1972, started his career within the Group since 2001 by becoming the
Finance Director (Chief Financial Officer) of AB Linas Agro and serves In this position since then, On the date of this
Prospectus, he also acts as a member of the Management Board in AB Linas Agro (since 2008), the Director in UAB
Baltic Fund Investments (since 2003) and the Chief Financial Officer in the Company (since 2009). Prior to joining the
Group he was the Financial Broker in AB Akcinis Inovacinis Bankas (1995-1996), Insurance Analyst in ADB Preventa
(1996} and the Financial Analyst in the Representative Office of Baltic Management LLC (1996-2001). Tomas Tuménas
halds the diploma in Economics from Vilnius University (in 1995) and a cerificate in Intemational Business Economics
from Aalborg University (in 1995). Since 2007 he studies at Manchester Business School and expects to obtain MBA in
finance. Tomas Tuménas works in the spheres of invesiments and finance management for more than 15 years,
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Key Executives

The list of employees which the Company considers as Key Executives is presented in Table 65 below. The business
address for all Key Executives is AB Linas Agro Group, Smélynés 2C, LT- 35143 Panevéiys, Lithuania.

Table 65. Kai Executives of the ﬂompani
Overall organization and strategy of the Group, development and

; expansion of the Group, day -to-day management of the Company,
Darius Zubes Chief Executive Officer oo centation of the Company vis-a-vis third persons, overall
organization and strategy of the Group

Development and expansion of the Company and the Group. start-up

Andrius Pranckevicius Dby CHIEFEXBCUIVE o1 oeganization of investment projects of the Group, coordination and
i management of agra-supply companies in the Ballic slates
. i Management of the Group’s financial resources, formation of the

TnmaiTuméms Chief Financial Ofiicer Group's financlal policy, relations with credit and financial institutions
Ramuté Maziokaite Chief Accountant Accounting of the Group

oot Communication with shareholders and investors of the Company,
Jorinta Zolubaité Communication Manager reporiing to the stock exchange, LSC and other institutions, public

s il . . relations, marketing and branding of the Group S

Silvija Lukogidnaite Human Resources (HR) Strategic HR management, formation of HR policy of the Group, hiring

Managar and dismissing upper-tevel staff of the Group companies

Source: the Company

The information about Darius Zubas, Andrius Pranckevi€ius and Tomas Tuménas is presented in Section Management
Board, page 79, above.

Ramuté Masiokaité. Ramuté Masiokaité, born in 1971, joined the Group in 1998 as the Chief Accountant of AB Linas
Agro (former UAB Linas ir Viza). In 2001 she was promoted to the position of the Financial Controller of AB Linas Agro
and serves there since then. Prior 1o joining the Group, she worked as the Vice-Chief Accountant in AB Lithuanian
Saving Bank (1995-1098). Ramuté Masiokaité is a graduate of Vilnius University, where in 1994 she received a diploma
of Economy, Finance and Credit Specialisation.

Jorinta Zolubaité. Born in 1964, Jorinta Zolubaité is one of the founders of the Group. Since the incorporation of AB
Linas Agro (former UAB Linas ir Viza) in 1981, Jorinta Zolubaité held the position of the Technical Secretary. In 1994
she was promoted to the position of the Assistant Managing Director where she remained until 1998, During the same
period she worked as the Secretary in UAB Gerera, one of the Group companies (1993-1999), Since her promotion (o
the position of the Junior Marketing Manager in AB Linas Agro in 1999, Jorinta Zolubailé started her career in marketing
sector. She worked as the Junior Marketing Manager until 2005 and then for a year held a position of the Marketing
Manager in AB Linas Agro. Since 2006, she was appointed as the Corporate Communication Manager of AB Linas Agro
where she remains working on the date of this Prospectus. Jorinta Zolubaité Is responsible for group communication,
image, branding and marketing. Jorinta Zolubaité is a graduate of Kaunas Technology University, where in 1987 she
abtained a diploma of Engineer-Technologist, Food Chemistry and Technology specialisation.

Silvija LukoSidnaité. Silvija LukoSidnaité, born in 1974, joined the Group in 1997, immediately after graduation from
Kaunas Technological University, From 1987 until 2002 she worked as the Assistance Chief Executive Officer in AB
Linas Agro (former UAB Linas ir Viza) and as the Secretary in the Company (former UAB Agriveta). In 2002 she was
promoted to the HR Manager in AB Linas Agro) and serves in this position since then. Silvija Luko$idnaité is a graduate
from Kaunas Technological University (Panevézys Faculty) whera in 1987 she obtained a bachelor's degree in Business
Administration. She deepened her academic knowledge In ISM University of Management and Economics where in
2008 she obtained a master's degree In Management for Executives. Silvija Luko&itnaité has seven years of experience
in HR management. From October 2009 Silvija LukosiOnaité is on maternity leave and, in the case of necessity, the
Company will seek to temporarily hire another person 1o replace her or lo assign her scope of work to other staff of the
Group.

The dates when the Key Executives took the position are indicaled in Table 68, page 85.
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Principal Activities Outside the Company

Information on participation of the members of the Management Board and the Key Execulives of the Company in the
management or supervision of other entities during the last five years {since 2004) is provided in Table 66 below. The
table below does not include the positions held within the Company.

Table 66. Principal activities of the members of the Management Board and the Key Executives outside the

I:omini

Darlus Zubas
- Gmup companies: =
AB Linas Agro o Chief Executive Officer 1991 - Yes
chaimn m‘ ﬂ'ba Marraagament Board 2006 - Yes
Rosenkraniz A5 Chairman uf the Managemﬂnt Board 2005 - Yeas
G.l‘.‘l':ﬂr mnmama.? B
~ UAB Mestilia Chairman of the Management Board 2006 - Yes
Vytautas Sidlauskas
Group companies:
AB Linas Agro Director for Commerce 1999 - Yes
o Deputy Chairman of the Management Board 2008 - Yes
UAB Gerera Chief Executive Officer - 1883 - Yes
Rosenkrantz AIS B Member of tha Management Board 2004 - Yes
" UAB Meatila Member of the Management Board 2006 - Yes
Arﬂnas Zubas '
Gmup companies: -
AB Linas Agro Member of the Management Board 2006 - Yes
_ o Manager for Commerce - 1995 2005 -
S e e hbol
UAB Mestilla Chief Exacutive Officer 2005 - Yes
Dainius Pilkauskas
Gmup companfas — i
AB Linas Agro Manager for Commerce for Ballic States 2008 - Yes
Member of the Managemant Board 2008 - Yeos
~ Manager for Commerce - 1991 2006 -
Ardnas Jarmolavicius
Gr-mp companies: o - -
AB Linas Agro " Project Director 2001 - Yes
Member of the Management Enard_m_ 2008 - Yes
~ Other companies: -
UAB Mestila Member of the Management Board 2006 - Yes
Akola ApS Authorised Flepresmt&twe in Llﬂ'mrua and Ukraine 2001 - Yes
 Andrius Pranckeviius S
Group comparies: = -
AB Linas Agro Deputy Chief Executive Officer 2005 - Yes
© Member of the Management Board 2008 - Yeasg
Business Development Manager "2“1'};}_3_ 2005 -
Other companies: N
m;ﬁhﬁéﬂglﬂ%ﬂanm Board Member 2008 - Yes
= — \]E-E.T}’
Tomaf Tuménas o / o2
Group companies:
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AB Linas Agro B Chief Financial Officer 2000 - es

Member of the Management Board 2006 - Yes
e call o i ool ek Wt i
 UABBaltic Fund Investments  Chief Executive Officer 2003 - VYes
Ramuté Masiokaité
" Group companies: i
AB Linas Agro Financial Controfler 2001 - Yes
Jorinta Zolubaité -
Group companies; =
AB Linas Agro Manager Corporate Dommunfcaliun 2006 - Yes
Junfui."Markslir!g Manager 1089 2005
Marketing Manager - 2005 2006
Silvija Lukogianaité -
Group companias: B -
AB Llﬁé-s':".ﬁaru HR Manager . 2002 - Yes
hssia_-tant Chlef Executive Officer 1997 2002

~Source: the Company

Declarations in Respect of Senior Management

To the best knowledge of the Company, for the last five years neilher any member of the Management Board nor any
Key Executive of the Company (I} was imposed with any convictions in relation to fraudulent offences, (i) was
associated with any bankruptcies, receiverships or liguidations in their capacity as members of the administrative,
management or supervisory bodies, partners with unlimited liability, founders or senior managers, or (i) was subject to
any official public incrimination and/or sanctions by statutory or regulatory authorities (including designated professional
bodies) or has been disqualified by a court from acting as a member of the administrative, management or supervisory
bodies of the Company or from acting in the management or conduct of the affairs of any entity.

Darius Zubas, the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, and three members of the Management Board
of the Company (Arlnas Zubas, Vytautas Sidlauskas and Dainius Pilkauskas) indirectly exercise joint control over the
Company, All of them are direct shareholders of the Selling Shareholder which is the principal shareholder of the
Company. The Selling Shareholder is the holding company in Akola Group and its Subsidiaries engage in various
business activities (see Section Siructure of Akola ApS Group, page 60). In addition, the shareholders of the Company
exercize the joint control over UAB Mestilla which is outside the Group structure but which is an important business
partner of the Group (see Section Related Parly Transactions, page 88).

It is possible thal the shareholders of the Company (four of which are members of the Management Board) may favour
their own interests rather than those of the Company. Darius Zubas, Arinas Zubas, Viytautas Sidlauskas and Dainius
Pilkauskas are the shareholdera of Akola ApS (the Selling Sharehalder) and therefore, have a right to dividends
declared by the Selling Shareholder.

Apart from the above, the Company is nol aware of any potential conflict of interests between any duties to the Company
of the members of the Management Board or Key Executives of the Company.

Remuneration and Benefits

The information on remuneration and benefits to the members of the Management Board and the Key Executives of the
Company in the year 2008/2009 is presented in Table 67. Gross amounts which include social security, income and
other taxes applicable under legal acts are shown balow.
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Table 67. Remuneration and benefits paid and accrued to Management Board and Key Executives in the year

2008/2009

Darius Zubas gmlfp““ Agro Chairman of the Management Board, CEO 120 Salary
0.3 Provisions for vacation
AB Linas Agro Chairman of the Management Board, CEO 2381 Salary
' 420 Provisions for vacation
Rosenkrantz ASS Chalrman of the Management Board 147.8"  Bonus
Total B 440.3
gm‘“m‘:“ AB Linas Agro m“;mm; Dty G of 2135 Salary
151 Provisions for vacation
- UAB Gerera Chief Executive Officer 120 Salary
Rosenkrantz A/S Member of the Management Board 147.8"  Bonus
Total . w4
Arinas Zubas - - - Z o
Total - 2
e M Gem eGSR o sum
393  Bonus
36.9 Provisions for vacation
Total 2318
S ia liwigy TR
B 202 Bonus
0.7 Provisions for vacation
Total 142.4
;::I::'lr::tlltz\rlﬁlus AB Linas o ?ﬁi‘ﬁ;ﬁfﬁ.ﬁ? ';‘!.‘;.%’"”' e 2096 Salary
342 Bonus
8.3 Provisions for vacation
Total _ 2821
Tomas Tuménas  AB Linas Agio G"L a ﬁf F;ﬂ‘“;ﬂ“é%"f Member of the 1463 Salary
B 20.2 Bonus o
B 214 Provisions for vacation
_Total o 187.9
:‘“mm AB Linas Agro Einancial Controller 1172 Salary
a 96 Bonus
- 7.0  Provisions for uacaﬂm_
Total ' - 133.8
g AB Linas Agro Corporate Commiinication Managat 1065 Salary
ubaite i
e 4.9 Bmm
_Total 111.4
e e ABLinas Agro HR Manager B2.0  Salary
o 41 Bonus
Total 931
 Total for all senior management 1,981.2

T honuses were aliocated but have nat besn paid yel. B EMEHT_}:E‘;\‘
Sowrce: the Comparny ‘:},0 e
/s %
i3 BENDRIITY
4| RELG
\ SKTRIUS
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The Group has not set aside or accrued any amounts fo provide pension, retirement or similar benefits to any member of
the Management Board or Key Executive of the Company.

As of 30 June 2009 there are no loans granted by the Group to the members of the Management Board or the Key
Executives of the Company.

Board Practices

Term of Office

The term of office of the Management Board and Key Executives of the Company as well as the period during which
respective persons hold positions is provided in Table 68 below.

Tahla ES Tenure nf the Hanagamant Euard and Ka)r Emcutlws of the Compan)r
' e ; _ " --r—-r-frpnr-. il

Manageman'l B-oard

Darius Zubas Chalrman of the Management Board 12 Septamb&r 2008 12 SaplanThar 2012
Vytautas Sidlauskas Deputy Chairman of the Management Board 12 September 2008 12 September 2012
Ariinas Zubas Member of the Management Board 12 September 2008 12 September 2012
Dainlus Pilkauskas Member of the Management Board 12 September 2008 12 Septemher 2012
Artinas Jammolavicius  Member of the Management Board 12 September2008 12 Seplember 2012
Andrius Pranckevitius  Member of the Management Board 12 September 2008 12 Seplember 2012
Tomas Tuménas Member of the Management Board 1 October 2008 12 September 2012
?ay Executives -
Darius Zubas Chief Executive Officer mprli 19—9? _ _I_f'l_d_!_ilft‘lf_ta
Eril-nmrandmvlmus Dﬂputy’ Chief Executive Officer 189 November 2008 Indefinite
Tomas Tuménas Chief Financial Crﬁ‘cer 18 Movember 2008 __Indaﬁnite
Ramulé Masiokaits  Chisf Accountant 19 November 2009 Indefinite
Jorinta Zolubaité - Gurpnrate Communication Manager 19 November 2008 'I'rl:léﬁ'nite .
) Mnsﬂm Human Resources (HR) Managar 19 November 2008 Indefinite
S T ot phaiagah b falsdko b SN i o it S o1 .

According to the Law on Companies, the tenure of the Management Board may not last longer than until the annual
ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders convened in the last year of the tenure of the Management Board,

All Key Executives have employment relations with the Company which are of unlimited duration. Albeit other Key
Executives may be terminated from the Company only on the grounds and following the procedure indicated in the
Labour Code of the Republic of Lithuania, pursuant to the Law on Companies the Chief Executive Office (Darius Zubas)
may be revoked from the position by the Management Board of the Company without any early notice for any cause.

Severance Payments

According to the Labour Code of the Republic of Lithuania, the members of ihe Management Board and Key Executives
who are employed in any Group company are entitled to severance payments upon termination of their employment
{except for certain termination grounds, such as on own will, due to employee's faull, etc). In addition, AB Linas Agro
and certain key employeses of such company Dainius Pilkauskas, Ardnas Jarmolavidius, Andrius Pranckevigius, Tomas
Tuménas, Jorinta Zolubaite and Silvija Lukogidnaite have entered into non-competition arrangements whereby these
employees undarfook not to compete with the Group during their employment and certain period afterwards and, as a
compensation, AB Linas Agro underdook to pay 100% of their average monthly salaries for the entire non-competition
period (starting from the termination of their employrment),

Apart from the statutory payments and non-competition compensation referred to above, the employment agreements

entered into between the members of the Management Board andlor Key Executives and respective Group W&
i i o W ERT e
do not provide for any other severance payments or benefits upon termination of such agreements., 48
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Compliance with the Corporate Governance Regime

The Company complies with the Lithuanian corporate regime established by Lithuanian law, the Articles of Association
and tha \Work Regulations of the Management Board in all material respects. Once the Shares of the Company are listed
on NASDAC OMX Vilnlus, the Company will be required to either comply with the Corporate Governance Cede for the
Companies Listed on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius (the Corporale Governance Code) approved by the LSC and the board of
NASDAQ OMX Vilnius or explain reasons for its non-compliance {“comply or explain® principle). Albeit on the date of this
Prospectus the Company does not fully comply with the Corporate Governance Code (e.g. there are no independent
members appointed fo the Management Board or audit or remuneration committess formed in the Company), following
listing of its Shares on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius the Company will seek achiaving the compliance with it to the maximum
extent practicable. In addition, the audit committee is mandatory for entities whose shares are fraded on regulated
market. As the Company has not formed it yet, from the moment of listing of its Shares on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius until
such audit committee is formed the Company will not comply with this requirement. The Company will annually report to
its shareholders as to its compliance with the recommendations in the Corporate Governance Code and other corporate
requirements, Such report will be included in the annual report of the Company for the first time for the financial year
ending 30 June 2010,

Employees
Number of Employees

At the end of the last quarter befora this Prospectus (i.e. on 30 September 2009) the Group (including Associates and
Joint Ventures) employed 730 employees, The breakdown of employees of the Group by geographical locations,
companies and business segmenis s presented in Table 69, Table 71 and Table 70 respectively below. These
breakdowns exclude secondary employments in case an employee is employed in several companies of the Group at
the same lime. For example, the Company employed four employees as at the end of each period presented below, two
of them were employed only in the Company. At the Meeting of the Management Board of the Company of 18 November
2009 the internal structure of the Company was changed and new staff positions (such as the Chief Financial Officer, the
Depuly Chiefl Executive Officer, the Chief Accountant, the Corporate Commumication Manager and HR Manager) were
introduced. Following the Offering and subject to its neads, the Company may hire additional employees to managerial
positions from among the staff of other Group companies.

Table 69. The breakdown of employees of the Group (including Associates and Joint Ventures) by geographical
locations

655 683 708 T2

Lithuania

Latvia . 9 10 W N R
Denmark i} G 6 a
Total for the Group 670 709 725 730

Sowrce: the Company

Table T0. The breakdown of employees of the Grou

a cuminles

The Company and its

_Subsidiaries: — =

The Company 2 2 2 2
Luksiy 208 - 138 3¢ 124 18

KE.IUBAE Linas Agro Gridy centras 71 75 g2 104
AB Linas Agro 82 B4 a7
Sidabravo Z0B 79 79 82 N
Aukatadvario ZUB 63 76 75
Medeikiy 208 30 30 32
20K Kupiskio gradai ' NIA NIA 23 )
SIA Linas Agro 9 10 11
Rosenkrantz A/S 6 6 8 a

86



Other
Iun;firj?;ﬂl‘.;: Company and its 490 50_? 542 545
Assoclates:
20K Kupiskio gridai | a7 20 NIA NiA
UAB Jungtiné ekspedicija ) 9 10 10
Total for Associates 26 29 1
Joint Ventures: S
 UAB Dotnuvos projektai o 112 111 116 118
208 Dotnuvos agroservisas 24 43 39 g
UAB Kustodija 8 19 18 18
Tn:-a_l for Joint Venturas 154 - __1?3 173 175
Total for the Group 670 708 725 730

T 20K Kupitkic griidai was atcounled 25 an associale in the Group's financial statements for 2006/2007 and 2007/2008 and &5 & subsidlary in the
Group's financial staterments for 2008/2009.

Source: the Company

Table 71. The breakdown of amilﬁuu of the Gﬁ: hi business saimnnts

Farming 34_{ B :_553 an 360
Agricultural inputs 76 81 o8 110
Feedstufis 24 24 24 24
Grains and oilseeds =~ 17 17 20 21
Other 3 4 1 1
Mot attributed to any specific

ik 26 28 28 29 .

Total for the Company and its

5uh$il_:|ial“lafs 490 507 542 545
Associates 26 29 10 10
Joint Ventures 154 173 173 175
Total for the Group - 670 709 725 730

Sowrce: the Company

Several Group companies from time to time hire temporary employees. Generally such temporary employees are
employed by UAB Linas Agro Gridy centras KUB and Group's agricultural companies (in Lithuanian: Zemés Okio
bendrové or abbreviafion Z0B). The average number of such employees employed by the Group during the year
2008/2009 was 48.

Labour Union and Collective Bargaining Agreements

From among the Group companies, only Sidabravo Z0B has entered into a collective bargaining agreement with its
employees. The employess of Sidabravo Z0B belong to and are represented by a labour union. The collective
bargaining agreement made by Sidabravo 208, in addition to the regular terms and conditions of employment set forth
in the Lithuanian legislation provides only for subsidising of meal to certain categories of employees.

Shareholdings and Stock Options

On the date of this Prospectus four members of the Management Board of the Company own 21.01% of the Shares in
the Company in total. The major part of the Shares is held by Darius Zubas, the Chairman of the Management Board
and the Chiel Executive Officer (14.21%), while Viytautas Sidlauskas, Arlnas Zubas and Dainius Pilkauskas own only a
minority portion of the Shares (5.00%, 0.40% and 0.40% respectively). For more information see Section Major
Shareholders, page 88. Apart from those persons, no other members of the Management Board or employess of the
Company own any Shares in the Company.

acquire the Shares in the Company.
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There are no arrangements for involving the employees in the capital of the Company.

Major Shareholders

On the date of this Prospectus the share capital of the Company equals to LTL 120 millien and is divided into 120 million
Shares. The major shareholder of the Company is Akola ApS (the Selling Shareholder) holding around B0% of the share
capital and votes in the Company. The remaining part of the Shares is held by four individuals.

Table 72. Shareholders of the Compan

1 Akola ApS 05,085,022 7O.99% -

_ - Chalrman of the Management Board,
2 Darius Zubas 17,048,885 14.21% et Executive Officer

3 \ytautas Sidlauskas 6,003,521 5.00%  Member of the Management Board
4  ArOnas Zubas 480,281 ﬁ.4_n_% l'ulamhar qf_ 1m ﬁlanagﬂgpant_ﬂ_pam__

5  Dainius Pilkauskas 480,281 0.40% Member of the Management Board
Total 120,000,000 100.00%
Source: the Company N

The ultimate shareholders of the Company have signed the Common Control Agreement and jointly control the
Company and the remaining Group (see Section Structure of the Group, page 61). Apart from the shareholders of the
Company indicated in Table 72 above who control the Company directly and indirectly, through the Selling Sharehalder
(see Table 47, Seclion Structure of Akola ApS Group, page 60), no other person directly or indirectly has an interest in
the Company's capital or voting nghts which is notifiable under Lithuanian law.

Each fully paid-up Share of the Company grants one vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company and
there are no arangements that grant the Company’s major shareholders differant voting rights. The Company is not
aware of any arrangements the operation of which may al a subsequent date result in a change in control of the
Company.

Related Party Transactions

General Overview

Transactions within related parties fall under the following categories:

- Salel purchase of goods and services;
- Financing transactions in the ordinary course of business (e.g., loan transactions);

The Management of the Company balieves that all arrangements batween the Related Parlies are entered into at the
arm's length principle. In the financial year 2007/2008, AB Linas Agro, the biggest holding of the Group, with the help of
tax specialists from UAB Ernst & Young Baltic prepared the transfer pricing documentation for related party transactions.
The pricing principles are as follows:

- The transfer pricing between AB Linas Agro and Rosenkraniz A/S is based on profit sharing principles. The proportion
used to share profits earned is based on inputs of each parly as well as costs incurred.

- The transfer pricing between AB Linas Agro and SiA Linas Agro is based on a market price method of comparable
products and services,

- The pricing between AB Linas Agro and farming companies held by UAB Linas Agro Konsullacijos is based on a
market price method. Prices are set using relevant prices of transactions with indepandent parties.

- The pricing principles between AB Linas Agro and UAB Mestilla are based on a cost method plus agreed margin.




- The pricing principles used for consultancy services rendered to different related parties (UAB Mestilla, ZAO
UkragroNPK, Rosenkrantz A'S, UAB Linas Agro Konsultacijos and its agricultural subsidiaries, UAB Dotnuvos projektai,
UAB Kustodija) are based on a cost method plus agreed margin,

This Section provides information on the transactions of the Company and its Subsidiaries with the related parties. The
related parlies are classified inlo the following groups: the shareholders, Akola ApS group companies, Joint Ventures
and Associates. The detailed description of the relaled party transactions (sales, purchases and loans) of the Company
and its Subsidiaries covers only the transactions with parties external to the Group (e.g. the shareholders and Akola ApS
group companies.

Headings below summarise sales, purchases, accounts receivable and payable, loans granted and received with the
relaled parties during the years 2006/2007 — 2008/2008. There were no guarantees or pledges related to the payables
to or recaivables from related parties.

Sales of Goods and Services

The sale transactions with the related parties are summarised in Table 73.

Table 73. The sales to the related parties by the Company and its subsidiaries (LTL in thousand)

Akola ApS group companies 2,520 84,142 125,063
UAB Mestilla 2,412 81,833 123,653
Akola ApS ' - 108 1,765 1,099
ZAQ UkrAgro NPK - 524 311

Joint Ventures 705 4,966 2,955
UAB Dotnuvos projeklai 606 4,766 2,378
ZUB Dotnuvos agrosenisas = 00 500
UAB Kustodija 99 .7

Associates and sharel'mlr:iers - 287 346 111

Total sales to the related parties 3,512 89,454 128,129 '

Source: the Campany, the audited consolidaled Francial slatements of the Compary

The major sale transactions by the Company and its Subsidiaries with Akola ApS group companies are summarised in
the table below:

Table 74. The breakdown of major sale transactions of the Company and its Subsidiaries with Akola ApS group
companies (LTL in thousand)

AB Linas Agro UAE MBEI]"EI - BD.378 118,292
 SIA Linas Agro B UAB Mestilla - - 3,752
Rosenkrantz A/S ~ UAB Mestilla . 378 764
UAB Linas Agro Gridy centras KUB UAB Mestilla 30 151 482
Other UAB Mestilla 4 926 363
Total sales to UAB Mestilla o M2 81,833 123,653
AB Linas Agro Akola ApS . 108 1,588 685
Other Akola ApS - 1_;}1 _ -ﬂ_-_i_ :
Total sales to Akola ApS 108 1,785 1,088
Total sales to ZAO UkrAgro NPK ZAD UkrAgro NPK B : 524 311
Total sales 2,520 84,142 125,063

g rrrrcng e e

UAE Mestilla is controlled by the same shareholders as the Company together with Stateil New Energy AS. Production
of biodiesel is the main area of the activity of UAB Mestilla. AB Linas Agro and UAB Mestilla have concluded a long term
agreement for purchase of up to 132,000 tonnes of rape seeds per year by UAB Mestilla. In accordance with
agreement the price of rape seeds is set al the moment of delivery of goods and depends on the size of delivery. Eilﬁ

the last two years AB Linas Agro has sold rapeseeds and rapeseed oll to UAB Mestilla. In 2008/2009 SIA Linas AGromy -, .
:r“-- _'--I.'I'




sold rapeseeds o UAB Mestilla. The sales of Rosenkraniz A'S to UAB Mestilla represent the commissions on
intermediation services related to sales of UAB Mestilla. UAB Linas Agro Gridy centras KUB has rendered the elevators

related services to UAB Mestilla,

AB Linas Agro has received interest income from Akola ApS (the Selling Shareholder) pald for the loans provided by AB

Linas Agro.

Purchase of Goods and Services

The purchase transactions with the related parties are summarised in Table 75.

Table 75, The purchases from the related parties by the Company and its Subsidiaries (LTL in thousand)

Akola ApS group companies . 13,322 13,015
LIAB Mestila - 3.991 12,042
Akala ApS . 767 973
Agrotrade ApS’ R - 3565 WA

Joint Ventures I 13,130 16,254 13,511
UﬂB Kustodija 8.119 10,284 o161
"UAB Dotnuvos projektai - ' ) 5011 5711 4,088
ZUB Dotnuvos agroservisas s 25 262

Associates - 2,511 9,775 5,662
UAB Jungting e-'rspadicﬁfa 1,747 7,655 5,662
20K Kupigkio gridai * 764 1,795 /A
20B 2virblonial * = a12 A

Shareholders B - 5 S 47

Total purchases from the related parties 15,641 39,351 32,235

" Agrofrade ApS rﬁammﬂ. in liquickation status {related through the same shareholders I 30 June 2008);

? 20K Kupl$kio gridal was accounted &5 an Assoclate in the consolidated financlal statements of the Company far 2006/2007 and 2007/2008.

Starting from fhe pear 20082000 200 Kupiskio gridai has been consolidated as a Subsidiany,
? During 200772008 the Group sold its share in Associate 208 Zvirblonial,
Source: the Company, the audifed consolidated fnancial statements of the Compary

The major purchase transactions by the Company and its Subsidiaries with Akola ApS (the Selling Shareholder) group

companies are summarised in the table below:

Table 76. The breakdown of major purchase transactions of the Company and its Subsidiaries with Akola ApS

group companies (LTL in thousand)

ABlnasAgo  UABMestila 80w 12,042
Rosenkrantz A/S LIAB Mestilla - a0y -
UAB Linas Agro Grildy centras KUB UAB Westilla - 1 .
Tntal purchases from UAB Mestilla - 8,991 ‘12.0!_!2

" AB Linas Agro Akola ApS : 767  o73
AB Linas .ﬁ.grn .h.grotrafre Aps ! - 3,565 A
Total pt pumhnses . . 13,322 13,015

T Agrotrade ApS (Danrmark), in liquidation status (related through e same sharshalders fil 30 June 2008);
Source: the Campany

AR Linas Agro has mainly acquired rapecake and glyceral from UAB Mestilla,

Receivables and Payables (other than Loans)

The breakdown of receivables from the related parties is presented in Table 77.
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Table 77. The receivables of the Company and its Subsidiaries from the related parties (LTL in thousand)

Akola ApS group companies 2513 a0 1,881
UAB Mestilla - 2,512 - 1.813
Akola ApS and ZAO UkrAgro NPK E 90 177

Joint Ventures a0 4,692 1,477
UAB Dotruvos projektai 30 4,647 1,467
Other - 45 10

Associates 216 - -

Total receivables from the related parties 2,759 4,782 3,458

Sowrce: the Company, mﬁ'ﬂ'ﬂiﬁﬂd consaiidated firancial statements of the Company

The breakdown of non-current and current payables and advances to the related parties are summarised in the table
below:

Table 78. The breakdown of payables and advances received of the Company and its Subsidiaries toffrom the
related parties (LTL in thousand)

JdointVentures o Tam e 4483
UAB Kustodija 4,149 5,904 3,931
UAB Dotnuvos projektal 2973 7i2 334
LIAB Datnuvos agrosenisas - 12 199

Associates 369 442 145

 Akola ApS group companies 5 10.780 .

LIAB Maostilia - 10,780 -
Total current payables and advances received toffrom the related parties 7,491 17,848 4,608

Sowrce: the Company, the audited consolidated financial sfatements of the Comparny
Loan Agreements

The breakdown of non-current and current loans receivable from the related parties is presented in Table 75

Table 79. The loans receivable by the Company and its Subsidiaries from the related parties (LTL in thousand)

Mon-current loans receivable:

Akola ApS group companies 8,971 22,309 16,981
Akola ApS 8,694 16,645 16,981
LAB Mestilla - 5,663 -
Agrotrade ApS 278 - NS

Shareholders 3.557 3437 -

Associates - 723 . -

_Tul.al nm-currant_lnaqs receivable from the related partla_s _13,251 25,746 16,991
c;smlldfom: receivable:

Akola ApS group companies - : . 9,374
Akola ApS - - 3710
LAB Mestilla - - 5,663

Associates - 738 -

Total currant loans recelvable from the related parties - 738 8,374

! Agrofrade ApS [Dammark), in iguidation stalus (related through the same sharaholders 6 30 June 2008);
Saurce: the Company, the audited consoidated financial statements of the Company

The Company and its Subsidiaries have issued the following loans to Akola ApS group companies;
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Table 80. The loans issued by the Company and its Subsidiaries to Akola ApS group companies (LTL in
thousand)

AB Linas Agro ' Akola ApS 30 June 2013 3.7% Unsecured 3,709
& months 2

AB Linas Agro Akala ApS 25 November 2010 EURIBOR+1.5% Unsecurad_ 13,282

UAB Linas Agro 3 3

Konsultacijos Akola ApS 23 Octihar 2008 3.48% Unsecured 3,710

Total loans Issued to Akola ApS 20,701

LIAB Linas Agro

Konsultacijos * UAE Mestilla 1 Oﬂw 2008 3.48% Unsecured 5,663

Total 26,365

" Consisls of four Joans isswed urder the same conditions (maturiy, inferest rate, securiy).

* Part of the proceeds from the sale of the Offer Shares fn the amount of LTL 14-17 million shall be used to repay these loans. See
Section Purpose of the Offering and Use of Proceeds, page 113. The balances of the loans issued has not changed as af the end of
November 2009,

¥ As of 26 Ociober 2009 the merest rate on the loan issued by UAB Linas Agro Konsultacfos to Akola ApS has been changed fo 1 manth
EURIBOR+4.1% and the malunly has bean extended i 23 October 2070,

* Az of 26 October 2009 the loan (ssued by UAE Linas Agra Konsultaciios fo UAB Mestila has been repaid.

Source: the Company

The purpose of the loans issued by the Group companies to Akola ApS (the Selling Shareholder) is financing of equity
investments into UAB Mestilla. The purpose of the loan provided to UAB Mestilla is financing of the working capital
neads.

The breakdown of non-current and current loans borrowed with the related pariies is provided in Table 87.

Table 81. The loans received by the Company and its Subsidiaries from the related parties (LTL in thousand)

Non-current loans borrowed:

Akola ApS group comparies - - 12,518
Akola ApS - 12,516 -

Total non-current loans borrowed from the related parties - 12.5"-1_5- e i

Current loans borrowed: h

Akola ApS group companies = - 1,609
~ Akola ApS . - 1,600
Shareholders - - 656
Dainius Pilkauskas - - Gob
Total current loans borrowed from the related parties - : 2,265

Source: the Compary, the audited consolidated financial statements of tha Cormpany

The Group companies have received the following loans from the shareholders and Akola ApS group companies:

Table 82. The loans received by the Group from the shareholders and Akola ApS group companies (LTL in
thousand)

Unsecurad 1.609

Akola ApS AB Linas Agro 30 June 2010 7.5%
Dainius Pilkauskas AB Linas Agro 30 June 2010 7.5% Unsecured 656
Total — _ 2,265
Source: the Company

The purpose of the loans received by AB Linas Agro was financing of working capital.




Financial Information Concerning the Company’s Assets and
Liabilities, Financial Position and Profits and Losses

Audited Financial Statements

General Information

Complete audited financial statements audited by UAB Emst&Young Baltic for the financial years 2008/2009 and
20072008 with the description of accounting principles and notes to financial statements are provided in Appendix 1.
The audited financial statements for the year 2006/2007 (audited by UAB Rimess) can be found at the Company's
website (www.linasagro.It).

Balance Sheet

The consolidated balance sheet of the Group derived from the audited consolidated financial statements is provided in
the table below:

Table 83. The balance sheets of the G LTL in thousand

a2 24

Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment 72,704 77.732 94, 132
Investment property B 12,573 16,017 8176
Animals and livestock - 7,625 i" 188 B E.EUE_
Nnn—currmt ﬂnamar assets 42,800 52,575 49,405
Investments into Associates 1,006 505 07
Investments into Joint Ventures - 16,396 18,635 21,561
Other investments 735 604 5,919
Mon-curent recelvables 11,412 B 995 4,727
Non-current loans receivable from related parties 13251 25 746 16,991
Defermd inwme tax asset 314 1 091 1.850
Total non-current assets 136,102 157,687 160,250
Grops - 12,044 14,438 17.214
Inventories 39,096 104,427 63,918
Prepayments 19,407 16,885 17,380
 Accounts receivable 93299 130,630 119,300
Trade receivables 82,385 116,244 98,128
Recelvables from related parties 2,759 5520 12,842
" Other accounts receivable 8,155 8,866 8,339
Financial instruments held for trading B - = 967
Investments held for sale 831 : - =
Reslricted cash 2319 2,315 -
Cash and cash qu..ri‘UEIEI"I-!.S 7.973 ? 826 3.1915 ;
Total current assets o 174,969 276,522 226,978
TOTAL ASSETS i B 311,071 434200 387,228
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent ﬁﬂ,ﬂﬂﬁ 121,814 143,967
Share capital o - 86 86 41,000
Shara pramium - - - 121,911
LalTar"re&am& 10 o 115 1h
Foreign currency translation reserve B (21) (130) (297)
Retained earmings 80,911 121,848 (18,657)
Minority interest o ) 15,560 10,361 T
 Total equity - 96,546 132,175
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Grants and subsldlas 13,263 11,849 11,810 .
Non-current hnrruwms 25874 57,558 274872
ananca lease obligations 1,697 2,327 2,308
Deferred income tax liability ' 1471 802 1,871
Total non-current liabilities 42,005 72,536 43,961
Current portion of non-cwranl bamrowings B.303 9,907 40,787
Current portion of finance lease obligations 936 1270 1,138
Currmt borrowings 75,582 IIB 121 80,336
Trade payables - 64,594 63,205 39,902
Payables to relaled parlies 7491 17,849 4,608
Advances received B 03-5 436 232
Income tax payable o 4 070 7,608 4,248
Provisions 5 80 5433
Other current liabilitles 5,500 11,021 11:! 422
Total current liabilities 172,520 229498 187,196
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 434,209 387,228

31,om

Sowce: the avdited consolidated fnancial statements of the Company

Income Statement

The consolidated income siatement of the Group derived from the audited consolidated financial statements is provided

in the table below;

Table B4. The income statement of the Group (LTL in thousand)

Sales 661,371 907,006 1,113,880
Cost of sales (518,604) (831,077) (1,038,141)
Gross profit a 42,767 75,929 75,739
Operating expenses R (25,849) (26,117) (35,025)
Other operating income 10,723 4519 5,253
Other operafing expenses {1,172} (2,130) (1.438)
Operating profit 26,460 52,201 44,531
Income from financing activities 828 2,598 3 I‘.IEEE .
Expenses from financing activities (7,202) (13.614) (11.599)
Galn from disposal of investments into Associates . 785 s
Share of profit of Associates 106 450 13
Share of profit of Joint Ventures 2,021 7,568 3,965
Profit before tax 22,222 49,986 40,348
Income tax N (4,199) (8.717) (B.57T)
Net profit 18,023 41,269 31,771
Attributable to: o
The equity holders of the parent B 16,737 38,394 28,114
Mincrity interest o 1286 2,875 3,657
; = 18,023 41,260 31,771
Basic and diluted eamnings per share (LTL) 0.41 0.94 0.68

mﬂj}hﬂ. audited consaiidated financial stalements of the Company

Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of changes in equity of the Group derived from the audited consolidated financial statements is provided in

the table below:
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Table 85. The statement of changes in equity of the Group as for the years ended 30 June (LTL in thousand)

Balance as of 30
June 2006 (as stated 86 - 10 - 30,470 30,566 12,228 42,795

_earlier)
Effect of business
combinations involving
enlities undar
comman contral -
Balance as of 30

June 2006 (restated) BG - 10 - 60,682 60,778 18,019 78,797
Change In foreign

currancy transtation - & - {21) % (21) ” (21)
“Met profit for the year
{restated)

Total income and
Ewremf far the year - - - {21} 16,737 16,716 1,288 18,002
Drspoﬁl 1 minority - - = - 14 14 16 an

Dispasal of preer {3?:;5_ .

Discounting efiect on
non-interest bearing = 2 = - ¥ - G485 G48

loan from minarity
Minarity interasl
arising on acquisition % . - 5 = =

of Subsidiaries 127 127
(restated)

Acquisilion of minorily i '_ ) )
interest 3,478 3478 (4,163) (685)

Balance as of 30
i) 86 . 10 (21) 80,911 80,986 15560 96,546

Change in foraign
currency translation . - = (108G} - (108} - {109)
reserve (restaled)
" Met pmﬁlfcr the year B B R }

(restated) 38,304 38,394 2,875 41.269
Total income and
(expense) for the year - - - (109} 38,304 38,285 2875 41,160
(restated)

Dividends declared by
Rosenkraniz A/S - - - = (1.,084) (1,084) (723) {1,807)
(restated)

Acquisition of minarlty T ) i .
interest {restated) 3627 3,627 (7,351) (3,724

" Balance as of 30 -
June 2008 (restated) a6 - 10 (130) 121,848 121,814 10,361 132,175

Change in foreign
currancy franslation - - & (167) - {167) 5 {162)
reserve

Met profit for the year - - . - 28,114 28,114 3.657 3177

Im,:ﬂ: - = : : (167) 28114  27.047 3862 31,600

ssue of share capilal 40914 121,911 = - (157,202) 5,623 ; 5,623
Payment for
Rosenkrantz A5 - - -
shares _
Dividends declarad by = - =

Rosenkrantz AIS {1,740} (1,740}  {1,158) (2,898)
Minority interest
arising on acquisition - - - - - - 546 546
of Subsidiaries
Acquisition of minority

interest - - - w (677 fﬁT?] {1.307) (1.984)
Balance as of 30

walanes o 41,000 121,911 10 (207) (18657) 143967 12,104 156,071
Source: the audiled consoldated financial siaiements of the Company = %\i 3 o oy
'\”

]'ET'\T'-““" '__-
REI A5

SKVRE

- - - - 30,212 30,212 8,780 36,002

- - - - 16,737 16,737 1,286 18,023

(9,000} {9,000} - (%,000)




Cash Flow Statement

The consolidated cash flow statement of the Group derived from the audited consolidated financial statements is
provided in the table below:

Table B6. The cash flow statement of the Group (LTL in thousand)

Cash flows from (to) operating activities

Net profit 18.023 41,269 31771
Hjﬁsimen!s for non-cash Hems:
Depreciation and amortisation —— 6,102 5.976 7.839
Subsidies amortisation  (2.789) (1,489) (1,425)
Share of profit of Associates and Joint Ventures (2,127) (8,016) (4,078)
{Gam} on disposal of property, planl and aqulpmanl (482) 1_1;_1;:?} {483}"
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and investment property B - 1,650 1,425
Impairment of investimeant _ - e 27
Megative goodwill recognised as income o . i &)
Change in forsign currency translation reserve _ (21) (108} (162}
(Gain) from disposal of investments (9,131) {1,001) (2,142)
Change in allowance for recelvables and prepayments ' 468 2,108 3,485
Inventories write down to net realisable value . 2,555 868
Change in accrued expenses - 343 1,752 2,180
Change in fair value of hlu{ﬂglr.'.al assets (4,065) (1,829) 345
Change in deferred income tax (3986) {1,142) 241
Current income tax expense 4595 9,859 8,336
{Income) from change in valua nf ﬁnanclai instruments - ] - {967
Provisions for onerous contracts - 80 5,433
Dividend Unmme} (303) (279) -
Interest (income) (828)  (2.598)  (3.338)
Interest expenses 7,202 13,614 1 .E;BE!
- 16,581 62,272 60,943
Changes in working capital:

" (Increase) decrease in biological assets 1,185 210 (2.070)
Decrease (increase) in inventories (27.031)  (67.418) 39,904
(increase) decrease in prepayments (4.850) BOE {489)
Decrease (increase) in trade and-uﬂ'ber accounts receivable (17,830} (32.434) 14,218
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash R 4 2,315
(Decrease) increase in trade and other accounts payable 29,664 6630 (42.455)
Income tax {paudj {1 GHE) (6,.320) {7.851)
Net cash flows from (to) operating activities (3.970)  (36,450) 64,515
Cash flows from (to) investing activities:

L%u:ﬂiﬂﬁ?ﬁfiﬁtanglbla assels, property, plant and equipment and investment (8.873) (18.620) (20,645)
;Lc;c:trend:nm :::; of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and g55 1.413 1,788
Acquisition of subsidiaries (less recelved cash balance in the Group) 253 - {8,895)
DuspuéaT of subsidiaries {less disposed cash balance in the Group) 12818 - :‘:ED}
{Acquisition) of mincrity interest and other investments (B8S5) (3,724)  (7.529)
" Proceeds from sales of other H'r.raslmenls 150 2,250 197
Loans (granted) (12.970) (11,655 (2,008)
Repa_yme_m_o? grantad lnans 3,043 356 9,606
Interest received - 778 1,402

Dividends recaived GEG 4,100




Net cash flows l’ﬂ{m] from investing activities (3,845) {24,478) (25,828)

" Cash flows from (to) financing activities:

Issue of share capital = g 5,623
Proceeds from loans 134569 656,456 648,766
" (Repayment) of loans (123,663)  (578,620)  (676,555)
Financial lease (payments) (1,477) (1,625) {1,562)
Interest (paid) (6.423)  (13.614)  (11599)
' Dividends (paid) - (1807)  (2,898)
Net cash flows from (to) financial activities 3,006 60,781  (38,225)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (4,800) (147) 364
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,782 7873 7,826
" Cash and &é'sh"aquivalem; at the end of tha year . 7.873 7,826 8,190

Supplemental information of cash flows:

MNon-cash investing activity:
Property, plant and equipment acquisitions financed by finance lease 554 2.589 1,411
Property, plant and equipment acquisitions financed by grants and subsidies 894 795 1,442

Sowrce: the autiled consolidgled financial stelements of ihe Company
Important Accounting Policies

Detailed description of accounting policles is included into the consclidated financial statements provided in Appendix 1.

Summary of Independent Auditors’ Reports

The auditors of the Company have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS for
the financial years ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2009, Having done so, the auditors have issued a qualified report
stating that:

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We did not observe the count of the physical inventories as of 30 June 2007 in & number of the Group locations
comprising the inventories balance of Litas 7,000 thousand, since that date was prior to the time we were initially
engaged as auditors for the Group. Wa were unable to salisfy owrselves as to invenfory guantifies by other audit
procedures. Thersfore, we are unable lo quantify the effect of this inventory balance as of 30 June 2007 on the
consofidated staterments of income and cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2008.

Qualified Opinion

in our opinion, except for the effects of such adfusiments, if any, as might have been determined lo be necessary had
we been able to observe the inventory count as described above, the accompanying consolidafed financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group as of 30 June 2009 and 2008, and their financial
performance and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Inlernalivnal Financial Reporting
Standards, as adopted by the European Union.

& complete independent auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements of the Group Is provided in Appendix
1




Dividends and Dividend Policy

The Offer Shares will be eligible for dividends, if any, declared in respect of the financial year commencing on 1 July
2009, and for subsequent periods. Once the share capital increase relating o the issue of the New Shares has been
registerad with the Register of Legal Persons, the New Shares will rank pari passu with the outstanding Shares for any
dividends.

The Company has not pald dividends in the years 2006/2007, 2007/2008 and 2008/2009. However it has already
adopted the policy to distribute as dividends up to 20% of the net profit of the reporting financial year reduced by (i}
retained loss of the previous financial years {if any) and (ii} mandatory allocation to reserves. Motably, such dividend
policy should be treated as intention of the current shareholders and may be overruled by a decision of the annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.

Legal and Arbitration Proceedings

Governmental, Legal and Arbitration Proceedings Having Significant Effect

Fram time to time the Group companies are involved in various governmental, legal and arbitration proceedings arising
out of ordinary course of business of the Group. However,

on the date of this Prospectus the Group companies are not involved or during the last 12 months preceding the date of
this Prospectus have not been involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings thal has had or may have
significant effects on the financial position or profitability of the Group. Nor is the Company aware of any circumslances
that could reasonably be expected to lead to such proceedings in ihe foreseeable future.

Other Proceedings not Having Significant Effect

Below is the information on several disputes which are or have been more important to the Group's business although
none of them have had or are likely to have significant effects on the Group's financial standing.

Current proceedings

Claim against SIA East Energy. AB Linas Agro lodged a claim against SIA East Energy to the Vilnius International
Commercial Court of Arbitration in the amount of LTL 745,671, The defendant failed lo deliver the goods that were
ordered by AB Linas Agro. No oral hearing has been conducted by the arbitral tribunal yel. Concurrently, AB Linas Agro
filed & claim to a Latvian court requiring to institute bankruptey proceedings to the debtor. As the Company does not
expect to recover the entire amount of the debl, an allowance of approximately 70% of the debl have been made in the
annual consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year 2008/2009. The Management have grounds to
believe that the remaining portion of the debt should be recovered.

Dispute with SIA Pirmais Pilofs, SIA Pirmais Filots kept the goods with the value of approx. EUR 32,235 of AB Linas
Agro in custody but refused to return them back, AB Linas Agro filed a request to the Riga Economic Paolice Department
to starl investigation which on the date of this Prospectus is still in progress.

Claim against 208 Daugédiskiai, AB Linas Agro filed a claim against ZUB Daugéliskiai as the defendant unilateraily
refused to perform the agreement under which it undertook to purchase 186.5 tonne for LTL 850/ tonne (in tofal LTL
158,525, approx. EUR 45,910), On the date of this Prospectus the claim is still trialled at court.

Dispute with Siaulisi County Governor. Sidabrave Z0B is involved as a plaintiff in an ongoing legal dispute with the
Administration of Slauliai County Governor regarding the permission to acquire the state-owned agricultural land plot of
213.36 ha. In February 2008 Sidabravo ZUB filed a request to acquire this plot but the Administration rejected the
request claiming that the limitations set in the Law on Acquisition of Agricultural Land of the Republic of Lithuania would
be violated (according to this law, one person may not acquire more than 300 ha of agricultural land from the slale and
more than 500 ha of agricultural land from the state and other persons in total). Albeit the aggregate area of the
agricultural land acquired by Sidabrave ZUB from the state and owned at the given moment plus the area of the land
plot applied for does not exceed the 300 ha threshold, the Administration claims that historical acquisitions (i.e, the
agricultural land which Sidabrave ZUB acquired from the state but have already sold) should be summed up as well*
Sidabravo 208 appealed this decision and the case is currently at the preparatory stage in Radvilidkis Local Court, As“
the total value of the land plot may exceed LTL 100,000, the case can be assigned to Siaullal Reglonal Court. -
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Past proceedings

Dispute with Mr. Preben Leth Madsen. UAB Dotnuvos projekiai (together with UAB Mitnija) was participating as a
defendant in the civil case initiated by Mr. Preben Leth Madsen who claimed the compensation of LTL 44,344 (approx.
EUR 12,843) of pecuniary damage and LTL 100,000 (approx. EUR 28,962) of non-pecuniary damage caused by the
injury in a construction site. The part of claim relating to the compensation of pecuniary damage was dismissed whereas
the part of claim relating to the compensation of non-pecuniary damage was left unresolved, as the plaintiff failed to
remove the deficiencies of the claim indicated by the court.

Criminal proceedings related to tax evasion and maney laundering. In 2008 SIA Linas Agro was involved in criminal
proceadings related to tax evasion and money laundering which was instituted by the Financial Police of the Republic of
Latvia, The proceadings were initiated due to the fact that when delivering wheat to SIA Linas Agro, SIA Richi submitted
a shipping note which indicated an incorrect carrier of delivered wheat. This led to a suspicion that no whealt had been
actually delivered, During the criminal proceedings SIA Linas Agro's right to recover the overpaid value added tax was
suspended. On the date of this Prospectus the proceedings have been terminated in favour of SIA Linas Agro and the
entire value added tax amount was recoverad,

Latest Financial and Operational Developments

Since the end of the last period for which the audited consolidated financial information exists (30 June 2008, the main
financial and operational development of the Group has been as follows:

- In July 2009 AB Linas Agro redeemed bonds issued together with interest accrued. The bonds emission with the
total amount of LTL 15 million was issued in July 2007,

As of 3 July 2009 AB Linas Agro has prolonged the credit line agreement with AB SEB bank till 20 June 2010, Also
the total credit line limit was increased from the equivalent LTL 68.0 million to LTL 80.0 million LTL (LTL 45.0 million
and EUR 10.1 million).

- As of 30 June 2009 AB Linas Agro had several bank guarantee contracts signed in favour of Mational Paying
Agency for the total amount of LTL 4.1 milion. Mo restrictions on the assets of AB Linas Agro are imposed
according to these agreements. As of 3 August 20089 AB Linas Agro has cancelled the bank guarantee agreement
to Mational Paying Agency, value of which was LTL 4.0 million,

- On 5 October 2009 AB Linas Agro received dividends in the amount of EUR 850 thousand from Rosenkrantz A/S.
On 23 October 2009 the General Mesting of Members of Sidabravo Z0B decided to mortgage additional propery
(fixed assets, movable assels and property rights) in the amount up to LTL 1 million in order to secure obligations of
the company under the Credit Agreement Mo 2800-071V with AB DnB NORD bankas, daled 26 October 2007,

- As of 27 October 2009 UAB Linas Agro Konsultacijos has issued the loan of LTL 5.7 million (EUR 1.64 million) to
the Company with the purpose lo finance its operating expenses, which include salaries of the staff, audit,
consulting and some other expenses. The interest rate is 1 month EURIBOR + 4.1%. The loan has been issuaed by
the lender from proceeds of another loan of EUR 1.88 million received from AB DNB NORD Bankas. The Company
plans to repay the loan from fulure dividends.

- On 29 October 2008 the Company repaid its loans in the amount of approx. EUR 845 thousand to AB Linas Agro.

- On 30 October 2009, the sole shareholder of AB Linas Agro (AB Linas Agro Group) decided to distribute bonuses
to the Members of the Management Board of AB Linas Agro in the amount of LTL 638 thousand,

- |n Movember 2009 AB Linas Agro released a guarantee to Alfred C. Toepfer International GmbH for Rosenkrantz
ASS with the total balance of EUR 1.5 million.

- On 6 November 2009 the General Meetings of the Members of Landvesta 4, Landvesta 5 and Landvesia & adopted
decisions to cover losses of the respective companies (in total amounting to approx. LTL 653 thousand) by
additional contributions of their membars.

- On 16 November 2009 the increase of the share capital of the Company from LTL 41 million up to LTL 120 million
was registered with the Register of Legal Entities. The share capital was increased from the Company's own funds
and the shares were allocated to all the Company's shareholders proportionally to the number of shares held by
therm in the Company.

- Dn 18 November 2009 the organizational structure of the Company was changed and new positions {such as the
Chief Financial Officer, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer, the Corporate Communication Manager, the Human
Resources Manager, the Chief Accountant, efc.) were introduced. For details see Section Administrative /&Em':
Management Bodies and Senior Management page 78, / ﬂ‘w“" E
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- On 20 November 2009 the general meeting of the shareholders made a decision to increase the share capital of
the Company from LTL 120 million up to LTL 158,940,398 by issuing 38,940,398 shares and grating the right to
the subscribe all these naw shares to the Selling Shareholder. For details see Section Share Capilal page 100,

- On 20 November 2008 UAB Linas Agro Gridy Centras KUB has agreed on purchase of the technological
equipment for processing and storage of grain and its installation services from UAB Dolnuvos projektai for the
price of EUR 649 thousand.

- On 23 November 2009 AB Linas Agro issued an unsecured loan of LTL 800 thousand to Aukstadvario Z0B with
the purpose to finance the working capital. The loan matures on 30 November 2010 and has the interest rate of
10.5%.

- On 23 November 2009 AB Linas Agro increased the loan issued to Zibartoniy ZUB under the Loan Agreement No
0314-L-ZIB-FSM, dated 2 February 2009, to LTL 1 million.

- As of 28 December 2009 Akola ApS has prolonged the loan agreement with AB Linas Agro till 30 June 20110.

In all other respects, the business of the Group was carried out in the ordinary course except for the changes described
in Sections Operafing and Financial Review, page 66, and Trend Information, page 78.

Additional Information

Share Capital

General Overview

According to the Arlicles of Association of the Company currently in force, the registered share capital of the Company
equals LTL 120 million and is divided into 120 million ordinary registered Shares with the par value of LTL 1 each. All
issued Shares are fully paid up. The Law on Companies equates the authorised capital with the issued capital (i.e, the
entire share (authorised) capital indicated in the Aricles of Association must be issued and subscribed for) therefore
thera is no authorised but unissued capital in the Company.

On 20 MNovember 2009 the Extracrdinary General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company decided to increase the
share capital of the Company up to LTL 158,940,398 by issuing 38,940,398 Shares (i.e. New Shares) at a minimum
subscription price equal to the bottom line of Offer Price Range, to waive the shareholders’ pre-emptive right to
subscribe for such Mew Shares and grant the right to subscribe for the entire New Share issue o the Selling
Shareholder as well as to amend the Articles of Association of the Company accordingly. The exact subscription price of
the New Shares will be set by the Management Board of the Company and will be equal to the Offer Price per each New
Share. The New Shares will be pald from the sales proceeds of the Offer Shares by the Selling Shareholder, provided
that the sale of the Offer Shares is implemented under the terms and conditions of this Prospectus. All existing Offer
Shares and, once the increase of the share capital relating to the issue of the New Shares is registered with the Register
of Legal Parsons, the New Shares will rank par passu in all respects with all the remaining existing Shares.

The Company does not have any other classes of shares than ordinary registered Shares and doas not contemplate the
issuance of such shares. Accordingly, there are no shares in the Company nol representing the capital. Mo Shares of the
Company are held by itself or its Subsidiaries, Mo convertible securities, exchangeable securities or securities with
warrants are oulstanding; likewise, there are no outstanding acquisition rights or undertakings to increase the share
capital, except as stated in the preceding paragraph.

Apart from the option with respect to the shares in Rosenkrantz A/S as agreed between AB Linas Agro and Ballic Agro
Group A/S under the Shareholders Agreement of 28 October 2004 and the obligation to purchase portion of the shares
in LUAB Dotnuvos projektai (see Section Material Conltracts, page 108), no other pul or call options are outstanding with
respect to any Group company.

History of Share Capital

Since the registration of the Company with the Register of Legal Persons on 27 November 1995, the amount of I.'I”ue’_/,:_;;:.l—f__ -~
share capilal has changed as shown in Table 87 below. 3 NERT]
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Table 87. Chang

Incorporation - 43,069 2 - 86,138 43,069 ?;gl";ﬂmbal
Increase . — 12 September
(ewisstig)  Dow00e 21,934 2 2 150,000 75,000 bk

- 2 (for

2,??9‘.5?3
Increase shares ),
(new issue) 40,850,000 20425000 2 :” gﬂugg}!:mr 41,000,000 20,500,000 1 October 2008

B shétl'aslz} —

Reduction of
nominal value - 20,500,000 1 - 41000000 41000000  Jos2MUEY
of shares
Increase (New 79 0op.g0o 79,000,000 1 1 120,000,000 120,000,000 o OVEmDer
issug)’ 2009

V2,778,503 newly lssued shares of the Company ware acquired by Akola ApS and were paid in cash. =—

* St of 17,645,496 nowly [ssued shares of the Company 10,587,208 shares were acquired by Darlus Zubas, 5,999,480 shares were soquired Ly
Vitautas Sidlauskas, 528,365 shares were acquired by Dainius Pitksuskas and 528, 365 shares were acquired by Ardnas Zubas. Al these shares
were paid up by the insking contribution by contnbuting fo the share capital of the Company in tofel 3,500 ordinary registered shares in AB Linas
Agra with the par value of LTL 2 housand sach, with constituted 100% of aif shares in AB Linas Agro. The fofal value of the comribution wes
equal fo LTL 157,202 000. Following the requirements of law, prior fo the contribution the shares in AB Linas Agro have bean evaivated by an

independent assel poraizer..
* _ the increase of capital was financed by internal funds of the Company

Sowce: the Company

All historic changes in the share capital of the Company have been implemented following the respective decisions of
the General Meating of Shareholders having an exclusive competence to decide on such matlers.

The Company'’s Articles of Association

The Arlicles of Association of the Company in general conform to the requirements of Lithuanian law. In case of any
deviation of the Articles of Association of the Company from mandatory provisions of the Law on Companies currently in
effect, the provisions set forth in the Law on Companies will prevail. The latest version of the Articles of Association was
registered with the Register of Legal Persons on 16 November 2008,

General Structure
The Articles of Association of the Company consist of the following parts:

General Provisions,

Purpose and Object of the Company’s Activities. Principles of the Company’s Corporale Governance,
Share Capital of the Company, Number of Shares and Their Nominal Value;

Rights Conferred on Shareholders;

Bodies of the Company;

General Meeting of Shareholders;

Management Board;

Chief Executive Officer of the Company;

Procuracy:

10, Procedure of Announcement of the Company's Notices;

11. Procedure of Providing Documents and Information to the Company's Shareholders;
12. Procedure of Disclosing Information;

13. Branches and Representalive Offices of the Company;

14, Articles of Association of the Company and the Procedure of Amending Thereof.

ENO O s wN
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Company's Objects and Purposes

According to the Articles of Association the Company activities comprise consultation and management business. The
Company may engage in any activities permitted by Lithuanian law as well as change, suspend or lerminate any
activities pursued by the Company,

The purposes of the Company’s activities are the satisfaction of the interests of all Company's shareholders by ensuring
the constant growth of the shareholders’ equity and the gain of profit. The corporate governance of the Company must
pay proper regard to the rights of other interest holders (employees, creditors, suppliers, etc.). According to the Aricles
of Association the Company will prepare and publicly disclose the development strategy of the Company and clearly
indicate how it plans to act in the interests of the Company's shareholders and to increase the shareholders’ equity.

Financial Year of the Company

The financial year of the Company runs from 1 July to 30 June.

Rights of Shareholders

Pursuant to the Articles of Association each shareholder of the Company has the following proprietary rights:

1. toreceive a part of the Company's profit (dividend);

o receive the Company’s funds when the share capital of the Company is reduced in order to pay out the
Company's funds to its shareholders;

3. o receive shares gratis in the event the share capital is increased from the Company's own funds, except cases
indicated in the Law on Companies,

4. to have the preemptive right over each new issue of the Company's shares or convertible bonds, excepl when
pursuant to the procedure laid down in the Law on Companies the General Meeting of Shareholders has made a
decision to withdraw said right to all shareholders;

5. to lend to the Company under the procedure prescribed by Lithuanian law; however, when borrowing from its
shareholders the Company may not pledge or morigage its assets to such shareholders. When the Company
borrows from a shareholder, the interest may not be higher than the average interest rate offered by commercial
banks of the locality where the lender has his place of residence or business, which was in effect on the day of
conclusion of a loan agreament;

6. torecelve a part of the residual assets of the Company in liguidation;

7. other proprietary rights.

According to the Law on Companies, the proprietary rights listed in paragraphs 1-4 above are granted to the persons
who were shargholders of the Company al the end of the tenth business day following the date of the General Meeting
of Shareholders that made a respective decision,

Each shareholder of the Company has the following non-proprietary rights:

1. toattend the General Mestings of Shareholders;
to provide questions prior to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the issues of the agenda of the General Meefing of
Shareholders;

3. fovote st the General Meelings of Shareholders in accordance with the rights attached to the shares;

to receive information about the Company following the procedure prescribed by the Law on Companies;

5. to appeal lo court for the compensation of damages caused by the Management Board members or the Chiel Executive
Officer of the Company by non-performance or improper pedormance of their duties prescribed by the laws of the
Republic of Lithuania and the Articles of Association, as well as in other cases provided by the [aws;

6. other non-proprietary rights,

5

Only fully paid-up shares grant votes at the General Meeting of Shareholders. The right to vote at the General Meeting of
Shareholders may be restricted or prohibited only in cases prescribad by Lithuanian law as well as when the litle o the
shares is disputed.

The Aricles of Association of the Company provides neither for any specific provisions on procedures for changing;fﬁl_-;:
shareholder rights nor for specific provisions detaying, deferring or preventing a change of control in the Company. /\_};’ﬁ

=
Al i

102



According to the Articles of Association, the Company must disclose the persons holding shares or shareholding in the
Company following the requirements and the procedure prescribed by applicable laws (namely, the Law on Securities).

Bodies of the Company
Structure

According to the Articles of Association, the bodies of the Company consist of.

1. the General Meeting of Shareholders;
2.  management bodies:
- the Management Board; and
- the Chief Executive Officer (the General Manager of the Company).

Mo Supervisory Council is formed in the Company which Is in full compliance with the Law on Companies.

General Meeting of Shareholders
General

According to the Law on Companies and the Articles of Association, the shareholders exercise their power to decide on
matters related to the Company at the General Meelings of Shareholders. There are two types of shareholders’
meetings: ordinary and extraordinary, The Law on Companies requires that an annual ordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders is held within four months from the end of each financial year of the Company. The Law on Companies
indicates that an exiraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders must be convened if;

1. the Company's equity capital falls below 1/2 of the share capital and this matter has nol been discussed at an
ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders;

2. the number of the Management Board members falls below the 2/3 of the total number specified in the Articles of
Association or below the minimum number indicated in the Law on Companies;

3. the audit firm terminates the contract with the Company or is unable to audit annual financial statements of the
Company due o other reasans,

4, the convocation of the General Meeting of Shareholders is requested by the shareholders who hawve the right to
initiate such convocation or by the Management Board, or this is required under the provisions of Lithuanian law or
the Articles of Association.

Competence

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the General Meeting of Shareholders (either ordinary or extraordinary) has an
exclusive competence to:

amend the Articles of Association of the Company,

elect the members of the Management Board and to remove the Management Board or its members;

elect and remove the firm of auditors and set the conditions for auditor remuneration;

determine the class, number, nominal value and minimum issue price of the shares issued by the Company;

convert the shares of one class into shares of another class and approve the share conversion procedure;

approve the annual financial statements of the Company;

make a decision on profitloss distribution;

make a decision on the formation, use, reduction and liquidation of reserves;

make a decision to issue convertible bonds;

0. to withdraw for all shareholders of the Company the pre-emptive right to acquire the shares or convertible bonds of
a specific issue of the Company,

11. increase the share capital;

12. reduce the share capital save for the exceptions indicated in the Law on Companies;

13. make a decision to purchase own shares by the Company;

14, make a decision on the reorganisation or spin-off of the Company and approve the terms of reorganisation or spin-

off;
15, make a decision to change the legal form of the Company,;
16. make a decision to restructure the Company,
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17. make a decision fo liquidate the Company or cancel the liquidation save for the exceptions indicated in the Law on
Companies,;

18. elect and remaove the liquidator of the Company save for the exceptions indicated in the Law on Companies;

19. adopt other decisions prescribed by Lithuanian faw.

Furlher, pursuant to the Articles of Association the annual {ordinary) General Meeting of Shareholders has the advisory
vote in approving the following issues (if the Management Board of the Company objects to that, such voting is not
rmandatory):

1. the remuneration policy of the Company or any material amendment thereto and the reports on the implementation
of such policy;

2. the schemes relating to granting shares, share oplions, other rights to acquire shares or remuneration linked to the
changes of the share prices for the Managemen! Board members or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company as
well as any amendments thereto. The approval should be issued to a scheme in principal and the shareholders
should not decide on benefits derived from that scheme by separate managemeant members;

3, in addition to the schemes referred to in paragraph 2 above:

5 the remuneration to the Management Board members and the Chief Executive Officer based on the share
schemes, including the share options;

2 the maximum number of shares and the main conditions for granfing the shares;

- the time perlod during which the share options may be exercised,

- further changes of the exercise price of share options if permitted by applicable laws;

= any other long-term incentive schemes to the Management Board members or the Chiel Execulive Officer of
the Company thal are not offered for other employees of the Company.

On the date of this document, the Articles of Association do not contain any provisions relating to the procedure of
convening the General Meetings of Shareholders ofher than reference that they are the same as specified in the Law on
Companies and that such procedures should confer on the Company’s shareholders equal rights to participate at the
General Meeting of Shareholders. Before the General Meeting of Shareholders each shareholder is entitled o ask
questions to the managemen! bodies of the Company relating to the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholdars
and receive answers o such questions,

Convening the General Meeting of Shareholders

The right of initiative to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders is vested in the Management Board and one or
several shareholders holding shares that carry at least 1/10 of all votes. As a rule, the General Meetings of Shareholders
are convened by a decision of the Management Board.

In accordance with the Law on Companies, a notification announcing the General Meeting of Shareholders of the
Company, which shares are admitted to trading on the regulated markel, must be published no later than 21 days prior
to the meeting in the Republic of Lithuania, all member states of the European Union and European Economic Area in
accordance with the procedure indicated in the Law on Securities. From the date on which Shares are admilled to
trading the statement must also be sent, among others, to the LSC and NASDAQ OMX Vilnius. The statement must
contain, among other things, the agenda, date, time and place of the mesting, record date of the meeting, specification
of initiators of the meeting, indication that the shareholders are entitled to propose supplements to the agenda of the
meeting or new draft decisions to the issues of the agenda, well as nternel site of the Company where the
information refating to the meeting will be placed,

Additional matters to be included into the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders may be proposed by the
Management Board and one or several shareholders holding shares that carry at least 1/20 of all votes no later than 14
days prior to the meeting. In addition, they may propose new draft decisions on the matters in the agenda prior to and
during the General Mesting of Shareholders.

From the date on which Shares are admitted to trading the Company must place all documents held by it and relating to
the General Meeting of Shareholders, including, among others, the public statement, the overall number of shares and
number of shares carrying votes, draft decisions, general voting ballot and form of a shareholder's authorisation, on the
internet site of the Company during the period starting from 21 days prior to the meeting and up to the dale of the
meeting. o,

——

In general, shareholders can only take action at General Meetings of Shareholders on matters listed on the agenda, /-~
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Attendance and voting at the General Meeting of Shareholders

Each share of the Company entitles its holder to one vole at the General Meeling of Shareholders. There is no
requirement that a shareholder must have a minimum number of shares in order to attend or to be represented al the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

In order to participate in any General Meeting of Shareholders, a holder of shares is required to have shares registered
in its name in a securities account no later than at the end of a record date which iz the fifth business day before the
General Meeting of Shareholders. In general, all shareholders who have properly registered and fully paid for their
shares may parlicipate in General Meslings of Shareholders. Shareholders may participate in general meelings elther in
person or by proxy, Shareholders may vote in person, by proxy, in writing by filling in a voting ballot or by means of
electronic communication (provided the Company provides the latter possibility to its shareholders). Alternatively, a
shareholder may transfer voting rights carried by shares held by the shareholder to another person under a voting right
transfer agreement. Such agreement takes effect from the disclosure to the Company of such agreement, number of
votes transferred, the period of transfer, the ground of having the voting right and identity of the shareholder transferring
and the person acquiring the voting right, all in accordance with the Lithuanian laws and seltled practice of the
Company, if such develops. On the date of this document, the Articles of Association do not contain any provisions
restricting or limiting the shareholder’s right lo grant proxies to or to sign voting right transfer agreements with any other
person.

& person who participates in the General Meeting of Shareholders and has the right to vote must present a personal
idantification document and sign in a registration list. A person, who is nol a shareholder, must, in addition, present a
document evidencing the right to vole at the General Meeting of Shareholders. The requirement to present a personal
identification document is not applied in cases the shareholder votes by filling in a general voting ballot or by means aof
electronic communication,

With respect to votes in writing, the Company must send shareholders or deliver to them in person a voting ballot upon
their written request no later than 10 days prior to the meeting. The completed ballot must be returned to the Company
prior to the General Meeting of Shareholders, The ballot must be signed by the shareholder and, in the case the ballol is
signed by a person not being a shareholder, accompanied by the document proving the right to represent the
shareholder. IT a voling ballot is completed in the way that it is impossible to determine the will of the shareholder on any
specific matter, it is deemed that the shareholder did not vole on such matter. When a shareholder nominales a proxy lo
pariicipate and vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders, a proxy must vote in accordance with the instructions of the
nominating shareholder. An authorisation issued by a shareholder-individual must be approved by a notary. The same
praxy may be appointed by several shareholders. From the date on which the Shares are admitied to trading the
Company must ensure the possibility for its shareholders to nominate proxies to represent them at the General Meeting
of Shareholders and notify the Company about the same by means of electronic communication provided the security of
the information sent by such means Is ensured and there is a possibility to determinate the personality of a shareholder.
In the latter case an authorization must be in writing but need not to be approved by a notary.

Where a shareholder holds shares of the Company, the shares of which are traded on the regulated market, acquired in
the name of such shareholder but for the interests of other persons, before voting at the General Meeting of
Shareholders such shareholder must disclose the ultimate beneficiary of the shares, number of shares held by such
beneficiary and voting instructions received from himfher/it to the Company.

Quorum

In accordance with the Law on Companies, in order to meet the guorum requirement for any General Meeting of
Shareholders the shareholders together holding shares carrying more than 1/2 of all votes must be present in person, or
viote in writing, by proxy or by means of electronic communication. If a quorum is not achieved, the meeting is adjoumed.
When an adjourned meeting is resumed, no quorum requirement applies. However, only matters on the agenda of the
adjourned meeting may be voted upon.

A deciston is considered adopted at the General Meeting of Shareholders if more votes in favour of it are received than
votes against it, save for the cases where a qualified majority is required.
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Qualified majority votes

In accordance with the Law on Companies a two-third majority of all voles carried by shares held by shareholders
participating in the General Meeting of Shareholders is required for passing resolutions on matters such as amendments
of the Articles of Association (including, among other things, increasing or reducing the share capital), determining the
class, number, nominal value and minimum issue price of the shares issued by the Company, distribution of profit (loss),
authorizing the issuance of convertible bonds, reorganization, restructuring, changing legal form or liquidation of the
Company, etc. A three-fourth majority of all votes carried by shares held by the shareholders participating in the General
Meeting of Shareholders and having the right to vote over the matter is required for withdrawing the preferential
subscriplion rights of all shareholders to acquire new shares or converlible bonds. A shareholder is not entitied to vole at
the General Mesting of Shareholders on this matter if the agenda for the meeting specifies that the right to acquire such
securities is granted to this shareholder or persons associated with the shareholder up to a certain level of association.

Management Board
General

The Management Board is a collective management body responsible for the strategic management of the Company,
Pursuant to the Aricles of Association, the Management Board consists of seven members appointed for the tenure of
four years. Only individuals may be appointed to be Management Board members. Members of the Management Board
are appointed and dismissed by the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with the following procedure:

1. all reasonably necessary information about the candidates to the Management Board members, including, among
other things, names, sumames, education, gualification, work experience, possible conflicts of interests and
circumstances that could have influence on their independency, must be disclosed to the shareholders prior to the
General Meeting of Shareholders in order for the shareholders to make an informed decision,

2. at the General Meeting of Shareholders each shareholder has the number of votes equal to the number of voles
granted by the shares held by such shareholder multiplied by the number of the Management Board members. A
shareholder may cast votes for one or several candidates. Persons having received majority of voles are elected as
the Management Board members;

3. if the number of candidates who received the equal number of votes exceeds the free places at the Management
Board, a repeated voting is organised during which the shareholders may vote for one of the candidates who
received the equal number of votes only.

The Chairman of the Management Board is elected by the Management Board from among its members.
According to the Articles of Association, the following persons may not be elected as the Management Board members:

1. member of the Supervisory Council of the Company, its Subsidiaries or parent company;
2. & person to whom applicable laws forbid lo occupy such position.

Competence
Pursuant to the Aricles of Association, the Managemenl Board approves:

1. operating strategy of the Company,

2. annual report of the Company,

3. management structure of the Company and positions of the employees,
4. positions to which employees are hired by competition;

5.  remuneration policy of the Company and the reports about the same;

B. regulations of branches and representative offices of the Company.

In addition, the Management Board:

1. appoints and removes the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, approves his remuneration, awards incentives,
imposes disciplinary sanclions to him/her and approves the position regulation of the Chief Executive Officer;
2. approves the information that is regarded commercial (industrial) secret of the Company;
3.  makes the following decisions;
- to become an incorporator or @ member of other legal persons;

- toopen branches or represeniative offices of the Company; = BEND;
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- to invest, transfer or lease long-term assels of the Company the book value of which exceeds LTL 2.05
million (calculated individually for every type of transaction);
- to pledge or mortgage long-term assets of the Company the book value of which exceeds LTL 2.05 million
(total amount of transactions is calculated);
= to offer surety or guarantee for the performance of obligations of third persons the amount of which exceeds
LTL 2.05 million;
- to acquire long-term assets the price of which exceads LTL 2.05 million ;
- relating to the Company’s transactions the value of which exceeds LTL 2.05 million ;
lo take or grant loans the value of which exceeds LTL 2.05 million ;
= to restructure the Company in the cases laid down in the Law on Restructuring of Enterprises;
- other decisions within the powers of the Managemenl Board as prescribed by the Aricles of Association or
the decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
4, analyses and evaluates the materials provided by the Chief Executive Officer on:
e implementation of the Company's operating strategy.
- organization of the Company's activities;
- financial position of the Company;
- results of business activilies, income and expenditure estimates, inventory data and other asset changes
accounting data;
5. analyses and assesses the Company's draft annual financial statemenis and draft profit/loss distribution and
submits the same together with the annual report of the Company to the General Meeling of Shareholders;
6. determines the methods used by the Company to calculate the depreciation of tangible assets and the amortisation
af intangible assets;
7. = responsible for convocation of General Meetings of Shareholders.

Before making a decision to invest funds or other assets into other legal person the Management Board must report the
same to the Company's creditors with which the Company has not settled within the prescribed time periods provided,
however, the overall amount of the indebtedness to such creditors exceeds 1/20 of the share capital of the Company.

Decision making

The Articles of Association of the Company indicates that Management Board meetings must be held at least once a
month in accordance with the approved schedule. Pursuant 1o the Law on Companies, in order to meet the quorum
requirement for any Management Board meeting, more than two-thirds of the total number of the Management Board
members must be present or vote in wriling or by means of electronic communication. A decision is considered as
adopted by the Management Board, if more than a half of all elected Management Board members vote in favour of it. If
there is a tie of votes, the vote of the Chairman of the Managemant Board is decisive.

The Management Board’s acfivities and work procedure is regulated by its Work Regulation approved by the
Management Board.

General Manager of the Company (the Chief Executive Officer)

The General Manager {Chief Executive Officer) is a single-person managing body of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer is appointed and revoked and his remuneration is determined by the Management Board. A person may not be
appointed the Chief Executive Officer if the laws forbid him/er to occupy such position. There is no requirement for the
Chief Execulive Officer lo be appointed from the members of the Management Board of the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer organises day-to-day aclivities of the Company, acts in the name of the Company, enlers
into transactions with third persons, represents the Company in any institutions or organizations, hires, dismisses,
awards employees and impose sanctions on them. Before entering into transactions for which according to the Articles
of Association a prior Management Board approval is required, the Chief Executive Officer must oblain a wrillen
approval. However, such Management Board approval does nol release the Chief Executive Officer from the liability for
entering into such transactions.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for:
1. organisation of activities and implementation of the purposes of the Company;

2. drawing up the annual financial statements and the annual report of the Company;
3. conclusion of a contract with the firm of auditors;
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4.  submission of information and documents 1o the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Management Board in
cases laid down in the Law on Companies or upon their request;

submission of the Company's documeants and data to the Register of Legal Persons, the LSE and the LCSD,
publication of information established in the Law on Companies in the daily Lieluvos Ryfas;

submission of information to the Company's shareholders;

determining the rules on calculating the asset depreciation;

fulfillment of other duties laid down in Lithuanian law, the Aricles of Association of the Company and the position
regulations of the Chief Executive Officer (if such are approved by the Management Board).

omNm e,

In addition, in accordance with the Articles of Association the Chief Executive Officer may issue and cancel procuracies
(prokidra) by appointing representatives with general or limited power to represent the Company. Each of these
authorised representatives, in addition to the Chief Executive Officer, are able to represent the Company with due
observance of any restrictions imposed on him/her.

Material Contracts

General Description

Apart from the contracts disclosed in Section Relafed Party Transactions, page B8, the Group has entered into several
agreements out of its ordinary course of business which may be grouped into shareholders or management agreements,
agreements to acquire the shares in Group companies and loan agreaments.

Shareholders and Management Agreements

The Group companies have entered into two shareholders and management agreements, one wilh respect 1o
Rosenkrantz A/S and one with respect to Z0K Kupiskio gridai, These agreements |ay down the main principles for the
operation and management of the companies in guestion, principles of corporale governance, rules for adopting
corporate decisions and other similar matters,

Shareholders Agreement with respect to Rosenkrantz A/S

This Shareholders Agreement was entered into on 28 Oclober 2004 between AB Linas Agro (holder of 60% of shares in
Rosenkrantz A/S) and Baltic Agro Group A/S (holder of 40% of shares in Rosenkrantz A/S). The agreement is governad
by Danish law.

According to the agreement, the Management Board of Rosenkrantz A/S consists of three members nominated by the
parties on mutual consent. If the parties fail o reach such consent, two mambers will be nominated by AB Linas Agro
and one member by Baltic Agro Group A/S. Mr. Henrik Klindt Petersen is lo be appointed the Chief Executive Officer of
Rosenkrantz A/S. Decisions of the Management Board and General Mesting of Shareholders on unusual and far-
reaching transaclions of Rosenkrantz A/S require a 2/3 majority of votes. These transactions include purchase, sale and
lease of real estate, purchasze and lease of working plant or equipment, the price of which exceeds DKK 100,000 or falis
outside approved investiment budget, employment and dismissal of employees In leading positions and dismissal of
employees who are shareholders of Rosenkrantz A/S, creating pledge over the assets of Rosenkrantz ASS, issuance of
guarantees or sureties, all risky investments, agreements with shareholders not on arms’ length basis, etc.

AB Linas Agro must at its own cost ensure thal Rosenkrantz A/S is provided with credit facilities, bank guarantees,
sureties, etc. necessary for the day-to-day trade operations and take oul necessary credit insurance against debtors of
Rozenkrantz AJS.

The Shareholders Agreement lays down the following arrangements with respect to the acquisition of the shares in
Rosenkrantz A/S:

1. the shareholders have pra-emptive rights to subscribe new shares in proportion to their shareholdings in the case of
the share capital increase of Rosenkrantz A5,

2. each shareholder has a right of first refusal to acquire the shares in Rosenkrantz A/S transferred by the other
shareholder unless the shares are transferred to a company owned 100% by the transferring party or by jl!,‘fb;_—-:- -

shareholders of the transfarring party;
v
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3. AB Linas Agro has a call option in respect of the shares held by Baltic Agro Group A/S which may be exercised only
upon dismissal of Mr. Henrik Klindl Petersen from the position of the Chief Executive Officer of Rosenkrantz A'S or
upon the termination of the management agreement with Mr. Henrik Klindt Petersen when the latter reaches an age
of 65 years. The call option may be exercised within 1 month from the notice of dismissall termination or from
Mr. Henrik Kiindt Petersen reaching 65 years, The option price will be the market price of the shares calculated as
equity capital of Rosenkrantz A/S plus weighted average of one's year earnings before tax, both ifems based on the
audited financial accounts of Rosenkrantz A/S;

4, if either party commits a breach of the Shareholders Agreement and fails to remedy that breach within 14 days from
the notice requiring to do so, the aggrieved party will have an option to purchase the shares of the defaulting party
at the market price (as established above) less 25% and less the costs for the audilor's statements;

5. AB Linas Agro has the right o purchase the shares held by Baltic Agro Group A/S at the markel price (as
established above) less 25% and less the costs for the auditor's stalements provided the management agreement
with Mr. Henrik Klindt Petersen is terminated by Rosenkrantz A/S for cause or if Mr. Henrik Klindl Petersen
terminates his managemeant agreement without a good reason,

The Shareholders Agreement also provides for obligations of Mr, Henrik Klindt Petersen, Baltic Agro Group A/S and
persons closely related to them not to compete with Rosenkrantz A/S and the Group. Non-competition undertaking is
secured by a contractual penally in the amount of DKK 500,000 and is valid for the perlod when Baltic Agro Group A/S is
a sharehoider of Rosenkrantz A/5 and one year thereafter.

The Shareholders Agreement is valid unlil either party holds less than 80% of the shares in Rosenkrantz A/S. When a
shareholder reaches the threshold of 90%, It is entilled to squeeze-out the minority shareholder and the minority
shareholder is entitled to require the majority shareholder purchasing remaining shares at the market price as
established above.

General Management Agreement with respect to ZUK Kupiskio griidai

On 1 July 2008 the Group companies AB Linas Agro, Medeikiy Z0B, Sidabravo Z0B, Aukstadvario ZUB and Luksiy
Z0B and the other members Mr. Kestulis Saulius and Mr. Henrikas Pilkauskas entered into the General Management
Agreement with respect to 20K Kupiskio gridal, Each of the undersigned members controls 9.09% of capital in ZUK
Kupiskio gridal. The agreement was also signed by 20K Kupigkio grodai,

The parties have agreed that the effective control of ZUK Kupiskio griidai will be exercised by AB Linas Agro and the
remaining members will act only as financial investors. Consequently, ZUK Kupiskio gridai is managed in accordance
with the corporate governance policy of the Group and its financial statements are consolidated with the financial
statements of other Group companies. AB Linas Agro undertook to actively paricipate in the management of ZUK
Kupigkio gridai.

According lo the General Management Agreement, 20K Kupigkio gridai is managed by the Meeting of Members, the
Management Board and the Chief Executive Officer. The Management Board is responsible for the strategic
organization of business and is composed of seven members elected for the period of four years. Five members of the
Management Board and the Chief Executive Officer of ZUK Kupi&kio gridai are elected from persons nominated by AB
Linas Agro. The Chairman of the Management Board is elected from among the nominees of AB Linas Agro. In addition
o the competence of the Management Board laid down in applicable laws, the General Management Agreement
stipulates that the Management Board approves the budgel and business plan of Z0K Kupiskio gridai as well as
investment projects, adopls decisions to reorganize or liquidate ZUK Kupigkio gradai, etc.

The General Management Agreement is of unlimited duration.
Agreements with Respect to Acquisition of Shares in Group Companies

The Company controls 50% of shares in UAB Dotnuvos projektai. The remaining part is controlled by non-related
persons Rimantas Dapkus and Rimvydas Brazauskas, each holding 25% of the capital in UAB Dotnuvos projektai. On 8
August 2008 the Company and its shareholders, on the one side, and UAB Dotnuvos projekial and ils remaining
shareholders Rimanlas Dapkus and Rimvydas Brazauskas, on the other side, entered into the Agreement, in
accordance with which the Company agreed fo purchase in total 20% of shares in UAB Dolnuvos pmjakta;}y’:g_l:_l?#_rl
Rimantas Dapkus and Rimvydas Brazauskas. The purchase must be effected after the completion of the Dfrerirpgjlo“f_L e
Company's Shares. The purchase price as well as other terms and conditions of the purchase are subject to further
agreement of the parties. e f
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Loan Agreements

In addition to the loans granted by the Group to its related persons and vice-varsa (see Section Related Parly
Transaclions, in page 8B) the Group has granted loans to former Group companies, other entities and several
employees of the Group as well as borrowed money from third parties.

Group companies as lender
Loans to former Group companies

The Group has granted loans to UAB Invisco, UAB Consonus and UAB Sinrena. All of the aforementioned entities are
former Group companies which the Group sold in the beginning of 2009. The loans were provided when the entities
were within the Group and remained outstanding after the shares of such companies were sold. The information on such
loans is provided in the table below.

!

Table 88. Loans granted by the Group to former Group companies ‘LTL in ﬂmuwndl
8.00%

AB Linas Agro UAB Invisco 31 March 2010 Unsecured 1437
AB Linas Agro  UAB Sinrena 31 December 2009 8.00%  Unsecured 1,201
AB Linas Agro UAB Consonus 31 December 2009 5.00% Unsecured 11125_
The Company  UAB Invisco 31 March 2010 8.00%  Unsecured a 194
Total = 3,960

* Source: the Company

As due to poor financial standing of the borrowers the Group does not expect that the above loans and accrued interest
will be repaid in full, allowances of around 75% of the total amounts due by each of the borrower have been made in the
annual financial statements of the Group for the year 2008/2009. Despite the formation of such allowances, there is a
tisk that the remaining portion of 25% of the outstanding amounts will not be repaid as well and that the assets of the
borrowers will be insufficient to cover these debts.

Loans to other entities

The Group issued several loans to Zibartoniy 20B to finance its working capital needs, The information on the loans
granted to Zibartoniy Z0B is presented in the table below,

Table 89, Loans grantad by the Group to Zibartoniy ZUB (LTL in thousand

Unsecurad

AB Linas Agro Zibartoniy 20B 1 March 2010 10.5% 700

Mecdeikiy 2UB Zibartoniy ZUB 1 April 2010 10.5% Unsecured 202
" AB Linas Agro o

Konsultagios Zibartoniy Z0B 31 Deaember_ Ta 10.5% Unsecured | ?I:_:r:a_

Total 1,010

Sowrce: the Company

In addition to the above mentioned loans AB Linas Agro has the receivable from Zibartoniy ZUB of LTL 1.8 million with
maturity on 1 December 2012, annual repayments of LTL 0.6 million commencing in December 2009 and the interest
rate of G-month VILIBOR plus 2.5% margin. This recaivable has arisen from advance payments made by AB Linas Agro
for fertilisers, seeds and plant protection means.

Loans to the Group’s employees
AR Linas Agro has provided several loans to its employees the information about which is presented in Table 80 below. //:":‘TF_ e
i

L,
i
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Table 90. Loans to the Group’s employee

15 August 2027, albeit

P upon the termination of the
ABLinas Agro m?g s employment agreement 3.55%  Unsecured 413
the loan must be repaid
immediately
AB Linas Agro Kestutis Saulius 1 Fahruar'_.r 2010 = 4.00% Unsecured 122
AB Linas Agro  Biruté Matulyté 10 &ugust 2013 0.00% Unsecured 30
Total 565

Sowrce: the Company

As the loans have been granted to individuals whose creditworthiness has nol been evaluated, there is a risk that the
loans will not be repaid voluntarily and that the assets of the borrowers will not be sufficient to cover the oulstanding
debls.

In addition, the Group has granted loans to other several members of its staff but the amounts of such loans are
insignificant.

Post balance sheet loans

Following the expiration of the year 2008/2009 the Group has issued one loan of LTL 100 thousand loan to Zibartoniy
Z0B, The information on such loan Is provided in the lable below.

Table 91, Loans granted by the Group after the last balance ILTL in thuwsmdl

AB Linas Agro
Konsullacijos Elbm'-lzua 31 December 2009 10.5% Unsecured

Total - 1
Sowrce: the Compary

Group companies as borrower

The Group companies entered into several ipan agreements for borrowing money from non-refated third parties, Table
g2 provides the basic information of such loans. The information about credits and loans from credit institutions is
specifically excluded,

Table 92, Loans granted by third parties to the Group companies

Baltic Land Invest ApS 208 Landvesta 1 30 January 2018 0.00% Unsecured LTL 1,400 thousand '
BALTTRANS LL.C AB Linas Agro 20 June 2010 6.00%  Unsecured  USD 600 thousand
‘Henrikas Pikauskas  ABLnasAgr 30 Aprl2011  7.00%  Unsecured LTL 397 thousand
Asla Pribusauskiene  ABLinasAgro 30 June 2010 7.00%  Unsecured " LTL 250 thousand
Borisas Lebadevas AB Linas Agro 30 June 2010 7.00% Unsecured LTL 250 thousand
Nigls Amold Lund  AukStadvario 208 1 May 2011 6.35% Unsacumd LTL 31 thousand
"The camying value of this loan makes LTL 958 thousand affer the discounling appiied.

Saurce: the Company

The loans from third parties accord the possibility for the Group to borrow funds without any securily al quite low cosls,

Other Agreements

On 20 June 2008 the Company and the shareholders of the Company (other than the Selling Shareholder), on Il)a/f: ¥
hand, and tha financial advisor {mher than the Lead Manager} on the other hand, Stgnad an agreement under wﬁ T
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shares. Although the agreement states that it expires automatically on 30 June 2009 {unless terminated earlier), the
Management of the Company holds the position that the provision of services according to the said agreement was in
fact terminated in October 2008. Pursuant to the agreemeant in the event the Company and its shareholders complete a
placement of the Company’s shares substantially similar to the IPO within twelve months of their termination of the
agreement, the Company and the shareholders who signed the agreement would need to pay fo that financial advisor
the success fee (which, subject to the scope of the IPO, may be malterial) that would otherwise have been due
thereunder as if the IPO so made has been arranged by that financial advisor. The Management believes that, faking
into consideration the date when the services wera in fact terminatad, the amount of the services provided and that the
project under the agreement was never completed, no success fee should be payable to that financial advisor in
connection with the Offering.

Documents on Display

For this information please refer to Section ntroduction, Presentation of informalion, page 5.

The information that has been sourced from third parties and presented in this Prospectus has been accurately
reproduced and as far as the issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by third parties, no facts
have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

The Company's historic financial statements and the Arlicles of Association of the Company can be obtained on the
webpage of the Company (www linasagro.It).
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THE OFFERING

Key Information

Working Capital, Capitalisation and Indebtedness

In the opinion of the Company, the working capital of the Group is sufficient for its present requirements. For financing of
the working capital needs from the proceeds of the Offering see Section Projected Investments, page 32.

Far details on capitalisation see Section Capital Resources, page 74. The information on the Company's share capital is
provided in Section Share Capital, page 100. For details on indebtedness see the table below:

Table 93. Highlights of indebtedness of the Group (LTL in thousand, not audited)

Bank borrowings
Secured by the Group's assets and guaranteed by Akola Aps 7,983
Securad by the Group's assels B 111,722
Unsacured by the érﬂup;s astsets -
Other borrowings 5.39_6
Sacmiﬂ_ﬁﬁ; Group's assets 5,390
Unsecured by the Group's assets =
Bonds issued a =
Finance lease ohligations - 2435 )
Factoring with recourse liability 3,643
Total financial liabilities 131,173
Financial loans recelvable ' 20,233
Cash and cash equivivalents 14,314
Net financial debt (Total financial liabilities — Financial loans receivable — Cash and cash
equivalents) S
' Recaivatle fram Akola Aps

Source: the Company
Interests of the Parties Related to the Offering

There ara no interests (including conflicting ones) of any legal or natural persons related to the Offering
Purpose of the Offering and Use of Proceeds

In principle, the Group has financed its development through cash flows from business, related party loans, bank
borrowings and capital confributions, The purpose of the Offering is to altract additional capital and ensure the
successful implementation of development strategies of the Group. The Group is willing to pursue financial flexibility and
the liquidity of its Shares through the listing of the Shares on the Main List of NASDAQ OMX Vilnius. The listing is
expected to increase local and international awareness of the Company, especially among professional investors,

On 20 Navember 2009 the Extracrdinary Meeting of Shareholders of the Company decided to increase the share capital
of the Company up to LTL 158,940,398 by issuing 38,940,398 Shares (New Shares) at a minimum subscription price of
each New Share equal to the bottom line of the Offer Price Range, waive the shareholders’ pre-emplive rights to acquire
the Mew Shares and grant the right to subscribe the entire New Share issue to the Selling Shareholder, The

subscription price of the New Shares will be set by the Management Board of the Company and will be equ
Price per each New Share. The Mew Shares will be subscribed for and paid up by the Selling Shareholder frat
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proceeds of the Offer Shares provided that the sale of the Offer Shares is implemented under the terms and conditions
of this Prospectus. Therefore, albeil the Company will not receive any direct proceeds from the sale of the Offer Sharas,
the Company shall receive proceeds from the issue of the Mew Shares. The Company will receive proceeds from the
issuance of the New Shares which will be subscribed for and paid up by the Selling Shareholder from the sales proceeds
of the Offer Shares provided that the sale of the Offer Shares will be implemented under the terms and condifions of this
Frospectus.

The exact amoul of nel proceeds is subject to the Offer Price and the usage of the Over-Allotment Option. The
eszfimation of net proceeds is based on the midpoint of the Offer Price Range assuming that the Over-Allotment Option is
exercised in full.

The net proceeds to the Selling Sharsholder are expected to be LTL 18.2 million after deduction of the issue price o be
paid for the New Shares by the Seliing Shareholder to the Company as well as the fees and expenses of the Offering
due by the Selling Shareholder. Expenses of the Selling Shareholder are estimated tp amount LTL 0.95 million. The
Selling Shareholder) will use part of proceeds to repay LTL 14-17 million of its outstanding debt to AB Linas Agro (the
exact amount will depend on the Offer Price and the usage of the Over-Allotment Option). The Company will not receive
any direct proceeds from the sale of the Offer Shares by the Selling Shareholder,

The aggregate nel proceeds to the Company from the issuance of the Mew Shares are estimated to be LTL 84.1 million
based on the midpeoint of the Offer Price Range, after deducting the fees and expenses of the Offering due by the
Company which are estimated to amount to approximately LTL 5.11 million. The aggregate net proceeds to be received
by the Company from the issue of New Shares are expected to be used for the invesiments planned for 2009/2010 and
2010/2011, as well as for the possible further corporale acquisitions in the existing and new markets in the Baltic States
and Western Europe {described in more detail in Section Purpose of the Cffering and Use of Proceeds, page 113).

The aggregate net proceeds to be received by the Company from the issue of New Shares are expected to be used for
the invesiments plannad for 2009/2010 and 2010/2011 (see Section lnvestment, page 30), as well as for the possible
further corporate acquisitions In the existing and new markels in the Baltic States and Western Europe. In addition,
Akola ApS (the Selling Shareholder) will use part of proceeds of the Offer Shares to repay LTL 14-17 million of its
outstanding debt to AB Linas Agro (the exact amount will depend on the Offer Price and the usage of the Over-Alloiment
Option, and won't exceed the nel proceeds of the Offering received by the Selling Shareholder).. The proceeds from the
issue of the New Shares will provide the opportunity to continue the policy of aggressive growth and geographical
expansion which the Group has so far pursued, This taken into account, the Offering and issuance of the New Shares is
an important step fowards the overall strategic objective of the Group.

Information Concerning the Shares

General Information

Description of the Shares

Class of the Shares: Ordinary reﬁistered_éhares
ISIN number: LTO0001 28082
Currency of the Share issue; LTL (Lithuanian litas)

Dematerialised shares in book-eniry form. Entity in charge of keeping the records

Fann-at the e is Swedbank, AB, Custody division, Konstitucijos 204, LT-03502 Vilnius, Lithuania

Legislation under Which the Shares Have Been Created

Legislation, under which the Shares have been created, includes the Civil Code of the Republic of Lithuania, Law on
Companies, Law on Securities and other related Lithuanian legal acts,

Transfer Restrictions

The Offer Shares and the shares that may be subject to the Over-Allotment Option are subject to transfer restrictions as
revealed in greater detall in Section Offering and Transfer Restrictions, page 127.
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Furthermore, the Selling Shareholder is subject to a lock-up as described in Section Lock-up, page 130.

New Issue of the Shares

For the information refating to the decision to issue the New Shares, see Section Share Capital, page 100,

Mandatory Takeover Bid Rules

According to the Law on Securities, where a person, acting independently or in concert with other persons, acquires
shares that together with the holding held by him/herfit or by other persons acling in concert with him/her/it entitle
him/her/it to more than 40% of votes at the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company, hefshe/it must:

1. transfer securities exceading this threshold; or
2. announce a mandatory takeover bid to purchase the remaining voting securities of the Company and the securities
confirming the right lo acquire voling securities.

A person having acquired the shares exceeding the 40% vote threshold must not later than within seven days announce
in the national daily Lietuvos rytas as well as report to the LSC, NASDAQ OMX Vilnius and the Company about the fact
that the established threshold was exceeded and of hisfherfits intention either to announce a mandatory takeover bid or
to transfer the shares exceeding the thrashold.

If a person having acquired the shares exceeding the 40% vole threshold opts for a mandatory takeover bid, hefshefit
must within 20 days from the above-referred public announcement submit to the LSC the circular disclosing the general
information about the mandatory takeover bid. The circular is approved by the LSC. The mandatory lakeover bid staris
being implemented on the fourth business day following the approval of the circular by the LSC. The period of the
implementation of the mandatory takeover bid must be not less than 14 days and not longer than 70 days. The
mandatory takeover bid is implemented on the regulated market. The price of the mandatory takeover bid must be not
lower than the highest price at which the person submitting the bid acquired the securities during the last 12 months
before the 40% vote threshold was exceeded and not lower than the average market price for the last 6 months before
the 40% vote threshold was exceeded (provided the securities are traded on a regulated market). If none of the two
criteria exists, the price must be determined by an independent asset appraiser. Only cash may be offered as
consideration for the securities purchased during the mandatory takeover bid.

The Law on Securities provides for certain cases when a person obliged to submit @ mandatory takeover bid is
exempted from such obligation.

Squeeze-Out and Sell-Out Rules

According to the Law on Securities, a shareholder of the Company having acquired, acting individually or in concert with
other persons, not less than 95% of the capital carrying voting rights and not less than 95% of votes in the General
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company is entitled to require the remaining minority shareholders to tender outstanding
shares to him/herfit al a fair price and such remaining shareholders are obliged to sell these shares in the manner
established by the Law on Securities (squeeze-out). However, where the shareholder is subject to a mandatory takeover
bid obligation, he/she/it may not squeeze-out minority's shares as long as a mandatory fakeover bid has nol been
implemented.

The price paid during the squeeze-out must be fair. In determining the price, the following principles are applied:

1. where a shareholder during a mandatory takeover bid acquired the shares carrying not less than 95% of all votes in
the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company, the squeeze-out price will ba equal to the mandatory
takeover bid price; or )

2. where a shareholder during a voluntary takeover bid to acquire all the remaining voting shares acquired the shares
carrying not less than 95% of votes in the General Meeling of Shareholders of the Company, the squeeze-oul price
will be equal to the price paid during such voluntary takeover bid provided that not less than 90% of the shares
comprising the voluntary takeover bid were acquired by the offeror during the voluntary takeover bid.
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approved by the LSC in advance. The price to be paid for the shares In a squeeze-oul procedure may be challenged in
court. A shareholder implementing the squeeze-out may only offer cash as consideration.

A shareholder intending to implement the squeeze-out musl furnish a notification o the Company about the same.
Within five days from its receipt the Company must announce such notification in the daily Liefuves rylas as well as
notify each and every shareholder of the Company, the LSC and NASDAQ OMX Vilnius. All remaining shareholders of
the Company must sell the shares or challenge the squeeze-oul price during a 90-day period from the public
announcement about the squeeze-out in the daily. If the remaining shareholders fall to sell the shares, the majority
shareholder exercising the squeeze-pul may within 30-day period apply to court and require making records in personal
securities accounts about the transfer of shares to the majority sharehalder.

In addition to the squesze-out right the Law on Securities provides for a "mirror sell-out right. Thus, any minority
shareholder is entitled to request that the shareholder who, acting independently or in concert with other persons,
acquired not less than 95% of the capital carrying voting rights and not less than 95% of votes in the General Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company, buys the shares carrying the voling rights owned by the minority shareholder, and the
majority shareholder is obliged to buy such shares (sell-out). Similar rules as in the case of the squeeze-out apply to
determining the price of such shares.,

Shareholder Rights

General Information

The list of the shareholders’ rights indicated in the Articles of Association of the Company is provided in Section The
Company's Arlicles of Association, page 101. Below is a brief description of certain material rights of the Company's
shareholders.

Right to Receive Dividend or Other Portion of the Company's Profit

Pursuant to the Law on Companies, the Company may only distribute profits or assels lo its shareholders by means of
{1) paying dividends; {ii) reducing share capital; or (i) through liquidation of the Company.

All Shares of the Company, including the Offer Shares, rank pari passu with regard to dividend and other distributions by
the Company.

Dividend Rights

A dividend is a share of profit allocated to a shareholder in proportion to the nominal value of shares owned by him/herit.
If a share is not fully paid-up and the time limit for the payment has noi yet expired, a dividend will be reduced in
proportion to the unpaid amount of the share price. If the share is not fully paid-up and the time limit for the payment has
expired, no dividend is paid.

Dividends may be declared only once by a decision of the annual ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders. The
Company may only distribute dividends out of its distributable profits that consist of net profit in each financial year, as
increased or reduced by any profit or loss carried forward from the previous year and/or profit or loss of the current
financial year not realised in the profit and loss account, plus any amounts held in its reserves that the sharehaolders
decide to make available for distribution (other than those reserves that are specifically required by the Lithuanian laws)
and sharsholders' contributions o cover loss, less any distributions for any other purposes decided by the General
Meeting of Shareholders. Dividends may not be declared or paid out if at least one of the following conditions is mat:

1. the Company is Insolvent or after the payment of dividends would become insolvent;
the Company's distributable result of the financial year is negative (i.e. losses were incurred),

3. the equity capital of the Company is lower or after the payment of dividends would become lower than the
aggregate amount of the share capital, the legal reserve, the revaluation reserve and the reserve for acquisition of
own shares of the Company.

Dividends are paid to persons who al the end of the rights record date (i.e. the tenth business day following the day
decision to distribute dividends was adopted by the General Mesting of Shareholders) were the shareholders
Company or were othenwise entitled to receive dividends. The Company must pay out the declared dividends wit

BENDRUIL
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month from the date when the General Meeting of Shareholders decides to declare dividends. The right to dividend
becomes barred by statute afler ten years from the date on which they would have been payable, al which point the
unpaid dividends reveri back to the Company, unless the period of limitation has been amended or suspended by law.
The same rules for paying dividends are applied to residents and non-residents of Lithuania with the exception lo
taxation requirements (see Section Taxation, page 118). Dividends are paid to the shareholders in proportion to the
aggregate sum of the nominal value of the shares held by the shareholder, Dividends can be paid only in cash. The
dividends attributable to the Shares are of non-cumulative nature.

Right to receive funds during the reduction of the share capital

Whean the share capital is reduced in order o pay oul the funds to its shareholders, each shareholder is entitled to
receive funds from the Company. Such right is granted to the persons who were shareholders of the Company or were
otherwise entitled to recelve such funds at the end of the rights record date (i.e. the tenth business day following the day
the decision to reduce the share capital was adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholders). Only the annual ordinary
General Mesting of Shareholders may adopt the decision to reduce the share capital with the purpose of paying funds to
the shareholders, and provided all of the following conditions are met:

1. the annual financial statements and the profit distribution have been approved,

2. following the reduction the legal reserve of the Company will not be lower than 1/10 of the Company's share capital;
and

3. no undistributed loss or long-term liabilities are recorded in the annual financial statements of the Company.

The decision to reduce the share capital with the purpose of paying out the funds to its shareholders may not be made if
on the date of the decision the Company is insolvent or after the paymant of funds would become insolvent,

The funds must be paid within one month from the registration of the amended Aricles of Association of the Company
with the Register of Legal Persons. The funds are paid pro rata to the nominal value of shares held by each shareholder
and may only be paid in cash.

Right to share in any surplus in the event of liquidation

In the event of liquidation, the Company's surplus asseis are distributed to the shareholders in proportion to the
aggregate sum of the nominal value of the shares held by shareholders. In case the Company's liguidation is voluntary,
the surplus assets may be distributed o the shareholders only after the settlement of debls with creditors and after two
months from the date of the public announcement of the liguidation procedures as prescribed by law. I any judicial
disputes with respect to the payment of the Company's debts arise, the surplus assets may not be distributed to the
shareholders until the final seltlement of disputes and debis.

Voting Rights

The shareholders exercise their voting right at the General Meeting of Shareholders, Only shareholders who have fully
paid-up their shares are entitled to vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders. Persons, who were shareholders of the
Company at the end of the record day of the meeting, are entitled o attend and vole at the General Meeting of
Shareholders or repeated General Meeting of Shareholders. The record day of the meeting of the Company is the fifth
working day before the General Meetling of Sharehalders or the fifth working day before the repeated General Meeting of
Shareholders. The voting right encompasses the right to speak and ask at the General Meeting of Shareholders. As the
Company has issued one class of shares with the nominal value of LTL 1, sach share enfifles iis holder to one vote al
the General Meeting of Shareholders. The shareholders may vote personally or through their proxies or persons who
concluded a voting rights transfer agreement. The shareholders may also vote in writing (by filling in the general voting
ballot).

Pre-emption Rights

Pursuant to the Law on Companies, the Company's share capital may be increased by a decision of the General
Mesting of Shareholders and may be effectad by:

1. issuing additional shares;

2. increasing the nominal value of existing shares, or
3. issuing convertible bonds,
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Increases in share capital by way of Issuance of additional shares may be effected through one or a combination of the
following:

in consideration for cash;

in consideration for assets contributed in kind;

by conversion of bonds previously issued;

from the Company's own funds (i.e. by capitalisation of profits or share premiums), ele.

L

If the Company issues additional shares or converiible bonds, other than from the Company's own funds, current
shareholders will have preferential subscription rights to the securities on a pro rata basis. These preferential rights
require that the Company give priority treatment to current shareholders. The Company must announce the proposal to
utilise the pre-emption rights as well as the period of such utilisation in the daily Lietuves rytas and repor the same to
the Register of Legal Persons. The time limit for a shareholder to acquire the securifies on a pre-emptive basis may not
be less than 14 days after the public announcement thereof by the Register of Legal Persons. Preferential rights are
transferable during the subscription period relating to a particular offering. These rights may also be lisled on NASDAQ
OMX Milnius. Pursuant to the Law on Companies, the preferential subscription rights with respect to any particular
offering may be withdrawn, The Company's Mansgement Board is required to present a notice that specifically
atldresses the proposal to withdraw preferential subscription rights. The decision on withdrawing these rights is adopted
by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Company’s share capital may be increased from the Company's own funds. In such cases the current shareholders
are entitled to receive the new additional shares free of charge on a pro rata basis, or the nominal value of all the
Company's shares Is increased, all in accordance with the Law on Companies.

The preferential right to acguire the shares or convertible bonds issued by the Company as well as the right to receive
shares free of charge in the case of the increase of the share capital from the Company's own funds is granted to the
persons who were shareholders of the Company al the end of the rights record date (i.e. the tenth business day
following the day the respective decision was adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholders),

Reserves of the Company

Pursuant to the Law on Companies, the Company is required to allocate 5% of its net profit for each financial year to its
legal reserve, Funds must be allocated until the amount in the legal reserve is equal o 10% of the nominal value of the
share capital. The Company may form any other reserves (such as reserve to acquire own shares, etc.) upon a decision
of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Further Capital Calls by the Company

If the Company's distributable resull, as approved by the ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders, is negative and the
meeting adopts a decision to cover the Company's losses or parl thereof by the additional contributions of the
shareholders, according to the Law on Companies, the shareholders who voted in favour of such decision ara obliged to
pay the contributions to the Company. The shareholders who did not participate in the General Meeling of Shareholders
or voled against such decision are entitled not to pay any additional contributions to the Compary,

Redemption Provisions

Pursuant to the Law on the Companies the Company is entitled to repurchase its own shares from its shareholders. If
the aggregate number of the repurchased shares exceeds 10% of the share capital of the Company, it must transfer the
excess shares lo other persons within 12 months from exceeding the threshold. Having purchased its shares, the
Company is not entitled to exercise any proprietary or non-proprietary rights conferred by such shares.

The procedure for repurchasing the shares is laid down in the Law on the Companies. The Company is not entitled to
repurchase its own shares unless the reserve for such shares, the amount of which may not be less than the aggregate
purchase price of the shares being acquired, is formed in the Company. As a general rule, the Company may not
repurchase its shares which are not fully paid. In order to repurchase its shares the Company must submit a voluntary
takeover bid. Shares may be repurchased by the Company only on the basis of a decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders.
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Conversion Provisions

Meither the Articles of Association of the Company nor the Law on the Companies pravide for the possibility to convert
the Shares into any other class of shares.,

Taxation

The following is a summary of certain Lithuanian and Estonian tax consequences of ownership and disposilion of the
Offer Shares. The summary is based on the tax laws of Lithuania and Estonia as in effect on the date of this Prospectus,
and s subject to changes in such laws, including changes that could have a retroactive effect. The summary does not
purport fo be a comprehensive description of all the tax consequences thal may be relevant for making decision to
purchase, own or dispose of the Offer Shares. You are advised to consull your own professional tax advisors as fo the
Lithuanian, Estorian and other fax consequences of the Combined Offering and the purchase, ownership and
disposition of the Offer Shares. Prospective investors who may be affacted by the tax laws of other jurisdictions should
consull thelr own tax advisors with respect fo the fax consequences applicable to their particular circumsiances.

Lithuania

Taxation on dividends

Legal persons

Dividends received by Lithuanian or foreign legal persons are subject to the corporate income lax at a rate of 15%.
Dividends are not subject to corporate income tax when a recipient (a Lithuanian or foreign legal person) has been or
intends to be in control of not less than 10% of voting shares of a Lithuanian company distributing dividends for an
uninterrupted period of at least 12 months. This participation exemption does not apply if dividends are paid to foreign
legal persons registered or otherwise organized In a lax haven jurisdiction,

If dividends are paid out 1o the legal persons that are residents of a foreign country with which Lithuania has concluded a
treaty for the avoidance of double taxation and such treaty limits the rights of Lithuania to tax dividends, the rules set in
that treaty will be applied.

The obiigation to calculate, withhold and pay the withholding tax on dividends arises for a Lithuanian legal person (the
payer of dividends).

Individuals

Dividends received by Lithuanian and foreign individuals are subject to the personal income tax at a rate of 20%,
Moreover, profits (or part thereof) distributed to individuals of a Lithuanian entity, which is not an undertaking situated in
a free economic zone, proportionately atfributed to the profits that are not taxed with regard to ceriain tax reliefs andfor
the taxable profits taxed at a rate of 0% Is subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 15%.

If dividends are paid out to the residents of a foreign country with which Lithuania has concluded a treaty for the
avoidance of double taxation and such treaty limits the rights of Lithuania to tax dividends, the rules set in that treaty will

be applied.

The obligation to calculate, withhold and pay the personal income tax and corporate income tax on dividends arises for a
Lithuanian legal entity (the payer of dividends).

Taxation on capital gains
Legal persons

Mo specific capital gains tax Is established under Lithuanian tax legislation. Therefore capital gains recei
Lithuanian legal person or by a foreign legal person through its permanent establishment in Lithuania from
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shares are included in the taxable income for corporate income tax purposes. The standard rate of the corporate income
tax is 15%.

An exemplion is available, and capital gains are not subject lo corporate income tax if the following conditions are met;
1) an entity the shares of which are being transferred is registered in the EEA Member State or a couniry with which
Lithuania has concluded a treaty for the avoidance of double taxation, and this entity is a payer of corporate income or
equivalent tax; and 2) an enfity transferring shares has been in control of more than 25% of voling shares for an
uninterrupted period of al least lwo years. The exemption is not applied if shares are transferred to the issuer,

Lithuanian entities and permanent estabiishments of foreign entities have the right to carry forward losses due to the
disposal of securities andior derivalive financial instruments for five consecutive years for the purpose of Lithuanian
corporate income tax, The said losses can be covered only with income generated from disposals of securities andfor
derivative financial instrumenis,

Capital gains received by the foreign legal persons from the disposal of shares of Lithuanian companies are not subject
to the Lithuanian corporate income (ax,

Individuals
Capital gains received from the sale of shares by the Lithuanian residents are subject to 15% personal income tax,

Capital gains from the sale of shares are not taxed if the shares are sold not earlier than 366 days after the date of their
acquisition and the individual had not held more than 10% of the shares of the entity for three years preceding the end of
the tax period during which the shares were sold. The application of the said exemption is restricted in respect of the
shares received by the shareholder free of charge due to the increase in the issuer's share capital from its own funds or
in case the nominal value of the selling shares has been increased from the issuer's own funds (in which case the
application of the exemption will be restricted solely to the income egqual to the amount of the increased nominal value of
the selling shares). Moreowver, the application of the said exemption is resfricted if shares are transferred {o the issuer.

Personal income tax on capital gains received by individuals should be calculated, paid and declared by individuals by
the 15t of May of the calendar year following the taxable year.

Capital gains received from the disposal of shares of Lithuanian companies by the individuals which are not considered
to be Lithuanian residents for tax purposes are nol taxed in Lithuania,

Estonia
Taxation on dividends
Legal persons

In Estonia, corporate taxpayers are not subject fo the traditional corporate income tax. Instead, they are subject lo a
distribution tax on distributed profits, including hidden profit distributions (e.g. fringe benefits, non-business expenses,
transfer pricing adjustments, gifts and donations). The income of a company comprises its worldwide income of all types
but no tax is levied on this income until retained in the company. Therefore, the receipt of dividends by an Estonian
company does not trigger any taxation.

Upon distribution by an Estonian company, the distribution tax is generally levied at a flat rate of 21% on the gross
amount of the profit distribution. However, if an Estonian company redistributes dividends received from its Estonian,
EEA (including Lithuania) or Swiss subsidiary where it had at least 10% paricipation at the time of receiving the
dividends, the further distribution is exempt of tax. If an Estonian company did not have at least 10% participation in a
Lithuanian company the further distribution is subject to the distribution tax. In the latter case, the Lithuanian withholding
tax can be deducted from the distribution tax due.

Individuals
Foreign dividends are exempt if they have been subject to withholding tax or if the profit out of which the dividends are

paid has been taxed in a foreign state. As generally the dividends received by an Estonian resident individual fr
Lithuanian company meet both conditions they are not subject to tax in Estonia.
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Taxation of capital gains
Legal persons

As there is no taxation until distribution, capital gains derived by Estonian companies remain exempt from tax until a
distribution is made.

Individuals

There s no separate capital gains taxation, Capital gains from the sale or exchange of shares are included in taxable
income and taxed at the genaeral 21% flat rate of income tax.

The capital gain from the sale of shares is the difference between the acquisition cost and the selling price of the shares
sold. The gain derived from the exchange of shares is the difference between the acquisition cost of the exchanged
shares and the market price of the property received as a result of the exchange. A shareholder has the right to deduct
certified expenses directly related to the sale or exchange of shares.

Certain categories of capital gains are exempt from income tax, such calegories include, in particular, capital gains
derived from the exchange of shares in the course of a merger, division or reorganisation of companies.

Losses incurred on the disposal of securities may only be set off against gains on the disposal of other securities. Any
excess losses may be carried forward to be set off against gains from securities during the following years, as they arise,

Terms and Conditions of the Offering

General Information

Retail Offering and Institutional Offering

The Offering includes (i) non-public offer to Lithuanian, Estonian and other foreign Institutional Investors (fnstitutional
Offering), and (ii} public offer to the general public in Lithuania and Estonia (Refalfl Offering and, together with the
Institutional Offering, Offering). The Offering comprises up to 55,629,140 Shares of the Company (Offer Shares) owned
by the Selling Shareholder (as defined in Section Selfing Shareholders, page 129), out of which 8,344,371 Shares
(Addifional Shares) are subject to the Over-Allotment Option. In connection with the Offering, the Selling Shareholder
has granted to the Lead Manager an option, exercisable during the period of 30 calendar days from the date of public
disclosure of the final price for the Offer Shares, to acquire at its discretion up to 8,344,371 Additional Shares to cover
over-allotments, if any. The Additional Shares constitute a part of the Offer Shares offered in the Offering.

The division of the Offer Shares between the Institutional Offering and the Retail Offering has not been predetermined.
Praliminary it is planned to sell approximately up to 25% of the Offer Shares in the Retail Offering. The exact number of
the Offer Shares included in the Institutional Offering and in the Retail Offering will be decided by the Selling
Shareholder in consullation with the Lead Manager. This decision will be taken in conjunction with the allocation
process, which will take place immediately after the expiry of the Offer Period. When deciding the division of the Offer
Shares belween the Instilutional Offering and the Retall Offering, the Selling Shareholder will consider mainly (i) the
overall demand for the Offer Shares, (i) the demand for the Offer Shares in the Retafl Offering, and (iii) the variance in
the size of orders in the Retail Offering and the distribution of orders of different sizes in the Retail Offering. When
deciding such division, the Selling Sharehalder will be aiming at determining a proportion between the Institutional
Offering and the Retall Offering which (i) gives the Company a wide shareholder base, and (i) can be expected (o
contribute to a stable and favourable development of the price of its Shares in the aftermarket.

The exact division of the Offer Shares between the Institulional Offering and the Retail Offering will be announced
together with the allocation results {see Section Announcement of the Allocation Resulls, page 128).
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Right to Participate in the Retail Offering
The Retail Offering is directed to all natural and legal persons in Lithuania and Estonia.

For the purposes of thesa terms, a natural person will be deemed to be in Lithuania if such parson has a securities
account with one of the registered securities account operators in Lithuania and such person's address recorded in the
records of one of the above-mentioned institutions in connecfion with such person's securities account is located in
Lithuania. A legal person will be deemed to be in Lithuania if it has a securities account with one of the registered
securities sccount operators in Lithuania or with LESD and its registered address recorded in the records of one of the
above-mentioned institutions in connection with its securities account is located in Lithuania andfor its regisiration code
recarded in such records is the registration code of Register of Legal Persons

Far the purposes of these ferms, a natural person will be deemed to be in Estomia if such person has a securities
gccount with the ECRS and such person's address recorded in ECRS records in connection with such person's
securities account is located in Estonia. A legal person will be deemed to be in Estonia if it has a securities account with
ECRS and its registered address recorded in ECRS records in connection with its securities account is located in
Estonia and/or its registration code recorded in ECRS records is the registration code of the Estonian Commercial
Register.

The Purchase Undertakings of the Retail Investors as described in Section Submission of Purchase Undertakings, page
122, can be submitted in Lithuania and Estonia only through securities accounts apened with Swedbank, AB and
Swedbank AS in either of the two counfries.

Offer Period

Investors may submit, amend or cancel the Purchase Undertakings for the Offer Shares (Purchase Undertaking) during
the Offer Period, which commences on 25 January 2010 at 8.00 hours (Lithuanian time, GMT+2) and terminates on 5
February 2010 at 14.00 hours (Lithuanian time, GMT+2) (the Offer Pariod).

Offer Price Range
The Offer Price Range is LTL 2,05 to LTL 2.53 per Offer Share.

Submission of Purchase Undertakings

The Selling Shareholder invites investors fo submit the Purchase Undertakings in accordance with these terms and
conditions and the following procedure

In order to purchase the Offer Shares a Retail Investor must have a securities account and a bank account related with
such securities account opened with Swedbank, AB in Lithuania or Swedbank AS in Estonia (collectively refarred to as
the Brokers or each individually as the Broker). Such securities account may be opened at any branch office of the
Broker. A Retail Investor may not submit the Purchase Undertaking through nominee accounts of other intermediaries.

Institutional Investors may submit Purchase Undertakings through nominee accounts of other intermediaries.

An investor wishing to purchase the Offer Shares should contact the Broker and submit the Purchase Undertaking for
the purchase of securities in the form set out below in this Section, The Purchase Underaking may be submitted;

- in Lithuania, the Purchase Undertaking may be submitted:

=  physically through the designated branches of Swedbank, AB (by applying to a financial broker working within
that branch). The designated branches of Swedbank, AB where the Purchase Undertakings may be submitted
physically are; Centro Client Service Centre (Centro klienty aptarnavimo centras) al Savanoriy pr. 154, 03126
Wilnius, Konstitucijos Client Service Centre (Konstitucijos klienty aptarnavimo centras) at Konstitucijos pr. 204,
03502 Vilnius Akropolio Client Service Centre (Akropolio klienty aptarnavimo centras) at Ozo g. 25, 07150
Wilnius, Tauro Client Service Centre (Tauro klienty aptarnavimo centras) at Maironio g. 258, 44249 Kaunas,
Uostamiesdio Client Service Centre {Uostamiastio klienty aptarnavime centras) at Taikos pr. 52C/Agluonos g.
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Panevéiys, Marijampolés Client Service Centre (Marijampalés klienty aptarnavimo centras) at Laisves g. 4,
BE306 Marijampola,

« over Internet means: "Swedbank” Intermet bank (ib.swedbank.it, Savings and Investment and choosing
section “Subscription” (in case of questions , please call to Swedbank, AB at tel. 1884 or +370 5 268 4444
before submitting the Purchase Undertaking via Internet).

= by phone calling directly to Equity Sales Lithuania Sub-department (+370 5 258 2515, +370 5 258 2505, +370
258 2295).

in Estonia, the Purchase Undertakings may be submitted physically through any branch of Swedbank AS or other
method that Broker offers (e.g. over the Internet or by other means).

The Purchase Undertaking must be submitted to the Broker by the end of the Offer Period (as defined in Section Offer
Period, page 122).

The Purchase Undertaking of a Retail investor must include the following information:

Owner of the securities account: full name of the investor
Securities account: number of the investor's securities account
“Broker:
Lithuania Swedbank, AB
Estonia Swedbank AS
Securities: Ordinary registered shares of AB Linas Agro Group
ISIN code: LTO0001 28092
Amount of securities: any number of the Offer Shares which the investor wishes to purchase
Price (per share): maximum price from the Offer Price Range in Lithuanian ftas -
Custodian:
Lithuania Swedbank, AB
Estenia Swedbank AS
Value date of the transaction: Purchase Underaking expiraticn day
Type of transaction: purchase
Type of settlement: delivary against payment

By submitting the Purchase Underaking, investors confirm that they have got

acknowledged with the terms and conditions of the prospectus of the Offer Shares,

for which the Purchase Undertaking is being submitted. Investors admit that they
Additional conditions: fully understand and agree with these terms and condifions and undertake to
comply with them. They also agree that their Purchase Underiaking may be
cancelled without notifying them in advance in the cases described in the
prospectus, inter alia if the Purchase Undertaking does not fully meet the terms and
conditions of the prospectus.

Thers is no minimum or maximum amount of the Offer Shares to be indicated in the Purchase Underiaking.

Institutional Investors may specify any price within the Offer Price Range in their Purchase Undertakings and otherwise
deviate from the above form as may be specifically agreed between the Broker and an Institutional Investor

An investor may submit & Purchase Undertaking either personally or through a representative whom the investor has
authorized {in the form required by law) to submit the Purchase Undertaking.

Multiple Purchase Undertakings by one investor, if submitied, will be merged for the purposes of allocation

A Purchase Undertaking is deemed submitted from the moment the Broker receives a duly completed transaction
instruction from the investor. The Purchase Undertaking can be cancelled or amended as described in Section
Amendment or Cancellation of Purchase Undertakings, page 124, An investor will be liable for the payment of all fees
charged by the Broker in connection with the submission, cancellation or amendment of the Purchase Undertaking,

An investor must ensure that all information contained in the Purchase Undertaking is correct, complete and legible. The
Purchase Undertakings which are incomplete, incorrect unclear or illegible, or which have not been completed and
submitted during the Offer Period in accordance with all requirements set out in these terms and conditions may be
rejected.

By submitting a Purchase Undertaking every investor:

123

B

F iyt

o
B
%



- acknowledges that the Offering does not constitute an offer of the Offer Shares by the Selling Shareholder in legal
terms or otherwise and that the submission of a Purchase Undertaking does not itself entitle the investor to acquire
the Offer Shares nor result in a contract for the sale of the Offer Shares;

- accepts that the number of the Offer Shares indicated by the investor in the Purchase Undertaking will be regarded
as the maximum number of the Offer Shares which the inveslor wishes to acquire (the maximum amount} and that
the investor may receive less (but not more) Offer Shares than the aforementioned maximurm amaount;

- underlakes o acquire and pay for any number of the Offer Shares allocated to itthimMher in accordance with these
terms and conditions;

- authorises the Broker with which the Purchase Undertaking was placed to amend the information contained in the
investor's transaction instruction, including (a) to specify the valid dale of the transaction, and (b) to specify (i) the
number of the Offer Shares to be purchased by the investor, (i) the Offer Price (as determined after the Offer
Period) as the price per share, and (iii) the total amount of the transaction found by mulliplying the Offer Price by
the number of the Offer Shares allocated o the relevant investor.

Amendment or Cancellation of Purchase Undertakings

An investor may amend or cancel a Purchase Undertaking at any time before the expiry of the Offer Period. To do so,
the investor must contact the Broker through whom the Purchase Underlaking in guestion has been made, and carry out
the procedures required by the Broker for amending or cancelling a Purchase Undertaking (such procedures may differ
between different Brokers). All fees payable in connection with an amendmaent andfor canceliation of the Purchase
Undertaking will be borne by the investor,

A cancellation or amendment of the Purchase Undertaking becomes effective at the moment when the fransaction
instruction of the investor in question has been cancelled by the relevant Broker,

Payment and Delivery of Offer Shares

By submitting a Purchase Underlaking, 8 Retail Investor authorises and instructs the Broker operating the investor's
cash account connected to its/is/her securities account to immediately block the whole transaction amount on the
investor's cash account until the settlement is completed or funds are released in accordance with these terms and
conditions. The transaction amount to be blocked will be equal to the maximum Offer Price muitiplied by the maximum
number of the Offer Shares which the Retail Investor wishes to acquire. A Retail Investor may submit the Purchase
Underiaking only when there are sufficient funds on its/hisfher cash account connected to securilies account with the
relevant Broker to cover the whole transaction amount. Procedures set out in this paragraph are not applicable to
Institutional Investors.

The Lead Manager shall inform all Institutional Investors about the number of the Offer Shares aliocated to them and
shall grant all Institutional Investors a certain period of time lo pay the final Offer Price for the Offer Shares so allocated.
The payment period shall be the same for all Institutional Investors. After the Institutional Investors pay the price as
instructed, the Offer Shares shall be transferred to their securities accounts on delivery versus payment method.

The Offer Shares aliocated to investors will be transferred to their securilies accounts on or about 11 February 2010
thraugh the delivery versus payment method simultaneously with the transfer of payment for such Offer Shares. In no
event will the date of settlement be later than 12 February 2010.

If an investor has submitted several Purchase Undertakings through several securities accounts belonging to him/hear/it,
the Offer Shares allocated to such Investor are transferred to such investor's securities accounts proportionally with
securities amounts set out in such investor's Purchase Underlakings. The number of the Offer Shares to be transferred
lo each securities account may be rounded up or down, as necessary, in order to ensure that & whole number of the
Offer Shares is transferred to each securities account. If the transfer cannol be completed due o the lack of sufficient
funds on the investor's cash account, the Purchase Undertaking of the respective investor will be rejected and the
investor will losa all ights to the Offer Shares allocated to such investor.
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Cancellation of the Offering

The Selling Shareholder reserves the right to cancel the Offering at any time untll it has received full payment for all
Offer Shares, if the Placement Agreement among the Company, the Selling Shareholder and the Lead Manager is
terminated prior to the settiement.

The Offering is conducted on all or nothing basis, i.e. the Offer Shares will be sold only on condition that all the Offer
Shares (excepl for the Addilional Shares which are subject to the Over-Allolment Oplion) are allocaled.

Cancellation of the Offering will ba announced through NASDACG OMX Vilnius. All rights and obligations of the parties in
relation to the cancelled Offering will be considered terminated at the moment when such announcement is made public.

Return of Funds

If the Cffering Is revoked (see Section Cancellation of the Offering. page 125), the investor's Purchase Underlaking Is
rejected, the allocation deviates from the amount of the Offer Shares applied for or the Shares are not allocated to an
investor due to other reasons, then:

1. in the case of the Retail Offering, the funds blocked on the investor's cash account or a part thereof (the amount in
excess of the payment for the allocated Offer Shares) will be released by the Broker not later than on 10 February
2010. The Selling Shareholder will not be liable for the release of the respective amount and for the payment of
interest on the released amount for the time it was blocked;

2. in the case of the Instifufional Offering, the payments already made by the Institutional Investors will be returned not
later than 10 February 2010. The Selling Shareholder will not be liable for the payment of the interest on the
payment amount for the time it was held.

Distribution and Allocation Plan

General Information

The Selling Shareholder together with the Lead Manager will decide on the allocation after determining the Offer Price
after the expiry of the Offer Period, and no later than on 8 February 2010, The Offer Shares will be allocated fo investors
participating in the Offering by the following steps:

1. Division of iranche size for the Retail Offering and the Institutional Cffering. The division of the Offer Shares
between the Institutional Offering and the Retall Offering has not been predetermined. Preliminary it is planned to
sell approximately up to 25% of the Offer Shares in the Retail Offering. The Selling Shareholdar, together with the
Lead Manager, will decide on exact tranche sizes of the Retail Offering and Insfitutional Offering {percantage wisa).

2, location of the Offer i h itutional lnves The Selling Shareholder, together with the Lead
Manager, will decide on the allecation to the Institutional Investors on discretionary basis after the expiry of the
Offer Period.

3. Aliocation of the Offer Shares fo the Relall investors. The Selling Shareholder, together with the Lead Manager, will
determine aliocation percentages applied to the Retail Offering in the following sub steps:

(iy Alfocation of the minfmum amount. Each Retail Investor shall be allocated with the minimum amount of the
Offer Shares indicated in his/herfits Purchase Undertaking but nol exceeding 8,000 Offer Shares. Each
investor will be allocated an integral number of the Offer Shares without fractions, The total minimum amount
of the Offer Shares allocated for all Retail Investors will be caiculated by summing up the minimum amounts
of the Offer Shares allocated o each and every Retail Investor and will be deducted from the total tranche
dedicated to the Retail Investors,

In case the minimum amount of the Offer Shares for the Retall Investors exceeds the total tranche dedicated

minimum number of the Offer Shares allocated to each Retail Investor, in which case it will be |
mirimum amount of allocation (i.e. lower than 8,000 Offer Shares).
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(i) Allocation of the remaining amount. After the deduction of the minimum amount of shares for the Retail
Investors, the remainder of the total tranche dedicated to the Retail Investors will be allocated to the Retail
Investors pro rata (proporfionally). Each investor will be allocated an integral number of the Offer Shares
without fractions. If necessary, the number of the allocated Offer Shares will be rounded down to the closest
integral number of the Offer Shares. Any remaining Offer Shares which cannot be allocated using the
aliocation process described above will be allocated to the largest investors,

An investor may obtain information about the number of the Offer Shares allocated to iWhim/her after the settlement has
been completed by submitting an inquiry to the Broker operating its/hisfher securities account in accordance with the
terms and conditions applied by that Broker.

The Company is not aware whether its shareholders or management members intend o participate in the Offering or
whaether any person intends to subscribe for more than 5% of the Offer Shares.

Announcement of the Allocation Results

The Selling Shareholder expects to announce the Offer Price and the results of the allocation process, including the
division of the Offer Shares between the Institutional Offering and the Retail Offering, through NASDAC OMX Vilnius
and on the Company's website (www linasagro.It).

Over-Allotment Option

The provisions of the Placement Agreement to be signed between the Company, the Selling Shareholder and the Lead
Manager will provide the Lead Manager with an option to purchase up to 8,344,371 Additional Shares at the Offer Price
solely to cover over-allotments, if any. This option is exercisable starting from the date of public disclosure of the final
price for the Offer Shares and end within 30 calendar days after the date of allotment,

Offer Price

Detarmination of the Offer Price Range

Priar to this Offering, there has been no public market for the Shares. Consequently, the Offer Price Range for the Offer
Shares has been determined through discussions among the Company, the Selling Shareholder and the Lead Manager.
Factors refevant to the determination of the Offer Price include the results of operations of the Company, its current
financial conditions, future prospects, markets, the economic conditions in and future prospects for the industry in which
the Company competes, its management, and currently prevailing general conditions in the equity securities markets,
including current market valuations of publicly-traded companies considered comparable to the Company.

Determination of the Offer Price

The Selling Shareholder will decide upon the exact Offer Price in consultation with the Lead Manager after the
completion of the book-building process directed to the Instituticnal Investors in the course of the Institutional Offering,
The Offer Price will be based on the tenders for the Offer Shares obtained from Institutional Investors, also taking into
account the total demand in the Institutional Offering, the price sensitivity of such demand and the quality of the demand,
The Oiffer Price will be in the Offer Price Range. The Offer Price will be the same in the Institutional Offering and in the
Fetail Offering.

The Offer Price will be announced together with the allocation results (see Section Announcement of the Allocation
Resulls, page 126).

Placing and underwriting

Lead Manager of the Offering

Furthermore, Swedbank, AB is acting as the underwriter of the Offering.
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The Placement Agreement to be entered into among the Company, the Selling Shareholder and the Lead Manager will
provide for the obligations of the Lead Manager to offer the Shares on best efforts basis. The Placement Agreement is
planned to be executed no later than 9 February 2010,

The Lead Manager has from time to time performed investment banking and advisory services for the Company or the
Group for which they have received customary fees. The Lead Manager may, from time to time, engage in fransactions
with the Company and perform services for the Company in the ordinary course of its business.

Paying agent and depository agent in Estonia

In connection with the Retail Offering Swedbank AS (business address Liivalaia 8, EE-15040, Tallinn, Estonia) will act as
a paying agent and depository agent in Estonia.

Offering and Transfer Restriclions

General Offering and Transfer Restrictions

This Offering is not directed to persons whose involvement in the Offering requires any extra registration, prospectus or
other measures in addiion lo those necessary under Lithuanian law. No action has been or will be taken in any
jurisdiction other than Lithuania and Estonia where action for that purpose is required, which would permit a public
offering of the Shares or the possession, circulation or distribution of this Prospectus or any material relating to the
Shares offered hereby. Accordingly the Shares may not be offered, sold, resold, allotted or subscribed fo, direcily or
indirectly, and neither this Prospectus nor any other offering material or advertisements in connection with the Shares
may be distributed or published, in or from any other country or jurisdiciion, except under circumstances that will result in
compliance with any applicable rules and regulations of any such country or jurisdiction,

Subject to certain exceptions:

- the Shares may not be offered, sold, resold, granted, delivered, subscribed to, allotted, taken up, transferred or
renounced, directly or indirectly, in or into any jurisdiction in which it would not be permissible to offer such Shares
{referred to as the Ineligible Jurisdictions);

- this Prospectus may not be sent to any person in the Ineligible Jurisdictions:

Subject to certain exemptions, the Brokers are not permitted to send this Prospectus or any other information about the
Offering into any Ineligible Jurisdiction.

Subject to certain exemplions, Purchase Undertakings or instructions sent from or postmarked in any Ineligible
Jurisdiction may be deemed to be invalid. The Selling Shareholder reserves the right to reject any Purchase Undertaking
{or renunciation thereof) in the name of any person who provides an address in an Ineligible Jurisdiction for acceptance,
renunciation, purchase lo or delivery of Shares, who is unable to represent or warrant that such person is not in an
Ineligible Jurisdiction, or who appears to the Selling Shareholder or its agents to have submilted its Purchase
Undertaking, or dispatched it from, an Ineligible Jurisdiction.

For Shareholders in the United States

The Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U5, Securities Act of 1933 (Ihe Securities Act) and may
not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, LS. persons excepl in accordance
with Regulation S under the Securities Act (the Regulation 5) or pursuant fo an exemption from the registration
requirements of the Securities Acl. The Lead Manager represents that it will offer and sell the Shares (i) outside the
United States and to persons who are not U.S. persons, in compliance with Regulation S and, after 40 days after the
later of the commencement of the Offering and the closing date of the Offering, in accordance with Rule 903 of
Regulation S or (i) in compliance with an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, including
Rule 1444 and Regulation D thereunder. Accordingly, neither it, its affiliates nor any person acting on its behall has
engaged or will engage in any directed selling efforts with respect to the Shares, and it and they have complied and will
comply with the offering restriclions requirement of Regulation 5. The Lead Manager agrees that, al or pror to
confirmation of sale of the Shares during the distribution compliance period a confirmation or notice o substantiall
following effect is included:

BENDRUT (%)
SKYRIUS &
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“The securities covered hereby have not been registered under the LS. Securities Acl of 1933 (the Securities
Act) and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, LS. persons
(A) (1) as part of their distribution at any time or (i) otherwise until 40 days after the later of the commencement of
the offering and the closing date of the offering, except in either case in accordance with Regulation S under the
Securities Act or (B) pursuant fo an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. Terms
used above have the meanings given to them by Regulation 5 under the Securities Act.”

Terms used in this Section have the meanings given to them by Regulation 5.

Each purchaser of the Shares purchasing such Shares in accordance with Rule 144A will be deemed to have
represented, agreed and acknowledged that the purchaser is a qualified institutional buyer and is aware that the sale of
the Shares to it is being made in reliance on Rule 144A and such acquisition will be for its own account or for the
account of a qualified institutional buyer.

In making its decision to purchase the Shares, the purchaser understands and acknowledges that:
- it has made its own investment decision regarding the Shares based on its own knowledge;

- it has had access to such information as it deems necessary or appropriate in connection with its purchase of the
Shares;

= it has sufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business matters and expertise in assessing credit,
market and all other relevant risk and is capable of evaluating, and has evalualed independently, the merits, risks
and suitabiiity of purchasing the Shares; and

- the Shares have not been, nor will they be, registered under the Securities Act and may not be re-offered, resold,
pledged or otherwise transferred except (1) (A) to a parson who the purchaser reasonably believes is a qualified
institutional buyer in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 1444, (B) in an offshore transaction complying
with Rule 903 or Rule 904 of Regulation 5 or (C) pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securilies
Act provided by Rule 144 thereunder (if available) and (2) in accordance with all applicable securities laws of the
states of the United States.

For Shareholders outside the United States

Each purchaser of the Shares offered, sold or allotted in reliance on Regulation S will be deemed to have

acknowledged, represented and agreed as follows (terms used in this paragraph that are defined in Regulation S are

used herein as defined therein):

- the purchaser or the subscriber (i) is, and the person, if any, for whose account it is acquiring such Shares is,
outside the United States, and (i) Is acquiring the Shares in an offshore transaction meeting the requirements of
Regulation 5;

- the purchaser or the subscriber is aware that the Shares have not been and will not be registered under the
Securities Act and are being distributed and offered outside the United States in reliance on Regulation 5;

- the Company shall not recognize any offer, subscription to, sale, pledge, or other transfer of the Shares made
other than in compliance with the above-stated restrictions;

- the Shares have not been offered o it by means of any directed selling efforls as defined in Regulation 5 under the
Securities Act;

- the purchaser or the subscriber acknowledges that Company and its affiliates and others will rely upon the truth
and accuracy of the foregoing representations and agreements.
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Admission to Trading and Stabilisation

Admission to Trading on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius

At the date hereof, no securities issued by the Company are admitted to trading on any regulated market. The purpose
of the Offering, among other things, is the subsequent listing of all the Shares on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius. The Company
has applied for the conditional listing of all its Shares in the Main List of NASDAQ OMX Vilnius. The Company will take
all necessary measuras in order to comply with NASDAQ OMX Vilnius rules so that its application will be approved. Itis
expected that the trading of the Shares in NASDAC OMX Vilnius will start no later than 17 February 2010.

Stabilisation and Trading by the Lead Manager

The Lead Manager may affect transactions fo stabilise or maintain the market price of the Shares, in accordance with
applicable laws, starting from the date of public disclosure of the final price for the Offer Shares and ending within 30
calendar days after the date of the allotment. Any such stabilisation activity will be decided by the Lead Manager at its
sole discretion and the Lead Manager is under no obligation to do so, Such stabilisation transactions may result in a
situation where Shares are fraded al a price that is higher than the price thal would have been formed by simple
operation of supply and demand, without the effect of stabilisation. Stabilisation aclivities will be conducled in
accordance with the European Commission Regulation (EC) No 2273/2003 implementing Directive 2003/6/EC of the
European Parliament and the Council as regards exemptions for buyback programs and stabilisation of financial
instruments and will be notified to LSC in a manner prescribed by laws.

In connection with this Offering, the Lead Manager may purchase and sell the Shares. These transactions may include
over-allotment, and stabilising transactions. Over-allotment involves sales of shares in excess of the principal amount of
the Offer Shares to be purchased by lhe Lead Manager in this Offering, which creates a short position for the Lead
Manager. Covering transactions for such short position may involve purchases of the Shares after the distribution has
been completed. Stabilising transactions consist of certain bids or purchases of the Shares made for the purpose of
preventing or retarding a decline in the trading price of the Shares. Any of these aclivities may have the effect of
preventing or retarding a decline in the trading price of the Shares. They may also cause the trading price of the Shares
lo be higher than the price thal otherwise would exist in the absence of such transactions by virtue of tha natural
operation of supply and demand. The Lead Manager may conduc! these transactions in the over-the-counter market or
otherwise. If the Lead Manager commences any of these transactions, it may discontinue them at any time. Other than
as slated above or as required by law, the Lead Manager does not intend to disclose publicly the extent of any over-
allotment made or stabilisation transactions entered into in connection with the Offering, although individual invesiors
may be reguired to disclose interests in the Shares acquired in the Offering or arrangements refated to it in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the applicable Lithuanian law.

Selling Shareholders

General Information

The Offer Shares (together with the Additional Shares which are subject to the Over-Allotment Option) to be sold by the
Selling Shareholder is provided in Tabfe 84, The registration address of the Selling Shareholder is Dampfaergevej 3, DK-
2100 Copenhagen, Denmark.

hhldar !’the Compan

Taha . The Ii :

Akola ApS 47284788 8,344,371

Total 55,629,140

Saurce: the Company

The Selling Shareholder also owns shares in other Group companies, Related Partles and other companies.
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Lock-up

Except for the Offer Shares (including any additional Shares sold pursuant to the Over-Allotment Option), the Company
and the Selling Shareholder have agreed that, without prior writlen consent of the Lead Manager, none of such persons
will issue, offer, sell, contract to sell, or otherwise dispose of any Shares owned by them al any time or any securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for the Shares, or entar into any swap or other agreement or any
transaction to transfer the economic consequence of ownership of the Shares, or publicly announce an intention to effect
any such transaction, during the period commencing on the date of this Prospectus and ending @ months after the
commencement of rading in the Shares on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius,

Expenses of the Offering

The total expenses of the Offering including but not limited to financial audit, legal advice, financial advice and marketing
are estimated to be LTL 6.06 milion based on the midpoint of the Offer Price Range assuming that Over-Allotment
Option is exercised in full. Part of these expenses related to the sale of the Offer Shares amounting to LTL 0.95 million
will be borme by the Selling Shareholder whereas the remaining portion of the expenses related to the issuance of the
MNew Shares amounting to LTL 5.11 million will be paid by the Company.

The Company and the Selling Shareholder has also agreed lo reimburse the Lead Manager for certain expenses and
indemnify it against certain losses and liabilities arising out of or in connection with the Offering.

Dilution

The Offer Shares excluding Additional Shares (in total 47.284,769) represent approximately 39.40% of the share capital
of the Company immediately prior to the Offering, and the Offer Shares including Additional Shares subject to the Over-
Allotment Option (in total 55,629,140) represent approximaltely 46.36% of the share capital of the Company immediately
prior to the Offering.

Immediately after the Offering and the Selling Shareholder acquiring the New Shares (38,940,398), the Offer Shares
being sold as part of the Offering will amount fo 35% of the share capital of the Company provided that the Over-
Allotment Option is exercised in full.

Following the completion of the Offering (and assuming that the Over-Allotment Option has been exercised in full) and

the Selling Shareholder acquiring the New Shares, the latter will hold 49.89% of the Shares and existing individual
shareholders of the Company will hold 15.11% of the Shares,

Additional Information

Legal Advisors

The principal legal advisor to the Company in respect to Lithuanian law is Law Offices Raidla Lejins & Norcous
(official name advokalo Irmanto Norkaus ir partneriy konfora Raidla Lejins & Norcous), address: Lvove 25, LT-09320
Wilnius, Lithuania.

The principal legal advisor 1o the Company In respect to Estonian law is Law Offices Raidla Lejins & Norcous (official
name Raidla Lejins & Norcous Advokaadibiroo OU), address: Roosikrantsi 2, Tallinn, EE-10119, Estonia,

The principal legal advisor lo the Lead Manager in respect to Lithuanian law is Sutkieng, Pilkauskas ir Partneriai,
address: Didzigji 23, LT-01128 Vilnius, Lithuania.
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Appendix 1

Historical financial information presented below has been duly audiled. In particular, the consclidated financial
statements of the Company prepared in accordance to IFRS for the year ended 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2008 have
been audited by UABE Ernst & Young Baltic. To the extent possible, the information contained in this Prospectus is taken
or derived from the aforementioned audited consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Consolidated Financial Statements for year ended 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2008,
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Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of AB Linas Agro Group

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AB Linas Agro Group
(hereinafter the Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of 30 June 2009 and 2008,
the consolidated statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and
notes (comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes).

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Group’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European
Union. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Except as
discussed in section Basis for Qualified Opinion below, we conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing as set forth by the International Federation of Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We did not observe the count of the physical inventories as of 30 June 2007 in a number of the Group
locations comprising the inventories balance of Litas 7,000 thousand, since that date was prior to the
time we were initially engaged as auditors for the Group. We were unable to satisfy ourselves as to
inventory quantities by other audit procedures. Therefore, we are unable to quantify the effect of this
inventory balance as of 30 June 2007 on the consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the
year ended 30 June 2008.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global
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Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be
necessary had we been able to observe the inventory count as described above, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Group as of 30 June 2009 and 2008, and their financial performance and their cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European
Union.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, we have read the consolidated Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2009 presented
to us in a separate document and have not noted any material inconsistencies between the financial
information included in it and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009.

UAB ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC
Audit company'’s licence No. 001335

Raminas Bartaius Asta Streimikiené
Auditor’s licence Auditor's licence
No. 000362 No. 000382

According to power of attorney
No. 2009/10/23

The audit was completed on 30 October 2009.



AB LINAS AGRO GROUP, company code 148030011, Smélynés Str. 2C, Panevézys

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated balance sheets
Asof30 Asof30 Asof30

Notes ; ne 2009 June 2008 June 2007

ASSETS (restated) (restated)
Non-current assets

Intangible assets 6 85 84 82
Property, plant and equipment 7 94,132 77,732 72,704
Investment property 8 8,176 19,017 12,573
Animals and livestock 12 6,502 7,188 7,625
Non-current financial assets
Investments into associates ] 207 595 1,006
Investments into joint ventures 9 21,561 18,635 16,396
Other investments 10 5,919 604 735
Non-current receivables 11 4727 6,995 11,412
Non-current loans receivable from related parties 38 16,991 25,746 13,251
Total non-current financial assets 49,405 52,575 42,800
Deferred income tax asset 34 1,950 7,091 318
Total non-current assets 160,250 157,687 136,102
Current assets
Crops 12 17,214 14,439 12,044
Inventories 13 63,918 104,427 39,096
Prepayments 14 17,380 16,885 19,407
Accounts receivable
Trade receivables 15 98,128 116,244 82,385
Receivables from related parties 38 12,842 5,520 2,759
Other accounts receivable 16 8,339 8,866 8,155
Total accounts receivable 119,309 130,630 93,299
Financial instruments held for trading 17 o967 - -
Investment held for sale 18 - - 831
Restricted cash 19 - 2,315 2,319
Cash and cash equivalents 20 8,190 7,826 7,973
Total current assets 226,978 276,522 174,969
Total assets 387,228 434,209 311,071

(cont'd on the next page)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



AB LINAS AGRO GROUP, company code 148030011, Smélynés Str. 2C, PanevéZys
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated balance sheets (cont’d)

Notes Asof30 Asof30 Asof30

June 2009 June 2008 June 2007
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (restated) (restated)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital 1 41,000 86 86
Share premium 1 121,911 - -
Legal reserve 21 10 10 10
Foreign currency translation reserve 21 (297) (130) (21)
Retained earnings (18,657) 121,848 80,911
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 143,967 121,814 80,986
Minority interest 12,104 10,361 15,560
Total equity 156,071 132,175 96,546
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Grants and subsidies 22 11,810 11,849 13,263
Non-current borrowings 23 27,972 57,558 25,874
Finance lease obligations 24 2,308 2,327 1,697
Deferred income tax liability 34 1,871 802 1,171
Total non-current liabilities 43,961 72,536 42,005
Current liabilities
Current portion of non-current borrowings 23 40,787 9,907 6,303
Current portion of finance lease obligations 24 1,138 1,270 936
Current borrowings 23 80,336 118,121 75,582
Trade payables 26 39,992 63,205 64,594
Payables to related parties 38 4,608 17,849 7,491
Advances received 27 232 436 8,035
Income tax payable 4,248 7,609 4,070
Provisions 28 5,433 80 -
Other current liabilities 29 10,422 11,021 5,509
Total current liabilities 187,196 229,498 172,520
Total equity and liabilities 387,228 434,209 311,071
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financi

Managing Director Darius Zubas =) /7 30 October 2009
Finance Director Tomas Tuménas 30 October 2009




AB LINAS AGRO GROUP, company code 148030011, Smélynés Str. 2C, Panevézys
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated income statements

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating (expenses)

Other operating income

Other operating (expenses)
Operating profit

Income from financing activities
(Expenses) from financing activities
Gain from disposal of investments into associates
Share of profit of associates

Share of profit of joint ventures
Profit before tax

Income tax

Net profit

Attributable to:
The equity holders of the parent

Minority interest

Basic and diluted earnings per share (LTL)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial Statementg.

Managing Director Darius Zubas

Notes Financial year ended
30 June  30June 30 June
2009 2008 2007

(restated) (restated)

5 1,113,880 907,006 661,371
30 (1,038,141) (831,077) (618,604)
75,739 75,929 42,767
31 (35,025) (26,117) (25,849)
32 5,253 4,519 10,723
32 (1,436) (2,130) (1,172)
44,531 52,201 26,469

33 3,338 2,598 828
33 (11,599) (13,614) (7,202)
9 - 785 -
9 113 450 106
9 3,965 7,566 2,021
40,348 49,986 22,222
34 (8,577) (8,717) (4,199)
31,77 41,269 18,023

28,114 38,394 16,737

3,657 2,875 1,286

31,771 41,269 18,023

35 0.69 0.94 0.41

L~ 1 30 October 2009

Finance Director Tomas Tuménas

30 October 2009




AB LINAS AGRO GROUP, company code 148030011, Smélynés Str. 2C, Panevézys
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated statements of changes in equity

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Foreign
currency
Share  Share Legal translation Retained Minority
Notes capital premium reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interest Total

Balance as of 30 June 2006

(as stated earlier) 86 - 10 - 30,470 30,566 12,229 42,795
Effect of business combinations

involving entities under common 2.3.,3,

control 4 - - - - 30,212 30,212 5,790 36,002
Balance as of 30 June 2006

(restated) 86 - 10 - 60,682 60,778 18,019 78,797
Change in foreign currency translation

reserve (restated) - - - (21) - (21) - (21)
Net profit for the year (restated) _ _ _ _ 16.737 16.737 1286 18.023
Total income and (expense) for the

year (restated) - - - 21) 16,737 16,716 1,286 18,002
Disposal to minority _ - _ . 14 14 16 30
Disposal of subsidiaries (restated) 4 _ _ _ _ _ _ (373) (373)
Discounting effect on non-interest

bearing loan from minority 23 - - - - - - 648 648
Minority interest arising on acquisition

of subsidiaries (restated) 4 - - - - - - 127 127
Acquisition of minority interest 4 _ . _ _ 3478 3478 (4 163) (685)
Balance as of 30 June 2007

(restated) 86 - 10 (21) 80,911 80,986 15,560 96,546
Change in foreign currency translation

reserve (restated) - - - (109) - (109) - (109)
Net profit for the year (restated) _ _ _ . 38.394 38.394 2 875 41269
Total income and (expense) for the

year (restated) - - - (109) 38,394 38,285 2,875 41,160
Dividends declared by Rosenkrantz A/S

(restated) - - - - (1,084)  (1,084) (723) (1,807)
Acquisition of minority interest

(restated) 4 - - - - 3,627 3,627 (7,351)  (3,724)
Balance as of 30 June 2008

(restated) 86 - 10 (130) 121,848 121,814 10,361 132,175
Change in foreign currency translation

reserve - - - (167) - (167) 5 (162)
Net profit for the year : - - - 28114 2814 3,657 31,771
Total income and (expense) for the

year - - - (167) 28,114 27,947 3,662 31,609
Issue of share capital 1 40914 121911 - - (157,202) 5623 - 5623
Payment for Rosenkrantz A/S shares 4 _ ~ _ _ (9 000) (9 000) _ (9 000)
Dividends declared by Rosenkrantz A/S _ . _ _ (1,740)  (1,740) (1,158)  (2,898)
Minority interest arising on acquisition

of subsidiaries 4 - - - - - - 546 546
Acquisition of minority interest 4 _ _ _ - (677) (677) (1,307) (1,984)
Balance as of 30 June 2009 41,000 121,911 10/ (d7)  (18,657) 143967 12,104 156,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statgments.
Managing Director Darius Zubas = 30 October 2009

Finance Director

Tomas Tuménas

30 October 2009




AB LINAS AGRO GROUP, company code 148030011, Smélynés Str. 2C, Panevézys
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated cash flow statements

Cash flows from (to) operating activities

Net profit

Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation

Subsidies amortisation

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures

(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and investment property
Impairment of investments

Negative goodwill recognised as income

Change in foreign currency translation reserve

(Gain) from disposal of investments

Change in allowance for receivables and prepayments
Inventories write down to net realisable value

Change in accrued expenses

Change in fair value of biological assets

Change in deferred income tax

Current income tax expenses

(Income) from change in value of financial instruments
Provision for onerous contracts

Dividend (income)

Interest (income)

Interest expenses

Changes in working capital:

(Increase) decrease in biological assets

Decrease (increase) in inventories

(Increase) decrease in prepayments

Decrease (increase) in trade and other accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash

(Decrease) increase in trade and other accounts payable
Income tax (paid)

Net cash flows from (to) operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

6,7,8

22

32
7.8
32

32
31
13
29
30
34
34
30
30
32
33
33

Financial year ended
30June 30June 30 June
2009 2008 2007
(restated) (restated)
31,771 41,269 18,023
7,839 5,976 6,102
(1,425) (1,489) (2,789)
(4,078) (8,016) (2,127)
(488) (207) (492)
1,425 1,650 -
27 78 -
(6) - -
(162) (109) (21)
(2,142) (1,001) (9,131)
3,485 2,109 468
868 2,555 -
2,180 1,752 343
345 (1,829) (4,065)
241 (1,142) (396)
8,336 9,859 4,595
(967) - -
5,433 80 -
- (279) (303)
(3,338) (2,598) (828)
11,599 13,614 7,202
60,943 62,272 16,581
(2,070) 210 1,195
39,904 (67,418) (27,031)
(489) 606 (4,859)
14,218 (32,434) (17,830)
2,315 4 4)
(42,455) 6,630 29,664
(7,851) (6,320) (1,686)
64,515 (36,450) (3,970)

(cont'd on the next page)



AB LINAS AGRO GROUP, company code 148030011, Smeélynés Str. 2C, Panevézys
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated cash flow statements (cont’d)

Notes Financial year ended
30June 30June 30 June
2009 2008 2007
Cash flows from (to) investing activities (restated) (restated)
(Acquisition) of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and 6,7,8
investment property (20,645)  (18,620) (8,873)
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
and investment property 1,788 1,413 955
Acquisition of subsidiaries (less received cash balance in the Group) 4 (8,895) - 253
Disposal of subsidiaries (less disposed cash balance in the Group) 4 (180) - 12,818
(Acquisition) of minority interest and other investments 4 (7,529) (3,724) (685)
Proceeds from sales of other investments 197 2,250 150
Loans (granted) 38 (2,098)  (11,655)  (12,970)
Repayment of granted loans 9,606 356 3,043
Interest received 1,550 1,402 778
Dividends received 9,32 1,180 4,100 686
Net cash flows (to) investing activities (25,926)  (24,478) (3,845)
Cash flows from (to) financing activities
Issue of share capital 1 5,623 - -
Proceeds from loans 648,766 656,456 134,569
(Repayment) of loans (676,555) (578,629) (123,663)
Financial lease (payments) (1,562) (1,625) (1,477)
Interest (paid) (11,599)  (13,614) (6,423)
Dividends (paid) (2,898) (1,807) -
Net cash flows (to) from financing activities (38,225) 60,781 3,006
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 364 (147) (4,809)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20 7,826 7,973 12,782
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 8,190 7,826 7,973
Supplemental information of cash flows:
Non-cash investing activity:
Property, plant and equipment acquisitions financed by finance lease 1,411 2,589 854
Property, plant and equipment acquisitions financed by grants and 2
subsidies 1,442 795 894
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stafementk.
Managing Director Darius Zubas O il W, 30 October 2009
Finance Director Tomas Tuménas / e 30 October 2009
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AB LINAS AGRO GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements
General information

AB Linas Agro Group (hereinafter the Company or the parent) is a public limited liability company registered in the
Republic of Lithuania. The Company was registered on 27 November 1995. The address of its registered office is as
follows:

Smeélynés Str. 2C,
Panevézys,
Lithuania.

The principal activities of the Group are described in Note 5.
The financial year of the Group starts on 1 July of the calendar year and ends on 30 June the following calendar year.

As of 30 June 2009, 2008 and 2007 the shareholders of the Company were:

As of 30 June 2009 As of 30 June 2008 and 2007

Number of Number of

shares held Percentage shares held Percentage
Darius Zubas 5,822,000 14.20 % - -
Vytautas Sidlauskas 2,055,034 5.01% - -
Akola ApS (Denmark) 32,795,190 79.99 % 39,193 91 %
Ariinas Zubas 163,888 0.40 % - -
Dainius Pilkauskas 163,888 0.40 % - -
Tomas Sidlauskas - - 3,876 9%
Total 41,000,000 100.00 % 43,069 100 %

All the shares of the Company are ordinary shares with the par value of LTL 1 each as of 30 June 2009 (LTL 2 each as
of 30 June 2008 and 2007) and were fully paid as of 30 June 2009, 2008 and 2007. The Company, its subsidiaries and
other related parties did not hold any shares of the Company as of 30 June 2009, 2008 and 2007.

On 30 July 2008 AB Linas Agro Group share capital was increased by issuing 31,931 ordinary shares with the par
value of LTL 2 each (in total LTL 64 thousand), which was fully paid by the main shareholder Akola ApS. The new
share capital and by-laws were registered on 12 September 2008.

On 12 September 2008 former UAB Agriveta changed its name to AB Linas Agro Group and the legal form from
private to public limited liability company.

On 29 September 2008 AB Linas Agro Group share capital was increased by issuing 20,425,000 ordinary shares with
the par value of LTL 2 each. The new issue was paid as follows:
Amount of acquired

Acquirer Number of shares share capital

Mr. Darius Zubas 10,587,298 21,174

Mr. Vytautas Sidlauskas 5,999,469 11,999

Akola ApS (Denmark) 2,779,503 5,559

Mr. Dainius Pilkauskas 529,365 1,059

Mr. Arlinas Zubas 529,365 1,059
20,425,000 40,850

The issued shares acquired by Akola ApS were paid in cash in the amount of LTL 5,559 thousand. The shares
acquired by other persons were paid by contributing 100 % of AB Linas Agro shares as a contribution in kind valued at
LTL 157,202 thousand. As the price of the share issue was LTL 162,761 thousand, the amount of LTL 121,911
thousand was accounted for as share premium.

The new share capital and by-laws were registered on 1 October 2008.
On 15 January 2009 the par value of the Company’s shares was decreased from LTL 2to LTL 1.

As of 30 June 2009 part of the shares of the Company was contributed by the individuals to the share capital of
Akola ApS.

As of 30 June 2009 the number of employees of the Group was 542 (507 as of 30 June 2008 and 490 as of
30 June 2807).

The Company’'s management approved these financial statements on 30 October 2009. The shareholders of

the Company have a statutory right to approve these financial statements or not to approve them and to require
preparation of a new set of financial statements.
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AB LINAS AGRO GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles

The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2009 are as follows:

2.1. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments held for trading
that have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
adopted by the European Union (hereinafter the EU).

Restatement

The comparative information for the years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007 was restated in these financial statements
due to the effect of business combinations involving entities under common control (Note 2.3.). The reconciliation of
the comparative information as previously presented and following the business combinations with AB Linas Agro
subgroup and Rosenkrantz A/S is presented in Note 3.

Adoption of new and/or changed IFRSs and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) interpretations

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations during the year:

— Amendments to |AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial Assets;

- IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions;

— IFRIC 13 — Customer Loyalty Programmes.

The principal effects of these changes are as follows:
Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7 — Reclassification of Financial Assets

Through these amendments the IASB implemented additional options for reclassification of certain financial
instruments categorised as held-for-trading or available-for-sale under specified circumstances. Related disclosures
were added to IFRS 7. The Group did not have financial instruments in the scope of these amendments.

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The interpretation provides guidance on classification of transactions as equity-settled or as cash-settled and also
gives guidance on how to account for share-based payment arrangements that involve two or more entities within the
same group in the individual financial statements of each group entity. The Group has not issued instruments in the
scope of this interpretation.

IFRIC 13 — Custorner Loyalty Programmes

This interpretation requires customer loyalty award credits to be accounted for as a separate component of the sales
transaction in which they are granted and therefore part of the fair value of the consideration received is allocated to

the award credit and deferred over the period that the award credit is fulfilled. The Group does not maintain customer
loyalty programmes, therefore, the interpretation has no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations that have been issued as of the date of
authorisation of these financial statements for issue, but which are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment.

The first amendment is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 20089. It clarifies the definition of a
vesting condition and prescribes the treatment for an award that is effectively cancelled. The second amendment is
effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2010 (once adopted by the EU) and clarifies the scope and
the accounting for group cash-settled share-based payment transactions. The amendments will have no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group, as the Group does not have share-based payments.
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AB LINAS AGRO GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting policies (cont'd)

2.1. Basis of preparation (cont’d)

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
(effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009).

Revised IFRS 3 (IFRS 3R) introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business combinations that will
impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs, and future
reported results. IAS 27R requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is
accounted for as an equity transaction. Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give
rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the
subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. Other consequential amendments were made to IAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, |1AS 12 Income Taxes, |AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, 1AS 28
Investments in Associates and IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. In accordance with the transitional requirements of
these amendments, the Group will adopt them as a prospective change. Accordingly, assets and liabilities arising from
business combinations prior to the date of application of the revised standards will not be restated.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2009 once adopted by the EU).

The amendments improve disclosure requirements about fair value measurement and enhance existing principles for
disclosures about liquidity risk associated with financial instruments. The amendments will have no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group. The Group is still evaluating whether additional disclosures wilt be
needed.

Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2009).

This amendment introduces a number of changes, including introduction of a new terminology, revised presentation of
equity transactions and introduction of a new statement of comprehensive income as well as amended requirements
related to the presentation of the financial statements when they are restated retrospectively. The Group is still
evaluating whether it will present all items of recognised income and expense in one single statement or in two linked
statements.

Amendment to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009).

The revised standard eliminates the option of expensing all borrowing costs and requires borrowing costs to be
capitalised if they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. In
accordance with the transitional requirements of the Standard, the Group will adopt this as a prospective change.
Accordingly, borrowing costs will be capitalised on qualifying assets with a commencement date after 30 June 2009.
No changes will be made for borrowing costs incurred to this date that have been expensed.

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation (effective for financial years beginning on or after
1 January 2009).

The revisions provide a limited scope exception for puttable instruments to be classified as equity if they fulfil a number
of specified features. The amendments to the standards will have no impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group, as the Group has not issued such instruments.

Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items (effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009).

The amendment addresses the designation of a one-sided risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as a
hedged risk or portion in particular situations. It clarifies that an entity is permitted to designate a portion of the fair
value changes or cash flow variability of a financial instrument as hedged item. The amendment will have no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group, as the Group has not entered into any such hedges.

Improvements to IFRSs

In May 2008 and April 2009 IASB issued omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard. The adoption of
the following amendments may result in changes to accounting policies but are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

— IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: clarifies that the disclosures required in
respect of non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale or discontinued operations are only
those set out in IFRS 5. The disclosure requirements of other IFRSs only apply if specifically required for such
non-current assets or discontinued operations.
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AB LINAS AGRO GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting policies (cont’d)
2.1. Basis of preparation (cont'd)

- IFRS 8 Operating Segment Information: clarifies that segment assets and liabilities need only be reported when
those assets and liabilities are included in measures that are used by the chief operating decision maker.

—~ 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: assets and liabilities classified as held for trading in accordance with
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are not automatically classified as current in the
statement of financial position.

— IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: explicitly states that only expenditure that results in recognising an asset can be
classified as a cash flow from investing activities.

— IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. replaces the term ‘net selling price’ with ‘fair value less costs to sell’.

- IAS 18 Revenue: the Board has added guidance (which accompanies the standard) to determine whether an
entity is acting as a principal or as an agent. The features to consider are whether the entity:

e has primary responsibility for providing the goods or service;
e has inventory risk;

¢ has discretion in establishing prices;

e bears the credit risk.

-~ 1AS 20 Accounting for Govemnment Grants and Disclosures of Govemment Assistance: loans granted with no or
low interest will not be exempt from the requirement to impute interest. Interest is to be imputed on loans granted
with below-market interest rates.

— 1AS 23 Borrowing Costs: the definition of borrowing costs is revised to consolidate the two types of items that are
considered components of ‘borrowing costs’ into one — the interest expense calculated using the effective interest
rate method calculated in accordance with IAS 39.

—  |AS 36 Impairmment of Assets: when discounted cash flows are used to estimate ‘fair value less cost to sell
additional disclosure is required about the discount rate, consistent with disclosures required when the discounted
cash flows are used to estimate ‘value in use’. The amendment clarified that the largest unit permitted for
allocating goodwill, acquired in a business combination, is the operating segment as defined in IFRS 8 before
aggregation for reporting purposes.

- |IAS 38 Intangible Assets: expenditure on advertising and promotional activities is recognised as an expense when
the Group either has the right to access the goods or has received the service. The reference to there being
rarely, if ever, persuasive evidence to support an amortisation method of intangible assets other than a straight-
line method has been removed.

Other amendments resulting from Improvements to IFRSs to the following standards will not have any impact on the
accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group:

- IFRS 2 Share-based Payment

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

— IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors
- [AS 10 Events after the Reporting Period

- |AS 19 Employee Benefits

— |AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

— |IAS 28 Investments in Associates

— |AS 31 Interests in Joint ventures

-~ 1AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

— 1AS 38 Infangible Assets

-~ 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

— 1AS 40 Investment Properly

- IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

- IFRIC 16 Hedge of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
Amendments to IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and |AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement — Embedded derivatives (effective for financial years ending on or after 30 June 2009 once adopted by
the EU).

The amendments clarify the accounting treatment of embedded derivatives for entities that make use of the
reclassification amendment to IAS 39 and IFRS 7 issued in October 2008. The Group does not have financial
instruments in the scope of these amendments.
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AB LINAS AGRO GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting policies (cont’d)

2.1. Basis of preparation (cont’d)
IFRIC 12 — Service Concession Arrangements (effective for financial years beginning on or after 29 March 2009).

This interpretation applies to service concession operators and explains how to account for the obligations undertaken
and rights received in service concession arrangements. No member of the Group is an operator and, therefore, this
interpretation has no impact on the Group.

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
(effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009).

This interpretation specifies the conditions for recognising a net asset for a defined benefit pension plan. The Group
does not have defined benefit plans.

IFRIC 15 Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2009).

The interpretation clarifies when and how revenue and related expenses from the sale of a real estate unit should be
recognised if an agreement between a developer and a buyer is reached before the construction of the real estate is
completed. Furthermore, the interpretation provides guidance on how to determine whether an agreement is within the
scope of IAS 11 or IAS 18. The Group does not conduct such activity, therefore, this interpretation will not have an
impact on the financial statements.

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (effective for financial years beginning on or after
1 October 2008).

The interpretation provides guidance on the accounting for a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation.
IFRIC 16 will not have an impact on the financial statements because the Group does not have hedges of net
investments.

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009
once adopted by the EU).

The interpretation provides guidance on the appropriate accounting treatment when an entity distributes assets other
than cash as dividends to its shareholders. IFRIC 17 will not have an impact on the financial statements because
the Group does not distribute non-cash assets to owners.

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (effective for transfers of assets received on or after 1 July 2009 once
adopted by the EU).

The interpretation provides guidance on accounting for agreements in which an entity receives from a customer an
item of property, plant and equipment that the entity must then use either to connect the customer to a network or to
provide the customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services (such as a supply of electricity, gas or
water). IFRIC 18 will not have an impact on the financial statements because the Group does not have such
agreements.

2.2, Functional and presentation currency

The amounts shown in these financial statements are presented in the local currency of the Republic of Lithuania,
Litas (LTL). The functional currency of the Group companies operating in Lithuania is Litas. The functional currency of
Rosenkrantz A/S, which operates in Denmark, is Danish Krone (DKK). The functional currency of SIA Linas Agro,
which operates in Latvia, is Latvian Lat (LVL).

Starting from 2 February 2002, Lithuanian Litas is pegged to EUR at the rate of 3.4528 Litas for 1 EUR, and the
exchange rates of Litas in relation to other currencies are set daily by the Bank of Lithuania.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency as of the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of
exchange as at the balance sheet date.

As applicable, the assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Litas at the reporting date using the
rate of exchange as of the balance sheet date, and their income statements are translated at the weighted average
exchange rates. The exchange differences arising on this translation are taken directly to a separate component of
equity. On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.
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AB LINAS AGRO GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.3. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting date, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date from which effective control is transferred to the Group and cease to be
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. All intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains and losses on transactions among the Group companies have been eliminated. The equity and
net income attributable to minority shareholders’ interests are shown separately in the balance sheet and the income
statement.

Acquisitions of minority interest by the Group are accounted for using the Entity concept method, i.e. the difference
between the carrying value of the net assets acquired from the minority in the Group’s financial statements and the
acquisition price is accounted for directly in equity.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is
initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit, to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

The excess of the acquired interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of the investment remaining after the reassessment of the identification and measurement of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities and the measurement of the cost of the combination is
recognised in the income statement immediately.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Business combinations involving entities under common control

Business combination involving entities under common control is a transaction in which all of the combining entities are
controlled by the same party or parties before and after the transaction and that control is not transitory.

As business combinations involving entities under common control are excluded from IFRS 3 scope, the Company’s
management applies judgment to determine an appropriate accounting policy for such transactions and applied a
pooling of interest method for accounting for acquisition of AB Linas Agro and Rosenkrantz A/S shares (Note 4).

The previous carrying values of AB Linas Agro subgroup (per its consolidated IFRS financial statements) and
Rosenkrantz A/S (per its separate IFRS financial statements) were used for inclusion in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The comparative information of the Group was restated to reflect the combination of

AB Linas Agro subgroup and Rosenkrantz A/S as if it had occurred from the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements, regardiess of the actual date of the combination. The reconciliation of the comparative
information as previously presented and following the business combinations with AB Linas Agro subgroup and
Rosenkrantz A/S is presented in Note 3.

24. Investments into associates

The Group recognises its interests in the associates applying the equity method. An associate is an entity in which the
Group has significant influence. The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting year as
the Group, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. Impairment assessment of investments into associates is performed when there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired or the impairment losses recognised in prior years no longer exist.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate.
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AB LINAS AGRO GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.5. Investments into joint ventures

The Group has an interest in jointly controlled entities (hereinafter joint ventures). A joint venture is a contractual
arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control, and a jointly
controlled entity is a joint venture that involves the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has an
interest. The Group recognises its interests in the joint ventures applying the equity method. The financial statements
of the joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting year as the Group, using consistent accounting policies.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. Impairment assessment of
investments into joint ventures is performed when there is an indication that the asset may be impaired or the
impairment losses recognised in prior years no longer exist. i

When the Group contributes or sells assets to the joint venture, any portion of gain or loss from the transaction is
recognised based on the substance of the transaction. When the Group purchases assets from the joint venture, the
Group does not recognise its share of the profits of the joint venture from the transaction until it resells the asset to an
independent party.

2.6. Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Intangible assets are recognised if it is probable that
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of asset can be
measured reliably. The useful lives of intangible assets can be either definite or indefinite.

Atfter initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the best estimate of their useful lives.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired.

The useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent
with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items in intangible assets other than goodwill.

The Group does not have any intangible assets other than goodwill with indefinite useful life.
Licenses

Amounts paid for licences are capitalised and then amortised over their validity period of 3 - 4 years.
Software

The costs of acquisition of new software are capitalised and treated as an intangible asset if these costs are not an
integral part of the related hardware. Software is amortised over a period of 3 - 4 years.

Costs incurred in order to restore or maintain the future economic benefits that the Group expects from the originally
assessed standard of performance of existing software systems are recognised as an expense when the restoration or
maintenance work is carried out.

2.7. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable purchase
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment is ready for its intended use, such as repair and
maintenance costs, are normally charged to the income statement in the period the costs are incurred.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following useful lives:

Buildings and structures 15 - 40 years
Machinery and equipment 4 - 15 years
Vehicles 4 - 10 years
Other property, plant and equipment 3-10 years

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent
with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items in property, plant and equipment.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont'd)
2.7. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement in the
year the asset is derecognised.

Construction in progress is stated at cost. This includes the cost of construction, plant and equipment and other
directly attributable costs. Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until the relevant assets are completed and put
into operation.

2.8. Investment property

Investment property is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and is adjusted for recognised
impairment loss.

The initial cost of investment property comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable purchase taxes and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures
incurred after the property, plant and equipment is ready for its intended use, such as repair and maintenance costs,
are normally charged to the income statement in the period the costs are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write-off the cost of each asset to their residual values over
their estimated useful life of 20 years.

An item of investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised.

Transfers to and from investment property are made only when there is an evidence of change in an asset’s use.
2.9. Financial assets

According to 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” the Group’s financial assets are classified
as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. All purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The category financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes financial assets classified as held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Gains
or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments that are intended to be
held-to-maturity are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Receivables are initially recorded at the fair value of the consideration given. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Allowance for doubtful receivables is evaluated when there are indications leading to the impairment of accounts
receivable. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are
derecognised (written off) when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.9. Financial assets (cont’'d)
Available-for-sale financial asseis

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses (except for impairment and gain or losses from foreign
currencies exchange) being recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until
the investment is determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is
included in the income statement. Where the fair value of the available for sale financial assets cannot be measured
reliably these assets are accounted for at cost.

2.10. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,
- the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or
- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.11. Biological assets
The Group's biological assets include animals and livestock and crops.

Animals and livestock are accounted for at fair value less point-of-sale costs. The fair value of milking cows is
measured using discounted cash flows method. Other livestock is measured at comparable market prices.

Crops are accounted for at fair value less point-of-sale costs. The fair value of crops is measured using discounted
cash flows method.

Agricultural production harvested from an entity’s biological assets is measured at its fair value less estimated point-of-
sale costs at the point of harvest. Such measurement is further the cost of inventories.

2.12. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after impairment evaluation for obsolete and slow
moving items. Net realisable value is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion,
marketing and distribution. Cost of raw materials that are not ordinarily interchangeable and are segregated for specific
projects is determined using specific identification method; cost of other inventory is determined by the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress includes the applicable allocation of fixed and variable
overhead costs based on a normal operating capacity. Unrealisable inventory has been fully written-off.

2.13. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in current bank
accounts as well as deposits in bank with original term of three months or less.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.14. Financial liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of proceeds received less the costs of transaction. They are
subsequently carried at amortised cost, the difference between net proceeds and redemption value being recognised
in the net profit or loss over the period of the borrowings. Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred. Borrowings are
classified as non-current if the completion of a refinancing agreement before the balance sheet date provides evidence
that the substance of the liability at the balance sheet date was long-term.

Factoring

A factoring transaction is a funding transaction where the Group transfers to the factor claim rights from a debtor for a
determined reward. The Group alienates the rights to receivables due at a future date according to invoices. The
Group's factoring transactions comprise factoring transactions with recourse (the factor is entitled to selling the
overdue claim back to the Group). The factoring expenses comprise the lump-sum contract fee charged on the
conclusion of the contract, commission fees charged for processing the invoices, and interest expenses depending on
the duration of the payment term set by the debtor. Factored accounts receivable with recourse are recorded under
current borrowings and trade receivables captions in the financial statements.

Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantee liabilities issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date
and the amount initially recognised.

Trade liabilities

Trade liabilities are non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Such liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in income statement when the trade liabilities are derecognised, as well as through the amortisation
process.

2.15. Finance and operating leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Finance lease

The Group recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in the balance sheet at amounts equal at the inception of
the lease to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, to the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
rate of discount used when calculating the present value of minimum payments of finance lease is the interest rate of
finance lease payment, when it is possible to determine it, in other cases, the Group's incremental interest rate on
borrowings applies. Directly attributable initial costs are included into the asset value. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

The depreciation is accounted for finance lease assets. The depreciation policy for leased assets is consistent with
that for depreciable assets that are owned. The leased assets are not depreciated over the period longer than the
lease term, unless the Group, according to the lease contract, gets transferred their ownership after the lease term is
over.

Operating lease

Leases where the lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.16. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The Group re-evaluates provisions at each balance
sheet date and adjusts them in order to present the most reasonable current estimate. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, the amount of provision is equal to the present value of the expenses, which are expected to be
incurred to settle the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a borrowing cost.

Onerous contracts provision

Onerous contracts provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) to purchase
or sell the goods from / to a third party in the future for a price higher / lower than the market selling price at the
balance sheet date. The difference between the value of the contract and its selling price at the balance sheet date is
charged to cost of sales in the income statement.

2.17. Grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies (hereinafter “grants”) received in the form of non-current assets or intended for the purchase,
construction or other acquisition of non-current assets are considered as asset-related grants. The amount of the asset
related grants is recognised in the financial statements as used in parts according to the depreciation of the assets
associated with this grant. In the income statement, a relevant expense account is reduced by the amount of grant
amortisation.

Grants received as a compensation for the expenses or unearned income of the current or previous reporting period,
also, all the grants, which are not grants related to assets, are considered as grants related to income. The income-
related grants are recognised as used in parts to the extent of the expenses incurred during the reporting period or
unearned income to be compensated by that grant.

2.18. Income tax

The Group companies are taxed individually, irrespective of the overall results of the Group. Income tax charge is
based on profit for the year and considers deferred taxation. The charge for taxation included in these financial
statements is based on the calculation made by the management in accordance with tax legislation of the Republic of
Lithuania and respective countries, where the Group companies are registered.

The standard income tax rate in Lithuania for the Group companies in the year ended 30 June 2009 is 15 %, starting
from 1 July 2009 — 20 %. In the year ended 30 June 2008 the standard income tax rate was 15 % and an additional
3 % temporary social tax was added. In the year ended 30 June 2007 the standard income tax rate was 15 % and an
additional 4 % temporary social tax was added.

Certain tax provisions are applicable to the agricultural entities: if the share of agricultural products supplied and
services provided to the entities engaged in agncultural activities exceeds 50 % of the total sales of the legal entities
producing agricultural products and specialised service companies, these entities were not subject to income tax tilt 30
June 2009. The entities of the Group which were not subject to income tax are Z0B Luksiai, ZUB Sidabravas,

Z0B Medeikiai, ZUB Aukstadvaris, ZUB Landvesta 1, ZUB Landvesta 2, ZUB Landvesta 3, ZUB Landvesta 4, ZUB
Landvesta 5 and ZUB Landvesta 6. For the year ended 30 June 2010 the income tax rate for these companies will be
5 % (10 % and 20 % for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2012 and afterwards, respectively).

Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinite period, except for the losses incurred as a result of disposal of
securities and/or derivative financial instruments. Such carrying forward is disrupted if the company changes its
activities due to which these losses incurred except when the company does not continue its activities due to reasons
which do not depend on the company itself. The losses from disposal of securities and/or derivative financial
instruments can be carried forward for 5 consecutive years and only be used to reduce the taxable income earned
from the transactions of the same nature.

Income tax for the foreign subsidiaries is accounted for according to tax legislation of those foreign countries. The
standard income tax rates in the foreign countries are as follows:

Republic of Latvia 15 %
Denmark 25%

20



AB LINAS AGRO GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont’'d)
2.18. Income tax (cont’d)

Deferred taxes are calculated using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected
to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settied
based on tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in the balance sheet o the extent the management believes they will be
realised in the foreseeable future, based on taxable profit forecasts. If it is believed that part of the deferred tax is not
going to be realised, this part of the deferred tax asset is not recognised in the financial statements.

2.19. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
enterprise and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Sales are recognised net of VAT and discounts.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when delivery has taken place and transfer of risks and rewards has been
completed.

The Group sells seeds, fertilisers and other related inputs to farmers on the deferred payment terms until the harvest is
taken and then receivable is paid or offset with harvested grain by the farmers. The Group recognises the sale of
inputs at the moment of transfer to farmers as the risk and rewards are transferred at that moment while revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue from services is recognised when services are rendered.

If the Group is acting as an agent for the supplier in its relationship with the customer, only the net amount of
commission retained is recognised as revenue.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis (by using effective interest rate). Dividend income is recognised
when dividends attributable to the Group are declared.

2.20. Expense recognition

Expenses are recognised on the basis of accrual and revenue and expense matching principles in the reporting period
when the income related to these expenses was earned, irrespective of the time the money was spent. In those cases
when the costs incurred cannot be directly attributed to the specific income and they will not bring income during the
future periods, they are expensed as incurred.

The amount of expenses is usually accounted for as the amount paid or due to be paid, excluding VAT. In those cases
when long period of payment is established and the interest is not distinguished, the amount of expenses is estimated
by discounting the amount of payment using the market interest rate.

2.21. Impairment of assets
Financial assets
Financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, whenever it is probable that the Group will not collect all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of loans or receivables, an impairment or bad debt loss is recognised in the income
statement. The reversal of impairment losses previously recognised is recorded when the decrease in impairment loss
can be justified by an event occurring after the write-down. Such reversal is recorded in the income statement.
However, the increased carrying amount is only recognised to the extent it does not exceed the amortised cost that
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In relation to trade and other receivables, an allowance for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect
all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced
through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.21. Impairment of assets (cont’'d)
Other assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (e.g. goodwill), the Group estimates the
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value
indicators.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement.

2.22. Use of significant accounting judgments and estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and disclosure of contingencies.

Significant accounting judgments

The significant areas of judgment used in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements are described
below.

Business combination involving entities under common control

The Company’s management applied a pooling of interest method for accounting for acquisition of AB Linas Agro and
Rosenkrantz A/S shares (Note 2.3.).

Accounting for trading contracts

Within grains and oilseeds as well as feedstuffs segments, the Group's activity is an agricultural goods intermediary
(buying and selling different types of grain, oilseeds, rapeseed, etc.). The Group buys and sells agricultural goods at a
fixed price for a specified delivery period in the future. The terms of the Group’s contracts permit net settlement;
however, in practice, contracts result in physical delivery. The Group acts as an intermediary by entering into purchase
and sales contracts with producers and users of the agricultural goods, creating links within the value chain for the
agricultural goods for a stable customer base, making profits from a distributor margin rather than from fluctuations in
price or a broker traders’ margin. As a result, the Group’s purchases and sales contracts are entered into in
accordance with the expected purchase and sale requirements and, therefore, have not been accounted for as
derivatives within the scope of IAS 39.

Receivables from farmers and payments on farmers’ behalf

Within its agricultural inputs segment, the Group is engaged in selling fertilisers and plant protection products to
farmers as well as pays on behalf of farmers to suppliers of seeds (Notes 14 and 15). The balances arising from these
transactions are non-interest bearing and are generally settled within 120 - 360 days by delivering grain to the Group.
These transactions constitute common arrangements in the industry, which are entered into between distributors and
farmers under similar terms, and usual settlement is by delivery of grain, as opposed to an unconditional right to
receive cash; therefore, no discounting is performed on these balances. Trade receivables arising on sales of fertilisers
and plant protection products are presented within trade receivables caption in the balance sheet, while payments on
behalf of farmers, which do not derive from sales transactions, are presented as prepayments in the balance sheet.
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Accounting principles (cont’'d)

2.22. Use of significant accounting judgments and estimates in the preparation of financial statements
(cont’d)

Revenue recognition gross versus net

If the Group is acting as the principal in the relationship between the supplier and the customer, the revenue is
recognised on a gross basis, with the amount remitted to the supplier being accounted for as a cost of sale. However,
if the Group is acting as an agent for the supplier in its relationship with the customer, only the net amount of
commission retained is recognised as revenue.

Whether the Group is acting as principal or agent in the transaction with the customer is a matter of judgment that
depends on the relevant facts and circumstances. However, the Group considers the following indicators of gross
revenue recognition (i.e., indicators that the Group is acting as principal in the transaction with the customer):

- The Group is the primary obligor under the terms of the contracts;

- The Group bears any general and physical inventory risks;

- The Group is able to determine the sales price;

- The Group is able to change the product;

- The Group has discretion in supplier selection;

- The Group is involved in the determination of product or service specifications;

- The Group bears any credit risks.

Significant accounting estimates

The significant areas of estimation used in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements relate to
depreciation (Notes 2.7., 2.8., 7 and 8), fair value estimation of biological assets (Note 12) and impairment evaluation
(Notes 2.21., 7, 8, 13, 14, 15 and 16). Future events may occur which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at
the estimates to change. The effect of any changes in estimates will be recorded in the financial statements, when
determinable. v

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

Valuation of biological asset

As of 30 June 2009, 2008 and 2007 the Group did not have an independent appraisal of its biological assets.
According to IFRS, such assets must be recorded at market value. Biological assets consist of two parts: animals and
livestock and crops which are evaluated at fair value less point-of-sale costs (Note 2.11.).

Livestock is valued in two ways: milking cows are valued using discounted cash flows method less point-of-sale costs
and other groups of livestock — at market prices at the balance sheet date. Crops are valued using discounted cash
flows method less point-of-sale costs.

As of 30 June 2009 the determined fair value of biological assets is most sensitive to the estimated gross margin
(17 % for the year ending 30 June 2010 and 21 % for the year ending 30 June 2011) used to calculate the expected
future cash-inflows as well as discount rate (16 %). As of 30 June 2008 and 2007 the determined fair value of
biological assets is most sensitive to the estimated gross margin (18 %) used to calculate the expected future cash-
inflows as well as discount rate (12 %).

Impaimment of property, plant and equipment (excluding land)

The Group makes an assessment, at least annually, whether there are any indications that property, plant and
equipment have suffered impairment. If that is the case, the Group makes an impairment test. The recoverable amount
of cash-generating units is determined based on value in use calculations that use a discounted cash flow model. The
cash flows are derived from the forecast for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset base of the cash-generating
unit being tested.

As of 30 June 2009 the recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate (16 %) used for the discounted cash
flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate (1 %) used for extrapolation purposes. As
of 30 June 2008 and 2007 the recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate (12 %) used for the
discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate (2 %) used for
extrapolation purposes.

As of 30 June 2009, 2008 and 2007 there were no reasonably possible changes in the keys assumptions which would
cause the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment to exceed its recoverable amount.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)

2.22. Use of significant accounting judgments and estimates in the preparation of financial statements
(cont’'d)

Impairment of land (accounted for as property, plant and equipment and investment properly)

The Group makes an assessment, at least annually, whether there are any indications that land accounted for as
property, plant and equipment and investment property has suffered impairment. if that is the case, the Group makes
an impairment test. The recoverable amount of land is determined based on comparable market prices for similar land
provided by independent valuers.

Impairment of investment in ZAT UkrAgro NPK

On 9 September 2008 the Group acquired 13.38 % of ZAT UkrAgro NPK (Ukraine) shares for LTL 5,545 thousand
from Akola ApS. As of 30 June 2009 the Group made an assessment whether the value of this investment should be
impaired. The recoverable amount of investment in ZAT UkrAgro NPK was determined based on value in use
calculations that use a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the forecast for the next four
years and do not include restructuring activities that ZAT UkrAgro NPK is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset base of the investee being tested.

As of 30 June 2009 the recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate (20 %) used for the discounted cash
flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate (nil %) used for extrapolation purposes.

As of 30 June 2009 there were no reasonably possible changes in the keys assumptions which would cause the
carrying amount of the investment to exceed its recoverable amount.

2.23. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, except for contingent liabilities associated with
acquisitions. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

2.24. Subsequent events

Post-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the balance sheet date
(adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post-balance sheet events that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes when material.

2.25. Segment information

The Group early adopted IFRS 8 Operating Segment Information as of 1 July 2008.

In these financial statements an operating segment means a constituent part of the Group participating in production of
an individual product or provision of a service or a group of related products or services, the risk and returns whereof
are different from other operating segments.

In these financial statements information about geographical areas means a constituent part of the Group revenue
from external customers attributed to the Group’s country of domicile and attributed to all foreign countries in totai from
which the Group derives revenue and non-current assets other than financial assets and deferred tax assets located in
the Group's country of domicile and located in all foreign countries in total in which the Group holds assets.

2.26. Offsetting and comparative figures

When preparing the financial statements, assets and liabilities, as well as revenue and expenses are not set off,
except for the cases when certain IFRS specifically requires or allows such set-off.

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to correspond to the presentation of the current year.
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Effect of business combinations involving entities under common control

The reconciliation of the comparative information for the year ended 30 June 2008 due to the effect of business
combinations involving entities under common control (Note 2.3.) is presented in the tables below.

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Animals and livestock
Non-current financial assets
Deferred income tax asset
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Crops

Inventories

Prepayments

Accounts receivable

Other current assets
Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Business combinations under common control

AB Linas Agro

As of 30 June subgroup Rosenkrantz
2008 balance sheet A/S balance As of
(as stated as of 30 June sheetas of 30 Consolidation 30 June 2008
earlier) 2008" June 2008 adjustments (restated)
32 51 1 - 84
36,610 40,076 206 840 77,732
11,602 7,450 - (35) 19,017
7,188 - - - 7,188
29,111 25,265 205 (2,006) 52,575
- - 556 535 1,091
84,543 72,842 968 (666) 157,687
14,439 - - - 14,439
11,096 92,362 1,127 (158) 104,427
792 12,632 16,609 (13,048) 16,885
8,681 115,947 34,363 (28,361) 130,630
75 - - (75) -
- - 2,315 - 2,315
3,819 1,473 2,534 - 7,826
38,902 222,314 56,948 (41,642) 276,522
123,445 295,156 57,916 (42,308) 434,209

(cont'd on the next page)
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Effect of business combinations involving entities under common control (cont’d)

Business combinations under common control

AB Linas Agro

As of 30 June subgroup Rosenkrantz
2008 balance sheet A/S balance As of
(as stated as of 30 June sheetas of 30 Consolidation 30 June 2008
earlier) 2008" June 2008 adjustments (restated)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 86 7,000 231 (7,231) 86
Legal reserve 10 700 - (700) 10
Foreign currency translation

reserve - - ) (129) (130)
Retained earnings 48,408 61,030 2,711 9,699 121,848
Total equity attributable to

equity holders of the parent 48,504 68,730 2,941 1,639 121,814
Minority interest 8,830 6 1,961 (436) 10,361
Total equity 57,334 68,736 4,902 1,203 132,175
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Grants and subsidies 4,167 7,682 - - 11,849
Non-current borrowings 26,612 33,433 - (2,487) 57,558
Finance lease obligations 1,718 609 - - 2,327
Deferred income tax liability - 767 35 - 802
Non-current payables to related

parties 882 847 - (1,729) -
Total non-current liabilities 33,379 43,338 35 (4,216) 72,536
Current liabilities
Current portion of non-current

borrowings 2,144 3,654 - 4,209 9,907
Current portion of finance lease

obligations 766 504 - - 1,270
Current borrowings 7,801 82,481 32,475 (4,636) 118,121
Trade payables and advances

received 17,794 83,424 18,054 (37,782) 81,490
Income tax payable 77 6,232 1,300 - 7,609
Other current liabilities 4,150 6,887 1,150 (1,086) 11,101
Total current liabilities 32,732 183,082 52,979 (39,295) 229,498
Total equity and liabilities 123,445 295,156 57,916 (42,308) 434,209
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Effect of business combinations involving entities under common control (cont’d)

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating (expenses)

Other operating income

Other operating (expenses)
Operating profit

Income from financing activities

(Expenses) from financing
activities

Gain from disposal of
investments into associates

Share of profit of associates

Share of profit of joint ventures
Profit before tax

Income tax

Net profit

Attributable to:
The equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

Basic and diluted earnings per
share (LTL) (Note 35)

1) AB Linas Agro subgroup (as described in Note 4) figures do not include amounts of Rosenkrantz A/S.

Business combinations under common control

AB Linas Agro

Financial year subgroup Rosenkrantz Financial
ended income A/S income year ended
30 June 2008 statement for statement for 30 June
(as stated the year ended the year ended Consolidation 2008
earlier) 30 June 2008" 30 June 2008 adjustments (restated)

31,810 782,250 598,698 (505,752) 907,006
(23,967) (721,305) (590,949) 505,144 (831,077)
7,843 60,945 7,749 (608) 75,929
(4,557) (18,210) (4,292) 942 (26,117)

994 4,497 121 (1,093) 4,519
(205) (1,070) - (855) (2,130)

4,075 46,162 3,578 (1,614) 52,201

1,212 1,775 - (389) 2,598
(2,699) (11,328) (287) 700 (13,614)

785 - - - 785

110 - - 340 450

6,370 - - 1,196 7,566

9,853 36,609 3,291 233 49,986
(785) (7,431) (718) 217 (8,717)

9,068 29,178 2,573 450 41,269

8,470 28,186 1,544 194 38,394

598 992 1,029 256 2,875

9,068 29,178 2,573 450 41,269

0.21? 0.69 0.04 - 0.94

2) The amount of basic and diluted earnings per share was recalculated using the restated weighted average number
of ordinary shares as described in Note 35.
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Effect of business combinations involving entities under common control (cont’d)

The reconciliation of the comparative information for the year ended 30 June 2007 due to the effect of business
combinations involving entities under common control (Note 2.3.) is presented in the tables below.

Business combinations under common control

AB Linas Agro

As of 30 June subgroup Rosenkrantz
2007 balance sheet A/S balance As of
(as stated as of 30 June sheetas of 30 Consolidation 30 June 2007
earlier) 2007" June 2007 adjustments (restated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 8 76 - - 82
Property, plant and equipment 30,327 42,075 241 61 72,704
Investment property 7,052 5,582 - 1) 12,573
Animals and livestock 7,625 - - - 7,625
Non-current financial assets 17,818 25,129 340 (487) 42,800
Deferred income tax asset _ - - 318 318
Total non-current assets 62,828 72,862 581 (169) 136,102
Current assets
Crops 12,044 - - - 12,044
Inventories 7,384 29,334 2,606 (228) 39,096
Prepayments 563 19,469 4,997 (5,622) 19,407
Accounts receivable 6,204 81,739 26,021 (20,665) 93,299
Other current assets 151 - - (151) -
Investment held for sale - 831 - - 831
Restricted cash - - 2,319 - 2,319
Cash and cash equivalents 1,406 1,551 5,016 - 7,973
Total current assets 27,752 132,924 40,959 (26,666) 174,969
Total assets 90,580 205,786 41,540 (26,835) 311,071

(cont'd on the next page)
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Effect of business combinations involving entities under common control (cont’d)

Business combinations under common control

AB Linas Agro

As of 30 June subgroup Rosenkrantz
2007 balance sheet A/S balance As of
(as stated as of 30 June sheetas of 30 Consolidation 30 June 2007
earlier) 2007" June 2007 adjustments (restated)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 86 7,000 231 (7.231) 86
Legal reserve 10 700 - (700) 10
Foreign currency translation

reserve - - - (21) (21)
Retained eamings 39,125 30,095 2,347 9,344 80,911
Total equity attributable to

equity holders of the parent 39,221 37,795 2,578 1,392 80,986
Minority interest 9,205 5,224 1,566 (435) 15,560
Total equity 48,426 43,019 4,144 957 96,546
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Grants and subsidies 4,332 8,931 - - 13,263
Non-current borrowings 14,016 12,369 - (611) 25,874
Finance lease obligations 1,202 495 - - 1,697
Deferred income tax liability - 1,121 50 - 1,171
Non-current payables to related

parties 752 - - (752) -
Total non-current liabilities 20,302 22,916 50 (1,263) 42,005
Current liabilities
Current portion of non-current

borrowings 2,092 4,725 - (514) 6,303
Current portion of finance lease

obligations 526 410 - - 936
Current borrowings 1,295 55,955 19,523 (1,191) 75,582
Trade payables and advances

received 16,212 72,526 16,206 (24,824) 80,120
Income tax payable 1 3,129 940 - 4,070
Other current liabilities 1,726 3,106 677 - 5,509
Total current liabilities 21,852 139,851 37,346 (26,529) 172,520
Total equity and liabilities 90,580 205,786 41,540 (26,835) 311,071
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Effect of business combinations involving entities under common control (cont’d)

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating (expenses)

Other operating income

Other operating (expenses)
Operating profit

Income from financing activities

(Expenses) from financing
activities

Gain from disposal of
investments into associates

Share of profit of associates

Share of profit of joint ventures
Profit before tax

Income tax

Net profit

Attributable to:
The equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

Basic and diluted earnings per
share (LTL) (Note 35)

1) AB Linas Agro subgroup (as described in Note 4) figures do not include amounts of Rosenkrantz A/S.

Business combinations under common control

AB Linas Agro

Financial year subgroup Rosenkrantz Financial
ended income AIS income year ended
30 June 2007 statement for statement for 30 June
(as stated the year ended the year ended Consolidation 2007
earlier) 30 June 2007”30 June 2007  adjustments (restated)
23,599 281,631 446,068 (89,927) 661,371
(16,512) (252,929) (438,241) 89,078 (618,604)
7,087 28,702 7,827 (849) 42,767
(4,020) (19,203) (3,614) 988 (25,849)
1,565 9,376 65 (283) 10,723
(271) (901) - - (1,172)
4,361 17,974 4,278 (144) 26,469
47 1,037 147 (403) 828
(862) - (6,495) (248) 403 (7,202)
18 - - 88 106
2,154 - - (133) 2,021
5,718 12,516 4,177 (189) 22,222
(133) (3,356) (1,028) 318 (4,199)
5,685 9,160 3,149 129 18,023
5,163 8,772 1,889 913 16,737
422 388 1,260 (784) 1,286
5,585 9,160 3,149 129 18,023
0.13% 0.21 0.05 0.02 0.41

2) The amount of basic and diluted earnings per share was recalculated using the restated weighted average number
of ordinary shares as described in Note 35.
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Group structure and changes in the Group

As of 30 June 2009, 2008 and 2007 the Company held these directly and indirectly controlled subsidiaries (hereinafter

the Group):
Share of the stock held by
the Group

Profit for
the year Equity as
Place of As of 30 Asof30 Asof30 ended30 of30June
registration June 2009 June 2008 June 2007 June 2009 2009 Main activities

Investments into directly controlled subsidiaries

Wholesale trade of grains and
AB Linas Agro Lithuania 100 % 100 % 100 % 13,188 69,939 oilseeds, feedstuffs and
agricultural inputs

UAB Linas Agro Management of the

- Lithuania 100 % 100 % 100 % (20) 3,354 subsidiaries engaged in
Konsuitacijos agriculture
70B Landvesta 1 Lithuania 100%  80%  80% 80 g0 Rent and management of

agricultural purposes land

Rent and management of
agricultural purposes land
Rent and management of
agricultural purposes land
Rent and management of
agricultural purposes land
Rent and management of
agricultural purposes land
Rent and management of
agricultural purposes land

_ Management of real estate
projects

ZUB Landvesta 2 Lithuania 100 % 80 % 80 % (34) (40)
ZUB Landvesta 3 Lithuania 100 % 80 % 80 % (81) (44)
ZUB Landvesta 4 Lithuania 100 % 100 % 100 % (433) (536)
ZUB Landvesta 5 Lithuania 100 % 100 % - (518) (600)
ZUB Landvesta 6 Lithuania 100 % 100 % - (512) (550)

UAB Invisco Lithuania - 55 % 55 % (370)

Investments into indirectly controlled subsidiaries (through AB Linas Agro)

Wholesale trade of grains and

SIA Linas Agro Latvia 100 % 100 % 100 % 2,507 6,115 oilseeds, feedstuffs and
agricultural inputs

UAB Gerera Lithuania 100 % 100 % 100 % (98) 238 Lease of real estate

UABCI;rr:tar ;sAgro Grady Lithuania 100 % 100 % 100 % (44) 90 Management services

UAB Linas Agro Griidy, Preparation and warehousing

N . 0,
Lithuania 100 % 100% 74.85% 5402 30234 ° ¢ orains for trade

Wholesale trade of grains and
Rosenkrantz A/S Denmark 60 % 60 % 60 % 10,124 12,144 oilseeds, feedstuffs and other
similar products and services

Preparation and warehousing
of grains for trade

_ Management of real estate

Centras KUB

ZUK Kupigkio Griidai Lithuania 3743 % - - 492 1,365
UAB Consonus

. . - 0, [»)
Lithuania 70 % 70% (340) projects
UAB Sinrena . . o o _ Management of real estate
Lithuania - 70 % 70 % (334) projects
Investments into indirectly controlled subsidiaries (through UAB Linas Agro Konsultacijos)
Z0B Medeikiai Lithuania 96.54% 94.34% 9434 % 561 5,226 Growing and sale of crops
.- Growing and sale of crops and
UB LukSiai Lithuania 93.93% 9146% 86.40% 590 19,810 cattle growing, including milk
production
L Growing and sale of crops and
ZUB Aukstadvaris Lithuania 6535% 63.22% 6254 % (328) 5,336 cattle growing, including milk
production
o Growing and sale of crops and
ZUB Sidabravas Lithuania 5590% 5590% 55.90% (208) 7,746 cattle growing, including milk
production
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Group structure and changes in the Group (cont’d)
Changes in the Group during the year ended 30 June 2007

As of 9 March 2007 AB Linas Agro Group acquired 80 % in each of the three companies (ZUB Landvesta 1,

Z70B Landvesta 2 and ZUB Landvesta 3). The entities are consolidated to the Group from 1 April 2007. At the
acquisition date carrying values of net assets of the entities did not differ materially from their fair values. Differences
between the purchase consideration and fair values of the acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the
acquisition date were the following:

ZUB Landvesta 1 Z0B Landvesta 2 ZUB Landvesta 3

Acquisition date 9 March 2007 9 March 2007 9 March 2007
Non-current assets 5,296 1,411 916
Current assets 445 362 58
Liabilities (5,638) (1,659) (860)
Fair value of net assets of entity acquired 103 114 114
Minority interest (20 % in all three acquired

entities) 21 (23) (23)
Fair value of net assets acquired by the Group 82 91 91
Goodwill - - -
Total purchase consideration 82 91 91
Less: cash acquired (180) (197) (27)
Acquisition price less cash (98) (106) 64
Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2007 571 45 48
Profit for the year ended 30 June 2007 169 (36) (19)
Profit for the year ended 30 June 2007 since

acquisition 45 (10) (5)

All purchase consideration has been settled in cash.
ZUB Landvesta 4 was established in 2007.

On 13 March 2007 the Group company AB Linas Agro purchased 70 % of UAB Consonus share capital for LTL 70
thousand and 70 % of UAB Sinrena share capital for LTL 70 thousand. The entities are consolidated to the Group from
1 April 2007. At the acquisition date carrying values of net assets of the entities did not differ materially from their fair
values. Differences between the purchase consideration and fair values of the acquired assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities at the acquisition were the following:

UAB Sinrena UAB Consonus
Acquisition date 13 March 2007 13 March 2007
Non-current assets 1,476 545
Current assets 264 97
Liabilities (1,640) (542)
Fair value of net assets of entity acquired 100 100
Minority interest (30 % in both acquired entities) (30) (30)
Fair value of net assets acquired by the Group 70 70
Goodwill - -
Total purchase consideration 70 70
Less: cash acquired (185) (68)
Acquisition price less cash (115) 2
Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2007 - -
Profit for the year ended 30 June 2007 27) (18)
Profit for the year ended 30 June 2007 since acquisition (20) (12)

All purchase consideration has been settled in cash.

32



AB LINAS AGRO GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Group structure and changes in the Group (cont’d)
Changes in the Group during the year ended 30 June 2007 (cont’d)

During the year ended 30 June 2007 UAB Linas Agro Konsultacijos acquired 5.13 % of ZUB Sidabravas share capital
for LTL 27 thousand, 21.34 % of ZUB Luksiai share capital for LTL 654 thousand and 0.78 % ZUB Aukstadvaris share
capital for LTL 4 thousand. All the shares were acquired from the minority shareholders. The excess of the share of
carrying values of net assets of respective companies over the acquisition price amounting to LTL 3,478 thousand
arising on the acquisition was recognised directly in equity.

On 14 March 2007 AB Linas Agro sold 90 % of UAB Linas Agro Veterinarijos Centras shares for LTL 12,926 thousand
(Note 32). The carrying value of the net assets of the entity at the date of disposal amounted to LTL 3,725 thousand.
The entity was consolidated to the Group till the date of disposal.

Changes in the Group during the year ended 30 June 2008
In 2008 AB Linas Agro Group established ZUB Landvesta 5 and ZUB Landvesta 6.

On 20 December 2007 the Group acquired additional 25.15 % of the share capital of UAB Linas Agro Grady
Centras KUB from the minority shareholders for L.TL. 3,565 thousand. The excess of the share of carrying values of net
assets over the acquisition price amounting to LTL 2,814 thousand arising on the acquisition was recognised directly in

equity.

During the year ended 30 June 2008 the Group acquired 5.06 % of ZUB Luksiai share capital for LTL 157 thousand
and 0.68 % Z{B Aukstadvaris share capital for LTL 2 thousand. All the shares were acquired from the minority
shareholders. The excess of the share of carrying values of net assets of respective companies over the acquisition
price amounting to LTL 813 thousand arising on the acquisition was recognised directly in equity.

Changes in the Group during the year ended 30 June 2009

During the year ended 30 June 2009 the Group acquired 20 % in each of the three companies (ZUB Landvesta 1,
ZUB Landvesta 2 and ZUB Landvesta 3) for LTL 629 thousand each. All the shares were acquired from the minority
shareholders. The excess of the acquisition price over the share of carrying values of net assets of respective
companies amounting to LTL 1,347 thousand arising on the acquisition was recognised directly in equity.

During the year ended 30 June 2009 the Group acquired 2.47 % of ZUB Luksiai share capital for LTL 82 thousand,
2.2 % of ZUB Medeikiai share capital for LTL 5 thousand and 2.13 % ZUB Aukstadvaris share capital for LTL 10
thousand. All the shares were acquired from the minority shareholders. The excess of the share of carrying values of
net assets of respective companies over the acquisition price amounting to LTL 670 thousand arising on the
acquisition was recognised directly in equity.

On 1 July 2008 the Group companies signed a shareholders’ agreement with the members of ZUK Kupigkio Griidai.
The total shareholding of the members that entered into the agreement is 63.63 %. According to the clauses of the
agreement AB Linas Agro has obtained control over ZUK Kupigkio Gridai's operations and financial decisions and as
a result of the agreement of the other shareholders to transfer their rights to appoint the board of directors, AB Linas
Agro is able to appoint the chairman and the majority of the board members of ZUK Kupigkio Griidai and, therefore,
the mentioned company is consolidated to the Group from 1 July 2008. At the acquisition date carrying value of net
assets of ZUK Kupiskio Griidai did not differ materially from their fair value. Differences between the purchase
consideration and fair values of the acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the acquisition were the
following:

20K Kupiskio Gridai

Acquisition date 1 July 2008
Non-current assets 5,401
Current assets 507
Liabilities (5,035)
Fair value of net assets of subsidiary acquired 873
Minority interest (62.57 % in the acquired subsidiary) (546)
Fair value of net assets acquired by the Group ) 327
Negative goodwill recognised in other operating income (6)
Total carrying value of investment (transferred from investments into associates) (Note 9) 321
Less: cash acquired (105)
Acquisition price less cash acquired (105)
Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2009 2,233
Profit for the year ended 30 June 2009 492
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Group structure and changes in the Group (cont’d)
Changes in the Group during the year ended 30 June 2009 (cont’d)

On 21 July 2008 AB Linas Agro acquired 60 % of the share capital of Rosenkrantz A/S from Akola ApS (Denmark) for
LTL 9 million. At the date of transaction and throughout the periods covered by these financial statements (including
the comparative period) both AB Linas Agro and Akola ApS were controlled by the same individual shareholders
(Note 38) operating under a common control agreement. According to the agreement all the companies in which these
individuals have direct control (in their combined share) are managed collectively under the terms of the agreement.

As a result, acquisition of shares of Rosenkrantz A/S did not result in a change of an ultimate controlling party and,
therefore, was considered to be a common control transaction. Such business combination is not within the scope of
IFRS 3. Therefore, the Group’s management applied judgment to determine an appropriate accounting policy for this
transaction and applied a pooling of interest method for accounting for acquisition of Rosenkrantz A/S shares

(Note 2.3.).

Carrying values of the acquired assets and liabilities at 1 July 2006 were the following:

Rosenkrantz A/S

Acquisition date 1 July 2006

Non-current assets 732
Current assets 17,747
Liabilities (16,605)
Carrying value of net assets of subsidiary acquired 1,874
Minority interest (40 % in the acquired subsidiary) (750)
Carrying value of net assets acquired by the Group 1,124

The shares were acquired for LTL 9,000 thousand. All purchase consideration has been settled in cash. Cash balance
held by Rosenkrantz A/S at acquisition date (amounting to LTL 2,909 thousand) was not deducted from the purchase
consideration for cash flow statement purposes, as it is included in the opening cash balance of the Group as of 30
June 2007 (Note 2.3.).

As mentioned in Note 1, part of the Company’s share capital issue was paid by contributing 100 % of AB Linas Agro
shares as a contribution in kind. At the date of the contribution and throughout the periods covered by these financial
statements (including the comparative period) both AB Linas Agro and AB Linas Agro Group were controlled by the
same individual shareholders (Notes 1 and 38) operating under a common control agreement. According to the
agreement all the companies in which these individuals have direct control (in their combined share) are managed
collectively under the terms of the agreement.

As a result, acquisition of shares of AB Linas Agro did not result in a change of an ultimate controlling party and,
therefore, was considered to be a common control transaction. Such business combination is not within the scope of
IFRS 3. Therefore, the Company’s management applied judgment to determine an appropriate accounting policy for
this transaction and applied a pooling of interest method for accounting for acquisition of AB Linas Agro shares
(Note 2.3.).

Carrying values of the acquired assets and liabilities at 1 July 2006 were the following:

AB Linas Agro subgroup

Acquisition date 1 July 2006
Non-current assets 55,337
Current assets 124,338
Liabilities (145,547)
Carrying value of net assets of the subgroup acquired 34,128
Minority interest in the acquired subgroup (5,040)
Carrying value of net assets acquired by the Group 29,088
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Group structure and changes in the Group (cont’d)
Changes in the Group during the year ended 30 June 2009 (cont’d)

As of 31 March 2009 the Group entities sold all the shares held in the following subsidiaries:

UAB Invisco UAB Sinrena UAB Consonus
Disposal date 31 March 2009 31 March 2009 31 March 2009
Non-current assets 3,838 3,354 3,764
Current assets 98 123 114
Liabilities (4,848) (4,103) (4,488)
Net assets of subsidiary sold (912) (626) (610)
Minority interest - - -
Net assets sold by the Group (912) (626) 610)
Sales price (received in cash) 0.06 0.07 0.07
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries in the Group 912 626 610
Cash disposed in the subsidiaries (90) (90) -
Sales price less cash disposed (90) (90) -

5 Segment information

For management purpose, the Group is organised into four operating segments based on their products and services

as follows:

- the grains and oilseeds segment includes trade in wheat, rapeseed, barley and other grains and oilseeds;

- the feedstuffs segment includes trade in suncake and sunmeal, sugar beat pulp, soybean and soymeal,
vegetable oil, rapecake and other feedstuffs;

- the agricultural inputs segment includes sales of fertilisers, seeds, plant protection products and other related

products to farmers;

- the farming segment includes production of milk, grain, feed and other raw materials. Milk is sold to local dairy
companies, other production is partly used internally, partly sold;
- the other products and services segment includes sales of biofuel, provision of elevator services and other

products and services.

Transfer prices between the Group companies are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with

third parties.
Not
Group Other  attributed Adjust-
Agricul- products toany ments and

Financial year ended Grains and tural and specified elimina-
30 June 2009 oilseeds Feedstuffs inputs Farming services segment tions Total
Revenue
From one client UAB Mestilla 110,985 9,995 - - 1,162 - - 122,142
Third parties 551,160 337,192 52,815 20,560 30,011 - - 991,738
Intersegment - 2,194 5361 16,496 12,043 - (36,094)" -
Total revenue 662,145 349,381 58,176 37,056 43,216 - (36,094) 1,113,880
Results
Operating expenses 15,996 8,075 728 4737 4,158 1,331 - 35,025
Depreciation and amortisation 514 245 31 1,707 3,986 35 - 6,518
Provisions for onerous contracts 159 5274 - - - - - 5,433
Impairment of property, plant and

equipment - - - 568 - - - 568
Impairment of investment property - - - - 857 - - 857
Segment operating profit (loss) 18,353 10,937 3,089 1,175 9,901 1,076 - 44,531
Share of profit of associates - - 113 - - - - 113
Share of profit of joint ventures - - 3,965 - - - - 3,965
Assets
Investments into associates - - 207 - - - - 207
Investments into joint ventures - - 21,561 - - - - 21,561
Capital expenditure? 487 275 52 5,911 16,770 3 - 23,498
Non-current assets (excluding investments

into associates and joint ventures) 2,411 1,772 5,220 43,442 60,051 25 586% - 138,482
Current assets 50,293 52,180 70,003 30,545 2,925 21,0327 - 226,978
Total assets 52,704 53,952 96,991 73,987 62,976 46,618 - 387,228
Current liabilities 34,633 43,528 65500 15,281 12,914 15,340 - 187,196
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5 Segment information (cont’d)

Not
Group Other  attributed Adjust-
Agricul- products toany ments and

Financial year ended Grains and tural and specified elimina-
30 June 2008 (restated) oilseeds Feedstuffs inputs Farming services segment tions Total
Revenue
From one client UAB Mestilla 69,895 9,045 - - 1,345 - - 80,285
Third parties 406,201 318,424 66,780 19,920 15,396 - - 826,721
Intersegment - 2515 6534 12724 15431 - (37,204)" -
Total revenue 476,096 329,984 73,314 32,644 32,172 - (37,204) 907,006
Results
Operating expenses 12,184 6,985 902 3,621 2,087 338 - 26,117
Depreciation and amortisation 493 309 74 1,069 2,923 24 - 4,892
Provisions for onerous contracts 80 - - - - - - 80
Impairment of property, plant and

equipment - - - 57 - - - 57
Impairment of investment property - - - - 1,389 204 - 1,593
Segment operating profit 5,043 23,193 6,516 8,515 7,056 1,878 - 52,201
Share of profit of associates _ _ 450 _ _ - - 450
Share of profit of joint ventures _ - 7,566 - - - - 7,566
Assets
Investments into associates - . 595 - - - - 595
Investments into joint ventures - - 18,635 - - - - 18,635
Capital expenditure? 11 - 1 11,263 4,681 6,048 - 22,004
Non-current assets (excluding investments

into associates and joint ventures) 2,499 1,771 6,455 44,795 43,939 38,9983’ - 138,457
Current assets 65,751 76,888 83,912 32,112 5526  12,333Y - 276,522
Total assets 68,250 78,659 109,597 76,907 49,465 51,331 - 434,209
Current liabilities 38,717 60,536 78,164 12,057 19,321  20,703" - 229,498

Not
Group Other  attributed Adjust-
Agricul- products toany ments and

Financial year ended Grains and tural and specified elimina-
30 June 2007 (restated) oilseeds Feedstuffs inputs Farming services segment tions Total
Revenue
From one client UAB Mestilla - 1,084 - - - - - 1,084
Third parties 197,432 379,869 47,476 16,034 19,476 - - 660,287
Intersegment - 1,639 4,849 6,815 6,091 - (19,394)" -
Total revenue 197,432 382,592 52,325 22,849 25,567 - (19,394) 661,371
Results
Operating expenses 10,092 6,337 1,792 3,210 2,176 2,242 - 25,849
Depreciation and amortisation 711 538 70 65 2,818 25 - 4,227
Segment operating profit (1,575) 8,813 3,486 4,068 4,144 7,533 - 26,469
Share of profit of associates - - 106 - - - - 106
Share of profit of joint ventures - - 2,021 - - - - 2,021
Assets
Investments into associates - - 1,006 - - - - 1,006
Investments into joint ventures - - 16,396 - - - - 16,396
Capital expenditure? - 118 - 6,250 492 3,761 - 10,621
Non-current assets (excluding investments

into associates and joint ventures) 1,449 1,174 9,938 38,464 43,429 24,246% - 118,700
Current assets 28,388 47235 50,774 26,169 12,318 10,0857 - 174,969
Total assets 29,837 48,409 78,114 64,633 55,747 34,331 - 311,071
Current liabilities 8,113 48416 74,303 6,441 12,685 22,5627 - 172,520
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Segment information (cont’d)

1) Intersegment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

2) Capital expenditure consists of additions of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment
property.

3) The amount includes not rented investment property, other investments, non-current loans receivable from related
parties, non-current loans receivable from employees and deferred income tax asset.

4) The amount includes current loans receivable from related parties, part of other accounts receivable (excluding
receivable from National Paying Agency), investment held for sale, restricted cash as well as part of cash and cash
equivalents.

5) As of 30 June 2009 the amount mainly includes income tax payable amount and part of borrowings, which are
managed on the Group basis. As of 30 June 2008 and 2007 the amount mainly includes income tax payable, part of
borrowings, which are managed on the Group basis and liabilities of UAB Invisco, UAB Sinrena and UAB Consonus.
6) In the year ended 30 June 2008 the Group companies expanded its activities in international trade in grains and
oilseeds and also started to operate as principal between suppliers and customers instead of acting as agent.

Sales of the Group include:

Financial year ended

30 June 30 June 30 June

2009 2008 2007
(restated) (restated)
Sales of goods 1,100,212 896,531 650,033
Sales of services 13,668 10,475 11,338

1,113,880 907,006 661,371

Below is the information relating to the geographical segments of the Group:

Financial year ended

30 June 30 June 30 June

Revenue from external customers 2009 2008 2007
(restated)  (restated)

Europe (except for Scandinavian countries, CIS and Lithuania) 327173 231,483 178,293
Lithuania 234,626 245,795 133,894
Scandinavian countries 222,994 147,658 202,832
Africa 135,953 189,873 60,713
Asia 100,106 66,272 20,394
Cis 92,230 25,258 62,258
Other 798 667 2,987

1,113,880 907,006 661,371

The revenue information above is based on the location of the customer.

As of 30 As of 30 As of 30

Non-current assets June 2009 June 2008 June 2007
(restated)  (restated)

Lithuania 102,008 96,455 84,895

Denmark 199 207 241

Latvia : 186 171 223

102,393 96,833 85,359

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible
assets.
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Intangible assets

Cost:

Balance as of 30 June 2006 (restated)
Additions (restated)

Disposals of subsidiaries (restated)
Wirite-offs (restated)

Balance as of 30 June 2007 (restated)
Additions (restated)

Balance as of 30 June 2008 (restated)
Additions

Write-offs

Balance as of 30 June 2009

Accumulated amortisation:

Balance as of 30 June 2006 (restated)
Charge for the year (restated)
Disposals of subsidiaries (restated)
Write-offs (restated)

Balance as of 30 June 2007 (restated)
Charge for the year (restated)
Balance as of 30 June 2008 (restated)
Charge for the year

Write-offs

Balance as of 30 June 2009

Net book value as of 30 June 2009

Net book value as of 30 June 2008 (restated)
Net book value as of 30 June 2007 (restated)

Other intangible

Software Total
1,222 649 1,871
- 22 22
(21) - 1)
(23) - (23)
1,178 671 1,848
13 54 67
1,191 725 1,916
14 20 34
()] (61) (62)
1,204 684 1,888
968 466 1,434
213 156 369
(13) - (13)
(23) - (23)
1,145 622 1,767
29 36 65
1,174 658 1,832
11 22 33
1 (61) (62)
1,184 619 1,803
20 65 85
17 67 84
33 49 82

The Group has no internally generated intangible assets. Amortisation expenses of intangible assets are included

within operating expenses in the income statement.

Part of the intangible assets of the Group with the acquisition value of LTL 1,733 thousand as of 30 June 2009 was
fully amortised (LTL 1,701 thousand and LTL 1,143 thousand as of 30 June 2008 and 2007, respectively) but was still

in active use.
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7 Property, plant and equipment

Cost:

Balance as of 30 June 2006 (restated)
Additions (restated)

Disposals of subsidiaries (restated)
Disposals and write-offs (restated)
Reclassifications

Balance as of 30 June 2007 (restated)
Additions (restated)

Disposals and write-offs (restated)
Transfers to investment property
Reclassifications (restated)

Balance as of 30 June 2008 (restated)
Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 4)
Disposals and write-offs

Transfers to investment property
Reclassifications

Balance as of 30 June 2009

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance as of 30 June 2006 (restated)
Charge for the year (restated)
Disposals of subsidiaries (restated)
Disposals and write-offs (restated)
Reclassifications

Balance as of 30 June 2007 (restated)
Charge for the year (restated)
Disposals and write-offs (restated)
Balance as of 30 June 2008 (restated)
Charge for the year

Disposals and write-offs
Reclassifications

Balance as of 30 June 2009

Impairment losses:
Balance as of 30 June 2006
Charge for the year
Balance as of 30 June 2007
Charge for the year
Balance as of 30 June 2008
Charge for the year
Balance as of 30 June 2009

Net book value as of 30 June 2009

Net book value as of 30 June 2008
(restated)

Net book value as of 30 June 2007
(restated)

Buildings Machinery
and and

Other
property,

plant and Construction

Land structures equipment Vehicles equipment in progress Total
2,743 45,662 38,007 6,645 6,976 118 100,151
1,256 83 3,346 252 321 1,808 7,066

(58) - - (304) (435) - (797)
- (69) (445) (1,098) (574) (30) (2,216)
- 540 - 14 (330) (224) -
3,941 46,216 40,908 5,509 5,958 1,672 104,204
1,202 2,018 5,019 1,214 778 2,978 13,209
- (14) (563) (480) (154) (49) (1,260)
(256) - - - - - (256)
10 1,114 - (44) 18 (1,098) -
4,897 49,334 45,364 6,199 6,600 3,503 115,897
1,467 15,478 2,233 835 971 1,799 22,783
- 2,321 2,518 12 519 - 5,370
- (164) (2,097) (787) (133) (113)  (3,294)
(487) - - - - - (487)
- 5,335 (1,056) - (133) (4,146) -
5,877 72,304 46,962 6,259 7,824 1,043 140,269
- 6,078 13,502 3,312 3,181 - 26,073
- 2,419 3,330 651 911 - 7,311
- - - (120) (141) - (261)
- (21) (369) (914) (319) - (1,623)
- 32 - - (32) - -
- 8,508 16,463 2,929 3,600 - 31,500
- 2,409 3,696 708 680 - 7,493
- ()] (349) (366) (169) - (885)
- 10,916 19,810 3,271 4,111 - 38,108
- 3,671 4,277 738 791 - 9,477
- (18) (1,339) 677) (39) - (2,073)
- 441 (358) - (83) - -
- 15,010 22,390 3,332 4,780 - 45512
- - 1 - 56 - 57
- - 1 - 56 - 57
278 266 20 3 1 - 568
278 266 21 3 57 - 625
5,599 57,028 24,551 2,924 2,987 1,043 94,132
4,897 38,418 25,553 2,928 2,433 3,503 77,732
3,941 37,708 24,445 2,580 2,358 1,672 72,704
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Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

The depreciation charge of the Group’s property, plant and equipment for the year ended 30 June 2009 amounts to
LTL 9,477 thousand (LTL 7,493 thousand and LTL 7,311 thousand for the years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007,
respectively). The Group's depreciation charge for the years ended 30 June 20089, 2008 and 2007 was included into

the following captions of balance sheet and income statement:

Financial year ended

30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2008 2007

(restated) (restated)
Cost of sales 6,699 4,830 4,488
Biological assets 1,506 1,059 998
Operating expenses 872 898 1,084
Raw materials and other inventories 281 639 696
Other operating expenses 119 67 45
9,477 7,493 7,311

Depreciation amount was decreased in the income statement by LTL 1,321 thousand for the year ended 30 June 2009
(LTL 1,084 thousand and LTL 1,875 thousand for the years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007) by the amortisation of

grants received by the Group (Note 22).

As of 30 June 2009 part of property, plant and equipment of the Group with the net book value of LTL 82,603 thousand
(LTL 69,208 thousand and LTL 63,537 thousand as of 30 June 2008 and 2007, respectively), was pledged to banks as

a collateral for the loans (Note 23).

Part of property, plant and equipment with the acquisition cost of LTL 6,698 thousand was fully depreciated as of 30
June 2009 (LTL 6,546 thousand and LTL 6,030 thousand as of 30 June 2008 and 2007, respectively) but was still in

active use.
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Investment property

Investment property of the Group consists of land and buildings leased out under the operating lease which generates

lease income.

Cost:
Balance as of 30 June 2006 (restated)
Additions (restated)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (restated) (Note 4)

Balance as of 30 June 2007 (restated)
Additions (restated)
Disposals (restated)

Transfers from property, plant and equipment

Balance as of 30 June 2008 (restated)
Additions

Disposals

Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 4)

Transfers from property, plant and equipment

Balance as of 30 June 2009

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance as of 30 June 2006 (restated)
Charge for the year (restated)
Balance as of 30 June 2007 (restated)
Charge for the year (restated)
Balance as of 30 June 2008 (restated)
Charge for the year

Balance as of 30 June 2009

Impairment losses:

Balance as of 30 June 2006

Charge for the year

Balance as of 30 June 2007

Charge for the yea